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Forward looking statements

This constitutes the Annual Report of British
Sky Broadcasting Group plc (the “Company”)
in accordance with International Financial
. Reporting Standards ("IFRS”) and with those
parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable
to companies reporting under IFRS and 1s
dated 25 July 2013, This Annual Report makes
references to various Company websites The
information on our websites shall not be
deemed to be part of, or incorporated by
, reference Into, this Annual Report.

This document contams certain forward looking statements with
respect to our financial condition, results of operations and business
and our strategy, plans and objectives These statements include
without imutation those that express forecasts expectations and
projections such as forecasts expectations and projections with
respect to new products and services the potential for growth of
free-to-air and pay television, fixed-line telephony, broadband and
bandwidth requirements advertising growth, Direct-to-Home ("DTH")
customer growth, Over-the-top ("0TT™) customer growth, Multiroom,
On Demand NOW TV, Sky Go, Sky Go Extra, Skyt SkytHD and other
services, churn revenue, profitability and margin growth, cash flow
generation, programming costs subscriber management and supply
chain costs, administration costs and other costs marketing
expenditure, capital expenditure programmes and propesals for
returning capital to shareholders

Although the Company believes that the expectations reflected in
such forward looking statements are reasonable, these statements
(and all other forward locking statements contained inthis
document) are not guarantees of future performance and are subject
torisks uncertainties and other factors, some of which are beyond
our controi, are difficult to predict and could cause actual results to
differ materially from those expressed or imphed or forecast in the
forward looking statements These factors include, but are not imited
to, those risks that are highlighted in this document in the section
entitled "Directors report - Business review - Principal risks and
uncertainties”, and information on the significant risks and
uncertainties associated with our business 1s described therein

No part of these results constitutes or shall be taken to constitute,
an ivitation & Inducement to invest in the Company or any other
entity and must not be refled upon n any way in connection with any
Investment decision All forward looking statements in this document
are based on information known to us on the date hereof Except as
required by law, we undertake no cbligation publicly to update or
revise any forward looking statements whether as a result of new
information future events or otherwise
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Chairman’s statement

2013 has been a year of significant progress
for Sky Building on our consistent track
record of growth, the Company continued to
deliver a strong performance, both
operationally and financially

The fact that Sky has continued to outperform over a penod when
nousehold budgets have beenunder sustained pressure is testament
to the robustness of our customer-focused strategy and the
outstanding way in which management has executed aganst that
strategy While the economic chmate remains uncertam, the Board 1s
confident that the Company 1s well placed with a clear plan to deliver
future growth and value creation for shareholders

As Sky has become more successful as a business tts impact on our
Industry and the wider UK economy has grown For example we are
the biggest commercial supporter of the UK creative industries, with
acommitment to grow our annual spend on UK production to £600
million by 2014 Sky also makes a significant and growing contribution
to the wider UK economy contributing over £59 billion to GDP and
supporting 121000 jobs

Alongside this, Sky's position as & leading broadcaster in millions of
homes allows us to reach beyond our business to Inspire people to
make a positive difference A good example 1s Sky Sports Living for
Sport, our schools initiative that uses sports stars and skills to boost
confidence and improve life skills inyoung people Inits tenth year the
Initiative reaches one third of all secondary schools in Britam and has
Just launched in Ireland We are proud of the work that we do i this
area and are committed te doing more in the future

Qver the past year there have beena number of changes to the
Board Jacques Masser Tom Maockndge and Lord Witson of Dinton all
stepped down in the course of the year On behalf of the entire Board
1 would like to thank all of them for the considerable contribution they
have made ta Sky over many years

They have been replaced by Dave Lewis President Personal Care for
Unifever, who joined the Board in Novernber Chase Carey President
and Chief Operating Officer of 21st Century Fox who joined the Board
in January, and Andy Sukawaty the Executive Chairman of Inmarsat
wha joined us In June | amalso delighted that Adine Grate an
experienced finance and iInvestment professional, joined the Board on
17 July

After a period of change | am confident that the Board reflects the
right blend of skills and experience to guide the Company in the best
interests of shareholders

Finally i ight of the Company’s strong performance the Board
proposes an 18% increase in the full-year dividend to 30 0 pence, the
ninth consecutive year of growth Wealso intend to seek shareholder
approval for a further £500 milion of share repurchases

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank shareholders for their
continued support and all of our 24 000 colleagues at Sky for their
commitment and ther invaluable contribution to anather excellent
year for the business

S~

Nick Fergusan, CRE
Chatrman
25 tuly 2013
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Chief Executive
Officer’s statement

b

Our aim s to build a business that is durable
for the long term: one which creates value for
shareholders and also acts responsibly in the
interests of the wider communities in which
we operate. We believe that those businesses
that achieve sustainable success have an
appetite for change and a commitment to
constant renewal in all that they do

AL Sky our success 15 rooted in three core strengths content,
technology and customers We have bullt these capabilities over many
years and we believe that the unique way i1 which we have brought
them together has been fundamental to our growth While other
companies may be strong n one of these areas or seek to extend into
another, Sky uses its understanding of customers to prowide great
content and innovative technology in a way that competitors are
unable to match

For us, everything starts with the customer We have established
direct, long-term relationships with over 11 milion homes across
Britain and Ireland These relationships give us a deep understanding
of what our customers want, - and don t want ~ and enable us to stay
focused on providing the services that best meet their needs

Because we understand our customers, we krow that the man
reason they join Sky, and then stay with us, 1s for great TV Qur job s to
ensure that we find and produce the very best content to keep
offering them a better choice of the television they love

And it 15 the strength and scale of our customer relationships that
enable us to develop Innovative technology that 1s simpie and easy to
use Our products have transformed the viewing expenence for our
customers by gving them greater choice and flexibility In the way they
access and enjoy our content

In a fast-changing and increasingly complex envronment we believe it
1s the combination of thesa three strengths that gives us our edge
And our continued focus and investment in them provides us with a
durable source of value and compstitive advantage

.

What we've delivered

Looking back on the last year, our results show that our approach 1s
delivering for custorners and for shareholders In what has remained a
challenging consumer erwironment we sold more products to more
customers and grew the amount they spend with us Over the year we
added 3 3 millon new subscription products taking our total base of
paid-for products past the 30-million mark for the first ime to

316 millen This is more than double the level of five years ago

That growth came from across our product set Inhome
communications for example Sky this year became the UK's second
largest broadband prowder with more than 4 9 million customers This
was a result of strong erganic growth combined with the acquisition
of 02's consumer broadband and fixed-line telephony business

Overall customers now take an average of 2 8 products fromus with
more than cne In three now taking all three of TV, broadband and
telephony This helped us to grow ARPU to arecard level of £577, an
increase of £29 on a year ago

At the same time, we continued to add new customers We closed the
year with 11 2 million customers, up 547,000 on last year making Sky
the choice of around 40% of households across Britain and Ireland

Building on our strengths

We know that to keep attracting new customers - and to add even
more value to our existing customers - we need continually to look for
new ways to improve what we offer them

This year we significantly improved our content offering securing
long-term agreements an key rights, banging outstanding new talent

4 British Sky Broadcasting Group pic
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to Sky and attracting record audiences across our channel portfolio
In sport, we reinforced our leadership with our stromgest year yet
Europe s victory in the Ryder Cup Andy Murray's first Grand Slam at
the US Open and the British and Irnish Liens tour of Austraha all
provided momentous sporting occasions With back-to-back Ashes
series ive and exclusive Formula 1 racing and the biggest-ever season
of Premier League football all to come, next year could be better yet
In movies, we renewed our relationship with four of the six major
studios In the course of the year strengthening our portfoho and
developing our offering to give customers more of the top movies to
watch in more ways than ever before

We have continued to bring our customers the best content from
around the world whiist increasing the amount that we spend on
onginal production We are on track to reach our target of an annual
spend of £600 millon en Batish programming across our channels by
the end of 2014 Our strategy to increase investment In this area
enabled us to bring mere great shows to customers Including the
multi award-winmng Hunderby written by Julia Daws, Chris O Dowd s
semi-autoblographical Moone Boy and the third series of the entically-
acclaimed Mad Dogs Satisfaction alse reached new highs with Sky 1
Sky Living and Sky Atlantic all named amongst customers’ top five
‘must-have” pay TV channels

We strengthened our leadership in customer technology by driving
rapid take-up and usage of new connected TV services over the year
The growth in the number of connected boxes toreach 25% of
customers combined with the launch of the UK s most comprehensive
tatchup TV service, drove a fivefold increase in the number of average
weekly On Demand downloads At thesame time, Sky Go our mobile
wideo service had 3 3 milion quarterly umgue users by the end of

the year

In addition, we gave people a new way to access our content with the
launch of NOW TV cur Internet TV service Having started with Sky
Movies, we added Sky Sports to the service later in the year offering
customers access to all six Sky Sports channels through a new
24-hourday pass This 1s the first time we have made Sky Sports
avallable outside a monthly subscription and It represents an exaiting,
new ocpportunity for us to grow

Over the past year we also continued to offer great quality and value
home communications products In January, we launched the Sky
Switch Squad, a dedicated team of customer service advisors to make
switching to Sky Broadband and Sky Talk easier We also continued to
build Britain s leading public WiFI network, now with over 20,000
hotspots and growing In addition, we took a sigrificant step to
extend our footprint by launching home communications in Ireland

Exceptional customer service remains integral towhat we do In
Jaruary, we opened a new customer contact centre tn Dublin to
provide dedicated support for our Insh customers creating 800 new
jobs We also created 550 new jobs over the course of the year across
our UK retanl team and at our Mewcastle customer contact centre And
in a further step in cur drive to improve the effectiveness of our home
service operation we are bringing 700 engineers mn-house at the end
of the summer

The quality of our customer serwice delivery was again recogrised in
Ofcom's customer satisfaction survey This ranked Sky first for
customer service In TV fixed broadband and landline

Excellent financial performance

Our strong operational performance combined with a continued
focus on cost control and efficiency, has translated into excellent
financial performance and increased returns to shareholders Total
revenue increased by 7% adjusted operating profit was up by 9% to
£1,330 milon while adjusted bask: earrungs per share were

600 pence anincreasa of 18% on last year and almost two and a half
times the leve! of five years ago

In light of this, the Board has proposed a dividend of 300 pence, which
represents anincrease of 18% year on year and the ninth consecutive
year of growth Our programme to return £500 million to shareholders
through a share buy-back also continues In addition we intend to
seek shareholder approval at the Company’s AGM in November for a
further £500 million of share repurchases As with previous
programmes 2ist Century Fox (formerly known as News Corporation)
has agreed to participate in the buy-back, with the effect that there
will be no change In 1L$ economic or voting interests in the Company as
aresult of the share buy-back programme

Sky s financial performance demonstrates the way m which our
successful transitron to more broadly-based growth has created a
bigger more profitable business and increased returns to
shareholders Hawving more ways to grow has also served us well ata
time when household budgets have been stretched We will continue
to focus on growing our overall product, sales as the best way to
deliver sustainable value to shareholders We see considerable
headroom for growth and believe that our unique combination of
strengths makes us best-placed to deliver the TV and
communications services that customers want

Seeing the bigger picture

At Sky, we recogrise that creating a durable business also means
looking beyond cur immediate commercial priorities to consider the
impact that we have on the wider communities in which we operate
We call this seeing the bigger picture

Sky makes a significant and growing economic and social contribution
to Britain and Ireland We provide choice for customers in
entertainment and communications were the biggest commercial
supporter of the UK creative industries and we're a long-term
supporter of British sport And the more successful we are the more
we contribute to Britain and Ireland as a whole

We believe that being successful commercially goes hand In hand with
acting responsibly 5o we think carefully about how we go about doing
business day to day One area where we have made sigrificant
progress this year 1s online safety where we offer tools to help
parents protect their children at home and on the move

As a leading broadraster we also know that we have an epportunity
to make a wider impact engaging directly with our customers to
Inspire them to make a difference Over the last year wereached a
rumber of significant milestones Insport, a third of all secondary
schools are now taking part in Sky Sports Living for Sport, our
programme that uses the power of sport to improve life skills in young
people Inaddition over a million more people are now cycing regularly
as aresult of our partnership with British Cycling. We hope that Chnis
Froome's success in the Tour de France in July 2013 will inspire even
more people to get on therr bikes

British Sky Broadcasting Group plc 5
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In the arts, we have worked with some of the UK's leading arts
organisations to bring innovative new art works to the publc Our
award-winning collaboration with Tate Liverpool was visited by almost
50,000 people this year At our broadcasting facility in West London
we also opened Sky Skills Studios, a unigue learning experience that
takes young pecple behind the scenes at Sky and gives them the
chance to work with the latest technology to make therr own news
reports on subjects they are studying at school By the end of June
over 9500 young people had already taken part in the Sky Skills
Studios expenience

We are committed to continuing to do more in all of these areas, which
15 why we are particularly delighted that David Beckham has joined us
as a Sky ambassador to help us get even more people involved in
spart

Of course activities like these are the right thing for abusiness like
Sky todo But acting responsibly in the nterests of ali of our
stakeholders also gives people more reasons to fee! positively about
Sky, which 15 an important part of how we continue to ba successful
and grow

As always, we couldn t have achieved any of this without our people
They are vital to our success and every one of our 24,000 colleagues
plays ther part We work hard to attract the very best people to Sky
and to ¢create a culture that encourages them to do their best work
and fulfil ther potential Whether by Improving the training that we
provide or prometing internal moves to broaden individuals’
knowledge of the business ensunng that we continue to develop our
people effectively remains a key priority

This year the Sky community was devastated by the tragic loss of Nick
Milligan Managing Director of Sky Media and his daughter Emily Nick
was a widely respected member of our team and his legacy will endure
for many years More importantly he was a great friend and a devoted
family man who will be sorely missed by all who had the privilege to
know him

In August 2013, we were shocked by the news that Mick Deane a Sky
MNews Cameraman, was shot and killed in Egypt covening the unrestin
Carro Mick had worked for Sky for the last 15 years in a distinguished
career spanning four decades He was a brnillant cameramen and
Journalist and an inspiring mentor to many at Sky His deathisan
untimely reminder of the bravery and commitment that our colleagues
In Sky News and other news organisations demonstrate each and
everyday*

I would like to thank the whele team for thewr hard work and
enthusiasm over the last year With their continued drive and
determination, we can continue $o deliver for our customers our
communities and our shareholders bullding a bigger and better
business for the years to come

oo B
—

Jeremy Darroch
Chief Executive Officer
25 July 2013

“This paragraph was included afzer the audited accounts were appreved on 25 July 2003
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Our business model

Sky is Britain and Ireland’s leading home entertainment and
communications provider. As at 30 June 2013, we had 11.2 million
customers taking a total of 31.6 million products.

Our business Our strategy

We retall pay TV services to residential customers both in

the home and on the move We connect our customers with
broadband and telephony products, including DSL, fibre and

WIFI We also retall our TV serwices to commercial custormers and
operate adjacent businesses distributing our programmes and
channels, selling advertising on our own and on partner channels,
and offering a range of betting and gaming services

We have a clear and consistent growth
strategy to sell more products and services
to our customers, to attract new customers
to Sky. and to develop our adjacent
businesses

VIV ISADE,

Our approach

To achieve our broadily-based growth strategy, we invest in the customer experience while improving the efficiency
of our operations Through unwavering focus on quality, flexibility, value and service we can grow In a variety of ways,
create value for shareholders, and make a broader contribution to society

Investin standout

content

We :nvestin hgh
quatty differert ated
content Lo pive
CUSIOMETS & #rvaia
choice of the Ty they
are passtonate about

: Add value through
! innovation

Throueh ot Nud iy

1 Pagvol ng aroand our
i products and services we
i ext: *dour reachinto new

dreels distriute our

i content more broadly and
I -mprove the espenence

i Grow in home

I communications

! We havean

¢ Infragtructure which
i allows us to prowide

ustomers with great
alue, high quality and
clable communications
CTVICES

i Scaleother

! businesses

{ We dsploy our contert
INVESLMENTS 1o

¢ support growth n our
I adjacent who'esale

¢ adverysing, dataand
betung and ganing

i businesses

i Increase operating
i efficiency

I we focus on
operaung efficiency
i tode'ver the best

{ serv.ce underpin

i investment in future
growth and ncrease
i profit. cash flow and

C.alomens

Our people

- The talent, hard werk and
enthusiasm of our people
are critical to Sky s success

.

il Wewant to ensure we
v

attract the best people and
create a culture and an environment where
they can perform at their best and achieve
their full potential

I acdaiarore vewe for

Develop long term capability

Seeing the bigger picture

s Seeing the bigger picture 1s
our approach to bullding a
sustainable business We do
| this by growing our economic

responsibility for doing the nght thing in our
day to day business and reaching beyond our
business to Inspire people to take action to

+ make apositive difference

and socal contribution taking

i retums.

We invest in developing our brand our people and our infrastructure as key components of long term success

How we manage risk

¥ The Group has a formal
' nsk management
: } g frarmework embedded
l \&J’ within the business to
b , support the identification
and effective management of nsk across
the Group
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Our performance

We have identified a number of key performance indicators
that we use to assess the Group’s performance against its
core strategic priorities.

Operational key performance indicators

Products & customers

(rmillion)
B Totalcustomers M TJotal products

T T T T T

m—————
2012 06 284

20m

Dascription

A customeris definedas a subscriber te one of our TV
packages or standalone home COMMUNICATIONS Services.
Total products s defined as the total of alisubscnption
products taken by our custamers and includes TV HD
Multiroom Sky Go Extra Broadband Telephony and
Line Rental

Analysts

Fotal customers and products are both hey determinants
of the Group s vatue Our strategy s 1o continue agding
customers and selling mora progducts Lo our existing
base in 2013 we added 547000 new custormers and
grew the total products taken by 11%te 31 6 milion

We also have over 25 independently
assured key performance indicators
that we use to measure our

sustainability performance
These can be found at
skycom/biggerpicture

Churn
%)

= —aar
2013 108%
2012 102%
Description

Churn represents the number of total customers

over a grven penod wha terminated therr subscnptions
net of former customers who reinstated their
subsenption (within 12 months of terminating their
oniginal subscnption) expressed as a percentage

of total average customers

Analyss

Churnis a good measure of customer satisfaction,
which 15 a key driver of valua for our business

Churn for the year 2013 was relatively stable at 10 8%.

Carbonintensity
(Per Emcfrevenue)
B Gross 0@ emissions (WEM) = = = Target reduction

191
163
' i i MB ]
2009 2me 20m 2012 2013
Description

Carbon intensity 1s one of ten new key performance
Indicators we use to measure our ervironmental
performance (see sky com/biggerpicture) The totat
gross CO,e emissions indude emissions from premises
and company owned vehicles (Scopeland 2

Analysis

We Independently assure our carbon fostpnnt each
year and use the results to drive reductions across the
business. Gur absohuite gross CO.e emissions were stable
in 2013 while we grew as a business. Our carbonintensity
fellta 13 8, 33% less than our 2008/09 baselne We are
ontrack to meet our new target set in 2012 to halve our
carbon enussions relative to revenue (CO,e t/Em) by 2020

Customaers taking each of TV
broadband and telephony
%)

2013

2012 32%

Description

The percentage of customers taking one ofour TV
products and both a Sky Broadband and a Sky Talk
product. Customers may atso opt for ourline
rental product

Analysis

This1s animpertant measure for our business

wath higher penetration positrvely impacting ARPU

and customer loyalty At 30 June 2013 39 mulion
customers chose each of TV broadband and telephony
up 15% fromthe pnar year

Employea engagement
| Skyengagement B UK National Norm

94%

— T B87%
20z 0%
Description

To measure employee engagement we undertake an
nternat survey of sur employees and benchmark ther
answers externally As part of abroad array of topics
surveyed employees are asked asenes af questions
designed to quantify engagement.

Analysis

Employee engagement (s a good indicator of how our
employees feel about the Company Ag well as reaching

a high performance indicator for employee engagement,
we have improved on last year and performed better than
an independent external benchmark of other blue-chip
companies in each of the last three years

8 Brnitish Sky Broadcasting Group ple
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Description

Average revenue per user (ARPU) s calculated by taking
the amount spent by the Group s residential customers
(ex VAT) danded by the average number of residential
usStomers

Analysis

ARPU s impacted by the type of subscription package
taken Dy a customer as well as the number of products
ARPU Increased by £29 as customers rewarded us with
more of their business

Adjusted bask earnings per share
-

2013

o rmr oo e )

2012 508p
e e rrmir—— ———

201 4i6p

Description

Adjusted basic EPSis the profit after tax for the year
excluding adjusting items and related tax effects, dmded
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares

Anatysia

Adjusted basie EPS provides a measure of sharehclder
return that 1ig comparable over ume Adjusted basic
EPS increased by ¥8% to reach a recard level of 60 0p

Finanaal key performance indicators

Revenue

(Emy

2013

o -

Description

Revenue includes revenue from retail subscrnption
wholesale subscription revenue advertising and
installation, hardware and serice revenue

Analys:s

Revenue s a key measure of how the Group i1s delivering
onits strategy to grow the business In 2013 revenue grew
by 7% with good growth in retail and wholesale cperations
and a recovery in the more cyclical operations

Adjusted free cash flow
(Em)<

=
23 1028

|
P
i
I
E

{

2012 410

|

20m 869

Dascription

Adjusted free cash flow 1s defined as cash generated
from operations after theimpact of capital expenditiwe.
netnterest and tax pad, cash flows to and fromoing
ventures, excluding adjusung items

Analysis

Free cash flow s an important measure of the Groups
success In converting profits to cash flow and of the
unceriying health of the business Adjusted free cash
Row increased by 13% to over £1 illion for the First time:

1 Ferareconaliabion of non-GAAP measures induding areconahation of ARPU which has been restated for 2011 see pages 114 115

2 From continuing operatians

3 For further details see note 8 of the consohdated financal statements

Adlusted operating profit
(Emy

2013 ' REES

Description
Adjusted operating profit for the Group excludes items
that may distort comparabulity

Analysts

Adjusted operating profit is a key measure of the
undertang business performance itincreased by
9%1n 2013

Total shareholder return

(%)
B 8SkyB W FTSE

13%
5 Vi CAGR ﬁ
18%

Description

Totaishareholder return (TSR) represents the change
i value of a share heid for a 12-manth penod to 30 June
assuming that dwdends are reinvested to purchase
add bonal shares at the closing pnce applicable on
the ex dividend date The value of the share 1sbased
onthe average share price over the three months
pnorta 30 tune The chart above illustrates the TSR
performance far the 12 months ta 30 June 2013 and
an average annual performance compounded over
frve years to 30 June 2013

Analysis

TSR represents a comparable measure of shareholder
retum over time BSkyB shares outperformed the FTSE
100 Index by 2 percentage peints in theyear to 30 June
2013 and by B percantage points over five years

Batish Sky Broadcasting Group plc 9
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Review of our business

INTRODUCTION
Overview of the business

Sky Is the UK's leading entertainment and communications provider
We operate the most comprehensive multichannel muiti-platform pay
television service in the UK and Ireland We have led the UK into the
age of HDTV and launched Europe’s first 3DTV channel, Sky 3D We give
our customers greater access control and choice while at home and on
the move with our Sky+ On Demand and Sky Go services NOW TV
Sky's second consurner brand, gives customers another flexible way to
access Sky's content Sky i1s the UK's fastest growing home
communications company and this year we achieved another product
milestane with the launch of a communications service to complete
our triple play offerng in treland

At 30 June 2013, we had over 11 2 million customers in the UK and
Ireland taking a total of 316 million products We are the UK's
largest triple play provider with 35% of our customers choosing to
take each of TV, broadband and telephony

Our consistent approach 1s delivering strong financial results For the
year ended 30 June 2013 revenue growth of 7% combined with aur
continued focus on operating efficiency delivered adjusted operating
profit growth of 9% to reach a record £1330 million and we surpassed
£1 billion of free cash flow for the first ime We continued our strong
track record for shareholder returns with 18% growth in the full year
dividend of 30 Op our ninth consecutive year of growth In addition
we have returned £624 million to shareholders throughout the year
via our share buy-back programme

This review of the business sets out the Group s main activities which
are summarised as follows

> Qur customers - our products and services

> Qur content - our channel offenng

> Our adjacent businesses - Sky Media, Wholesale Distribution Sky
Betting and Gaming and Sky Vision

> Infrastructure and technology - satellites, playout and uplink
faciities digital satellite reception equipment encryption and
security and communications \nfrastructure

Certain terms used herein are defined In the "Glossary of terms” which
appears at the end of this Annual Report

The Company a public company imited by shares and demiciled inthe
UK, operates under the laws of England and Wales It was
incorporated in the UK on 25 Apnl 1988 Our principal executive offices
are located at Grant Way, Isleworth Middlesex TW7 5QD, England A
list of our significant Nvestmeants Is set out 1N note 31to the
consolidated financial statements

OUR CUSTOMERS
Overview of our retail business

We retail subscription TV and communications services to residential
and commercial premises in the UX and Ireland Qur customers enjoy
an unrivalled choice of high quality content We own and broadcast
the Sky Channels which we retail together with the Sky Distributed
Channels to our TV customers and stnce July 2012 we have offered
simple and commitment free access to an internet TV service inthe
UK NOW TV We keep our customers connected with great value
broadband and telephony products in the home via DSL and fibre and
away from the home with Sky WiF)

Products and Services

Television

> The Sky Channels and Sky Distributed Channels For our TV Customers,
we group the Sky Distributed Channels (other than the Premium Sky
Distributed Channels) and the Sky Basic Channels into three packs,
Entertanment, Entertainment Extra and Entertainment Extrat The
Entertainment pack 1s avattable for £2150 per month and includes
popular entertainment channels such as Sky 1, Sky Atlantic, Sky
Lming Comedy Central, Watch Gold, Alibiand Fox Entertainment
Extra s avalable for £27 per month and includes all the channels
from our Entertainment pack plus additional channels including
Discovery, Disney and Nattonal Geographic Entertainment Extratis
avallable for £32 per month and includes all the channels from our
Entertainment Extra pack plus 48 of these channels in HD and
access to TV box-sets with On Demand Customers also have the
option to add a combination of Premium Sports and Movies
Channels to their package Intotal, the Sky TV service currently
offers access to 165 pay television channels (134 Sky Distrnibuted
Channels and 31 Sky Channels) and in addition all customers can
receive more than 300 free-te-arr telewsion and radio channels and
services Our agreements with the owners of the Sky Distributed
Channels typically grant us the exclusive night to offer these
chanriels toresidential DTH customers in the UK and Ireland

> Sky*+ TV Customers canuse Sky* to record two programmes
simultaneously whiist they are watching ancther programme
recorded earlier TV Customers can also use Sky+ to pause and
rewind live T¥ and record entire series at the touch of a button with
the 'Series Link' feature Since October 2012 iF arecordingis
accidentally deleted it can now be undeleted The Sky+ app on
mobiles and tablets allows TV customers to view the TV Guide and
On Demand catalogue, view recommendations, record programmes
and set up a Series Link whilst on the move When inthe home TV
Customers can use the Sky+ app to browse their planner and use it
as a remote control for their SkytHD box

> Sky HD We operate an HD service which consists of over 60 HD
channels offenng a range of content across all key genres This year
we have introduced greater flexibility as to the means by which
customers can access our HD service 48 basic HD channels
including Sky 1HD, Sky Lving HD, Sky Atlantic HD Sky Arts 1and2HD
and Sky News HD and eight free-to-air channels are now available
within our new TV pack, Entertainment Extrat Customers then have
the optton to add an HD Pack on top of this for Premium HD
channels inline with their TV package including five Sky Sports
channels and 11 Sky Movies channels

> Sky Muftirosm We also offer our DTH customers a multiroom
subscnption allowing customers to watch Sky TV in different rooms
at the same time by purchasing additional set-top boxes

> On Demand Sky's On Demand service offers a wide selection of
content from across the Sky platform including content from the
Sky Channels the Sky Distnibuted Channels and free-to-air
broadcasters (including BBC (Player) for customers to watch
whenever they want Our full On Demand service includes IP
delivered video on demand and 1s available to homes that have an
actwve broadband connection Once their box 1s connected to ther
broadband connection, relevant TV Customers have a regularly
updated library of ondemand TV including the UK s biggest catch
up TV service with the widest range of catch up channels, as well as
access to over BOO movies and TV box sets (Including iconic serigs
from HBO)
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> Sky Go The service 1s available at no extra cost to DTH customers
allowing them to watch up to 49 live channels and on demand
content including all six Sky Sports channels Sky Movies, Sky 1, Sky
Living, Sky Arts and Sky Atlantic Customers can also watch
programmes from a range of Sky Distnbuted Channels and On
Demand content live and on demand including children s content
frorn Disney Nickelodeon and Turner and entertainment content
from Fox Syfy Universal and Star Plus Content from Channel 4 and
4ab 15 also availlable for customers to watch Sky Gois avallable on
laptops, mobiles, tablets and Xbox 360 Each Sky home 1s entitled
toregister for the service on up to two compatible devices

> Sky Go Extra in January 2013, we launched our new subscription
service, Sky Go Extra The service, which costs £5 a month, allows
DTH customers te download selected content included with their
TV package to watch when and where they want, without the need
for a WiF1 or 3G/4G connection Customers can also register for Sky
Go on four rather than two internet-connected devices From July
Sky Go Extra s avallable to Sky Multiroom customers at no extra
cost

> Sky Box Office Qur Sky Box Office service currently offers our DTH
customers television prermieres of movies and occasional ive sports
entertainment events an a pay-per-view basis

> Sky Store Sky Store 1s our movies rentals service giving customers a
choice of over 1000 mowvies including new refeases just out on DVD
and awhole library of favourites, all availlable to rent instantty and
on demand

> NOW TV QOur internet TV service giving customers in the UK an easy
and commitment-free way to access some of the best Sky content
15 avallable across a wide range of internet-cornected devices
Movie fans can get a Sky Movies Pass for £15 a month, offering
completely unlimited access to hundreds of films Sports fans can
get a Sports Day Pass for £999 for 24 hours of unhimited access to
all six Sky Sports channels

Home communications

> Sky Broadband At 30 June 2013 Sky had over 4 9 million broadband
customers Since our [aunch In 2006 we have consistently been the
fastest growing provider of broadband and home telephony
services and our recent acguisition of O2 s consumer broadband
and fixed-line telephony business has helped to cement cur
position as the second largest operator in the UK As well as
significant savings customers are switching ta Sky for improved
customer service a better product experience and more flexibility
Hawving a state of the art, all fibre core network means we can gve
our customers a highly reliable service without reducing speeds at
peak-times or imposing fair use polices on uncapped products Our
network covers almost 88% of UK households and allows us to offer
customers achoice of high quality and great value broadband
services Sky Broadband Connect 1s a white labelled service offered
to customers in the UK who are not within the coverage area of our
network It allows us to provide customers with a Sky-branded
broadband service and give them access to Sky's leading customer
service Infrastructure even though our network does not extend to
their heme For UK hemes within our network reach we offer two,
copper-based (DSL) broadband products For each of our DSL
products we give customers the maximum speed possible on the
ine Sky Broadband Lite s free for customers who also take ine
rental and it has a 2G8 menthly usage allowance Sky Broadband
Unlimited retails at £750 per month (when taken with a TV service)
and has no monthly usage allowance or fair usage policy The

majority of our broadband customers choose the unlimited
product We also offer two differentiated fibre broadband products
to customers in the UK Sky Fibre Unhimited gives customers
download speeds of up to 38 Mbps and Sky Fibre Uniimited Pro
offers speeds of up to 76 Mbps Neither product has usage caps
imposed The fibre products are wholesated from BT Openreach
and are therefore avallable to Sky customers who reside within the
coverage area of BT's fibre network Sky broadband customers in
the UK (except Sky Broadband Lite customers) can also enjoy
unlimited Sky WiFi in over 20 000 hotspots across the UK, all
included as part of therr monthly broadband subscription This
gives customers the opportunity to enjoy unlimited free wireless
access across the high street and other Jocations where people
want to get online Consumers donot need to be Sky TV custamers
to enjoy Sky's great value broadband each of our products (except
Sky Broadband Lite) 1 also avallable on a standalone basis
In February 2013, we launched Sky Broadband in Ireland We
white-label BT Ireland s products to offer insh customers two
copper-based (DSL) products Sky Broadband Lite and Sky
Broadband Unhimited Both products offer customers download
speeds of up to 24 Mbps (depending on the customer’s location)

> Sky Talk Sky Talk Is a telephony service (including landling) available
tohomes in the UK and Ireland and has over 4 5 million customers
Sky Talk is avallable to customers who do not take a television
service
Inthe UK Sky Talk Weekends (with Sky Line Rental) offers
customers inclusive weekend calls of up to one hour to UK landlines
and Sky Talk Unlimited (with Sky Line Rental) offers customers
unlimited calls (for up to ane hour per call) to UK landlines and 22
international destinations In Ireland, Sky Talk Freetime offers
customers inclusive evering and weekend calls of up to one hour to
landlines in Ireland and Sky Talk Anytime offers customers inclusive
calts of up to one hour te landlines in Ireland and 20 international
destinations

> Sky Wift We have continued to grow our WiFI footprint across the
UK and now have over 20,000 high bandwidth, public access
hotspots The qualty of our hotspots in popular locations where
people dwell provides valued seamless internet access free of
charge to Sky Broadband Unfimited Sky Connect, Sky Fibre
Unlimited and Sky Fibre Unhimited Pro customers The service
prowdes flexibility and convenience and proves particularly valuable
for customers who access Sky content on the go

Sky Business

We offer a number of our services including our HD service to
commercial TV customers in the UK and Ireland under a range of
contracts The types of contract and the channels which are availlable
to any particular commercoal customer depend primarily upon the
type of business premises within which such customers wish to show
our services Cur commercial TV customers include offices retail
outlets, hatels pubs and clubs We also offer WiFi services to
commercial customers

ECt judgment On 4 October 2011, the European Court of Justice
("ECJ"Yhanded down its judgment tn actions brought by the Premier
League ("PL") amongst others against pubs using (and suppliers
supplying} foreign decoder cards and boxes to view ive PL football
The ECJ determined that restnctions in an agreement between the PL
and its Greek licensee which obliged that iicensee not to supply
decoting devices to persons outside the licensed terntory, are
contrary to EU laws The ECJ found that, although the PL did not have
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Review of our business

continued

copyright in the live coverage of its football matches, the PL title
sequences logo, anthem and graphical elements cid attract
protection under the Copyright Directive The High Court consistently
applied the ECJ s judgment to the cases before It and the defendants
In the awit itigation (the foreign card suppliers) were found to have
infringed the PLs copynight The High Court also held that certain
provisions in the PLs agreements with foreign distributors prohibiting
the distnbution of decoder cards outside of the authorised territory
were void under competition law

The PL appealed (to the Court of Appeal) a limited aspect of the High
Court decision which had found that the defendants had a defence to
the allegation of Infringement of the PLs film copynght In December
20712, the Court of Appeal found that the defendants did have a
defence in relation to the film copynight but only because the UK has
faled to implement properly the Copyright Directive It s likely that
the government will need to change UK faw (n order to bring it inline
with the Directive although there 15 no indication as to the timing of
any such change

QUR CONTENT
Overview of our content

The main reason why our customers come to Sky 1s the choice of high
quality content that we provide It s key that the content we offer
differentiates Sky from what I1s avallable on the free-to-air channels

Our News Mowvies and Sports channels are best in breed and
considerable investment 1s now being made 1n our Entertainment
portfolio to provide distinct channel destinations We are increasing
our Investment in oniginal British content to £600 milhon per year by
the end of 2014 We have had considerable success with comedy -
with over 20 original series delivered In the last year - and will start to
deliver arange of new British drama senies In the year ahead We are
also working with our partner channels such as History National
Geographic and Comedy Central to increase their commitment to
delivering onginal British content

Our channe! portfollo

Qur entertainment channels

> Sky 1 Sky 115 our flagship entertainment channel provding content
that appeals to the whole household The majority of Its content
investrment 1s 1n UK commissions with a focus on comedy and
drama Sky1was once again nominated for Channel of the Year
(having won it for the first time In 20 years last year) Its am s to
have 12 high profile shows every year that customers value - this
year they included Stelia, Got To Dance, Mad Dogs, Modern Farmily
Strikeback An Idiat Abroad The Simpsons and Trollied Sky1has
focused on increasing the number of long running British drama
series and a new addition for the year ahead will be The Smoke aten
part drama series from the makers of Spooks

> Sky Living Sky Living remains a destination of choice for our female
customers and their partners We have had considerable success
with new and returning US dramas - such as Elementary Honnibal
Bones, and Grey s Anatomy We have also started to introduce British
comedy to the channel with the hughly acclaimed Love Matters and
continue to deliver well loved formats such as Britain and refand s
Next Top Mode! High profile senes coming to the channeithis year
inciude Dracula (& co-preduction with MBC) Dolf and Em (a semi-
improvised comedy set in LA) and The Face hosted by Naomi Campbell

> Sky Atlantic Sky Atlantic i the channel of choice for cinematic UK and
U5 drama The channel is the home of HBO content in the UK as part
of an exclusive output deal Key senes performers this year have been
Game of Thrones The Following The Borgias Boardwalk Empire and
Girls It won four Baftas this year and was nominated for Channel of
the Year New Bnuish dramas coming to the channel in the
forthcoming year include Flerning and The Tunnel

> Sky Arts Sky Arts 11s for audiences who love the Arts and love
creative risk This year it has had its biggest audience ever with A
Young Daoctors Notebook, an oniginal LK commission, starring John
Hamm and Daniel Radckffe It has had remarkable success with
Playhouse Presents - arun of one of f plays starnng acters such as
Brenda Blenthyn Alison Steadman Vanessa Redgrave and Kylie
Minocgue Sky Arts 2 continues to broadcast a range of the bestin
classical arts programming from around the world including opera
Iiterature, theatre, film and dance Upcoming highlights will include
the first ever portrait competition with the National Portrait Gallery
and Talks Music a unique Interview series giving an exclusive msight
Into the careers of some of the world's most iconic music legends

Sky 1 Sky Living Sky Atlantic Sky Arts 1and Sky Arts 2 are all
broadcast in HD and are alse available on Sky Go (except Sky Arts 2)
and content fror the channels 1s availlable on demand via On Demand
Sky Go and Sky Go Extra

Our partner channels

> To complement our own entertainment channels Sky s pay TV
offenng also includes a range of high quality channels from other
broadcasters This includes well known channels from major
international broadcasters such as Disney Discovery Viacom, Fox
and NBC Universal, amongst others Partner channels suchas
Comedy Central Gold Watch, SyFy, Fox and MTV add breadth to
Sky’s entertainment offering with some very popular UK
cammissicned shows such as Dynamo Magrcian Impossible which
delivered record audiences dunng the year Our childrens offering
includes channels from the trusted Disney and Nickelodeon brands,
and our factual offering includes some outstanding content from
the likes of Discovery National Geographic and History Channet
The rmajonty of our partner channels are now made available to our
customers in HD, with great content avallable On Demand

SkyMovias

> Sky Movies Qverview Sky Movies has an unbeatable range of films
including most of the latest Hollywood blockbusters new British
films and a deep lbrary of all-time greats Through our exciusive
agreements with the major studios and some of the leading
independents Sky Movies offers customers over 800 movies on
demand and across 11 dedicated channels, including new premieres
every week Sky Movies customers can enjoy these new films within
9months from therr intial release In anemas and at least 12 months
before any online mowies subscription service
In the last year we created the pop up channet Sky Mowvias 007,
which 1s the home to the complete Bond film franchise - a world
first We also launched Sky Movies Disney, a ground breaking
partnership bringing Sky Movies customers exclusive Disney movies
Together with Disney Movies on Bermand we have the most
comprehensive Disney movies offering in the UK
in addition to enjoying movies whenever they want with On
Demand, Sky Mowvies customers can also watch meovies wherever
they are with Sky Go The Sky Movies channels are also availlable via
NOW TV All of the Sky Movies channels are available in HD We dont
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show any advertisements dunng our films and we PIN-protect
pre-watershed

> Competition Comnussion investigation \n August 2010, Ofcom
referred the supply and acquisition of pay TV movie rights and the
wholesale supply and acqusition of pay TV packages including Sky's
mowvie channels to the Competition Commisston ("CC™) for
rvestigation The CC published its final report on 2 August 2012,
concluding that the Group's posttion in the acquisition and
distribution of movies in the first pay window did not adversely
affect competition In the pay TV retall market and that accordingly
remedies were not required

Sky Sports
> Sky Sports Overview The Sky Sports Channels are Sky Sports 1, Sky

Sports 2, Sky Sports 3 Sky Sports 4 Sky Sports News and Sky
Sports F1 together with their HD simulcasts The channels are also
all avallable online on Sky Go and via NOW TV Some content from
these channels 1s also avaitable On Demand In the 2012 calendar
year, we broadcast 49,000 hours of sport across our six channe!
network

> Sky Sports programming Our programming nghts for the Sky Sports

Channels include exclusive Iive nights to broadceast 1n the UK and in
most cases Ireland) a range of sport including a number of football
{ncluding Premier League, UEFA Champions League, Football
League and La Liga) motorsport rugby union, rugby league, cricket,
golf and tennis events In 2013 Sky Sports set a number of new
record audiences for indvidual sports These include records for the
dramatic chmax to the 2012 Ryder Cup Andy Murray’s win at the US
Open, and the recent Lions series Audiences watching on devices
other than televisions also Increased with Sky Go viewing regularly
adding 10% to In-home audience figures The year ahead 15 set to be
another exciting year for Sky Sports For the first time we will have
back to back Ashes series, with the summer series being played out
on the temporanly re-branded Sky Sports Ashes channel Coverage
under the new PL contract commences on 17 August 2013 and this
season we wilt broadcast 116 live PL games, more than ever before
The start of the 2013/14 PL season will also see the launch of our
new Game Changers programme which will aim to inspire greater
sports participation amongst children Both Dawd Beckham and
Jessica Enmis-Hill will be pronding master-classes as features within
the show We also give valuable exposure to a wide range of other
sports which appeal to a smaller but equally committed audience
> In March 20086, the European Commission rendered legally binding
the Pls commitment to sell ive TV nghts in six balanced packages
for the three seasons from 2010/11, with no cne bidder being
allowed to buy all six packages In February 2009, the Group
successfully bid for five of those six avatlable packages (each of 23
games) of live nghts to PL football in both the UK and treland for
three seasons to the end of the recently completed 2012A13 season
In June 2012, following a restructure of the tender process, seven
packages of live Premier League nghts to 154 matches for seasons
201314 o 201516 were offered by the PL (@ight packages covering
184 matches in Ireland) No one bidder was allowed to win more
than 116 matches We successfully secured five of the seven PL
packages (116 live matches per year from the 201314 season) for the
UK and lreland
> Wholesale must-offer obligations On 31 March 2010 Gfcom published
Its decision to impose wholesale must-offer obligations on Sky (the
WMO Obligations”) for the channels Sky Sports 1 Sky Sports 2, Sky
Sports 1 HD and Sky Sports 2 HD {the "Affected Channels™ The WMO

Obhgations require Sky amongst other things to offer the Affected
Channels on awholesale basis tothird parties which satisfy various
rranimum qualifying entena (including finanaal, technical and security
criteria) The WMO Obligations speafy maximum prices that Sky may
charge for Sky Sports 1andfor Sky Sports 2 Under the WMO
Obligations the wholesale price is inked to Sky's retail price
The WMO Cbligations do not specify a maximum price for Sky
Sports1HD and/or Sky Sports 2 HD Rather they require Sky to offer
these channels on a far, reasonable and nor-discriminatory basis In
Apnl 2010, Sky applied to the Competition Appeal Tnbunal ("CAT™) for
a suspension of the implementation of the WMQ Obligations On 29
Apnl 2010 Sky's application was resclved by way of an agreed Order
from the President of the CAT The terms of the Order resulted in the
suspension of certain aspects of Ofcom's dacision pending the
outcome of Sky's substantive appeal In summary, the effect of the
Order s as follows
> Sky 1s required to offer the Affected Channels to each of BT, Top
Up TV and Virgin Media {"VM*) for distnbution via DTT and to VM
for distribution via cable Other parties may apply to the CAT to
be added to the list of persons to whom Sky is required subject
to the satisfaction of minimum qualifying cntena to offer its
channels (on 23 November 2010, REAL Digital EPG Services
Limited was added to the hist inrespect of DTH satellite
distnbution but has not commenced distribution of any Sky
Sports channels)
> In the event that BT Tep Up TV or VM enter Into a distribution
agreement for Sky Sports 1 andior Sky Sports 2, the distributor 1s
reguired to pay Sky the equivalent of the maximum price Sky may
charge for the channel(s) under the WMO Chligations The ,
difference between that price and the rate card price set by Sky
will be paid into escrow

On 8 August 2012 the CAT handed down its jJudgment on Sky's appeal
against Ofcom’'s decision to impose the WMO Obligations (the “Pay
TV Judgment™) publishing its fult judgment on 26 October 2012 The
CAT found that "Ofcoms core competition concern 1s unfounded”
(Ofcorn had found that Sky deliberately withheld wholesale supply of
the Affected Channels) and that accordingly Sky's appeal must be
allowed

0On 26 Apnl 2013, BT was granted permission to appeal the Pay TV
Judgment to the Court of Appeal The Court of Appeal has stayed
the withdrawal of Ofcoms ariginal decision (and therefore the
withdrawal of the WMO Obligations and distribution of the monies
held in escrow) pending determination of BT's appeal

Sky 1s currently unable to determine whether, and to what extent, BTs
appeal would be successful, and it (s not possible for Sky to conclude

on the finanaal Impact of any cutcorne at thrs stage, however, should
the outcome of the appeal process be adverse to Sky this may have a
significant effect on the financial posttion or profitability of Sky

> Ofcom Competition Act Investigation Following receipt of a
complaint from BT on 14 June 2013 Ofcom opened an investigation
Into whether Sky has abused a dominant position contrary to
Chapter Il of the Competttion Act 1998 and/for Article 102 of the
Treaty on the Functioning of the EU BT's complaint zlleges that the
terms on which Sky offered wholesale supply of Sky Sports 1 and 2
to BT for its service onthe YouView platform amount to an abuse of
dominance The complaint alleges that Sky 1s making wholesale
supply of Sky Sports 1and 2 to BT for 1ts YouView service condittonal
on BT wholesaling BT Sports Channels to Sky for retait on Sky's
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Review of our business

continued

satellite platform BT 1s seeking interim measures from Ofcom
Ofcom has Indicated that it expects to 1ssue a decigion onthe
irterim measures application in July Sky 1s currently unable to
determine the outcome of Ofcoms investigation ar of BT's
application for iIntenm measures

Sky News

Sky News prowides national and international news to viewers Iin the
UK Ireland and across the globe The channel 1s broadcast
unencrypted on Astra satellites (see “Satellites ' on page 15) and
distributed to viewers via cable and satelite networks in Europe
Africa, the Middle East and Asia Iti1s also currently shown on most
cable networks in the UK and Ireland on DTT in the UK as part of the
Freeview offering and on the Freesat offering in the UK An HD version
of Sky Mews 15 avallable only In Sky households Sky News 1s also
available to viewers on the Sky News website Sky News mobile
applications the Sky News for 1IPad application and on Sky Go In June
Sky News was the first 24-hour news channei to launch an application
on Apple TV and 15 already attracting a good audience particularly in
the US Overall, Sky News reaches 107 million homes in 118 countries
most recently adding Japan to the ist

Our television coverage of significant &vents such as the US Election
the Boston Marathon Bomb and Margaret Thatcher s funeral has
delivered strong audiences

Our joint venture Sky News Arabia, also continues to grow audience
and we continue to collaborate more closely on relevant stories, for
example, the recent coup In Egypt

Sky News Digital has seen significant growth over the past 12 months
with unique users across all platforms averaging six millon each
month There have now been more than eight milllon downloads of
mobile Sky News apps

OUR ADJACENT BUSINESSES
Overview of our adjacent businesses

In addition to the retaii and broadcast operations described above,
we operate a number of other operations Including wholesaling our
channel portfolio, selling advertising on ours and partner channels
our Sky betting and gaming business and our international
distribution operation We are able to monetise our content
investments more broadly with these activities as they benefit from a
larger customer base .

Sky Media

1n 2013 we derived revenue of £440 milien from advertising sales and
spensorship (2012 £440 million) Sky Medra sells adverusing and
sponsorship across all of the Sky Channels and also acts as the
advertising and sponsorship sales representative for 17 channel
partners representing 69 channels We also sell online advertising
across Sky's network of websites, mobile advertising, green-button
advertising advertising across Sky's video on demand service and
product placement cppaortunities Sky is inthe process of develeping
Adsmart, its capability to deliver targeted advertising to its customer
base and intends to launch later in 2013

Wholesale Distribution

Overview of wholesale distribution

In fiscal 2013, we derived £396 millon in revenues from the wholesale
distribution of our channel portfolio (2012 £351 milhon) Wholesale
operators (see “‘Wholesale Operators” section below) acquire the
night from us to distribute certain of the Sky Channels which they
combine with other channels from third parties and distribute to their
subsenbers

Wholesale Operators

In the UK we have arrangements in place with VM and Talk Tatk for the
retransmission of certam of the Sky Channels and associated on
demand services on therr cable and IPTV systems respectively as well
as an agreement with British Telecommunications for the distribution
of Sky Sports1and Sky Sports 2 via BT Vision Cardinal set-top boxes
onty As of 30 June 2013 we no longer distribute Sky Sports 1and Sky
Sports 2 to TopUp TV Limited or otherwise via GTT inthe UK In
Ireland, we have arrangements In place with UPC Cormmunications
Ireland Limited for the re-transmission of certain of the Sky Channels
to their subsenbers via its cable and MMDS systems We also have
contracts with a number of smaller regianal cable operators inboth
the UK and Ireland

Free-to-air distribution

Wea currently broadcast versions of three of our channels Sky News
Challenge and Pick TV, unencrypted free-to-air via DTT in the UK and
since 3 December 2012 also on Freesat

Betting and Gaming

We offer a range of betting and garming services under the “Sky Bet”

Sky Poker , "Sky Vegas and “SkyBingo brands in relation to which
Sky acts as bookmaker and operator These products are licensed by
the Alderney Gambling Control Commission and are made available
across multiple platforms including by means of Sky set-top boxes by
telephone, onthe nternet and on mobile devices The gambling
business s certified by the gambling charity GamCare and has in
place stringent social responsibility measures for the protection of
minors and other vulnerable pecple We also take active measures to
prevent persons resident in the US and other restricted junisdictions
from participating in our internet gaming and betting services

Sky Vislon

In July 2012, we acquired the Parthenon Media Group, a leading
independent international distribution and mutti-media rights
management company Now rebranded as Sky Vision ithas
established anew distribution arm to market the international nights
to our originated content as well as content from third parties The
distribution capabifity generates revenues from Sky's content
investment from the sale of overseas rights, which in turn enables us
to renvest In the UK's creative economy for the benefit of both
customers and content makers

INFRASTRUCTURE AND TECHNOLOGY
Overview of our nfrastructure and technology

Sky utihises a powerful hybrid network to deliver a high quahty
Integrated entertainment expenence for our customers Satellite
remains the most efficent means to broadcast HD iive TV into the
home and the local storage of the HD set-top box gives customers
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the added capability of time-shifted viewing Our HD box 1s Ethernet
enabled and connects via broadband to give customers access to our
On Demand service We have also developed a range of software
applications that enable access to our content across multiple
devices and away from the home Developing and maintaining cur
technological capabilities 1s eritical to our commitment to and
passion for, continued mnovation

Satellites

The digital transmissions of our channels for reception both by DTH
customers and cable operators take place using capacity on anumber
of satellite transponders on the SES Astra 2A 2F and 1N satellites and
until 3 October 2013 on the Eutelsat 28A satellite We contract with SES
Astra for the majonity of this capacity fcurrently 32 trarisponders) and,
until 3 October 2013, with Argiva for the remaining capacity (four
transponders on the Eutelsat 28A satellite) In June 2009, we signed a
long term transponder arrangement with SES Astra which covers the
renewal of the arrangements on 24 of our transponders Those
transponder agreements have expiry dates between 2019 and 2025
and thus prowvide long term secunity for the platform As part of this
arrangement we also entered into annter-satellite back-up
transponder agreement which provides protection for 31 of our SES
Astra supplied transponders in the event of transponder or satellite
fallures We have been designated a "non pre-emptible customer”
under each of our transponder agreements This means that, in the
event, of sateilite or transponder malfunction, our use of these
transponders cannct be suspended or terminated by SES Astra or
Eutelsat in favour of another broadcaster with pre-emption rights in
preference to us We have also put in place disaster recovery plans in
the event that we experience any significant disruption of our
transponder capacty

We consider that these arrangements with SES Astra are essential to
the business of the Group within the meaning of section 17(5X¢) of
the Companies Act 2006

In addition to using some of the transponder capaaty that we have
contracted to broadcast Sky Channels, some of our transponder capacity
(and in some cases all of the capacity on a particular transponder) is
sub-contracted to third parties for the transrmission of ather channels or
services, including certain of the Sky Distnbuted Channels

Playout and uplink facilities

Our uplinking facihties located in southern England, provide uplinkmg
capacity for our digital services to the satellites referred to above
Our television channels are distnbuted from two sites with each of
the sites providing backup service for the other

Digital satellite reception equipment

In arder to receive our DTH service customers are required to have a
digital satellite system, which includes a satellite dish and LNB {low
noise block converter), a digital satellite recever (“set-top box™) a
smartcard and a remote control

We source all of our set-top boxes from our own manufacturing
division Home Service and Supply Our Product Design and
Devetopment division work with Home Service and Supply to design
specify, develop and sell HD set-top boxes (both PVRs and standard
set-top boxes) although the actual manufacture of these set-top
boxes 15 outsourced to factories in Romaria and China, and In

conunction with such actmvties support the development of
additional new features and functionality for those set-top boxes

Encryption and security

We use VideoGuard conditional atcess technology to encrypt and
decrypt digital telewision and audio seraces and to control access to
certamn channels on our DTH platform We use the VideoGuard
technology and distribute smartcards in the UK and Ireland under an
agreement with NDS NDS supphes smartcards and undertakes ongoing
secunty development and other support seracesn return for the
payment of fees by us Inconunctionwith NDS, we maintamn a policy of
refining and updating the VideoGuard technology In order torestrict
unauthorised DTH reception of our services We take appropnate
measures to counter the threats of unauthorised reception, Including
the mplementation of over-the-air counter measures altenng authorised
smartcards in a mannerwhich then renders counterfeit smartcards
obsolete and seeking legal remedtes, both civil and enminal reasonatily
avallable to us We constantly moritor and review other methods of
prracy of our services that may be developed and where appropriate we
deploy countermeasures to thwart such activties

Cther digital nghts management and/or conditional access systems
are used to protect our content when It 15 distributed by means of
other platforms (e g. cable DTT or via the range of devices relying on
Internet-delivery) Where we wholesale our content these systems will
have been deployed and are operated by the relevant wholesale
customer (e g VM or TalkTalk) and similarly in relation to certain
devices (e g 1Phones or Xbox} the device manufacturer may determine
the type of content protection system deployed

DTT Transmission

Argiva provides DTT capacity on Multiplex C for Sky's three DTT
channets under a technical services agreement which 2xpires in
November 2014

Communications Infrastructure

Qur UK broadband network comprises a fixed access network a
public WiFi access network and a long distance core fibre network To
provide broadband and talk services in the UK, we rent access to the
copper ine to the customer horme from BT on regulated terms and
prices (as well as wholesale managed products from BT in some
instances) Those lines are connected to our own electronic
equipment In the local telephone exchange Our electronic equipment
15 currently sited in 2,323 telephone exchanges covering
approximately 88% of the UK s population To provide fibre
breadband, we purchased a further wholesale product from BT based
on fibre to the cabinet technology, which BT is again obliged by
regulation to supply Our core fibre network 15 one of the most
extensive ali-IP, fibre optic networks in the UK It compnses 7500
kilometres of tigh capaaity fibre optic circuits stretching from
Cornwall to Scotland We do not operate our own network in reland
but instead supply Sky Talk and Sky Broadband in Ireland using the
network of cur wholesale partner BT Ireland

SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS

The Companies Act 2006 requires us to disclose the following
significant agreements that take effect alter or terminateona
change of control of the Company
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Review of our business

contmnued

Premier League

In 2012 British Sky Broadcasting Limited (a Group subsidiary) entered
inte an agreement (the * PL Licence ) with The Football Association
Premier League Limited (the ‘PL"), pursuant to which the Group was
awarded five of seven avallable packages of Iive audio-visual nights for
Premier League football (the seven packages are together the Live
Packages”) together consisting of 116 live matches per season The PL
will not award Live Package§ cantaining In the aggregate more than
16 live matches per season to a single hcensee (Bither on its own or
as part of a consortum or through one or more of 1ts related parties)
(the "Single Buyer Rule’) Pursuant to the PL Licence, the PL can
suspend and/or terminate all of the nghts which are included in or
exercisable as part of, Live Packages containing In the aggregate up to
38 live matches per season In the event that a change of control of
the Company oceurs at any time prior to the expiry of the PL Licence
which If it had occurred prior to the award of the Live Packages to the
Group wauld have resulted in a breach of the Single Buyer Rule

Revolving Credit Facility

The Group has a £743 miflion syndicated revolving credit facility
("RCF’) with a maturity date of 31 October 2017 Theres one further
opportunity to request an extension of one additional year tothe
RCF at the lenders’ discretion with a potential final maturnty of
October 2018 The lenders can reqguire any amounts outstanding
under the RCF to be repatid in the event of a ¢change of control of the
Company (other than in the event that Twenty-First Century Fox Inc
or any substdiary or holding cormpany thereof (or a subsichary of such
holding company) acguires such control)

Twenty-First Century Fox voting agreement

On 21 September 2005, the Company, BSkyB Holdea Inc, 21st Century
Fox UK Nominees Limited and Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc entered
INto a voting agreement pursuant to which 21st Century Fox UK
Nominees Limited s voting rights at any general meeting are capped
at 3719% (the 'Voting Agreement ) The provisions of the Voung
Agreement cease to apply inter alia on a change of control of the
Company

EMTN bond issue

On 3 April 2007 the Group established a euro medium term note
programme (the ' EMTN Programme’ ) which provides the Groupwitha
standardised documentation platform to allow for senior debt
issuance in the Eurobond markets The maximum potential issuance
under the EMTN Programme 1s £1 bilhen On 14 May 2007, under the
EMTN Programme the Company 1ssued Eurobonds consisting of £300
million guaranteed notes paying 6 000% interest and maturing on

14 May 2027 (the Notes ) Pursuant to the final terms attaching to
the Notes, the Company will be required to make an offer to redeem
or purchase its Notes at its principal amount plus interest up to the
date of redepnption or repurchase I there 15 a change of contrel of the
Company (1) which, If the Notes carry an investment grade credit
rating, results in a downgrade to a non-investment grade rating or a
withdrawal of that rating or (1) where if the Notes carry anon-
investment grade rating, results in adowngrade by one or more
notches or a withdrawal of that non-investment grade rating or (u1)
where, If the Notes do not carry a credit rating, the Company does not
seek such a rating or Is unable to achieve such a rating, provided that
in each case the decision to downgrade, withdraw or not to award a

credit rating occurs within a certain period of time after the change of
control and the relevani rating agency cites that such decision(s)
resulted fromthe change of control

February 2008, November 2008 and Novembaer 2012 bond issues

In February 2008 the Group entered into anndenture Inrespect of
Us$750 million 6 100% semor unsecured notes due 2018 In November
2008 the Group entered into an indenture in respect of US$600
mullion 9 500% sentor unsecured notes due 2018 In November 2012
the Group updated the Novernber 2008 indenture in respect of a
further issuance of US$800 million 3125% senior unsecured notes
due November 2022 Pursuant to the final terms attaching to the
securities the Company will be required to make an offer to redeem
or purchase 1ts securities at a price equal to 101% of their principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid Interest up to the date of
redemption or repurchase, If there 1s a change of control of the
Company (1) which If the securities carry an investment grade credit
rating, results in a downgrade to anon-investment grade ratingor a
withdrawal of that rating, or (1) which If the secunities carry a
non-investment grade rating, results in a downgrade by one or mare
notches or a withdrawal of that non-investment grade rating, or (i)
where If the securities do not carry a credit rating, the Company does
not seek sucharating or is unable to achieve such a rating, provided
that in each case the decision to downgrade withdraw or not to
award a credit rating occurs within a certain period of time after the
change of control and the relevant rating agency cites that such
decision(s) resulted from the change of control

UK broadcasting licences

The Group 1s party to a number of Ofcom broadcasting licences for
the broadcast of the Sky Channels The Broadcasting Act 1990 (as
amended by the Broadcasting Act 1996 and the Communications ACt)
lays down a number of restrictions on these parties permittad to
hold Ofcom broadcasting icences Among those restricted from
holding Ofcom broadcasting licences or from controling a icensed
company are (a) local authorities (B) political bodies, (c) refigious
bodies, (d) any company controlled by any of the previous categories
or by their officers or associates (g) advertising agencies or any
company controlied by such an agency or in which it holds more than
a5% interest Licensees have an ongoing ebligation to comply with
these ownership restrictions Failure by a licensee to do so (either by
the licensee becoming a ‘disqualified person or any change affecting
the nature charactenstics or control of the licensee which would have
precluded the onginal grant of the licence) may constitute a breach of
the licence and If not rectified, could result Inrevacation of the
licence

Q)fcom also has a duty under the Broadcasting Acts to be satisfied that
any person holding a broadcasting icence is fit and proper to hold these
licences and may revoke those licences If it ceases to be so satisfied

On 20 Septermber 2012, Ofcom published its decision finding the Group
to bea fit and proper holder of its broadeasting ficences In ks deasion,
Ofcom found no evidence that Sky was rweolved in any wrongdoing either
admitted or alleged to have taken place at the News of the World or the
Sun (together the “News Group Newspapers”) However Oftomalso
considered whether the characters and conduct of James Murdoch,
Rupert Murdoch and News Corporation to the extent ymplicated in, or
tanted by alleged or admitted wrongdoing at News Group Newspapers
were relevant tothe Groups fitness and propriety to hold broadcasting
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licences Ofcom found that, In the circumstances mcuding the
comphance record of the Sky channels from 2006 to 2012, the Groups
success durnng James Murdods tenure as CEQ and Chairman and the
current governance structure, the Group remamned fit and proper to hold
broadceast lcences inits deasion, Ofcom also noted the continuing
nature of its duty to be satisfied that a icensee 1s fitand proper and that
it would consider further evidence if it became avallable n future

Under the rules an privacy in the Broadcasting Code, Ofcom has
considered two Instances of a Sky News journalist accessing the email
of ndmiduals suspected of criminal activity The Group's Audit
Committee conducted a thorough review of each of those instanges
and concluded that the action was justified in the public Interest and
subject to proper editonal oversight On1Juby 2013, Ofcom published
1ts conclusion that the broadcaster’s nght to freedom of expression,
including the freedom to recerve and impart informatton and ideas
without interference, In the exceptional circumstances of this case,
outweighed the individuals expectation of privacy and found Sky not
N breach of the Broadecasting Code

SEEING THE BIGGER PICTURE

At Sky we want to build a business that 1s durable for the long-term
We know simply being good for Sky I1s not enough To achieve
sustanable success, we must also be good for our customers, our
peocple, our partners and the communities in which we live and work
We call this seeing the bigger picture

Qur Contribution

We are proud of the positive social and economic contribution Sky
makes to Britain and Ireland as a successful and growing business

Improving our customers’ lives

We have opened up choice in television bringing custorners a wide
range of the best content from the UK and around the world Qur
products offer world-leading snnovation, hefping customers to
manage their lives better by allowing them to watch TV and go crnline
where, when and how they choose Our news service makes a vital
contribution to medsa plurality in the UK, offering Innovative multi-
media coverage 24 hours aday As a result, citizens are better
informed and more engaged with democratic scoiety

We are bringing competition ta the home communications market
helping millkons of peaple to get online tn an easy and affordable way
As aresult they are more connected to each other and to society as a
whole

Investing in the creative industries and sport

Over the past year, we have worked with more of the country’s leading
writers producers and actors to bring great new ideas to screen We
are on track to meet our commitment to spend £600 million ayear on
UK production and commussioning by the end of 2014 We have
worked with hundreds of production comparves providing a platform
for their creativity and helping them grow their own businesses

We are a long-term supporter of sport at all levels We have
contributed over £15 billien to British and Inish sports organisations
over the last 22 years and helped to create more fans for a wide range
of different sports Our investment has enabled sports bodies to
improve performance commercial value participation and
infrastructure at all fevels

We have created a distrnibution platform that 1s now in over 40% of
British and Insh homes enabling scores of other broadcasters to
reach an audience and build their business We have alsobeena
global pioneer of new technologies ke digital HD and 3D TV which
have subsequently become industry standards

We are committed to training and developing our people From
dedicated programmes for apprentices and graduates through to
Iife-long learning for our most experienced employees we understand
that the skills of our people are integral to our commercial success
(see pages 21 to 23)

Contribution to the UK economy

Sky makes a significant contribution to UK GDP. estimated in a study
by Oxford Economics to be £5 G billion gver the past year Seventy-six
per cent of our revenue was retained in the UK where we also worked
with over 6 600 suppliers

With over 24,000 people we are now one of the country’s biggest
employers Our impact on the wider economy has become
Increasingly significant, with 120 800 jobs dependent on Sky across
the UK in the past year

Sky generated a £27 billion contnbution to tax revenues in the last
year, equivalent to £43 for every person in the UK Our direct tax
contribution was £13 billon consisting of taxes borne of £440 milion
and taxes collected of £810 million

A Responsible Business

Acting responsibly and being successful commercaially go hand in
hand Millions of homes across Britain and Ireland choose Sky They
have high expectations of us, trusting us to do the right thing Our
high ethical, social and environmental standards are essential to
maintaning that trust and underpin the decisions we take every day

This approach 1s Integral to the culture and values we seek to
premote at Sky It's set out through a series of commitments in our
Ways of Working, which 1s our code of conduct that everyone who
works at Sky 1s expected to adhere to

Our commitment to customers and viewers

Because we never forget that pecple make a choice when they buy
our products or watch our programmes, we commit to treating our
customers and viewers with respect and strive to make sure our
services meet their needs and expectations

We maintain high editonal standards on our TV channels and online
services and this year we published our Sky News editonal guidelines
to help with decision-making 1n sensitive or difficult situations

We take our responsibilities sertously as a major advertiser and media
owner We follow the relevant codes set out by the Advertising
Standards Authority both for our own advertising and the advertising
from others that we carry on owr services

We champion diversity on-screen aiming to reflect the diverse make
up of our customer base in our programmes Once again this year we
supported International Women s Day showcasing leading female
directors presenters and women in sport over a week in March As
part of our diversity and inclusson commitment we have increased
the representation of women as expert commentators on Sky News
pleces from 25% to 33% over the past 18 months

8ntish Sky Broadcasting Group plc 17
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Review of our business

continued

We help parents to keep their children safe on our TV platformand
online providing them with effective and easy to use tools and
making sure they understand how to use them Over the past year, we
have worked with industry government and a range of non-
governiment organisations to develop a leading approach to
supporting customers to keep their families safe online We have
encouraged our customers to activate our free parental controls
tools and made it a requirement for all new Sky Broadband customers
to make a choice about whether they want these controis or not We
made a strong contribution to raising the awareness of Safer Internet
Day 2013 with coverage on Sky News Sky Sports radio and our digital
channels

Over the year more than 1,605 young people created their own Sky
news report about using the internet and socal networking tools
safely in Sky Skills Studios our state-of-the-art free learming
experience that s inked to the curriculum They have helped raise
awareness more widely by sharing their videos with their schools,
parents and friends

We make our products and services accessible to everyone, including
those with disabilities We provide subtithng and audio descriptionon
our TV channels and exceed the Ofcom requirements

Access sarvice provision against Ofcom requirements®

2000m 20112 2012113
Key performance Annual Annual Annual
ndicator Quota  Achieved Quota  Achieved Quota  Achieved
Subtithing (%) 60 68 70 74 70 73
Audio
Description (36" 10 7 10 26 0 21
Notes

() 20112 and 201213 datas mdependently assured by Deloitte LLP and can be
viewed online at sky com/biggerpicture

(1) Average across Sky News Sky1 Sky Sports1 Sky Sports News and Sky Mowvies
Prermier

(ni} Average across Sky 1 Sky Sparts 1 and Sky Movies Premiar Sky Mews and Sky Sports
News are exempt

We continue to work with customers and organisations representing
disabled people to make sure cur current and future products
include specially designed features to meet their needs This year s
the 10th anniversary of our 80 strong Accessible Customer Service
team who continue to provide specialised support to customers with
disabilities

Our data management practices are overseen by our Executive Data
Governance Committee which reports inturn to the Audit
Committee We take steps to make sure our customers’ personal
Information 15 kept confidential and secure and 1s only used for clearly
communicated authornsed purposes Our new product Adsmart
enables us to use our knowledge of our customers todeliver them
more talored and relevant advertising. We make sure our customers
can opt-out If they prefer us not to use their data In this way

Our commtment to colleagues and the company

Because our people are cntical to our success, we want to create a
culture where they can do their best work and fulfil their potential
Equally, everyone at Sky has a responsibility to the Company to
protect 1ts assets and 1ts reputation and to play therr part in building
a successful and durable business We champron diversity in our
workforce and make sure our people are safe at work (see pages 21
to23)

Our commitment to shareholdars

We take seriously our responsibilities as a major Britssh business
listed on the London Stock Exchange, maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and taking steps to ensure our communications
with investors are clear open and timely Our Board oversees the
alignment of the Company's strategy with the interests of our
investors and takes account of the interests of our stakeholders

(see page 60}

Our commitment to business partners

Because our business relies on strong partnerships with many
suppliers and distributors, we want to build productive fair and
collaborative relationships with them based on mutual mprovement

We expect everyone we do business with to deliver a high-quality
servica and provide good value for money, as well as to behave
ethically and comptly with all relevant laws and regulations We want to
be a good partner in return, freating suppliers farly rewarding good
performance and meeting all of our ebligations to them

We promote better social and environmental standards through our
Responsible Sourcing Principles which we expect all our suppliers to
embrace Over the past year, we have improved our Responsible
Sourcing Programme, refining how we communicate our socigl and
environmental expectations to suppliers and enhancing the tools we
use to assess performance so that they are easy to use and support
industry standards We have also undertaken audits of key strategic
suppliers such as product manufacturers to assess their
performance against our Respeonsible Sourcing Principles, working
with them on areas for improvement

Our commitment to the environment

Because we want to build a business that 1s sustainable for the long
term we understand the importance of mirumising our environmental
impact and taking a leadership posstion 1n the business community

We know that operating efficiently saving energy and using natural
resources wisely helps us to be a better business as well as
contributing to a more sustainable future for everyone To achieve
this, we have set out a series of bold ermironment targets and
commitments expanded in Novemnber 2012, so that we have fewer
environmental impacts and better more sustainable products

We continue to make very good progress on reducing our impacts
Over the last year, we have reduced our carbon intensity by 33%
against the baseline we set in 2008/09 and we are on track tomeet
our new target of a 50% reduction by 2020, having reached our
previous target of a 25% reduction last year Our absolute gross
emissions are stable at 100 045 tonnes

Our continued long-term investment inlow-carbon and renewable
energy technologles on our sites In Londen and Scotland means we
are now sourcing 6% of our energy from our on-site wind turbine,
Combined Cooling, Heat and Power plant and biomass baoiter

We have further improved the erwironmental sustamabitity of our
products, measuring curselves against a set of ambitious objectives
and commitments which we review and update each year Our new
Sky+tHD baxes now use less than 0 5W in passive standby and have
an "eco-mode function that autcmatically puts the box into this
passive state Over the year we have been working to make our new
products more energy efficrent than previous models We use
Iife-cycle assessment, such as the one we completed this year onour
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new Sky Hub our wireless router to up skill the product designers in
our business on how to reduce environmental impacts effectively

We are shanng what we have learned with non-government
organisations, other companies and policy makers Inorder to drive
positive change on low carbon energy techneologles and renewable
energy We also share our knowledge by working alongside our
production companies to enable them to measure and reduce the
envirenmental impacts of film making We collaborate closely with cur
key praduct manufacturers on process efficiencies and with our
logistics suppliers ensuring together we provide efficient and
effective distribution, maintenance and end-of-life recycling for our
Sky products

Our total CO_e emissions®

¥ey performance indicator Baseline 2009410 2010M 20002 2012h3

Total gross CO,e emissions

(tCO gy mi 107215 NG531 109042 100272 100045
Total net CO & (tCO &) 35860 44198 35070 24866 26564
Notes
() 2013 dataisindependently assured by Deloitte LLP and can be viewed online at sky
com/biggerpicture ‘

(1) Historical data is recalculated each year in ing with the latest Guidelines to Defra/)
DECC s Greenhouse Gas Converston Factors for Company Reporting and re-stated
accordingly

() tCO,e emissions Including emissions from premisas and company-owned vehicles
(Scopeand 2}

(V) Our net emissions take into account the renewable energy procured froma
renewable energy tanffwith Scottish and Southern Energy Group Scottish and
Southern retain on our behalf the Lavy Exemption Certficatas and Renawable
Energy Guarantee of Cngin (REGOs) In addition we offset our total gross emissions
through the purchase of Valuntary Carbon Standard credits

Cur carbon intensity®

Keyperformance indicater  Target Baseline 2009/10™ 2010/M% 20M712% 2012713%

Carbonintensity
(€O, e/Em reveniue) 207 19 163 148 138

Change intotal gross
tornes per Emillon revenue
(CO,e/Ermy ey -50 -8 21 -29 -33

Notes

(1) 20112 and 2012113 data s independently assured by Deloitte LLP and canbe
viewed online at sky com/biggerpicture previous years data was independently
assured by ERM

(1) Performance relative to base year 2008/09

{m}) Targetisto halve curemissions (tannes) relative to revenue {€mj) by 2020

(W) Historic data s recaleulated each year in line with the latest Guidelines and Defra/
DECC s Greenhouse Gas Conversion Factors for Company Reporting and re-stated

accerdingly
Progress towards our on-site renewable energy target®
Key performance indicator ! Target 2onnz2 201213
Sky-owned sites to obtan 20% of therr energy
reguirement from owned or controlled renewables (3630 20 2 5
Notes
() 2012/13 datas independently assured by Deloitte LLP and can be viewed online at.
shycomybiggerpicture

(1) Measured against baseline data for 2008/09

Qur commitment to complying with the law and workimmg with
regulators, govermnment and media

We take steps to ensure compliance with all laws and regulations that
apply to our business and have well established functions across Sky
tothatend Because we want external stakeholders to understand
our business and our contribution we engage in open and honest
dialogue with regulators government and media and we respond
promptly to their enquiries

Inspiring Peopla to Take Action

As an entertainment and commurnications cempany with 11 2 milhion
customers across Britan and Ireland we have an opportunity to
reach beyond our business and make an even greater positive Impact
and a valuable contribution to a more sustaimable society

We choose to focus on four areas that we re passionate about, where
we believe Sky can make & difference and we can inspire pecple to
take action These are improving Iives through sport championing
creativity and opening up the arts, helping young people to build skills
for a changing world and taking action te protect the environment

Using the power of sport to excrte, Inspire and change lives

Sport is one of the central pillars of our content Investment and we
believe In 1ts power to improve hves We bring our customers a wealth
of sport on TV, and that investment - over £15 billion over the last

22 years - helps to fund the sports we all love and get people
watching and playing But we want to do even more so we also wark
with our partners of f screen, using our reach and the power of the Sky
Sports brand to Inspire more people to get involved

We dlo this through our grassroots-to-elite support for British cycling
and three complementary Sky Sports nitratives each supported by
Sky Sports programming marketing talent ambassadors and staff

> Sky Sports Living for Sport - this national schools-based
programme runin partrership with the Youth Sport Trust, uses
sports stars and skills to help raise the aspirations and improve the
Iife skills of young people Now inits tenth year, over 1,500 or one
third of all schools across the UK, participated this academic year
Over 30 000 students benefitted with 96% of lead teachers
reporting improvernents in self-confidence and 90% reporting
improvements in attitudes to learning amongst the students over
the past academic year

Raising aspirations and building life skills through Sky Sports
Living for Sport<?

Keyperformance indicator Target 200940 20101 201A2 201213
MNurnber of schools taking
part® 1500 269 376 866 151788
Motes

() 201N2 and 2012113 data 15 Independent iy assured by Deloitte LLP and can be
viewed online at sky com/biggerpicture

(n) Eachyear

() Inthe 201213 year as measured from15aptember 2012 to 1 June 2013

> Sky Sports Scholarships - this mentoning and sponsorship
programme supports some of Britain and Ireland s most exciting
emerging athletes helping thermn to fulfil their potential on the
interngtional stage and prepare them for ife In the spotlight We
supported 11 scholars many of whom went on to achiave
International success at the World Championships European
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Review of our business

continued

Champronships and London 2012 We have now recruited the next
cohort of athletes In anticipation of similar success

> Sky Sports ECB {England and Wales Cnicket Board) Coach
Education Programme - this programme has played a key role In
attracting and training cricket coaches in England and Wales
equipping them with the skills necessary to deliver high-quality
coaching at all levels of the game, ensuring the success of the sport
with a new generation of players Over 50000 places have been
taken up on courses since the scheme started in 2007

> Cyeling - our ground-breaking partnership wath British Cycling ams
to get more people on their bikes through the inspiration of elite
success by Team GB and Team Sky, combined with our grassroots
Sky Ride imitiatives that make It easy to participate Since the start
of the partnership in 2008, our elite cyclists have achieved
unprecedented success with 41 Olympic and Paralympic Gold
Medals and two British winners of the Tour de France Last summer
146,100 people took part In the Sky Ride events we held across the
country Sky Ride Local, our guided ride programme delivered locally
throughout the UK resulted inover 17,000 people participating In
September last year we met our target of over one million more
people across the country cycling regularly, one year ahead of
schedule

Improvang lives through cyching®

Keyperformance mdicator  Target 20094100 2000/M®  2oma12e) 201213
Number of new people
cycingregularyby2013 % 1milion 92000 376000 688000 115 million

Notes

(3 2011112 and 20012113 data 15 independently assurad by Deloitte LLP and can be
viewad online at sky com/biggerpicture

@) Number of new people cycling on average once a monther 12 times a year as aresult
of Skys initiatives

) Cumulative year on year

Championing creativity and openmg up the arts

Millions of people love the arts butit s not always easy to see
favourite artists and parformers We believe In opening upthe arts to
more pecple That's why Sky Arts broadcasts 48 hours of arts
programmes a day, covering the whole range from classical arts to
rack concerts But we want to do more than just showcase the arts
on screen we want to do our bit to ensure great ideas reach their full
potenttal by working with the artistic community to help create new
works of art today and develop new talent for tomorrow

We do this through Sky Arts Ignition and Sky Arts Futures Fund

> Sky Arts Ignition - this series of partnerships with leading arts
organisations across Britain and Ireland aims to support the
creation of innovative new works and events that might otherwise
never get off the ground In Septermber 2012 we launched an award
winming first collaboration with Tate Liverpoo! and renowned
multimedia artist Doug Aitken to create Sky Arts igmition The
Source an outdoor installation exploring the roots of creativity
which was visited by almost 50 000 people In June 2013 we worked
with the V&A to bring Sky Arts Ignition Memory Palace to life a
unigue exhibition based on the power of memory We are investing
in the thriving Insh arts landscape with our third project which will
launch in Ireland in the coming financial year

> Sky Arts Futures Fund - we are boosting the careers of five
emerging young artists a year by providing them with a £30 000
bursary together with support and mentoring from serior Sky staff
and arts industry experts to develop ther commercial skills and

knowledge In2013 audiences have enjoyed expenencing the
successful projects from the first artists we supported, such as
Opera Director Daisy Evan s Silent Opera and Theatre Director Felix
Mortimer’s The Tnial This year following on from the five we
supported in 2012, we have chosen five more young artists from
disciplines such as creative production composttion and poetry

Engagement with SKy Arts activities on the ground at Sky Arts
igmtion The Source at Tate Liverpool®

Key performance indicator Target 201213
Number of visitors 42500 49543
Hote
() 2012/13 data s ndependently assured by Daloitte LLP and can be viewed online at
sky comn/biggerpicture

In addition we broadcast Mariella s Book Show live in front of studio

audiences at the Cheltenham and Hay Literature festivals, as well as
championing moments of creativity amongst festival goers, offering
free creative classes and inspiring perforrnances in the Sky Arts Den

Helping young people to build skills for a changing world

We know that future success not just for Sky but also for society as a
whole, depends on equipping young people with the skills they need
for a changingworld That's why trauning and development 1s a high
priority right across our business from front line staff to future
leaders But we want to go further reaching beyond our employes
base to open up Sky to more young people raising therr aspirations
and helping them learn valuable new skills

As well as running strong graduate and apprenticeship programmes,
we do this through practical work experiance opportunities and our
dedicated learning facility for schools on our campus in West London

> Sky Slalls Studios - opened in September 2012, this urique free
learring expenience takes schools behind the scenes at Sky inour
state of the art broadcasting faciity Linked to the curriculum, it
helps students to build life skills by working with our latest
technology to make their own television report on subjects theyre
studying at school We set a target of welcoming over 12,000 young
people Inthe first academic year and we are on track reaching
9,500 by the end of June 2013 )

Raising aspirations and building Iife skills through Sky Skills
Studios®

vey performance ndicator Target™ 20213
Numnber of young people taking part 12000 9588
Notes

() 2012/13 data s independently assured by Deloitte LLP and can be viewed online at
sky com/biggerpicture

() I the firstyear from September 2012 to August 2013 the target will be 10000 for
the next academic year

{m) Until 30 June 213

> Work experience, apprenticeships and graduate schemes - read
more about these on pages 211023

> Qur local communities - we are nvesting 1n leng-term relationships
with local schools near our campuses N Hounslow, Scotland and
Leeds to help butld life skills Our network of Sky volunteers play an
active rele inour local communities with 1691 people volunteenng
therr time to help make a difference In 2013 As well as ail staff
having two paid days to volunteer each year our employees can
make tax-free donations to any UK registered charity of ther choice

20 British Sky Broadcasting Group ple




Annual Report 2013 Directors’ report - Business review

and we give an extra 50p for every £1donated We also support
employees fundraising through our match funding scheme

Taking action to protect the environment

We recognise that cimate change I1s one of the world's biggest
challenges and we have a responsibility to take action We want todo
more than minimising the environmental impact of our operations
and our products An even bigger opportunity hes in working together
with our 11 2 million customers to inspire them to join with us to tackle
climate change

> Sky Rainforest Rescue - we are now In the fourth year of our
partnership with WWF and the state government of Acre in Brazil to
help save one billion trees In the Amazon rainforest and protect the
region s rich natural diversity In 2013, we worked with Lily Cole, Sky
Rainforest Rescue Ambassader model and environmentalist
focusing on rarsing awareness of the threat of tropica!
deforestation at home in Britain and Ireland We ve raised an
additional £1miflion, to bring the amount raised te £3 milllon since
2009 which Sky has matched pound for pound to a total of
£6 million We've also worked with over 1200 famities in focal
communities on the ground In Brazil to make the forest warth more
alve than dead

Funds raised for Sky Rainforest Rescue

Key performance indicator Target 200900  2010m 20002 2023
Total donations since the
launch of Sky Ramnforest
Rescue In 2009 (£)P™
Total families helped
{number)™} 1000 1241

dmilion”? 335000 790000 Z2milon  3miflion

Hotes

() 201112 and 201213 data s independently assured by Deloitte LLP and can ba
viewed online at sky com/biggerpicture

() Cumulative year onyear

)y £4 million to 2015 which Sky will match to a total of E8 millien

(V) Farnilies registered into the Lard Certification Scherne

) 201213 dataisindependently assured by Deloitte LLP and can be viewed online at
sky cor/biggerpicture

PEOPLE

We aim to attract and select the best people and provide
opportunities so that everyone can fulfill ther potential We work
hard to create a great place to work and build an open culture that
rewards and recognises great performance

Creating opportunities

Over the last year we have provided over 1,200 additional job
apportunities across a wide range of functions but specifically in
Technology Sales and Marketing and Customer Service Inaddition to
new roles created, we have moved over 1000 of our people Into
different rales broademing therr experience and strengthening
succession far the future The new jobs and the internal development
moves have been spread across our locations in the UK and Iretand

Developing Our People

Our people’s performance 1s the key driver of our growth and success
Apart from creating career development through internal job mobility
we provide many opportunities for employees to build their
expenence and skills through a wide range of development and skills
traiing This 1s achieved through face to face traiming by attendance
on external or internally run courses through our ontine training and
education facility, the Sky Development Studic and through coaching
and mentoring.

The Development Studic has had 385,000 wisits this year More than
160,000 hours of e-learring courses have been completed via the
Development Studio up 93% on the last financial year In total,

104 678 development days have bean undertaken this year

We have continued to build strong leadership capability of our senior
team through training and the introduction of leadership surveys
which provide direct feedback to managers from their teams Last
year we apportioned an element of the senior managers’ annual
bonus directly to their performance in this area We also introduced a
senes of “master classes” which focused on delivering Sky’s
Leadersh:p behaviours and values and continued our programme for
the most senior managers and directors In conjunction with Henley
Business School During the year 35 9% of those employed In
management positions were females

We recogrese that to offer the best service in the country, it s
mmportant for our people to be at the top of their game  Across the
Customer Service Group we have delivered over 600,000 hours of
training and over 100 days of leadership development during the last
twelve months This has included multi-skill training for adwisors so
that they are equipped to deal with queries over the full range of our
products and leadership training for our first and second line
management teams In addition we consolidated the success of our
externally accredited course “Aspire’ by rolling this out to Customer
Service Advisors as well as Sales Advisors We have alsc implemented
large scale training and development programmes at our newly
created Dublin site

To further support the Company’s "ONE Service Pilot” we ran team
warking sessions to promote even higher levels of collaboration
across the different service activities and delivered new Service
Excellence programmes for our Engineers

investing in Future Talent and Youth

We have baen investing heawily in providing opportunities for young
pecple As well as direct entry roles we have expanded our offer of
work experience and work placements this year Over 500 young
pecple have participated in one of cur schemes which range from a
week s work experience programmes to a year s pawd placement We
also run programmes for young peopla who might otherwise find 1t
difficult to find opportunities i the job market, speafically in the
areas of Entertainment, Content and News The "Fast Forward” and
Mama Youth” programmes have been running for severali years and
go from strength to strength We intreduced a new programme this
year in Sky News for budding journalists from either a Black Asian and
Minornity Ethnic (BAME) or fimancially disadvantaged background The
scheme I1s supported by bursaries for those who would otherwise not,
be able to take up the opportunity We have also continued to
develop our 17 year partnership with the National Film and Telewision
Schoal by developing a production diploma that we help to deliver
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Review of our business

continued

We recognise more and more young pecple are explonng alternative
options to university so we are increasing the number of
apprenticeship opportunities to around 100 across Sky with brand
new schemes in Marketing, Sky Production Services, Technology
Contact Centres and Home Service & Supply We recruited close to
100 graduates into the business this year Our on-campus university
campaign was targeted to promote applications from diverse
backgrounds resulting In a 12% increase In female hires and a 1%
increase in ethnic minonty hires incomparison to 20M1/12

Our specialist scftware Engineering Academy has gone from strength
to strength this year hinng 24 of the brightest technology minds We
Invest In an intensive traimng programme which rapidly develops their
software skills whilst exposing them to a range of live, cutting edge
development projects

Employee Engagement

We want all our people to feel involved and engaged in our business
Therefore we need to know what our people are thinking and how
they feel about working for Sky We have a variety of ways ofkeeping
close to our employees two of the most sigrificant ways are the Sky
Forum and the People Survey

The Sky Forum s a team of 88 elected employee representatives from
across the business This year new members from Sky Ireland were
elected to Join the group The Sky Forum meets several times a year
to discuss a wide range of business challenges and to provide input
that helps Sky to continuously iInnovate and improve the way we
operate Meetings are run througheut the year to address local 1ssues
and are supplemented by two Sky-wide meetings which are attended
by the CEC and other executives Each member has aresponsibility to
collect the views of the people they represent and to provide
information back to them Increasingly we are also able to drive
information dralogue and iWea generatton though use of the
corporate social media site 'Chatter

We run our people survey every 4 months and use external
benchmark data from Towers Watson to compare our performance
aganst other UK companies The benchmark information shows us
that participation Inour surveys Is consistently higher than
experienced elsewhere (averaging 75% across the 3 surveys this year)
It also shows that we perform better than other large UK companies
in 9 out of the 11 categories we measure Qur score for employee
engagement shows an average of 94% This ts up 7 points from last
year's reported figure and 11 points above the external benchmark
The employee engagement category includes questions about
whether our people support our strategy understand how their work
contributes to it arewilling to go the extra mile to help us succeed
and are proud to work for Sky We are delighted that over 90% of our
people continue to respond positively to these key questions

Diversity and Inclusion

We beleve that a diverse workforce ¢reates a stronger business and
therefore we work to create an environment that encourages
diversity and innovation We have established a number of diversity
networks to connect people to information that is relevant for them
and to help us ensure that cur employment practices are inclusive
LGBT@Sky is a network for lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgender
employees we have a network for women and a Diversity and

Inclusion@Sky network to champion diversity at Sky We have driven
awareness of diversity and the benefits it brings to the business
through use of stories and blogs on our internal communication
network which often generate higher than typical page views across
our intranet and the feedback 1s very positive We also continued the
roll out of an awareness training programme on unconsccus bias

This year we implemented a week long season of programmes across
our channels to mark International Women's Day and also held an
event at Sky Studios that was webcast to the business We work in
partnership with SWIMM (Senior Women in Media Mentoring) to
mentor rising (female) stars in the media industry

Qverall, the proportion of female and BAME employees has held firm
across the year We continue to work with arange of external
partners to support our work in diversity and our relationship with
the broadcasting industry's Cultural Diversity Networks (CDN)1s
particularly important in this regard Sky News was one of the first
broadcasters to sign up to the campaign to challenge the gender
imbalance among media contrbutors and we have made great
progress In this achieving a gender balance of on-air contributors
Over the last eighteen months our average ratio of male to fema'e
commentators has improved from4 1to 21

Sky 5 an equal opportunities employer and we believe that everyone

should have full and fair consideration for all vacancies promotions,

traning and development Should an employee become disabled

dunng their employment at Sky, where possible, we will actively

re-train and adjust therr environment to allow them to maximise thair .
potential Over the course of the year, we have partnered with various

not-for-profit organmisations with the aim of providing more

opportunities for people with disabilities

Health and Safety
The health and safety of allour people s of paramcunt importance to us

We take a holistic approach to keeping Sky a safe place to work so
whilst acaident preventionand safety training 1s a priority the
long-term wellbeing of our people 1s equally mportant This year we
have iImplemented a range of new Initiatives such as Home Service
and Supply’s Dnive Safe campaign and specific Manual Handling
traming We have also introduced Engineer medical assessment
programmes to promete and protect the health of our field
warkforce a heanng protection programme for the Formula One
support team and a brand new Occupational Health Service In Ireland
launched following the opening of our Dublin contact centre

It1s also essenvial that as a business we remain resilient to
unexpected events and our dedicated Business Continuity Team help
Sky protect the services our people deliver to our customers Last
year with the London Olympics 2012 our Business Continuity Team
were specifically engaged with multiple stakeholders on the
contingency planning in preparation for the impact that the Olympics
could have had on our business operations across the UK We have
500 people across the business now actively engaged on business
continuity nitiatives and traning As a result our business continuity
plans and our ability to execute aganst them continues to improve
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Recognition and reward

There are a number of recognition schemes across the Company that
provide us with the opportunity to reward and recognise employaes
who have provided exceptional customer service or have gone the
extra mile in delivening ther normal day to day duties In addition we
continue to run an annual Corperate Scheme called “Believe in Better”
that rewards outstanding achievement This year the awards had a
record number of nominations with over 3 700 peeple and around
570 teams being nominated The 3 top winners were awarded with a
long-haul holiday for them and a partner with close to 50 people
receving other significant prizes

We continued to share Sky's success with our people We awarded an
above average pay Increase and speafically waighted the balance of
the pay review to those on lower Incomes

In addition for those people choosing te participate in the Sky
sharesave scheme, they saw gains of up to 90% of the originai option
price for options.which vested in 2013

Other items included our annual two day music and entertainment
event "Sky Fest” for our employees and ther families which included
regional events this year to reflect Sky's growing regional footprint
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Principal risks and uncertainties

' The Group nsk register is reported formally to the Audit Committee

twice a year and focused risk reporting on selected themes occurs on
aquarterly basis Additional information on the Group's internal
control and risk management processes Is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report (see page 44)

This section describes the current principal risks and uncertamnties
facing the Group In addrtion to surmmarnising the matenal risks and
uncertanties the table below gives examples of how we mitigate
those risks

The Group has a formal nsk management framework embedded
withmn the business te support the identification and effective
management of risk across the Group

The divisions within the Group are each responsible for managing and
reporting risk in accordance with the Group's risk management policy
and standards that have been approved by the Audit Committee The
risks are then consolidated into a Group risk register which provides
an overview of the Group nisk profile

Description of risk

Mitigation

Market and competition

The Group operates in a highly competitive envirenment and faces
competition from a broad range of organisations Technologcal
developments atso have the ability to create new forms of quickly
evolving competition

A failure to develdp the Groups product proposition in ine with changing
market dynamics and expectations could erode the Group's competitive
position

Great content 1s central to Sky s product preposition and increased
competition could impact the @roup s ability to acquire content that its
customers want on commercally attractive terms

Economic cenditions have been challenging in racent years and the

future rernains uncertam A significant economic decline coutd impact
the Group s ability to continue to attract and retain customers

The Group continues te make significant Investments In innovation

The Group s product development strategic aimis to be at the forefront
of progressive technology

Please see the Review of cur business” section for further details of
these products

The Group regularly reviews its prnicng and packaging structures to
ensure that 1ts product proposition 1s approprately placed within the
market

The Group works closely with 1ts marketing partners to ensure that the
value of 1ts offenng 1s understood and communicated effectively to its
customers

The Group makes significant investments in the ongination of UK
content as well as acquisibon from across the world

The Group also works to develop and maintan the brand value
assoclated with its individual channels

Regulatory breach and change

The Group s subject to regulation prnimanily under UX Insh and European
Union legislation

The regimes which apply to the Groups business include but are not
limited to

> Gambling - Alderney Gambling Commission regulation,

> Broadcasting - the Group 1s subject to Ofcom s icensing regime under
the Broadcasting Acts 1990 and 1996 and the Communications Act
2003

These obligations inciude the requirement, to comply with the retevant
codes and directions issued by Ofcom including for example the
Broadcasting Code, the Code on the Scheduling of Television
Advertising and the Cross Promotions Code

Please see page 16 of the Business Review for further details of our UK
broadcasting licences,

The Group manages these nsks through active engagement in the
regulatory processes that affect the Group s business

The Group actively seeks to identify and meet our regulatory obhgations
and to respond to emerging requirements This includes for example

> Gambling - controls and processes are in place to moniter our
compliance with and our adherence to our cbiigations under the
Alderney Gambling Commission regulations We are subject to regular
independent audit by the Commission against the regulations

> Broadcasting - compliance contrals processes and contacts are in
place In Entertanment Movies Sports and News seraces Interaction
with Ofcom 1s co-crdinated between the Comphance, Regulatory and
Legal departments

> Platform serices - processes are in place to monitor third party
broadcaster access to the digital satelite platform and to ensure that
this 1s provided on fair reasonable and non-discriminatory terms and
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Description of risk

Mitigation

Regutatory breach and change continued

> Platform services - as a provider of EPG and CA services the Groupis
subject to regulation under the Communications Act 2003 which
amongst ether things requires it to provide EPG and CA serwvices to
ather broadcasters on far, reascnable and non-discnminatory terms
and

> Telecommunications - the Group s subject to the General Conditions
of Entitlement adopted under the Communications Act 2003 which
Impose detalled requirements on providers of communications
netwerks and services

The Group Is also subject to generally applicable legislation including but
not imited to competition antitrust) consumer pretection data
protection and taxation

The Group s currently and may be in the future, subject to proceedings
andfor investigation and enquiries from regulatory authonties

The Groups ability to operate or compete effectively could be adversely
affected by the cutcome of Investigations or by the introduction of new
taws, policies or regulations, changes in the interpretation or application
of existing laws policies and regulations or fallure to obtain required
regulatory approvals or icences

> Telecommunications - compliance controls processas and contacts
are In place overseen by the Customer Comphance Committee to
maniter comphance and performance against the General Conditions
of Entitlement

The Group maintains appropriate oversight and reporting supported by
training to provide assurance that itis comphant with regulatory
requirements

Customer service

The Group s business is based on a subscription model and s future
success relies on bulding leng-term relationships with 1ts customers A
failure to meet Its customers expectations with regards to service could
negatively impact the Group s brand and competitive position

The Group strives consistently to exceed 1ts customer expectations to
putits customers first tounderstand what they want and to be
responsive to what they say

The Group makes significant iInvestments in order to deliver continuous
development and improvement toits customer service capabifities

The Group has increased and s continuing to increase the number of
contact centres located across the United Kingdom and Ireland and has
implemented cngoing training and development plans

The Group benchmarks its customer service experience and strives to
be the best in class

Technology and business interruption

The products and services that the Group prowdes to its customers are
reliant on complex technical infrastructure

Afaillure in the operation of the Groups key systems or infrastructure,
such as the broadcast platform customer management systems or the
tefecommunications networks on which the Group relies could cause a
failure of service to our customers and negatively impact our brand
Details of ourinfrastructure and techneology are set cut on pages 14 to
15 of the Bustness Review

The Group makes significant investment In technology infrastructure to
ensure that it continues to support, the growth of the business

The Group 1s committed to achieve best in class business continuity
standards and makes significant investments in the resiience and
robustness of Its business infrastructure

The Group also organises regular scenario based group-wide business
continuity exercises to ensure ongoing readiness of key staff, systems
and sites

Supply chain

The Group rehes on a number of third parties and cutsourced supphers
operating across the globe to support its supply chain

Asignificant failure within the supply chain could adversely affect the
Group s ability to deliver products and service to its customers

The Group continues to invest in its supply chain infrastructure to
support 1ts business plan commitments

A robust supplier selection process I1s in place with appropnate ongoing
management and monitonng of key partners and suppliers

The Group performs regular audits of key suppliers and of their
installations and wherever possible has dual supply capability

British Sky Broadcasting Group pic 25

-
I
X
=1
"
"
“w
-
s
=
a
£

MBIAD L IPIoUPUH

FRUPLHIAGE)



Annual Report 2013 Directors’ report - Business review

Principal risks and uncertainties

continued

Description of risk

Mitigation

Financial

The effective management of its financial exposures is central to
preserving the Group s profitability

The Group has some exposure to the European financial cisis atthough
the Groups net euro cash flows are approximately 3% of total group
revenues and the Group s practice 1s to hold less than £10 milkion on
deposit in euros

A number of the Group’s syndicate banks are headquartered 1n Europe
but the Group does not currently anticipate drawing the RCF

The Group's finance teams are embedded within the business to provide
support to management and to ensure accurate financial reporting and
tracking of our business performance Reportingon financial
pearformances provided on a monthly basis to senior management and
the Board

The Group continually invests in the improvement of its systems and
processes In order to ensure sound financial management and reporting

The Group manages treasury risk by minimising nsk to capital and
providing appropriate protection against foreign exchange and interest
rate movements

Cash investment1s made in ine with the Group s strict treasury policy
which 1s approved by the Audit Committee and sets imits on deposits
based on counterparty credit ratings No more than 10% of cash
deposits are held with a single bank counterparty with the exception of
overnight depasits which are Invested in a spread of AAAmM rated
liquidity funds

All non-sterling debt 1s swapped at inception to ensure appropriate
currency and interest rate protection 1s 1 place, and trading currency
nskis hedged up to 5 years in advance

The Group manages 1ts tax sk by ensunng that nisks areidentified and
understood at an early stage and that effective cempliance and
reporting processes are In place

The Group conbinues to maintain an open and preactive relationstip
with the regulating tax authonties which are pnmanly HM Revenue &
Customs The Group aims to deal with taxation Issues wherever possible
as they anse inorder to avold unnecessary disputes

»

Secunty’

The Group must pretect its customer and corporate data and the safety
of its people and infrastructure as well as needing to have in place fraud
prevention and detection measures

The Group Is responsible to third party inteflectual property owners for
the security of the content that it distributes on various platforms (Skys
own and third party platforms)

Asignificant breach of security could impact the Group s ability to
operate and deliver against its business obyectives

The Group takes measures ranging from physical and logical access
controls to encryption, or equivalent technologies to manage its
security rnsks

The Group continues to invest In new technological controls and in
improving broader business process and works closely with law
enforcement agencies and policy makers in order to protect its assets
and to comply with its contractual obligations to third parties

Projects

The Group invests in, and delivers, significant capital expenditure
projects in order continually to drive the business forward The fallure to
deliver key projects effecuvely and efficiently could result n significantly
increased project casts and impede our abiiity to execute our strategic
plans

A common project management methodology 1s used to enable the
Growp to manage monitor and control its major capital expenditure
projects and strategic programmes This Includes standardised
reporting and monthly reviews by senior management

Third party partners will where appropnate be engaged to provide

support and expertise In our large strategic programmes, complex
Initiatives and for emerging technologies

Intellectual property protection

The Group In common with other service providers relies on intellectual
property and other proprietary nghts including in respect of
programming content which may net be adegquately protected under
current laws or which may be subject to unauthcrised use

Please see page 11 of the Business Review

We maintain an ongoing programme to support appropriate protections
of our Intellectual property and other rights This includes, for example,
the use of automated on ine monitonng tools the implementation of on
screen iImprinting of content together with an active programme to
protect our trade marks
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Description of nsk

Mitigation

People
People at Sky arg cntical to the Group s ability to meet the needs of its
customers and achieve its goals as a business

Fallure to attract or retain suitable employees across the bustness could
imit the Groups ability to deliver tts business plan commitments

Making Sky a great place to work 1s central to the Group s strategy The
Group champions diversity and develops talent through a number of
actvities including the Graduate program, Development Studio an
apprenticeship scheme and a leadership programme

The Greup has well established channels and procedures to recrut and
retain its employees and to ensure that an adequate number of suitable
employees work within its customer service teams and across all its
operatians

Further detail on our people Is set out on pages 21to 23 of the Business
Review
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Directors’ report - Financial and operating review

INTRODUCTION

The following discussion and analysis 15 based on and should be read
in conunction with the consolidated financial statements including
the related notes, that form part of this Annual Report The
censolidated financial statements have been prepared In accordance
with IFRS as 1ssued by the IASB and as adopted by the EU

The Group maintains a 52 or 53 week fiscal year ending on the Sunday
nearest to 30 June in eachyear In fiscal 2013 this date was 30 June
2013 this being a 52 week year (fiscal year 2012 1July 2012, 52 week
year) For convenience purposes the Group continues to date its
consolidated financial statements as at 30 June and to refer to the
accounting period as a year

A reconailiation of non-GAAP measures (s set out on pageNMdanda
detailled reconciliation of profit to adjusted profit 1s Included in note 8
to the consolidated financial statements

OVERVIEW AND RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

During the current year total revenue increased by 7% to

£7235 milien compared to the year ended 30 June 2012 ( ‘the prior
year') Adjusted operating profit. for the current year increased by 9%
to £1,330 million, resulting in an adjusted operating profit margin of
18 4%, compared to 18 0% in the prior year Reported operating profit
was £1,291 millan, compared to £1,243 milhon in the prior year
Adjusted free cash flow was 13% higher at £1,028 mullion, compared to
£910 millien inthe prior year

Adjusted profit for the year was £969 millon generating adjusted
basic earnings per share of 60 0 pence compared to an adjusted
profit of £875 million and adjusted basic earnings per share of 50 8
pence in the prior year Reported profit for the year was £973 miflion,
generating basic earnings per share of 607 pence compared to a
profit of £906 million and basic garnings per share of 52 6 pence In the
prior year

Our successful transition to mere broadiy-based growth combined
with the acquisition of the O2 consumer broadband and fixed-line
telephony business, has delivered an increase of 3 2658 000
subscription products inthe year to a total of 31634000 Of this
Increase 706,000 arese from the 02 acquisition and 2,563 000 from
organic growth

At 30 June 2013, the total number of TV Customers in the UK and
Ireland was 10,422,000 representing & net increase of 134 000 inthe
current year including subscribers to our new internet TV service NOW
TV launched in July 2012 The total number of HD customers was
4786,000 representing 46% of total TV Customers This represents
growth in HD customers of 10% in the current year The number of
Multiroom customers also continued to grow increasing by 8700010
the current year to 2,489 000, 24% penetration of total TV Customers
Sky Go Extra our new paid-for mobile TV service, had a total of

166 000 customers at 30 June 2013, just five months after launch

Strong growth in our home communications products 1s driven by
both organic growth and the acquisition of the O2 consumer
broadband and fixed-line telepheny business The number of
Broadband customers increased by 905 000 in the current year to
4906000 The number of Telephony customers reached 4,501,000
representing an ncrease of 733,000 in the current year The number
of Line Rental customers increased by 801000 in the current year to

4,364 000 Inall 35% of cur customer base now takes all three of TV
broadband and telephiony up from 32% last year

We are progressing with cur plans to connect more Sky+HD boxes to
the internet with 2,709000 TV households with connected boxes as at
30 June 2013, an increase of 1,714 000 year on year

Sky Go, cur mobile video service, attracts a great response from
customers with guarterly unigue users at 3257000 in the fourth
quarter compared to 2,740 000 in the fourth quarter last year an
increase of 19%

Gur total customer base increased by 552,000 to 14,830,000
comprising 11153 000 retail custemers and 3 677000 wholesale
customers taking at ieast one paid-for Sky channel, Increases of
547000 and 5,000 respectively on the prior year

Churn for the current year was 10 8% (2012 10 2%) which reflects the
centinuing pressure on household budgets 1n a tough economic
environment, but was within our 10% to 11% target range

During the year we unbundled 358 additional exchanges Increasing
our footprint to approximately 88% network coverage

CORPORATE

The Board of Directors 1s proposing a final dividend of 19 0 pence per
ordinary share, resulting In a total dividend for the year of 30 0 pence
representing growth of 18% over the prior vear full-year dividend The
ex-dividend date will be 13 November 2013 and, subject to shareholder
approval at the Company s Annual General Meeting (‘AGM ") the
dividend will be paid on 6 December 2013 to shareholders of record on
15 November 2013

On 29 November 207 at the Company’s AGM, the Company was
granted the authority to return £750 milion of capital to shareholders
via a share buy-back programme (the 'November 201t Authority’ ) This
authority was subject to an agreement between the Company and
Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc (formerly known as News Corporation)
{and others) dated 28 July 2011 whereby following any market
purchases of shares by the Company Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc
would sell to the Company sufficient shares to mantain its percentage
shareholding at the same level as applied prior to those market
purchases The price payable to Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc would be
the price payable by the Company in respect of the relevant market
purchases (the 201 Share Buy-back Agreement’)

At the Company’s AGM on 1 November 2012, the Company was granted
the autherity to return a further £500 miltion of capital to shareholders
via a share buy-back programme (the November 2012 Authority™y This
authority was subject te an agreement between the Company and
Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc {and others) dated 28 July 2012 on
substantially the same terms as the 201 Share Buy-back Agreement.

On 25 July 2013 the Board agreed to seek the necessary approvals to
return a further £500 million of capital to shareholders via a share
buy-back programme Shareholder approvals will be sought at the
Company's AGM on 22 November 2013 The Company has entered into
an agreement with Twenty-First Century Fox Inc (and others) under
substantially the same terms as the 2011 Share Buy-back Agreement
The agreement 1s conditional on the approprate shareholder approvals
being granted The effect of the agreement 1s to provide that there will
be no change in Twenty-First Century Fox Inc s economic or voting
interests in the Company as a result of the share buy-back programme
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In the year to 30 June 2013, the Company repurchased for cancellation
80 549699 ordinary shares representing 5% of the Company’s 1ssued
share capitat as at 30 June 2013 for a total consideration of

£627 milllon which included stamp duty and commission of £3 million
This comprised 25 mitlon shares under the November 2011 Authonty
and 56 mithion shares under the current November 2012 Authority The
closing share count at the end of the financial year was 1,593,805 182

US$800 million of 3125% Guaranteed Notes, repayable in November
2022, were issued in November 2012 At the time of issuing these
netes the US dollar proceeds were swapped into pounds sterling
{E503 million) After hedging, 100% of the resulting sterling hab:lity was
subject to fixed Interest rates at an averagerate of 323%

On 30 Apnt 2013 the Group completed the purchase of the 02
consumer broadband and fixed-line telephony business from
Telefénica UK Total consideration comprised £180 millien of cash
relating to the purchase price contingent consideration of E20 millien
and a £5 milhon provisional cash adjustment relating to working
capital and active subscribers

OPERATING RESULTS

Revenue

Our revenue 1s principally denived from retail subseription, wholesale
fees, advertising and installation, hardware and servicing

Our retall subscription revenue Is a function of the number of
customers (residential and commercial) Including those subseribing to
a TV product or a standalone home communications product the mix
of services subscnibed to and the rates charged Revenue from the
provision of pay-per-view services which inciude Sky Box Office and
Sky Store 1s included within retaill subscrption revenue

Our wholesale subscription revenue which s revenue derived from the
supply of Sky Channels to cable, DTT and Internet Protocal Television

(' IPTV ) platforms 1s a function of the number of subscribers on the
relevant operators platforms the mux of services subscnbed to and
the rates charged to those wholesale operators

Our advertising reveriue 1s mainly a function of the number of
commercial Impacts defined as indivnduals watching one thirty
second commercial on our whally-owned channels together with the
quahity of impacts delivered and overall advertising market conditions
Adverbising revenue also Includes ret commissions earned by us from
the sale of advertising on those third party channe!s for which we act
as sales representative

Installation, hardware and service revenue includes income from
set-top bex sales and installation, serace calls and warranties

Other revenue principally includes income from Sky Bet tehnical
platform services, third party set-top box sales pubhc access WiFs
services, and programme distribution fees

Operating expense

Our operating expense arises from programming direct networks
marketing, subscrnber management and supply chain transmission
technology and fixed networks and administration costs

Programming costs Include payment for (1) icences of telewision nghts
from certain US and European film licensors including the resuits of
foreign exchange programme hedges (1) the rights to televise certam

sporting events and sports production costs, () other programming
acquired from third party icensors (v) the production and
commussioning of original programming and (V) the rights to retail the
Shy Distnbuted Channels to TV Customers The methods usad to
amortise programnung Inventories are described in section (g) of note
1to the consolhdated financial statements "Inventories”

Under our current pay television agreements with the US major movie
studios we generally pay a US dollar-denominated licence fee per
current mowvie calculated on a per movie subsenber basis During the
year, we managed our US dollar / pound sterling exchange nsk
primanily by the purchase of forward foreign exchange contracts and
currency options {(collars) for up to five years ahead (see note 22 to
the consolidated financial statements)

Under the DTH distribution agreements for the Sky Distributed
Channels we generally pay a monthly fee per subscriber for each
channel the fee In some cases being subyject to periodic Increases
(due to factors such as inflation or viewing performance), or we

pay a fixed fee or no such fee at all A number of our distribution
agreements are subject to minimum guarantees which are linked to
the proportion of the total number of TV Customers receming specific
packages Our costs for carniage of the Sky Distnibuted Channels will
(where a monthly per subscriber fee 1s payable) continue to be
dependent on changes in the subscriber base contractual rates
viewing performance andfor the number of channels distributed

Direct network costs Include costs directly related to the supply of
broadband telephony and internet-based TV services to our
customers This includes call costs monthly wholesale access fees
and other variable costs associated with our network

Marketing costs include (1) above-the-line spend (which promotes our
brand and range of products and services generally), (1} below-the-
line spend {which relates to the growth retention and mantenance of
the customer base, Including commissions payable to retallers and
other agents for the sale of subscriptions and the costs of our own
direct marketing to our existing and potential customers), and (1)) the
cost of providing and Installing digital satellite reception and home
communications equipment for new and existing customers In excess
of the relevant amount actually received from customers for such
equipment and installation

Subseriber rmanagement and supply chain costs include customer
management costs supply chain costs and associated depreciation
Customer management costs are those associated with managing
new and existing customers, Including customer handhing and
customer bad debt costs Supply chain costs relate to systems and
infrastructure installation costs of satellite reception equipment and
home communications equipment and installation costs of new
products purchased by customers such as HD and Multiroom set-top
boxes, including smartcard costs Customer management costs and
supply chain costs are largely dependent on customer levels and new
customer additions in the year

Transmission technology and fixed network costs include costs that
are dependent upon the number and annual cast of the satellite
transponders that we use Qur transponder capacity 1s primariby
supplied by the SES Astra and Eutelsat satellites Transmisston,
technology and fixed network costs also iInclude the costs associated
with transmission, uphink home communications connectivity costs
and the costs of our broadcasting facifity, Sky Studios

British Sky Broadcasting Group plk 29

ST

R VIRITT)

LG D P Af Py



Annual Report 2013 Directors’ report - Financial and operating review

¥

Directors’ report - Financial and operating review

continued

Administration costs include depreciation, channel management, facilities,
cther central operational overheads and the expense recognised for
awards granted under our employee share option schemes

For certain trend infermation related to our revenue and operating
expense, see the Trends and other information” section below

Current year compared to prior year

Revenue
The Group s revenue can be analysed as follows
2013 2012
For the year to 30 June £m % £m %
Retail subscription 5951 82 5593 82
Wholesale subscription 396 & 351 5
Advertising 440 6 440 7
Installabien hardware
and sérvice 87 1 98 1
Other 361 5 309 5
7,235 100 6,791 100

Group revenue increased by 7% to £7,235 milion (2012 £6 791 million),
with growth in both retail and wholesale operations and improvernant
In the more cyclical operations 1n advertising and pubs and clubs

Retail subscription revenue grew by 6% to £5951 millon (2012 £5593
million) reflecting continued product and customer growth and the
benefit of price increases which came into effect in September 2012

Wholesale subscription revenue increased by 13% to £396 milion
(2012 £351 milion) as we continue to benefit from greater take-up of
Sky premwm channels on other platforms despite the volume of
wholesale subscnbers remaining flat

Advertising revenue was flat year on year at £440 milion (2012 £440
million) as a result of headwinds impacting the sector, Including the
impact of market decline in the first quarter as a result of the
Olympices, offset by growth underpinned by increased ratings for our
media partner channels, with whom we share revenue upside

Installation, hardware and service revenue of £87 million was lower
year on year (2012 £98 mithon) due toimproved product rellability, an
increased number of customer self-installations and nght-first-time
engineer visits

Other revenue increased by 17% to £361 milion (2012 £309 mullion)
ctue to continued strong perfaermance from Sky Bet which saw an
Increase In Unique users 1 the year and growth ininternational
programme sales due to more orginal commussions

Operating expense
The Group's operating expense excluding adjusting items (as detalled
on page 31) can be analysed as follows

2013 202

Forthe year to 30 June £m % £m %
Programnmng 2486 42 2298 42
Direct networks ns 12 676 12
Marketing 11186 9 1064 19
Subscriber management ‘
and supply chan 647 n 621 n
Transmission
technology and fixed
networks 401 7 395 7
Administration 540 9 S14 o]

5905 100 5,568 100

Direct Costs

Programming costs increased by 8% to £2 4B6 milllon {2012 £2298
milion} in iine with our expectations Sports accounted for the
majority of the absolute increase due to the inclusion of Formula 1,
Ryder Cup and Lions costs not in the prnor year Movie costs increased
and included investment In expanded rights agreements to support
new product offerings such as Sky Go Extra and NOW TV
Entertainment costs saw the largest percentage increase (15% year on
year) as we continued to Invest innew and exclusive UK-commissioned
content across our channel portfolio

Direct network costs increased by only 6% to £715 million (2072 £676
millien) despite a 15% growth In home communications product
volumes on anorganic basis reflecting our work on network efficiency
within our communications operation

Other Operating Costs

Marketing costs increased 5% to £1116 mithon (2012 £1064 million),
although reduced by 30 basis points as a percentage of sales year on
year Lower cost route-to-market sales and lower acquisition volumes
helped to offset additicnal marketing spend te support the launch of
NOW TV and a national broadband campaign which included the
launch of fibre In the second half of the year

Subscriber management and supply chain costs were up 4% at
£647 milion (2012 £621 millon) driven largely by higher Sky Italia
set-top box sales and higher broadband volumes

Transmission, technolagy and fixed network costs increased by 2% to
£401 milhon (2012 £395 milhor) due to the increased transmission of
additional content from the Formula 1 channel Sky Go, NOW TV and
On Demand largely offset by continued efficencies

Adrministration costs were up 5% at £540 milkon (2012 £514 milion)
reflecting the biennial phasing of our share Incentive plans Excluding
this, adrinistration costs would have been flat on last year

Operating profit and operating margin

Adjusted operating profit increased by 9% to £1,330 millionn the
current year, as a result of strong growth in subscription revenue

and cost efficiencies in our aperations Adjusted operating margin
{calculated as total revenue less all operating expense as a
percentage of total revenue) for the current year was 18 4%, compared
to 18 0% In the prior year ‘
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Reported operating profit increased by 4% to £1,291 million in the
current year as a result of the factors descrnibed above and the
one-off items outlined in "Adjusting items™ below

Jomnt ventures and associates

Jaint ventures are entities in which we hold a long-term aterest and
share control under a contractual arrangement with other parties
Cur equity share of the net operating results from joint ventures and
associates increased by £7 milion to £46 million in the current year
This included a profit on disposal of a joint venture of £9 million,
ansing from the sale of our investment in MUTV Limited In the prior
yaar this Included a profit on disposal of a joint venture of £7 million,
anising from the sale of our investment in Chelsea Digital Media
Limited

Investment income and finance costs

Finance costs have decreased by 3% to £108 miiion (2012 £11 million)
as the result of a £5 million write-of f of the previous RCF facility fee in
the prior year and a £4 millon increase in non-cash fair value gains on
dervative financial Instruments not qualifying for hedge accounting
and hedge effectiveness This has been offset by an additional
Interest charge arising from the 1ssue of the $800 millon Guaranteed
Notes entered into in November 2012

Taxation

The total tax charge for the current year of £278 milion (2012, £283 milior)
comprises a current tax charge of £288 milion (2012 £270 milion)and a
deferred tax credit of £0 rmition (2072 charge of E13 milior) The lower tax
charge n the current year was primarity due to the lower UK corporation
taxrate

Profit for the year and eamings per share

Profit for the year was £979 million, compared to £906 million inthe
prior year The increase in profit was primarily due to growthm
subscription revenue and cost efficencies in our operating
expenditure

The Group s earnings per share are as follows

2003 2012
pence pence

Earnings per share from profit for the year
Basic 607 526
Diluted 597 522

In order to provide a measure of underlying performance
management has chosen to present an adjusted profit for the year
which excludes itemns that may distert comparability See note 8to
the consolidated financial statements for a detalled reconaliation
between profit and adjusted profit for the year

The Group s adjusted earmings per share from adjusted profit for the
year are as follows

2013 2012

pence pence

Basic 600 508
Diluted 591 504

Adjusting items

In the current year reported operating profit of £1,291 milion included
anet charge of £39 miltton relating to the adjusting items outlhned
below

In the current year we recogrused again of £32 millonrelating to a
credit note received from BT following an Ofcom determination that
BT had cvercharged for Ethernet services between 2006 and 2009
During the year we also reached a final settlernent of disputes with a
former manufacturer of set-top boxes suppled between 2004 and
2008, resulting in a gain of £33 million

In each of these Instances 1t was our customers who were most
impacted Accordingly we decided to pass the benefits of the
resolution of these disputes back to customers with two one-time
programmes First, we targeted a small cohort of around 150,000 of
aur customers who currently have one of the earliest versions of our
Sky+tHD box to offer them a free upgrade to the current version
allowing thern the same functionality as the vast majority of HD
customers Second, we are offeringwireless connectors to selected
Sky Movies customners enabling them to connect their existing
Sky*HD box to the full range of On Demand services We recognised a
charge in the year for these two one-of f initiatives of £56 million

Reported operating profit for the year also included a £33 milhon
charge relating to a corporate efficiency programme resulting in the
redundancy of approximately 250 head office employees and

£35 million of costs relating to the acquisition and integration of 02 s
consumer broadband and fixed-Ine telephony business

Reported profit for the year ncluded a gain of £9 million on the
disposat of our Investment In MUTV Limited and a gain of £23 mullion
for mark-to-market gans relating to the remeasurement of all
dervative financial Instruments not qualifying for hedge accounting
and hedge ineffectiveness

In the prior year reported operating profit of £1,243 million included a
net benefit of £20 millon This consisted of a £31 million gain relating
to the break fee from News Corporation (subsequently renamed
Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc) net of related costs, and £11 milion of
restructuring costs which compnsed severance payments in relation
to approximately 35 serior roles as part of a restructuring initiative to
improve operational efficency both of these amounts were classified
as admiristration costs

In the prior year, reported profit for the year included a cost of

ES milion due to writing off fees relating to the previous RCF a gain of
£7 million on the disposal of our investment in Chelsea Digital Media
Limited and a gain of £19 million for mark-to-market gains relating to
the remeasurement of all derivative financial nstruments neot
qualifying for hedge accounting and hedge ineffectiveness

Tax adjusting items and the related tax effects on the above items
resulted ina £17 million credit (2012 £10 million charge)

Balance sheet

Dunng the year, total assets increased by £836 million to £6,345
million at 30 June 2013 Non-current assets increased by £542 million
to £3776 milhon, primarily due to anincrease of £288 milionin
intangible assets and property, plant and equipment and an increase
of £194 million In avallable-for-sale investments significantly resulting
from the Increase in the value of our investment in ITV plc
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continued

Current assets increased by £234 miflon to £2,569 million at 30 June
2013 Thisincrease was sigruficantly due to a £236 milion net increase
in cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits driven by the
proceeds from the Novernber 2012 bond 1ssue, and a £92 million
increase Ininventories resulting from further investment in
programming content

Total habilities increased by £768 million to £5,333 millien at 30 June
2013 Current liabiities increased by £219 million to £2,317 million,
primarily due to an ncrease In trade and other payables Non-current
labilities increased by £549 million to £3 016 million, principally due to
a £511 milion increase In the Group’s non-current borrowings
following the November 2012 bond 1ssue

Foreign exchange

For details of the impact of foreign currency fluctuations on our
financial position and performance see note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements

Liuidity and capital resources
An analysis of the movement in our net debt (including related feas)is
as follows

Non-
Asat Cash cash Asat
1Juty move- move- 30 June
2012 ments ments 2013
£m £m £m £m
Current borrowings 8 m 4 n
Non-current borrowings 2,398 498 i3 2509
Borrowings-related derwative
financial Instruments (356) - 29 (3273
Gross debt 2,050 497 46 2593
Cash and cash equivalents (A64) (351) - (815)
Shart-term deposits 710 1s - (595}
Net debt 876 261 46 1183

The Group refers to net debt in discussing 1ts indebtedness and
Iquidity pesition Net debt 1s a non-GAAP measure that management
uses to provide an assessment of the overall indebtedness of the
Group The most similar IFRS GAAP measures are current and
non-current borrowings, see note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements

Managerment uses net debt to calculate and track adherence to the
Group s borrowing covenants, as disclosed in note 20 to the
consohdated financial statements Management monitors the
Group s net debt position because net debt 1s acommonly used
measure In the Ivestment analyst community and net debt with
certain adjustments 1s a key metric used by Moody s and Standard &
Poor s in their assessment of the Group s credit rating As such,
management makes decisions about the appropriate investing and
borrowing activities of the Group by reference to, amongst other
things net debt

Our tong-term funding comes primarily from our 1ssued equity and US
dollar and steriing-denominated debt For details of the Groups
facilihes, long-term funding, indebtedness position and the terms of
material debt arrangements, iIncluding compliance with borrowing
covenants, see note 20 to the censolidated financial statements For
detalls of the Group s treasury activities see note 22 tothe
consolidated financal statements

Our princepal source of kquidity 15 cash generated from operations,
combined with access to a £743 million committed RCF which expires
on 31 October 2017 At 30 June 2013 this faclity was undrawn

(30 June 2012 undrawn)

Cash flow

Adjusted free cash flow increased by 13% to £1028 millon (2012 £510
million) reflecting growth in adjusted EBITDA, a positive working
capital movement, lower interest and capital expenditure

Capital expenditure of £454 million (2012 £457 mitlton) was shghtly
lower than |ast year despite an increase In investment in the fourth
quarter as we started the construction of a new bullding on our main
site and commenced the integration of acquired Q2 fixed-Ine and
telephony customers

Net debt increased to £1183 millon (2012 £876 mullier) primarily as a
result of the share buy-back and dvdend growth Gross debt was
£2593 mithion with £1 410 million of cash and cash equivalents at

30 fune 2013 The Group's iquidity and headroom remain comfortable

Trends and other information

The significant trends and factors which have a matenal effect on our
financial performance are cutlined below

The total number of paid-for subscription products was 31,634,000
anncrease of 3269 000 during the year Paid-for subseription
products consist of TV, HD, Multiroom Sky Go Extra Broadband, Talk
and Line Rental products This includes the impact of the acquisition
of the O2 consumer broadband and fixed-line telephony business

The total number of retail customers including standalone home
communications customers, was 11153 000, an increase of 547000
customers during the year, including the impact of the acquisition of
the 02 consumer broadband and fixed-hine telephane business

We expect growth in the number of products sold and customer
numbers to continue as a result of the quality choice, rehability and
value of the services that we provide which s expected to generate
ncreased retall revenue on a per customer basis

Churn for the current year was 10 8%, compared to 10 2% in the prior
year Over the medium term we expect our ¢hurn to remain broadly
around this level

During the current year, the number of wholesale subscribers taking
at least one paid-for Sky channel in the UK and Ireland was 3 677000
compared to 3 672,000 n the prior year Our wholesale subscribers
are wholly dependent on the strategies of the relevant wholesale
operators generally as they relate to the distribution of our Channels
(for further detaiis see ‘Directors report - Business review - Review
of our business™ on page 10)

Advertising revenue was flat year on year In the short term the UK
television advertising sector 1s expected to remain volatile and
challenging reflecting the continued wider economic uncertamty

The Group s programming costs have increased in the current year
reflecting our continued commitment to investing in high-quality
content We expect programming costs will continue to increase and
note our commitment to INncrease our INvestment n UK oniginated
content and production
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Direct network costs increased duning the current year and are
expected to ncrease in future years The expected increase reflects
increasing Sky Broadband and Sky Talk subscribers, scaling our LLU
presence and the growth of broadband traffic to support ncremental
customers and fibre capability increasing Insh broadband
subscnbers and increased usage per customer

Marketing costs increased in the year and are expected to increase In
future years in order to maintain our share of voice In an increasingly
competitive environment,

Subscriber management and supply chain costs were flat year on
year The level of growth in both the total number of customers and
the number of additional services taken by our customers (for
example HD) will rerain key drivers of these costs in future as will our
ability to deliver rate efficiency improvements across our contact
centre and supply chain operations

Admunistration costs, excluding the impact of phasing of our share
incentive plans were flat year on year Going forward, our aim 15 to
hold the rate of growth in admirustration costs below that of revenue
growth

Off-balance sheet arrangements

At 30 June 2013, the Group did not have any undisclosed off-balance
sheet arrangements that require disclosure as defined under the
applicable rules of IFRS

Events after the reporting period

On 25 July 2013 the Board agreed to seek the necessary approvals to
return a further £500 million of capital to shareholders via a share
buy-back programme

For further detalis see note 30 te the consolidated financial
statements
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1 Nick Ferguson CBE
Chairman

Appaoirited to the Boerd 15/06/2004
Nationality British

Committee membership
Member of the Remuneration and Corporate
Govermance & Mominations Committees

Skills and experience

Extensive experience in leadership roles

in the finance sector Co-founder and
instrumental in tha development of Schroder
Ventures (the private equity group which
later became Permira) of which he served

as Chairman from 1984 to 2007 Prior to his
appontment as Chairman of the Company
on 3 Apnl 2012, he served as Deputy
Chairman and Senior independent
Non-Executve Director Chairman of Alta
Advisers Umited anmvestment advisory
firm, since January 2007 Former Charman

of the Courtauld Institute of Art for tenyears
before retiring in July 2012 Chairman of SVG
Capital ple, a public quoted private equity
group from April 2095 to November 2012

2 Jeremy Parroch
Chief Executive Officer

Appainted to the Board 16/08/2004
Nationalty British

Skills and experience

Jeremy joined the Company as Chief
Financial Gfficer {CFO) 2004 and was
appointed CEQ InDecember 2007 He has
extensive experience inthe retailing and
fast-moving consumer gowds sactors Prior
tojoiring the Compary Jererny was Group
Finance Director of DSG International plc
(DSGY, formerly Dixons Group picand prior to
D25G he spent 12 years at Procter & Gamble
i avariety of roles inthe UK and Europe

Until June 2013 Jeremy was Non-Executive
Director and the Charman of the Audit
Committee of Marks and Spercer Group plc
Jeremy s a Board Member of the chanty
Youth Sport Trust and 1s a Business Member
of the National Centre for Universities

and Business

3 Andrew Griffith
Chief Finanaal Officer

Appointed to the Board 07/0472008
Natonality British

Skills and experience

An experienced finance professional
Andrew joined the Company 1999 and
held anumber of senior finance reles prior
to his appointment as CFC in Apnl 2008
Inaddition to his role as CFQ Andrew

has executive responsibility for

Sky's commeraal businesses, nduding
advertising, data services and broadcasting
1o licensed premises Andrew joined the
Company from Rothsthild the nvestment
banking crganisation where he provided
financial and strategic advice Lo corporate
chients inthe technology medsa and
telecommunications sector Hehas adegree
i law from Nottingham University and

1s a nember of the 100 Group of Finance:
Directors and Adwisory Board of the Oxford
Unversity Centre for Business Taxation.

4 Chase Carey
Non Executive Director

Appainted to the Board 30/01/2013
HNatienality American

Skills and experience

An executive with extensve media and
Pay TV expenence Chase is President and
Chuef Operating Officer of Twenty-First
Century Fox, Inc. and Cha rrman of the
Supervisory Board of Sky Deutschland AG

Former President and Chief Executive
Officer of DIRECTV Inc where he led the
operatiens and strategic direction of the
Cirect TV Group Prior to joning DIRECTV Inc
he was Co-Chiaf Qperating Officer of

News Corperation (subsequently renamed
Twenty-First Century Fox Inc) and Charman
and Chiaf Executrve Officer of the Fox
Televiston Group

5 Tracy Clarke
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board 11/06/2012
Nationality British

Committee membership
Member of the Remuneration and the
Bigger Picture Committees

Skills and expenence

An experienced banking and human
resources professional Group Head People
Campliance Commurications and Lulture
at Standard Chartered Bank Tracy has spent
most of her career n banking reles both

in the UK and inHong Fong. A former
Non-Executive Director of SC First Bank

in Korea (2005 2007) and Non-Executive
Director of Eaga plc (2007-2011), where

she chaired the Remuneration Committee
Tracy 1s a trustee of the charity WORKing
for YOUth A member of the Institute

of Financial Services and a Fellow of

the Chartered Institute of Personnel

and Development

& David F DeVoa
Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board 15/12/1994
Nationality Amencan

Skilts and expenence

A finance professional with extensive
expenence n the media sector FromJuly
2013 David will serve as Senior Advisor to
the Board of Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc
(formerly known as News Corporation)
having served as CFO from 1990 to June 2013
and as a Senior Executive Vice President
from 1996 to June 2013 David s a Director of
Shine Limied and has previously served as a
Director of Gemstar-TV Guide (2001-2008)
and as a Director of DIRECTV {2003-2008)
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7 Martin Gitbert
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appainted to the Board 29112001
Hat ona’ty Bntsh

Commantee membership
Charman of the Audit Committee and
rmember of the Remuneration Committee

Skills and experience

Experienced finance professional and
entrepreneur and CEC of Aberdeen Asset
Management PLC the fund management
group that he co-founded N 1983 Heis
amember of the Scottish Government's
Finanaal Services Advisory Board Martn
is former Chairman of Chaucer PLC and was
Non-Executive Director of Dynmark,
International Lmited He s a Director of a
number of Investment trusts and s
Chairman of Firstgroup ple.

8 Adine Grate
Independent Non-Executive Diractor

Apponted to the Board 17072013
MNatenality Swedish

Skills and expenence

An executive with extensve finance and
investrent managerment expenence Adine
has operated at the top tiers of Nordic
based intemnational business for the past
two decades Charperson of NASDAQ OMX
Swedish Listing Committes and Vice
Chairperson of AP7 a Swedish pension and
savings asset management comparty
ABoard member of Three (Scandinawna) a
mabile telecommunications and broadband
operator SOBIAB an mternaticnal specialty
healthcare company Sampo QY aleading
finarcial and Insurance institutiors and
Swedavia AB anairport operator Formerly
Executive Vice President and Managing
Director of Investor AB owner of a number of
Mordic based international companies

Adine s Charperson of Base23 and Friends
of a Designmuseum

9 Arxiy Higginson
Sentor independent
Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board 0170872004
Mationality' British

Committee membership

Chairman of the Corporate Gavernance
&Nominatiens Committee and member
of tha Audit Committee

Skalls and expertence

A former Director of Tesco plc having spent
15 years at the company, §wst as Finarce
and Strategy Director and latterty as

Chief £xecutive of their Retailing Services
business His early career was with Unilever
Guinness Laura Ashley and the Burton
Group Heis amember of the 100 Group of
Finare Directors Andy 1s Chairman of
Pourdland Limited and N Brown plc and a
Non-Executie Drector of Woolworth SA
and the Pugby Football Union

10 Dave Lewls
independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed Lo the Board 16/11/2042
Nationality British

Commattee membership

Member of the Audit, Corporate
Governance & Nominations and the
Bigger Picture Committees

Skills and experience

Experienced executive with strang
operational expertise Dave s President,
Personal Care for Unilever plc, where he also
sits on the Urulever Leadership Executive.
Jowvng Urulever as a graduate tranee In
1987 he has held a variety of serwor roles in
Europe South Amenca and Asi, iIncluding
President for the Amencas and Chasrman
of Unilever UK arxi frelarnd

11 Jamas Murdoch
Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board 13/02/2003
Nauonality: American

Committee membership
Cha rman of the Bigger Picture Committae

Skills and experlence

An expenenced media executive who

has hekd a number of senior leadership
roles within Twenty-First Century Fox Inc.
(formerhy known as News Corporation) He
has been a Director of the Company since
2003 having served as CEO from Movernber
2003 until Becember 2007 and Charman
from December 2007 until Aprii 2072

James 15 Deputy Chief Operating Officer
Charmnan and CEQ International at
Twenty First Century Fox, Inc James s
amember of the Board of Directors and
Executive Cormmittee at Twenty-First
Century Fox Ine and a member of the
Board of Mews Corporation Inc Between
2000 and 2003 he was Charmanand CEQ
of Star Growp Limited James s a former
NorrExecutive Director of GlaxoSmithKline
pic (2009-2012) and Satheby’s (2010-2012)

12 Matthieu Pigasse
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board 2611/20i1
Nationality French

Committee membership-
Member of the Audit Committea

Skills and experience

Leading investment banking professicnal
and former crmlian adminstrator of the
French Mirystry of Economy and Finance
N 2002 he joined Investment banking firm
Lazard Matthteu s Deputy CEG of Lazard
n France and Vice Chatrrnan of Lazard in
Europe He s also the owner of a French
pubkshing group Les Inrockuptibles and

a co-controling shareholder of the leading
newspaper publsher Le Monde and the
French edition of the Huffington Post.

A Board member of Groupe Lucien
Bamiére Derichebourg and Relax News

13 Danny Rimer
independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board 07/042008
Natonality Swiss

Commmtiee membershp

Chawrman of the Remuneration Commuttee
and member of the Corporate Gavernance &
Nominatians Cammittee

Skills and experience

Investment finance professional arkd
entrepreneur with extensive experience
of building nvestment businesses
intemationally Specific sector krowledge
and skills foaus include Internet
infrastructure software and servicas
technology communications ecommerce
and media business General Partrer of
the venture capital firm Index Ventures
Management LLP (Index Ventures) Prior
te jeining Index Ventures he wasa
General Partner of The Barksdale Group

Danny serves on a number of boards
inchiding Etsy Inc, First Dibs Ine,
Flipboard Inc, FON Wireless Limited
Nasty Gal, Inc, RightScale Inc. and Viagogo

14 Arthur Siskind
Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board 1511991
Nationalty American -

Commites membership
Member of the Corporate Governance
& Mominations Committes

Skills and expenence

Highly expenienced legal practitioner and
member of the Bar of the State of New

York since 1962 Senior Advisorto the
Chairman since January 2005 and Director
Emeritus since October 2012 of Twenty-First
LCentury Fox Inc (formerly known as News
Corporation) Arthur served at News.
Corporation as an Executive Director from
1591 to Octeber 201, Group Generatl Counsel
from 199 to December 2004 as a Semor
Executive President from 1996 to December
2004 and as an Executive Vice Pres:dent
from 1991 10 1996 Adjunct Professor of Law
at the Cornell Law Schoot (2007 2008) and
Adjunct Professor of Law at Georgetown
Uriversity Law Center (2005 2007)

18 Andy Sukawaty
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board O1/06/2013
Nauonality American

Committee membership
Member of the Remurveraton Cormmittes

Skills and expenence

Executwve Chairman of Inmarsat ple, gicbal
motile satellite communications pravicer
Andy has praviously held a number of senior
management posiions In the
telecommunications industryincluding
Chief Executive and President of Sprint

PCS anc Chief Executrve of NTL (UK and
roles at US West and AT&T Andyrs
Non-Executwe Chaiman of the Superwvisory
Board of Zigro NV, a Dutch national

medta and Commurications compary
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Corporate governance report

CHAIRMAN'S OVERVIEW

On behalf of the Board 1t gives me great pleasure to mtroduce this
year s Corporate Governance Report | would like to take this
oppertunity to provide you with some direct insight into the Board s
wiews on Corporate Governance our focus during the year, the changes
to our Board composition through the year and the Board s first
extermal Board evaluation

As a Board we are the stewards of the Company [t is our responsibility
to ensure that the Company’s strategy 1s aigned to the interests of
our Investors and takes account of the interests of all the Company's
stakeholders As indmduals we believe that effective Corporate
Governance 15 based on honesty Integrity and transparency and can
only be fully realised within an erwironment of open, robust and
effective debate This is the Board culture we foster at Sky and it 1s my
personal responsibility as Chairman to ensure that we continue to live
this culture and promote it within our business

Firstly | would like to address our Board cornposition There have been
anumber of changes in Board and Committee membership during the
year | am pleased to welcome Dave Lewis, Chase Carey Andy Sukawaty
and Adine Grate to the Board Jacques Nasser and Lord Wilson of
Dinton both retired from the Board during the year Chase Carey whe
previously served as a Non-Executive Director from February 2003 to
February 2009 replaced Thomas Mockridge folowing his resignation
inJarmuary 2013 In arder to clanfy the roles of Board members within
our Corporate Governance Report on pages 37 and 38 we have
included a detailed description of the Directors roles and
responsibilities

It has been the Board s strategy to attract directors who complement
and expand upon the skill set of the Board We seek to appoint
directors who provide diversity in background expenence and views
We recognise that gender diversity can bring a greater range of
viewpoints to boardroom debate and improve board dynamics

In hne with corporate governance best practice during the year an
external Board evaluation was undertaken by Alice Perkins of JCA
Group The feedback from the evaluatron confirmed that the Board
and each of its Committees continue to operate effectively and that
each Director continues to make an effective contribution and retains
a strong commitment to therr role The resulting development themes
that arose from the evaluation are discussed on page 41

Dunng the year we have continued our work in promoting greater and
more effective engagement with our shareholders Andy Higginson
our Executive Directors and | have meat with institutional investors
and analysts Along with Danny Rimer, Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, we will continue to engage with sharehelders over the
course of the coming fimancial year

Mick Ferguson
Chairman

COMPLIANCE WITH THE UK CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The UK Corporate Governance Code (the "Code”) provides the
standard for corporate governance in the UK The Financial Conduct
Authority requires listed companies to disclose whether they have
complied with the provisions of the Code throughout the financial
year The Cade as revised in September 2012 will apply to the Company
during the next financiat year For this financial year, the Company has
continued to apply the 2010 version of the Code

The Board considers that the Company has fully complied with the
provisions and applied the main principles of the Code for the whole
of the year ended 30 June 2013 This section of the Annual Report
along with the Remuneration Committee s report on Directors
remuneration cn pages 48 to 56 and other governance and statutory
disclosures on pages 57 to 59 provide details of how the Company has
applied the main principles Further inforrmation on the Code s
avallable on the Financial Reporting Council s website fre org uk

LEADERSHIP
Role of the Board and its Members

The Board has collective respensibility for the management direction
and performance of the Compary and provides leadershipwithina
framework of prudent and effective contrels which enables risk to be
appropriately assessed and managed The Board sets the strategic
direction ensuring that the necessary resources are in place for the
Company to meet its objectives and deliver sustainable performance

The Board takes along term outlook and sees itself as responsible to
awide range of stakeholders whilst pursuing its objectives ina
manner consistent with its statutory duties for the benefit of the
Company s members as awhole

The Directors of the Board are selected on the cnitena of proven skill
and ability in their particutar field of endeavour, and a diversity of
outlook and experience which directly benefits the operation of the
Board as the custodian of the business A full biography of each Board
member 1s provided cnpages 34 to 35

The Board agenda

The roles of the Chairman and CEQ are separate and have been so
since the Company’'s shares were admitted to Iisting n1994 Theroles
and expectations of each Director are clearly defined and recorded
within therr letters of appointment or service contracts The rotes and
responsibilities of the Board members are explained below

To maintain an appropriate level of control over the day to day affairs
of the Compary, the following matters are subject tothe
determination and/cr approval of the Beard and are contamed within
the Company's "Schedule of Matters Reserved to the Board

> approval of the annual budget and any changesto it

> amajor change in the nature, scope or scale of the business of the
Group,

> approval of the interim and finairesults,

> approva! of any dividend policy

>changes relating to the Groups capital structure including
reductions of capital and share buy-backs,

> the entering Into by the Group of a commitment or arrangement (or
any serles of related commitments or arrangements) which
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whether budgeted or unbudgeted, involves or could reasonably
nvolve the payment or recaipt by the Group of amounts equal to or
in excess of £200 milion in aggregate value

> the entenng into by the Group of a commitment or arrangement {or
any senes of related commitments or arrangements) with arelated
party (as defined by the Listing Rules) which involves or could
reasonably Involve the payment or receipt by the Group of amounts
equal to or in excess of £25 milhon in aggregate value

> approval of resolutions to be put forward to shareholders at a
general meeting

> changes to the structure size and compositon of the Board
following, If apphicable recommendations from any committee to
which the Board delegates consideration of such 1ssues,

> appointment and removal of the Chairman of the Board and the
CEQ and

> determirung the independence of Non-Executive Directors

The full schedule of matters reserved for decision making by the
Board can be found on the Company s corporate website at sky com/
corporate In the event that a matter s required to be resolved by a
vote of the Board, the matter shall be decided by a majority of votes in
accordance with the Company's Articles of Association The Charrman
does not have a casting vote

Board Focus

During the year and 1n addition to its reserved and standing matters,
the Board also considered and received a number of updates and
presentations relating ameng others to

> The Company’s finance and operations

> Governance and formal business

> The general market and economic outlaok
> The competitive landscape

> Products and services

> Content Investments

Strategy Away Days

In February 2013, members of the Board attended an offsite day
dedicated to the Company’s strategic prionties This format gives
Directors a further opportunity te explore, analyse and challenge
management on Its strategic approach At this year's away day the
Board were engaged n and received presentation and updates
relating to

> The Company’s five year financial plans
> New product developments

> Growth of existing business activities
> Opportunitias and market trends

ROLES AND RESPONS!BILITIES

The Chairman

The Chairman 1s responsible for leadership of the Board, ensuring its
effectiveness on alt aspects of its role and setung its agenda Thus
includies ensuring via the Company Secretary that the Directors
recelve accurate timely and clear information The duties of the
Charman include the following

> to provide a sounding board to the CEQ

> toencourage and ensure effective communication with
sharehalders and ensure shareholder views are commurnicated to
the Board as a whole

> to faclitate a structure to allow the effective contribution of all
Directors, and of Non-Executive Directors in particular,

> toareate an environment which engenders constructive refations
between Executive and Non-Executive Directors

> to organise the bustness of the Board so that it can be carried out
effectively and efficiently,

>tolead the Board (n discussions regarding the Company's strategy
and In the achievement of its chjectives,

> to ensure Board committeas are properly established composed
and operated and

> to enhance the Company’s public standing and image overall

The Chief Executive Officer

The CEO 1s responsible for the dailly operation of the Company,
advanaing long-term shareholder value supported by the
management team He Is accountable and responsible to the Board
for the management and operation of the Compary He s also
nvelved In the management of the social and environmental
responsibilities of the Company The duties of the CEC include the
following

> to be responsible and accountable to the Board for the
management and operation of the Group

> to prepare and implement plans and programmes for the
attamment of approved objectives and te recommend such plans
and programmes to the Board as appropriate,

> to provide leadership in the Group s commitment to attaining high
business standards generally,

> tocreate the conditions within the Group for the effioent operation
of allbusiness units

> to establish and maintain relationships with shareholders and
potential shareholders, and major external bodies,

> tokeep the Board informed onallmatters of matena! importance,
and

> to chair meetings of the Executive Committee

Seniortndependent Non-Executive Director{SID)

The role of the SID 1s to provide both support and a counterbalance to
the position of Chairman and encompasses the following

> to provide a sounding board to the Charrman

>to serve as an alternative source of advice to the Chairman for the
other Non-Executive Directors,

> together with the other tndependent Non-Executive Directors, to
evaluate the performance of the Chairman and agree development
points required
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Corporate governance report

continued

> along with the Chairman to haise with institutional shareholders
and representative bodies durning the year and

> to assist shareholders in resolving concerns should alternative
channels be iInappropriate

Non-Executive Directors

Callectively, and specifically within the remit of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors the Non-Executive Directors are responsible
for the following aspects of governance of the Board

> to scrutinise the performance of management in reaching agreed
objectives and rmonitor reporting,

> ta satisfy themselves on the integnty of financial nformatwon

> to ensure financial controls and systems of sk management are
robust and defensible

> to determine appropriate levels of remuneration of Board members,
and

> to determine the composition of the Board in respect of succession
planning

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary Is responsible for the following in respect of
effective Board operatton

> to ensure good information flows within the Boardand its
committees between senior management and Non-Executive
Directors

> to facilitate Director induction and assisting with prafessional
development and

> toadwvise the Board through the Chairman of all corporate
governance obligations and developments n best practice

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who advises on corporate governance matters, Board
procedures and other relevant rules and regulations in addition
Directors have the right to seek independent professional advice at
the Company’s expense

During the year, Chris Taylor was appointed Company Secretary in
place of David Gormley who moved to another role within Sky

Board and Committee framework

Audit
. Committee

Bigger Picture

Committee

Environment supportive of challenge

The effective operation of the Board 1s dependent on the inherent
checks and balances within the vanous Board roles As highly quatified
and successful individuals in their respective fields of endeavour all
Independent Non-Executive Directors influence debate and
contribute to decisions relating to the strategy of the Company its
performance and s mpact on stakeholders The Independent
Non-Exacutive Directors are evaluated and judged on the quality and
content of their contributions to Board debate and are expected to
offer alternative viewpoints and challenge perceptons and deoisions
as appropriate

Board delegation

The Board has delegated speaific responsibilities to Board
committees notably the Audit, Remuneration Corporate Governance
& Nominations and the Bigger Picture committees Each committees
terms of reference can be found on the Company’s corporate website
The Board 1s satisfied that the terms of reference of each of the
committees satisfy the requirements of the Code

The minutes of committee meetings are made available to all Board
Directors on atimely basis At each Board meeting the chairman of
each committee provides the Board wath a brief update of the work
currently being carried out by the committee they charr

A committee of senior management generally meets on a weekly basis
to allow prompt discussion of relevant business issues It 1s chaired by
the CEQ and comprises the CFQ and other senicr executives from
within the Group

Remuneration
Committee

Corporate Governance &
Nominations Committee
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Meetings of the Board during the year

The Board met five times during the year Attendance at Board and Committee meetings dunng the year is set out in the table below é
The table shows the number of meetings each Director and Committee member were eligible to attend 5
L]
Corporate ¥
Governance &
Board Audit  Remuneration Nom nations  Brgger Picture
Number of meetings held m year 5 6 3 4 2
Director
Jeramy Darroch, CEO 5/5
Andrew Griffith 5/5
Chase Caray 202
Tracy Carke™* 55 313 2
Dawid DeVoe™? 4/5
Nick Fergusont™« - 515 \ 313 4/4
Martin Gilber gt 55 6/6 2f3
Andy Higginsont % ) 4/5 56 3/4
Dave Lewst s 3/3 212 il n
James Murdoch®™ 85 . 212
Matthieu Pigasse »¥'> s 3/6
Danny Rimerd ¥» 55 313 3/4
Arthur Siskind™ 55 414
Andy Sukawaty™ n ’
Thomas Mockridge v¥? ' 2/3 f
Jacques Nasser®™ 22 n i
Lord Wilson of Dinton™ N 4/4 313 212 ‘
Notes ’ ! :
() Dave Lewrs was appointed to the Board on 16 November 2012 Chase Carey was appointed to the Board on 30 January 2013 and Andy Sukawaty was appointed to the Board on i
1Jure 2013 | -

[

() Corporate Governance & Nominations Committea member Lord Wilson of Dinton retired as a member on 1 June 2013 and Dave Lews became a membar cn 11 June 2013

(1) Audit Committee member Andy Higginsonstepped down ds Chairman of the Audit Committee on1 November 2012 Dave Lew:s became a rmember on 30 January 2013

(w) Bigger Picture Committee member Dave Lewts was appointed as a member on 30 January 2013 and Lord Wilson of Dinton resigned as amember on 1 June 2013

) Remuneration Cormmittee member Jacgues Nasser ratired as a member on 1 November 2012 and Andy Sukawaty became a member on 11 June 2013

{vn) Jacques Nasser retired from the Board on  November 2012 Thomas Mockndge resigned from the Board on 30 January 2013 and Lord Wilson of Dinton retired from the Board on
1June 2013

{vi) David DeVoe was unable t¢ attend a Board meeting due to a conflicting News Corporation (subsequentiy renarmed Twenty-First Century Fox Ing) meeting

iy Andy Higginsan was unable to attend a Board meeting cue to family commitments

{x) Matthieu Pxgasse was unable to attend Board and Committee meetngs due to overseas travel on Lazard business and persona reasons

(x) Thomas Mockridge could not attend a Boartd me¢ting as he resigned from the Board that day

Brtish Sky Broadcastuing Group ple 39




Annual Report 2013 Directors’ report - Governance

Corporate governance report

continued

EFFECTIVENESS
Board composition and independence

The Board currently comprises 15 Directors, made up of two Executive
Drrectors and 13 Non-Executive Directors At least half 6f the Board of
Directors are determined to be independent by the Board in
accordance with provision B12 of the Code Biographies of each of the
Directors are set out on pages 34 to 35 and identify those Directors
who are, in the view of the Beard, iIndependent within the meaning of
the Code On appomtment the Chairman met the independence
critera set out in provision B 11 of the Code

The Independent Non-Executive Directors bring a wide range of
experience and expertise to the Group's affars and carry significant
weight In the Board s decisions The Independent Non-Exaecutive
Directors are encouraged to challenge management and help develep
proposals on strategy Time (s regularly put aside at Board meetings
to discuss the strategic direcuon of the Company

Prior to appointment, and on an annual basis each Board member
receves and completes a questionnaire to determine factors that
may affect iIndependence according to best practice statements
contained within the Code The responses to the questionnaire assist
the Board in ascertaining whether a Director s independent in
character and judgement and whether there are relationships or
circumstances which are likely to affect or could appear to affect, the
Director s judgement,

Appointments to the Board and succession planning

The Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee keeps the
Board s balance of skills knowledge, experience and the length of
service of individuals under constant review In respect of succession
planning and supplementing the skill set of the Board, there 1s an
established procedure for the appointment of Directeors In brief, the
Committee identifies the set of skills and experence required and,
with the assistance of external search agencies selects individuais to
take Board positions on review of their individual ments The process
adopted by the Committee around Director recruitment 1s discussed
in the Corporate Governance & Nominations Commitiee s report on
pages 45 and 46

Board diversity

The Board has noted the findings of the Davies Review and has
published a statement of 1ts intention to Increase female
representation on the Board This statement ¢an be found on the
Company's corporate website The Corporate Governance &
Nominations Commuittee (s responsible for succession planning and
further information of the work of the Committee during the year can
be found on pages 45 and 46

Directors’ reappointment

In respect of Code proviston B 71 all Executive and Non-Executive
Directors will retire and offer themselves for reappointment at the
2013 AGM of the Company 1n compliance with the Code

Board and committee changes during the year

At the Company’s AGM on 1 November 2012, Jacques Nasser retired
from the Board and also as a member of the Remuneration

Committee Following the AGM, Martin Gilbert was appointed as

Chairman of the Audit Committee in place of Andy Higginson whe

remains a member On 16 November 2012 Dave Lewis was appointed

as an Independent Non-Executive Director On 30 January 2013, Dave .
Lews was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee and the

Bigger Picture Committee and on 11 June 2013 he was appointed as a

member of the Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee

On 30 January 2013, Themas Mockridge resigned and Chase Carey was
appointed as a Non-Executive Director On1June 2013, Lord Wilson of
Dinton retired from the Board and as a member of the Corporate
Goverpance & Nominations Committee and the Bigger Picture
Committee On1lune 2013 Andy Sukawaty was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director On 11 June 2013 Andy Sukawaty
was appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee On

17 July 2013 Adine Grate was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director

Time commitment

Executive Directors are not allowed to take on the chairmanship of a
FTSE 100 company, but are aliowed to take up one external non-
executive FTSE 100 appeintment and retain any payments in respect
of such appointments Any external appointments for the Executive
Directors are considered by the Corporate Governance & Nominations
Committee AllNon-Executive Directors are advised of the likely time
commitrments required on induction and are expected to devote
sufficient time for the effective discharge of their functions The
Company provides Non-Executive Directors with appropriate support
and facilities for consideration of the Company’s strategy and
performance and a dialogue with the Chairman is strongly
encouraged 50 that any issues regarding conflicting commitments
and time pressures can be addressed appropriately

Induction & training

All new Directors receive an induction tallored to therr indnwidual
requirements The Induction process INvelves meeting with all of the
Compary’s Executive Directors and Senior Executives This faciitates
their understanding of the Group and the key drivers of the business
performance During the year Directors have received presentations
from a number of areas of the business including Customer Group, Sky
Media, Sky Sports and Strategic Planming Group The Charrman meets
with the Directors throughout the year to review and agree their
individual training and developmental needs

in consultation with the Chairman and CEQ the Company Secretary
organises and faclitates directors’ induction For exarmnple, Dave Lewis
was appointed to the Board on 16 November 2012 and has undergone
the initial stages of induction, which have inciuded meetings with key
executives ameeting with the Bigger Picture team and a tour of the
Sky Skills Studio During the remainder of 2013, he will attend an
outside broadcast and visit a customer callcentre

tnformation provided to the Directors

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring good information
flows within the Board and Its committees, between senior
management and Non-Executive Directors For each Board and
Committee meeting Directors are provided with a tallored Board pack
at least one week prior to the meeting Toimprove the delivery and
security of Board papers, the Company has adepted an electronic
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systermn whereby Directors’ board packs are accessible and available
irrespective of geographic location Directors regularly receve
additional information from the Company between Board meetings
including a daily press summary and a monthly Group performance
update Where a Director was unable to attend a meeting, they were
provided with alt the papers and iInformation relating to that meeting
and were able to discuss issues arising directly with the Charrman
and CEO

Conflicts of interest

Under UK company law, all Directors must seek authonsation before
taking up any position with another company that conflicts, or may
possibly conflict, with the Company's interests The Company's
Articles of Association contain provisions Lo allow the Directors to
authorise situations of potential conflicts of interest so that a
Director 1s not in breach of his duty under company law All existing
external appointments for each Director have been authorised by the
Board and each authorisation is set out in a Conflicts Register
Drrectors are required to notify the Board of potential conflicts so
that they can be considered, and if appropriate, authonised by the
Board In addition, the Corporate Governance & Nominations
Comrnittee conducts an annual review of Directors conflicts and
reports its findings to the Board

The Cerporate Governance & Nominations Ccmmittee reviewed the
Board's conflicts during the financial year and concluded that
conflicts had been appropriately authorised and that the process for
authornsation is operating effectively The Corporate Governance &
Nominaticns Committee and the Board will cortitinue to monitor and
review potential conflicts of interest on a regular basis

Directors & Officers’ Insurance and Indemnrty

The Company recognises that all Directors are equally and collectively
accountable under the law for the proper stewardship of the
Company’s affairs The Company maintains a Directors and Officers
hability insurance policy which meets defence costs when the Director
15 not proved to have acted fraudulently

Additionally, the Company's Articles of Association allow the Comparty
to indemnify the Directors and deeds of indemnity have beenssued
to all Directors of the Company

Board Evatuation

In line with corporate governance best practice, an external Board
evaluation was undertaken during the year The process was
facilitated by Alice Perkins who works for the coaching division of JCA
Group which s separate tothe recrutment division engaged by the
Corporate Governance & Nominatrons Committee during the year to
assist In the recruitment of non-executive directors JCA Group have
no other relationships with the Company

Following discussions with the Chairman Servor Independent Director
CEC and the Company Secretary JCA Group prepared discussion
guidelines which formed the basis for one to one interviews with all
Board members and the Company Secretary The areas covered by the
discusston guidelines included

> Organisation of the Board and its composition
> Committee organisation and composition
>Strategy

> Peerreviews

> Board relations with key stakeholders

> Risk compliance and financial monitoring

> Overall Board effectiveness and succession planning

The findings were presented to the Corporate Governance &
Nominations Committee and the Board for discussien in October
2012 The feedback confirmed that the Board and each of its
Committees continue to operate effectively and that each Director
continues to make an effective contrnibution and demonstrates a
strong commitment to the role

The Board discussed the key findings and agreed the follow:ing action
points

> The Board induction pracess would be reviewed and strengthened,

> The composition of the Beard and its Committees would be kept
under review

> Board mformation flows would be reviewed to ensure that all
Directors are kept up to date with developments in between
meetings, !

> The Board and Commuttee meeting schedule would be reviewed

The performance of each director was evaluated as part of the
evaluation process based on self-analysis and input from the other
directors It s the Board's Intention o contmue to review Its
performance and that of its Committees and individual directors on
an annual basis Inrespect of the evaluation process for the 2013/14
financial year, it 1s hikely that a mixture of external Facilitatvon and
internal facihitation will be used

ACCOUNTABILITY

Throughout this report and, as required through other perniedic
financial statements, the Board 1s committed to providing
shareholders with a clear assessment of the Company's position and
prospects The Audit Committee has responsibility for oversight of
corporate reporting, nsk management and the Company’s reiationship
with its auditor A full descnption of the Audit Committee s terms of
reference 1s Included in the Audit Committee Report on pages 42
to45

Significant nsks to the business are kept under constant review and
appropriate material controls are sanctioned and empioyed as
approprate The Company's principal risks and examples of how we
mitigate those risks are detailed on pages 24 to 27

REMUNERATION

The Board believes in adopting remuneration packages that are
approprniate for attracting, retaming and motivating Directors The
Remuneration Committee s report on Directors’ remuneration on
pages 48 to 56 explains how remuneration packages and
performance incentives are employed by the Company at Board level
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for setting the
Remuneration policy for the Board and ensures that no Director 1s
involved 1n decisions affecting their own remuneration
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Corporate governance report

continued

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Shareholder communications

Presentations and webcasts on the development of the business are
avallable to all shareholders on the Company's corporate website The
Company also uses emal alerts and actively promotes downloading of
all reports enhancing speed and equality of shareholder
communication The Company has taken full advantage of the
provisions within the Companies Act 2006 allowing the website to be
used as the pnmary means of communication with shareholders
where they have not requested hard copy documentation The
shareholder information section on pages 116 to 117 contains further
details on electronic shareholder communications together with more
general informatton of interest to shareholders which is also included
on the Company's corporate website

Shareholder engagement

The Company IS committed to maintaining and improving dialogue
with shareholders in order to ensure that the objectives of both the
Group and the shareholders are understood A programme of
meetings with institutional shareholders, fund managers and analysts
takes place each year The Company also makes presentations to
analysts and investors around the time of the half-year and full-year
results announcement conference calls are held with analysts and
investors following the announcement of the first quarter and third
quarter results, and presentations are made during the year to many
existing or potential shareholders at investor canferences

The Annual General Meeting

The Board views the AGM as an cpportunity to communicate with
private Investars and sets aside tme at the meeting for shareholders
to ask questions At the AGM the Chairman provides a brief summary
of the Company’s activities for the previous year to the shareholders
All resolutions at the 2012 AGM were voted by way of an electronic poll
This follows best practice and allows the Company to count all votes
rather than just those of shareholders attending the meeting As
recommended by the Code all resolutions were voted separately and
the voting results, which included all votes cast for, aganst and those
withheld, together with all proxies lodged prior to the meeting, were
indicated at the meeting and the final results were released to the
London Stock Exchange as soon as practicable after the meeting The
announcement was also made available on the Company’s corporate
website As in previous years, the proxy form and the announcement
of the voting results made it clear that a “vote withheld” s not avote
in faw and will not be counted In the cakulation of the proportion of
the votes for or against the resolution

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Chairman Martin Gilbert

Members Martin Gilbert, Andy Higginson Dave Lewis and
Matthieu Pigasse

Chairman’s overview

During the year, the Committee continued to focus on the financial
performance of the Company internal audit nsk management,
compliance and financial governance 1n accordance with the Code, the
membership of the Committee consists exclusively of Independent
Nen-Executive Directors

This year the Committee has recewved a number of presentations from
the management of different business areas including technology
entertanment and legal and regulatory to Improve 1ts understanding
of their operations and the risks they face and how those risks are
managed

The Committee has also reviewed the Group s integration of the 02
consumer broadband and fixed-line telephony business receved
presentations from the Chairman of the Data Governance Committee,
the Director of People in relaton to Health & Safety and received
regular reports from the Company's internal audit function and
external auditor

During the year, Andy Higginson stepped down as Chairman of the
Committee and | would ike to thank him for fus stewardship of the
Committee during his Charmanship Andy remains a Committee
member Dave Lews joined the Committee in January 2013 bringing
strong operational experience which will add to the quality and
effectiveness of discussions at Committee meetings

Martin Gilbert
Committee Chairman

Attendance at Committee Meetings

Tne Committee, has clearly defined terms of reference as laid down

by the Board which are available on the Company's website The
Committee 1s chaired by Mart:n Gilbert and the other members are
Andy Higginson, Dave Lewis and Matthieu Pigasse The CFO and
representatives from the external auditor and the internal audit
department attend meetings at the request of the Committee The
CEQC and other business and finance executives attend meetings from
ume to time The Committee Chairman reports regularly to the Board
on s activities

David Devoe and Arthur Siskind have a standing invitation to attend
meetings of the Committee Their attendance at these meetings s as
observers only and 11 a non-voting capacity
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Changes to the membership of the Committee during the year

Andy Higginson stepped down as Chairman of the Committee on

1 Navember 2012 and was replaced by Martin Gilbert and remains a
member of the Committee Dave Lews was appointed as a member of
the Committee on 30 January 2013

The role of the Committee

The Charrman reports regularly to the Board on its activities Its man
duties include

> making recommendations to the Board in relation to the
appolntment, reappontment and remaval of the external auditor
and discussing with the external auditor the nature scope and fees
for the external auditor s work

> reviewing and makng recommendations to the Board regarding the
approval or any amendment to the quarterly, half year and annual
financial statements of the Group

> reviewmng the Group s significant accounting policies

> reviewing the Group’s systems of internal cantrol

> reviewing the Group's treasury policies,

> recommending the appaintment of the Group s Director Audit Risk
Management and Compliance

> reviewing the audit plan and findings of the Group's Internal audit
function

> monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group s internal
audit function,

> approving all non-audit services provided by the Group s external
auditor in accordance with the Groups policy

> menitoring the Group s whistle-blowing policy

> reviewing and monitoring compliance with the Company’s business
standards and codes relating to anti-bribery and corruption,
competition law data protection, health and safety and other
comphance programmes

> reviewing a schedule of all transactions between the Company and
related parties entered into during the year and which exceed
£100000 nvalue and payments pursuant thereto,

> approvalis required for the entering inte by the Group of a
commitment or arrangerment (or any series of related commitments
or arrangements) with a related party which involves or could
reasonably involve the payment or receipt by the Group of amounts
equal to or in excess of £10 millon but not exceeding £25 milion in
aggregate value Any transaction in excess of £25 million in
aggregate value must be submitted to the Committee and, 1f
approved by the Committee, must also be submitted to the Full
Board for approval,

> to approve (subject where applicable to Board approval) all
transactions which fall within the Listing Rule definition of related
party transactions and to recommend such transactions as i
approves to the Board

The Committee members have considerable financial and business
experience and the Board considers that the membership as a whole
has sufficient recent and relevant financial expenence to discharge its
functions In addition, the Board has determined that each member of
the Committee has sufficient accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by the UK Listing Authority's
Disclosure and Transparency Rules

The Committee reviewed the significant areas of judgement inline
with the Groups cnitical accounting policies as set out on pages 72
and 73 with particular focus on the following

> Retail subsenption revenue the majority of the Groups revenues
derive from retall subscnptions The Group apphes judgement in
determining the allocation of consideration from customers to
different elements of the contract The Committee keeps the
policies under review and confirms with management that this
pohicy has been applied consistently

> General entertainment programming inventory the Committee
revtews the policy for the recognition of content costs and seeks
assurances that it has been applied appropriately The amortisation
method for general entertanment programming inventory requires
more Judgement and the committee received a presentation from
management on the policy and reviewed the different genres of
prograrmmes by comparnson with viewing profiles and industry
benchmarks

> Capitalisation of intangible and tangible non-current assets the
Committee obtains assurances from management that the Group s
project controls are opérating and that the requirements of IAS 16
and IAS 38 regarding the capitalisation of expenditure have been
followed

Activities during the year

The Committee met six times during the financial year Meeting
agendas were organmised around the Company s financial reporting
cycle and items covered were as follows

Financial management and reporting

> recewed regutar updates fram the CFO on the financial performance
and financial management of the Group

> reviewed the Company's Annual Report, half-yearly results and
intenm management statements,

> reviewed the Group s accounting policies and

> receved quarterly reports from the treasury function on the
funding liquidity going concern and operational capabilities of the
Group and compliance with treasury policies

Internat control

> considered the effectiveness of the Group s Internal controls over
financial reporting,

> reviewed the internal audit department s resources and annual
audit plan,

> reviewed quarterly reports from internal audit on the results of its
audit work and management s implementatton of its
recommendations

> receved guarterly updates frominternal audit on the status of
Senior Accounting Officer (SAQ) certification work to ensure SAQ
compliance and

> evaluated the effectiveness of the internal audit department

External Audit Matters

>received regular reports from the external auditor

> reviewed and approved the 2012/13 audit work plan

> received regular updates on the use of non-audit services provided
by the external auditor and ensured that all services and fees were
approved In accordance with the Groups policy,
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Corporate governance report

continued

> reviewed the effectiveness quality of work and independence of
the external auditer

> approved the re-appointment, remuneration and engagement
letter of the external auditor, and

> private meetings with the external auditor for additional discussion
and assessment of activities

Risk management

> reviewed the Group's Risk Register

> recaved nsk presentations from various business areas,

> approved the Group s Risk Management Policy and Standards, and
> received an Insurance renewal update

Other

> reviewed quarterly secunity updates which include whistle-blowing

>received areport on cyber security

> reviewed quarterly related party transactions reports, and

> reviewed the Groups implementation of adequate procedures In
relation to the Bribery Act 2010

The Committee also received updates from the Directer of Tax and
Treasury, the Chairman of the Data Governance Committee and the
Durector of People on heatth and safety

The external auditors attended six meetings of the Committee during
the year The Director Audit, Risk Management and Compliance has
direct access to the Committee Chairman and the external audit
partner

Internal control and risk management

The Directors have overall responsitility for establishing and
maintaining the Groups systems of nternal control and nsk
management and for reviewing therr effectiveness These systems are
designed to manage and where possible eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives and to provide reasonable but not
absolute, assurance agamst material misstatement or loss Thereis an
ongoing process for identifying evaluating and managing the
significant nsks faced by the Group in accordance with the revised
guidance on internal control issued by the Financial Reporting Council
in October 2005 During the period under review no significant failings
or weaknesses were identified

The Committee on behalf of the Board considers the effectiveness of
the operation of the Group's systems of internal control and risk
management during the year and this review has been carned out for
the year ended 30 June 2013 and up to the date on which the financial
statements were approved This review relates to the Company and
its subsidianes and does not extend 1o joint ventures The Committee
meets on at least a guarterly basis with the Group s Director Avdit
Risk Management and Compliance and the external auditors

There 1s a comprehensive budgeting and forecasting process, and the
annual budget, which s regularly reviewed and updated 1s approved
by the Board Performance 1s monitored agasnst budget through
weekly and monthly reporting cycles Durning the financial year under
review monthly reports on performance were provided to the Board
and the Group reports to shareholders each quarter

In respect of Group financial reporting, the Group finance team s
responsible for preparing the Group financial statements and there

are well established controls over the financial reporting process
These are alsodocumented in [ine with the requirements of the SAD
legislation and the controls are reviewed and signed off to confirm
their continuous operation by the control owners twice a year and are
independently tested by the Internal audit team

The results of the SAC testing are reported to the Committee ona
quarterly basis

There are risk registers which identify the nisks faced by the Group
and these are consohdated into a Group Risk Register The registers
detail the controls that manage the risks and where necessary the
action plans to mitigate the nsk exposure The business develops the
action plans and the internal audit team moritors thesr
implementation The Committee formally reviews the Group Risk
Register twice a year and there Is a rolling programme where serior
executives fromthe business present their risk management plans
The Group's principai risks and uncertainties are detalled in the
Business Review on pages 24 to 27

The internal audit team provides objective assurance as to the
effectiveness of the Group’'s systems of internal control and risk
management to the Group s operating management and to the
Committee

Disclosure controls and procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls, procedures and systems
that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed
as part of the Company’s UK histing obligations 15 accumulated and
communicated to management, including the CEO and CFO as
appropnate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures

The Company has established a Disclosure Committee The committee
15 chaired by the Company Secretary and its members consist of
senior managers from the finance and legal departments It has
responsibility for considering the matenality of information {including
inside information) and, on a timely basis, determination of the
disclosure and treatment of such information The Disclosure
Committee also has responsibility for overseeing the process for the
formalreview of the contents of the Company's Annual Report

Changes ininternal controls

Ne change in the Group's Internal control over financial reporting has
occurred during the year ended 30 June 2013 that has materiallty
affected, or 1s reasonably likely to materially affect, the Group's
internal control over financial reporting

Auditor independence

For the year ended 30 June 2013, the Committee has reviewed audit
independence and scope of non-audit services and Independence
safeguards with Deloitte LLP the Group's external auditor As part of
the review the Audit Committee has recerved and reviewed
confirmation Inwriting that in Deloitte LLP's professtonal judgement
Deloitte LLP 15 ndependent within the meaning of all UK regulatory
and professional requirements and the obyectivity of the audit
engagement partner and audit staff 1s not impaired

The Commuittee was satisfied throughout the year that the objectivity
and independence of Deloitte LLP was not in any way imparred by
either the nature of tha non-audit related services undertaken during
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the year the level of non-audit fees charged or any other facts or
arcumstances Audit and non-audit services provided during the year
were approved by the Committee An analysis of auditor remuneration
15 disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements

Audit and non-audrt services

The Group has a policy on the provision by the external auditor of
audit and non-audit services, which categonses such services
between

> those serwices which the auditor 1s not permitted to provide

> those services which are acceptable for the auditor to provide and
the provision of which has been pre-approved by the Committee
and

> those services for which the specific approval of the Committee s
required before the auditor 1s permitted to provide the service

The policy defines the types of services falling under each category
and sets out the criteria which need to be met and the internal
approval mechanisms required ta be completed prior to any
engagement An analysss of all services provided by the external
auditor I1s reviewed by the Commuttee on a quarterly basis

During the year the following examples were deemed to be pre-
approved In accordance with the policy

> Comfort procedures in relation to 2012 bond issue
> 1IXBRL tagging of statutory accounts
> Assurance of certain KPIs for the Bigger Picture Review

Audrt partner rotation

The external auditor 1s required to rotate the audit partner
responsible for the engagement every five years The current lead
partner started his term of office In relation to the 2010/ financial
year

Tenure of external auditor

The appointment of Deloitte LLP as the Group s external auditor
(incumbents since 2002)1s kept under review The Committee has
approved the external auditor s remuneration and terms of
engagement and Is fully satisfied with the performance, objectmty
quality of challenge and independence of the external auditor Having
performed a review of effectiveness the Committee has
recommended that a resolution to reappoint the external auditor as
the Company's statutory auditors be proposed at the Company’s
forthcoming AGM In addition to the annual review of effectiveness
undertaken when considering the recommendation to shareholders
regarding the annual re-appointment of the external auditor the 2012
version of the Code now requires the Company to undertake a
competitive tender for the role of external auditor on a comply or
explain basis every tenyears The present audit partner s permitted
fifth and final year 1s the year ending 30 June 2015 and 1t 15 the
Committee's current intention to conduct a competitive tender te
select auditors for either that year or the year ending 30 June 2016

Data Governance

The Data Governance Committee (the "DG Committee ) reports to the
Committee The role of the DG Committee 1S to ensure that
appropriate procedures and controls are in place to ensure that the

Group processes personal data in accordance with Data Protection
laws and that individuals are able to exarcise ther rights under such
laws A set of policies are in place which outhne and promote
consistent standards and practices in the collection and use of
personal data across the Group Thepolicies also set out the
responsibilities of employees In managing personal data and the
escalation process to be followed should employees become aware of
any breach of palicy These policies are subject to regular review by
the DG Committee

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE &
NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

Chairman Andy Higginson

Members Nick Ferguson, Andy Higginson Dave Lewis, Danny Rimer
and Arthur Stskind

Chairman’s overview

We have had ancther active year continuing our orderly programme of
replacing Independent Non-Executive Directors as they retire We
have secured the appointment of two new independent non-
executive directors Dave Lewss and Andy Sukawaty succeed Jacques
Nasser and Lord Witsen of Dinton on their retirement, ffom the Board
A third candidate, Adine Grate was appointed to the Board on 17 July
2013

Suceession planning 1s a key part of our annual programme and for
each position we have reviewed the existing skill-set on the Board
specifically in terms of background knowledge expenence and the
diversity of the Board We have balanced this with the Company’s
strategic direction and objectives to ensure that each appointment
strengthens the Board so that 1t can help and chalienge managerment
to grow and take the business forward

We have used external consultants to help us with the recruitment
process and members of the Committee and the Chief Executive
Officer have met with a number of candidates throughout the year
who met the Committee’s ¢ritena This year s Board evaluation
process was undertaken by an external Company for the first time
Altce Perking of JCA Group facilitated the evatuation process which
involved her meeting all Board members and the Company Secretary
through a series of one to one Interviews The results of the
evaluation were very encouraging The evaluation found that the
Board and 1ts Committees are operating effectively and that the
Directors are making an effective contribution A number of action
points were agreed which are generally aimed at building on and
IMProving existing processes

The Board as a whole welcomes the opportunity to adapt to
innovations and change within the field and 1s actively progresaing
initiatives such as addressing gender balance on the Board, sourcing
the nght skills to complement our talented management team, and
creating robust succession plans to safeguard the Company’s future
performance

The Comrmittee continues to comprise a majority of Non-Executive
Directors 1n compliance with the Code

Andy Higginson
Committee Chatrman
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Corporate governance repdrl:

continued

Changes to the membership of the Committee during the year

Lord Wilson of Dinton retired as a member of the Committee on 1 June
2013 Dave Lewis was appointed as a member of the Committee on
1 June 2013

The role of the Committee

FThe Charman reports regularly to the Board onsts activities 1ts main
duties include

> the identification and nomination for approval by the Board, of
candidates to fill Board vacancies as they anse,

>the drafting of requirements for a particular apponiment to the
Board, taking into consideration the present batance of skills,
knowledge ard experience on the Board,

> the regular review of the structure size and composition of the
Board and the recommendation of any changes to the Beard or
successton planning

> the provision of aformal tetter of appointment setting out clearly
what s expected of new appomtees to the Board, in terms of time
commitment term of office and committee service as well as ther
duties and habilities as a Director, ncluding details of the Company s
corporate governance policies and Directors and Officers liabihity
Insurance cover, and

> the monitoring of the Company’s comphance with apphcable
Corporate Governance Codes and other similar requirements

Activities during the year

During the year the Committee reviewed the compesition of the Board
and 1ts committees and followed a formal recruitment process to
identify candidates who meet the Board s critena Duning the year,
Committee members and the CEQ met with a number of potential
candidates

The Committee used JCA Group, an external recruitment consultancy
to help the Committes identify possible candidates and run the
recruitment process The coaching arm of JCA Group whichisa
separate business to the recruitment arm performed the external
Board evaluation during the year JCA Group has no other connection
with the Company JCA Group were replaced by Ridgeway Partners as
the Company’s external recruitment advisors in October 2012

The recruitment process involved the Chairman of the Committee
working closely with the external recruitment consultants to ensure
that they understood the Company’s requirements The external
recruitment company approached potential candidates and a short
list of candidates was drawn up and reviewed by the Committee

An interview process was then undertaken which involved members of
the Committee and the CEQ meeting the candidates

The Committee recommended two candidates to the Board during
the year, Dave Lewis and Andy Sukawaty A third candidate, Adine
Grate was recommended to the Board during the year and appointed
on 17 July 2013 Each of these candidates has a background,
experience and skill set which will help strengthen the Board and
improve its diversity

The Board and the Committee have noted the findings of the Davies
Review and It 1s the Committee’s intention to increase female
representation on the Board a3 the Company continues to follow its
orderly programme for replacing members of the Board as they retire

The Comnuttee also reviewed the independence of the Non-Executive
Directors and recommended to the Beard that there be no changes to
the ndependent status of the current Independent Non-Executive
Directors The Non-Executive Directors who are considered by the
Board to be independent are clearly identified on pages 34 to 35 The
Board s cniternta for determining whether a Non-Executve Director 1s
independent are set out in the Memorandum on Corporate
Governance which can be found on the Company's corporate website

«The Committee’s review took into consideration the fact that by the
date of the Company s 2013 AGM, Andy Higginsen will have served on
the Board for more than nine years Provision B11of the Code states
that serving more than nine years could be refevant to the
determmation of a Non-Executive Director s independence The
Committee concluded that Andy Higginson continued to demonstrate
the essential charactenstics of Independence expected by the Board
and that there are no relationships or circumstances that are likely to
affect, or could appear to affect his pudgement. Andy Higginson has
agreed to serve as a member of the Board until the 2014 AGM, in order
to maintain adegree of certamty and smooth handover of Board and
Committee expenence and knowledge and help to faciitate the
integration of the recently appainted Independent Non-Executive
Directors to the Board

The Committee reviewed the Board's conflicts during the financial
year and concluded that Directors’ conflicts had been appropnately
authorised and that the process for authaensation was operating
effectively The Committee and the Board will continue to monitor and
review potential conflicts of interest and take action to mitigate them
as necessary
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BIGGER PICTURE COMMITTEE
Chairman James Murdoch
Members Tracy Clarke Dave Lewis and James Murdoch

Dunng the year the Committee has continued to provide strategic
teadership in relation to Sky's Bigger Picture programme

It has been a good year with strong progress made in each of our
chosen areas of focus - sport, arts, environment and skills This
progress Is detalled on pages 17 to 21 and at skycom/biggerpicture

The Committee 1s pleased with the focus and scale of the work being
done, and beleves that it 18 making a significant contributton to the
sustainability of the business and Its reputation

{would like to welcome Dave Lews to the Committee and thank Lord
Wilson who stepped down from the Committee during the yvear for
his valuable contnbution as a member of the Committee He has
served on the Committee since its inception and has made an
important contribution to the growth and success of the Bigger
Picture programme during that time

James Murdoch
Committee Chairman

Changes to the membership of the Committee during the year

Dave Lewis was appointed as a member of the Bigger Picture
Commuttee on 30 January 2013 and Lord Wilson of Dinton retrred as a
member of the Bigger Picture Committee on 1 June 2013

The role of the Committee

The Chairman of the Bigger Picture Committee reports regularly to
the Board on its activities The main duties of the Bigger Picture
Committee nclude N

> reviewing and approving the Bigger Picture strategy,

> seeking external stakeholders views on the Bigger Picture strategy
and performance,

> reviewing and approving the annual reporting of the Bigger Picture
activities,

> momtonng progress m achieving the Bigger Picture objectives and
key performance indicators

> ensunng the resources and skills are avallable to implement the
Bigger Picture strategy, and

> providing the Board with an overview of the social ervironmental
and ethical impacts of the Company’s activities and how they are
being managed

Activities during the year

QOver the year the Committee reviewed the positive progress made in
raising consumer awareness and favourability through the Bigger
Picture initiatives The independent quarterly mass consumer survey
shows that 64% of customers and 43% of consumers are now aware
of the Bigger Picture initiatives

The Committee also oversaw a number of key developments in
relation to Sky's Bigger Picture mitiatives They reviewed the new
environment targets and accompamying commitments that Sky has

set to 2020 that will ensure the business has fewer impacts and
better more sustainable products year on year

They oversaw the expansion of Sky Sperts Living for Sport inte a third
of all secondary schools in the UK, tegether with the launch into
Ireland For the latter, a target of also reaching one third of all
secondary schools by 2016 has been set

The Committee reviewed the progress of the second phase of Sky
Rainforest Rescue, continuing to drive on the ground implementation
1n the project area in Brazil while also increasing the activity to raise
awareness In the UK of ranforest deforestation in the Amazon

Having agreed the Sky Arts Igrition strategy last year, this year they
oversaw the launch of projects in partnership with Tate Liverpool and
the V&A along with support and mentoring of five emerging young
artists

Two years ago, the Committee challenged the management team to
further strengthen the Bigger Picture initiatives and extend their
reach At their final meeting of the year they noted the significant
progress made to Increase the positive social and environmental
impact of Sky on the UK and Ireland
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Directors’ remuneration report

Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the Board | am pleased to present our report on Directors
remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2013 At Sky we are clear that
our executive remuneration policy Is key to the successful execution of
our business plan, our growth strategy and the delivery of value to our
shareholders The current remuneration framework continues to serve
the Company and its shareholders well We set tough performance
targets commensurate with a growth business in a highly-competitive
sector Fixed pay Is set low compared to market but achievement of
stretching targets delivers significant but appropriate rewards for our
Executive Directors through the annual bonus, the Long-Term: Incentive
Plan and Co-Investment Plan awards This has been an outstanding year
for Sky and we believe that our remuneration policy aligns executive
performance with sharenclder value creation

Our Long-Term Incentive Plan 1s atypical, vesting every second year
breaking the annual vesting cycle A consequence of this 1s that the value
of the remuneration deliverad to executive directors will spike every ather
year The Committee reviewed the vesting schedule and concluded that it
continues to support the overall strategy of the business

When taking decisions on executive pay wie take account of the prevailing
facts and circumstances and the guidelines that are set for all employee
remuneratien across the Company In this way we manage nsk and best
protect Sky and its shareholders The Remuneration Committee
continues to retain discretion to change remuneration either up or down
to appropriately reflect Company or individual performance which we
beleve 1s in the best nterests of our shareholders

inwhat has remained a tough consumer environmeant we sold more
products to more customers and increased the amount they spend with
us Over the year, we added organically 2 & mitlion new subscription
products, and with the acquisibon of the O2 consumer broadband and
fixed-line telephony business, we will finish the year with a total base of
paid-for products of 316 millon This 1s more than double the level of five
years agoe As aresult of our strong performance In communications we
became the UK's second largest broadband provider, with more than 49
million customers achteving this milestone less than seven years after
launching broadband services We ended the year with1 2 million
customers, up 547000 on last year, making Sky the cholce of well over
40% of households across Britan and Ireland

This strong aperational performance combined with our continued focus
on oost control and efficiency, has translated into excellent financial
performance and increased returns to shareholders Total revenue
increased by 7% adjusted operating profit was up by 9% to £1330 milion
while adjusted basic eamings per share was 60 0 pence, anincrease of
18% on last year and almost two and a half times the level of five vears
ago Inlight of this the Board has proposed a full-year dvidend of 300
pence, an Increase of 18% which represents the ninth consecutive year of
growth On the strength of the Group s overall performance annual
bonuses were paid out cose to maximum levels

This is the year in which the Long-Term Incentive Plan (' LTIP" or “Plan )
awarcs made in 2010 and 20N are due to vest, In ine with our biennial
vesting schedule Inlight of our outstanding performance, these awards
vested in full Over the three year penad of the plan shareholders have
benefited from excellent performance revenue has increased by £15
billion (27%), we have added £460 million to operating profit (53%) and
almost doubled EPS from Just over 30 pence to 60 pence per share In
addition we have returned, via dividends and share buy-backs, £2 5 balion
to shareholders, whilst our share price (using the undisturbed share price

of £540 preceding the proposed News Corporation (subsequently
renamed Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc) offer) has nser by 50% As
previously stated our Plan is abypical vesting every other year as opposed
toevery 12 months, therefore total remuneration for this year will spike
when compared to last year

Thie Remuneration Comrmittee has decded to increase the base salares of
the CEQ and the CFO by 275% and 5% respectively Thisis the first increase
since July 207 and for Andrew Gniffith reflects anincrease in respons bility
for Sky's commercial businesses The base pay of the CEQ still remains lower
than that of his predecessor in 2007 The overall pay inarease for employees
1S 275% increasing to 3 75% for those earning less than £50 000 per year
Indradual pay awards range from 0% to over 5% Over the last two years for
employees earning less than £50,000 per yaar the average increase1s 8%,
considerably Inexcess of average pay Increases in the UK and reflective of
the significant contnbution that all cur employees make to the continued
success of our business Our disciplined approach to the management of
fixed pay and our firm belief in rewarding for performance means that the
ratio of fixed to vanable pay of 14% 86% for our Executive Directors
compares favourably to the average of 26% 74% for our comparator group

Durning the next financial year the Committee will continue to review and
take Into scoount the revised remuneration reporting regulations provided
by the Department of Business, Innovation and Skilis We continue torefine
and develop the structure of our report to provide greater darty and

transparency and welcome feedback from our shareholders onits contents

Finally, lwould ke toannounca that | will be stepping down as Charrman of
the Committae mmediately after the Company’s AGMin Novermnber 2013 and
Tracy Carke will be taking over as Chair

Danny Rimer
Chairman cf the Remuneration Committee

1 Sky's remuneration principles, policy and structure

11 What are Sky's remuneration principles?®
Four key prinaiples underpin our Executive Director remuneration
pclicy

> We reward our people farrly and competitively to attract and retain
the skills we need to deliver significant growth in value

>The level of base pay s decided in the same way as for all
employees, based on indwvidual performance and experience,
the size and scope of the role, taking account of total
remuneration

> Short term operational performance 1s rewarded through the
annual bonus and total remuneration 1S geared towards achieving
challenging long-term strategic objectives and provides the
opportunity to earn significant rewards for outstanding
perfarmance

> We take care to ensure that remuneration does not inadvertently
enhcourage Inapproprate risk taking

Qur reward policy for Executive Diractors how It supports the
business strategy and the terms of operation are summarised in the
table below The table reflects the policy that applied in 201213 and
what 15 envisaged for 2013/14 Section 1 3 locks at each element in
mere detail and includes cur approach to recruitment policy and
contracts of employment

Execution of policy 1s guided by our responsibility to shareholders the
perfaormance ¢f the Company and ensures fair and appropriate
reward to Executive Directors and all employees
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1 2 What 15 our remuneration policy?

Element How it supports Sky's strategy Annual opportunity Structure Operation and Other details
Basic salary Attracts and retains Executive Directors > CEO - £935000 > Reviewed annually effective from 1 July
> CFC- £573500 > Set relatively lowversus our peer group (the 20

companies in the FTSE 100 above and below Sky by
market capitalisation)

> Nomcreases on 1July 2012

> On1 July 2013 increases of 2 75% and 5% respectively

for the CEQ and CFOQ
Annual bonus Dnves and rewards the delivery of annual > 200% of salary (CEC) > Performance measures and weightings are reviewed
performance goals >150% of salary (CFO) each year Currently three equally weighted measures.

> Operating profit growth - measures operational efficency

> Operating cash flow - shows ability to generate and
manage cash

> Product net growth - criical measure to execute
our strategy

> Stretching performance targets are set annually
Maximum benus 15 paid only If targets are achieved or
exceeded Bonus payouts for performance betow the
targets set are at the discretion of the Committee

Co-Investment Plan Encourages personal Investment and Executive directors > Awards granted duning the year
shareholder alignment rewards long-term may invest up to haif of  Executive Directors may invest up to half of their
foeus and performance achievement their earned annual earned arnualcash bonus in shares The investment
cash bonus in shares shares are matched on a gross basis and vest
The maximum annual based an three year compound annual EPS growth

as follows
> Below RP1 +3% - no matching shares vest
> 150% of basic salary > RP+3% - sharesvest 1for1
(CEQ) > RPl +6% - the shares vest in full
> N2 5% of basic salary > Forawardstn 2013/14 the only change to the aboveis
(CFO that RPI +6% has been changed to RPI +5%
Long Term Incentive Plan Rewards longer-term value creationand > 600000 shares (CEQ) For awards vesting in 2013
aligns Executive Director interests with > 320000 shares (CFO) >100% subject to three-year operational targets of

those of shareholders EPS Operating cash flow and Revenue growth
For awards in 201314

> 70% of the award 1s based on achievernent of
aperational targets (equally weighted on £PS
operating cash flow and revenue growth)
> 30% of the award Is based on TSR relative to the
FTSE100
> Awards are based on number of shares this avords
the “flow through” effect of salary increases when
awards are determined as a percentage of salary
> Further details of the vesting structure are on pages
5land 53
Pension and other benefits Attracts and retains Executive Directors > CEQ recewes acash > Benefits are broadly in kne with those for all employees.
supplement in lieu > Defined contnbution pension with cash supplement for
of pension amounts in excess of the Annual Allowance and cash in lieu
> CFO recaves a cash of emplover contributions where Lifetime Allowance 1s
supplementinexcess,  reached
of Annual Allowance > Income protection for all members of up to
two-thirds of salary
> Insured deathin service of up to one-third of salary
which can be taken entirely as a pension or 50% lump
sum and 50% pens:an, or entirely as afump sum
subject to the ifetime allowance
> Heatthcare, 4x base salary ife cover useof a
company car and 30 days holiday

epportunty 1s

Hotes

() Operating profit, operating cash flow EPS and revenue growth are generally defined as adjusted operatng profit, adjusted operating cash flow adjusted EPS and adjusted
revenue growth However the Commitiee wil review the measures and may amend definitions at its discretion

(n) Tha performance standards for the Co-lInvestment Plan and the Long-Ferm Incentive Plan are set in the hight of the business plan for each year and the longer-term strategy

(ni) The tight kak between pay and performance coupled wththe Remuneration Committee practice of exercising its judgement when determining whether payouts are pustified under Sky's
ncentives plans creates an N-built ‘malus” provision the Committee retains the discretion towithhold or vary downwards the vesting of shares based onits review of performance
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Directors’ remuneration report

continued

We operate a policy which delivers upper quartile pay for superior
performance and significantly lower pay If performance 1s below our
stretching targets Our chsaiphned approach to the management of
fixed pay and our firm bebef in rewarding for performance means that
the ratio of fixed to variable pay of 14% 86% for our Executive
Directors compares favourably to the average of 26% 74% for our
comparator group of the 20 companies in the FTSE 100 above and
below Sky by market capitalisation The variable components of the
package - annual bonus the Co-Investment Plan and the Long-Term
Incentive Plan - only deliver significant payouts when the Executive
Directors have achieved stretching financial and strategic goals
Participation in the Co-Investment Plan 1s optional, encourages
parsonal lohg-term investment and shareholder ahignment and
rewards long-term focus and performance achievement

The chart below shows the relative importance of the elements of
total remuneration for the Executive Directors in a year where goals
are exceeded and the variable plans payout in full

MAXIMUM REMUNERATION AVERAGE OF
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Fixed pay (14%)

Bonus {20%)
l Co-Investment {15%)

13 How 15 the remuneration package structured?

The policy table on page 49 sets out the key elements of our executive
remuneration structure of fixed pay annual and deferred pay, long
term incentives and pensions and other benefits These are descrnibed
in further detail below

Lme
(51%) ,

Basic salary

Basic salaries for the Executive Directors are reviewed annually on
1 July in line with all emptoyees When reviewing salaries the
Committee takes Into account the overall employee salary review
budget the range of salary increases based on performance,
market compansons, the performance and experience of the
individual, behaviours, the size and scope of the role and the value
of total remuneration

Annual bonus plan

The annual bonus drives the achievement of annual financial and
strategic business goals The plan, which Is the same for senior
executives Is based on three equally-weighted measures which are
key performance indicators for our business

> adjusted operating profit
> adjusted operating cash flow
> net, product, growth

The annuzl bonus plan encourages Executive Directors to focus on
achieving demanding performance standards that are aligned to our
growth strategy The maximum bonus may be payable if these
standards are achieved or exceeded -

The Committee can use its discretion to vary the bonus payment to each
Executive Director up or down based on its assessment of factors which
it considers to be of material impaortance in determming the final
outcome - both those which the Committee considers to be inthe
control of the Executive Directors and those which are outside of their
influence The Committee makes its assessment of performance N the
context of a number of crcumstances for example

> The general economic environment and the impact on consumer
spending power

> Sky's performance relative to its competitors

> The competitive landscape Including entry and exit of competitors

> Significant over or under performance of one or more of the three
key metrics

> Personal performance of the Executive Directors 4

The Committee also considers Sky's underlying performance

The maximum bonus ocpportunities for 2013/14 are unchanged at
200% and 150% of basic salary for the CEO and CFO respectively
An explanation of the performance outturn for 2012/13 against
the measures and the resulting payouts under the annual bonus
15 shown on pages 52 and 53

Co-Investment Plan

The Co-Investment Plan (CIP) offers Executive Directors and invited
senlor executives the cpportunity to invest up to half therr annual
bonus in the Compary's shares and earn performance-related
matching shares in return for their investment This plan s central to
our pay policy In that it encourages personal long term investment
and sharehaolder alignment and rewards long-term focus and
performance achrevement. Participation is voluntary but encouraged
Fixed pay I1s relatively low and executives can contribute tothe GP to
maxinmise therr pay opportunity

The maximum award of matching shares 1s 15 times the gross
equivalent of the iInvestment Matching shares vest at one t'rmes once
athreshold performance of RP! plus 3% I1s achieved and thereafter on
a straight line basis up to amaximum of 15 times at RPI plus 5% (2013
scheme) or 6% (2012 scheme) We expect 2013 awards to be granted in
August 2013 Matching shares vest after three years only If three-year
EPS growth exceeds the minimum levels of average annual growth

The table below sets out performance thresholds under the 2012
scheme

EPS growth performance Match awarded
(annual average growth (number of matching shares awarded
over three-year term) per deferred share*)
Lessthan RPI+3% co
RF1 +3% 10
RPI +4% 117
RPI+5% 133
RP!+6% 15
More than RPI+6% 15

Straight-line interpolation between points

12 onan equivalent gross basis
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Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP")

We operate an LTIP for our Executive Directors and other serior
executives to reward long-term focus and performance achievement,
whichin turn drives the growth strategy of the business, detivering
long-term value creation for sharehotders

The key features of the Plan are as follows

> Awards of shares are made annually at the discretion of the
Remuneration Committee

> The grants are awarded as a number of shares rather thanas a
percentage of salary or monetary value in order to provide greater
alignment with shareholders The value of an Executive s award 15
therefore linked to the share price and avords the perverse effect of
a fall in the share price resulting in an increase In the number of
shares under award It also avoids the compounding effect on LTIP
awards as a result of Increases in basic salanies

> The Commuttee reviews the number of shares to be granted to the
Executive Directors annually and retains discretion to vary the
number awarded The number of shares granted annually has
remained unchanged over the past five years, with the exception of
201 when additional awards were made due to the potential News
Corporation (subsequently renamed Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc)
bid

> The LTIP aperates over a three-year performance cycle Unike
other companies which grant the full award at the start of year
one, we make the award In two tranches, one at the beginning of
the cycle and one In the second year Awards are made annually
but there s a two year interval between vesting dates rather than
the 12 months that s typical of the UK market The LTIP awards for
the performance penod July 2010 to June 2013 vestin July 2013
The next vesting, for the performance period July 2012 to June
2015 wili be in July 2015 In plans with annual vesting, realised
awards year-on-year are broadly similar Our approach breaks
the annual vesting cycle and leads to significant variation in
realised pay with zero vesting in one year followed by a large
vesting the following year

> To ensure an outcome that 15 fair to both shareholders and
executives, the Committee has discretion to determine how shares
should be treated in the event of change of control

Performance measures for 2012/13 awards

The Committee regularly reviews the measures under the LTIP to
ensure they align to the strategic objectives of the business The
performance measures for the 2012 and 2013 awards, which may vest
1n 2015, are as follows

Operational targets - 70% of the award
There are three equally weighted operational performance measures
each of which 15 akey incicator of Sky's continued success

> EPS growth measures our "bottom line” performance

> Operating cash flow measures our ability to generate and manage
cash

> Revenue growth key to our growth strategy

Points are awarded for performance on the three operational
measures as follows

> For EPS two points are awarded for growth of RP1 +3% per year, with
the maximum ten points awarded for RPI +5% per year or more

> For operating cash flow and revenue growth, one potnt 1s awarded
for 75% achieverment of “target” on a sliding scale up to tenpaints
for 105% or more

> One point equates to 10% of the award vesting, with maximum
vesting for 21 points or more, vesting on a straight-line basis
between these points

Performance measures for the peried tuly 2012 to June 2015 are
shown in further detail inthe table below

Average EPS growth Operating cash flow Revenue growth

Perfarmance Performance
Performance Points achieved Points achieved Points
achieved awarded  (%oftarget) awarded (% oftarget) awarded
105% 105%
RPI+5% pa 10 or more 10 or more 10
RPl+4 5% pa 8 100% 8 100% 8
RP +4% pa 6 95% 6 95% 6
RP +35%pa 4 90% 4 90% 4
RPI +3% pa 2 85% 2 B85% 2
Less than
RPI+3%pa o 75% 1 75% 1
Less than Lessthan
75% o] 75% 0

The top end of the EPS growth range was set for awards in 2012 and
2013 at RPI +5% pa This 1s equivalent to growth in earnings of 26%
over three years If RPI 15 3% a year This level of growth in earnings was
set at a level which exceeded consensus research analysts’ estimates

Relative TSR performance - 30% of the award

Relative TSR was reintroduced as a measure for the 2012 and 2013
awards having been excluded inthe awards made In 2010 and 20N
which vest in July 2013, due te the impact on our share price of the
possible bid from News Corporation (subsequently renamed Twenty-
Frst Century Fox, Ing) The Company's TSR performance 1s measured
relative te the TSR of the constituents of the FTSE100 If the
Company s TSR performance 15 below median the TSR element of the
award tapses infull For median performance 10% of an award may
vest, with the full 30% vesting for upper quartile performance Vesting
15 on & straight-line basis, between these points as shown below

TSR vesting schedule
Payout
% of grant)
20

[ _od
-
|
|
|
|
[

Final TSR rank (%)

TSR caleulations are conducted mdependently by Towers Watson
appointed as advisors to the Committee in 2013
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Directors’ remuneration report

continued

Pension and other benefits

We operate a defined contnbution plan for all eligible employees
the BSkyB Pension Plan ("Pension Plan™ The Company has no legacy
defined benefit plans With effect from 1July 2013 all eligible
employees are automatically enrolled into the Pension Plan

Indiwviduals whose pension contributions exceed the Annual Allowance
or the Lifetime Allowance for pension tax relief are paid a cash
supplement feremy Darroch became a deferred member of the
Pension Plan on 1July 2012 on reaching the Lifetime Allowance He was
paid a cash supplement during the year of £158 564 In lieu of pension
contributions Andrew Griffith received a cash supplement of £36 986
In lieu of pension contnbutions in excess of the Annual Allowance

The Pension Plan has income protection of up to two-thirds salary,
and insured death in service of up to orne-third salary which can be
taken entirety as a pension, or 50% lump sum and 50% pension or
entirely as a lump sum, subject to the ifetime allowance The Pension
Plan also has Life Assurance cover up to two times for employees who
are auto-enrolled, increasing to four times for members who Joined
prior to 1 July 2013 and for auto enrolled members who choose to
increase their contributions Allemployees are eligible to receive
private medical Insurance [naddition the Executive Directors have the
use of a company car

1 4 What other share schemes do we operate?

Management Long-Term Incentive Plan ("MLTIP™)

The Company also operates a MLTIP for selected employees excluding
the Executive Directors and senior executives who participate inthe
LTIP Awards under this scheme are made at the discretion of the CEQ
within the parameters agreed with the Remuneration Committee The
MLTIP mirrors the LTIP in design in order to ensure alignment between
partiapants to both schemes

Executive Share Option Schemes (“Executive Schemes®)

Sky has 1n place Approved and Unapproved Executive Share Option
Schemes under HMRC guidelines No options have been granted
since 2004

Sharesave Scheme

The Sharesave Scheme 1s open to UK and Insh employees Options are
normally exercisable after either three or five years from the date of
grant The price at which options are offered 1s not less than 80% of
the middle-market price on the dealing day immechately preceding the
date of Invitation It 15 the policy of the Company to make an inwitation
to employees to partiapate In the scheme following the announcement
of the year-end results Currently approximately 6,100 employees
particopate in these schemes

1 5 What are the key elements of the Executive Diractors’ service
contracts?

Executive Directors’ service contracts contain a maximum notice
period of one year and a non-compete provision of one year Inthe
event of termination, Executive Directors may be entitled to up toone
year's salary and benefits which may be payable in lieu of notice by
the Company No bonus IS payable Inrespect of any notice perniod not
worked by the indwidual In the event of termination “for cause” salary
and benefits would be payable only up to the date of termination

Jeremy Darroch s initial service contract on appointment as CFO
commenced on16 August 2004 The contract was revised on 7
December 2007 when he became CEQ Andrew Griffith s service
contract was revised on 7 Apnl 2008 when he was appointed CFO

Coples of the Executive Directors service contracts are available for
Inspection during normal businass hours at the Company’s registered
office on any business day and will be available at the place where the
AGM 15 being held from 15 minutes prior to and during the meeting

1 6 Do the Executive Directors have any external appointments?
Qutside appointments for Executive Directors are considered by tha
Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee to ensure they
would not cause a conflict of interest and, if not, are then approved by
the Chairman on behalf of the Board Itis the Company’s policy that
remuneration earnad from such appointments may be retained by the
indwidual During the year ended 30 June 2013 Jeremy Darroch served
as a Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of
Marks and Spencer Group plc and earned £85000 Jeremy stepped
down from bath appointments on 19 June 2013

2 Performance and awards

As shown on pages 4 and 5, we deiivered excellent financial results ina
tough consumer enviranment Customers continue to recognise the
great value we offer by choosing Sky over other providers and buying
more services fromus

Against this background we set out below the outcomes for the key
elements of our remuneration programmes

21 Basic Salary

The Remuneration Committee has decided to increase the base
salanes of the CEO by 2 75% and the CFO by 5% reflecting his increase
in responsibiities This s their first increase since July 2011 and is In
the context of an overal! pay Increase for employees of 275%
Increasing to 375% for those earning less than £50 000 per year Over
the last two years for employees earning less than £50,000 per year
the typical iIncrease s 8%, considerably in excess of average pay
increases in the UK and reflective of the significant contribution that
our employees make to the continued success of our business

2 2 Annual bonus payouts

Based on our relatwe performance against the key bonus measures
and competition, the Committee has decaded to award near maximum
bonus payouts of 195% of base salary for the CEQ and 145% for the
CFO which compared to maximum possible payouts of 200% and
150% respectively

2 3 Co-Investment Plan

The Rermuneration Committee has agreed that the matching shares
under the CIPwill vest in full on 31 August 20713 The average adjusted
EPS growth rate of 23% per year over the three-year period exceeds
the threshold for maximum vesting. Details of the performance
targets which apply are nduded in the policy section on pages 50
and 51 '

Quistanding awards under this plan are shown in the table on page 56
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2 4 LTIP - vesting and awards

Performance measures for 2010/1 awards

The awards made in 2010 and 2011 are dependent on operational
performance measures T9R was not Included as a performance
measure given the Company’s share price at the time of grant being
materially impacted by the possible News Corporation (subsequentty
renamead Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc) bid Points have been
awarded for performance on three operational measures as follows

Average EPS growth Qperating cash flow Revenue growth
Performance Performance
Performance Points achieved Points actueved Points
achieved awarded (%oftarget) awarded (%oftarget) awarded
105% 105%
RPI+8%pa 10 of Iore 10 or more 10
RAI+7%pa 8 100% 8 100% 8
RPl+E%pa 6 G5% 6 95% 6
RPI+5%pa 4 90% 4 90% 4
RPI +4% p a 2 B85% 2 85% 2
RA+3%pa 1 75% 1 75% 1
Less than Less than Less than
RPI+3%pa 0 75% o] 75% 0
Actual ponts awarded
Average EPS growth Operating Cash Flow Revenue growth
Actual points awarded Actual points awarded Actual points awarded
1000 1000 807

Over the three-year period of the plan, sharehokders have benefited
from excellent performance almost doubling of EPS from just over 30
pence to 60 pence per share returrung via dividends and share
buy-backs £2 5 biflion to shareholders and the share price rising by
50% We are delighted that Company performance has been
exceptional creating significant shareholder value and resulting In
100% vesting for LTIP awards made 1n 2010 and 2011, based onthe
number of points awarded exceeding 21 The vesting date 1s 29 July
2013

2013 Award

The Committee has agreed that Jeremy Darroch will be granted an
award of 600,000 shares and Andrew Griffith will be granted an
award of 320,000 shares on 26 July 2013 This s tine Year 2 award of
the 2012-2015 Plan and s the same number of shares as was awarded
at the start of the performance perniod in 2012 These awards will
normally vest on 26 July 2015 subject to the performance measures
being achieved

The operational performance conditions of the LTIP award in 2013 will
remain the same as for those made in 2011 and 2012 These are EPS
growth operating cash flow and revenue growth and 70% of the
award wili vest dependent on these measures (see page 51) The EPS
grawth target for the maximum award of 10 points has been set at
RPH5% pa (equivatent to 26% growth in earnings over three years if
RPlIs 3% pa) This level of growth in earnings was set at a level which
exceeds consensus research analysts’ estimates

In addition 30% of the award will vest dependent on relative TSR
performance please refer to page 51

2 5 TSR performance

The graph below shows the Company's TSR for the six years to

30 June 2013, measured as the value of a £100 holding in ordinary
shares at the start of the perod The performance 1s shown relative to

the FTSE 100 and FTSE Media 350 indices which represent the broad
market Indices withir which Sky shares are traded
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2 6 Non-Executive Directors’ fees
Non-Executive Directors’ fees are reviewed annually The current. fees
are set out In the table below

Fee category {per annumy} 201314 201213

£ £
Chairman 462 375 450000
Deputy Chairman™ 30000 30000
Basic fee 60000 58000
Committee Charrman 25000 25000
Committee Members 10000 10000
Senior independent Director 40000 40000

{1) Therele of Deputy Chairmanis not required to be filted at the presant time

The Committee has agreed to increase the Chairman s fee by 2 75%
and Non-Executive Directors’ { NED”) basic fees to £E60 000 per
annum effective 1 July 2013 Each NED 1s engaged by the Company for
aninibial term of three years In accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code all Directors submit themselves for annual
reappointment

2 7 Chairman and Non-Executive Director letters of appointment

Date of letter of appointment

Nick Ferguson 3 April 2012
Chase Carey 30 January 2013
Tracy Clarke N June 2012
Dawnd DevVoe 15 December 2004
Martin Gilbert 29 November 2011
Adine Grate 17 July 2013
Andy Higginson 1 Septemter 2004
Dave Lewis 16 November 2012
James Murdoch 7 December 2007
Matthieu Pigasse 29 November 2011
Danny Rimer 7 Apnl 2008
Arthur Siskind 19 November 1991
Andy Sukawaty 1June 2013

2 8 Share ownership

Sky has no formal share ownership requirement but, as the Directors’
Interests table shows insection 29 the Executive Birectors have both
increased their fevel of share holdings in the Company during the year
The holdings for the CEQ and CFO are 354 575 and 114 452
respectively the equivalent on 30 June 2013 of holdings with a value
of three (3x) times salary and one and a haif (1 5) times salary
respectively based on the close share price of £792 on 28 June 2013
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Directors’ remuneration report

continued

2 9 Directors’ iInterests

The Company encourages the Nen-Executive Directors to build up a
holding In the Campany’s shares and has introduced a faciity whereby
Non-Exgcutive Directors can elect to receive a portion of therr fees in
BSkyB shares Shares are purchased on a monthly basis In the market
The Directors who are deemed to be affibated with Twenty-First
Century Fox, Inc (formerty known as News Corporation) James
Murdoch Chase Carey David DeVioe and Arthur Siskind are not
permitted to particpate inthis facility This s due to the fact that
under Rule 9 of the Takeover Code they would be deemed to be acting
in concert with Twenty-First Century Fox Inc If they were to purchase
shares In the Company and this would place Twenty-First Century Fox
Ine under an obligation to make a mandatory offer for ail of the 1ssued
share capttal of the Company

The interests of all serving Directors in the ordinary share capital of
the Company during the year were

3 2 Remuneration Committee activities

Date Key issues discussed

July 2012 Performance outturn for 201213 bonus &LTIP cntena

2010-13

Performance measures and target setting for LTIP
201215

Performance measures and target setting for 2012/13
bonus

Employee salary review

Pay review - CEQ & CFO

CEQs pension arrangements

Review of draft Report on Directors remuneration

At 30 June At 30 June

2013 2012
Jeremy Darroch 354575 296,157
Andrew Gnffith N4 452 B7533
Chase Carey” - -
Tracy Clarke 895 -
Cavid Devoe - -
Nick Ferguson 22128 14966
Martin Giibert 2281 971
Andy Higginson 6571 5639
Dave Lewis™ 705 -
James Murdoch - -
Matthreu Pigasse 2477 1058
Danny Rimer 122 15836
Arthur Siskand - -
Andy Sukawaty® 95 -

@) Dave Lews, Chase Carey and Andy Suhawaty were appoainted respectively to the
Board on 16 Novernber 2012 30 January 2013 and 1June 2013

Adine Grate was appointed on 17 July 2013 and does not have any
beneficial holdings in the Company No other Director held any
Interest in the share capital Including options, of the Company or of
any subsidiary of the Company during the year All interests at the
date shown are beneficial and there have been no changes between
1July and 25 July 2013

Dunng the year ended 30 June 2013 the share price traded within the
range of 6775 and 899 5 pence per share The middle-market closing
price on the last trading day of the financial year was 792 pence

3 Governance

31 Membership of the Remuneration Committee

During the year ended 30 June 2013 the Committee chaired by Danny
Rimer met three times Tracy Clarke, Nick Ferguson Martin Gilbert and
Andy Sukawaty are members of the Commuttee On1November 2012,
Jacques Nasser retired from the Board and as a member of the
Committes Andy Sukawaty joined the Committee on 13 June 2013
Attendance during the year 1s show on page 39

The full terms of reference for the Committee are avalable on the
Company’s corporate website

December Remuneration consultancy tender process

012

May 2013 Benchmarking analysis - Executive Directors total
package review vs the market
Governance and executive pay Update on the BIS
requirements and the general executive pay
environment
performance update - Bonus, LTIP and Co-Investment Plan

June 2013 Directors’ Remuneration Report

Performance update
Discussion on pay principles

3 3 Advisors te the Remuneration Committee

Following a competitive tender process in December 2012, the
Committee appointed Towers Watson in place of New Bridge Street as
independent advisors to the Committee Towers Watson provide a
range of other services to Sky relating to pensions Prior to that, New
Bridge Street (an Aon Hewitt company) acted as independent
advisors to the Committee, and did not have any other role within the
Company The Remuneration Committee 1s satisfied that the advice it
recalves on Executive Director remuneration 1s iIndependent and
objective Terms of reference have been agreed and will be monitored
throughout the appointment Towers Watson subscnbes to the
Remuneration Consultants Group s Code of Conduct inrelation to
axecutive remuneration The Code darifies the scope and conduct of
the role of remuneration consultants when advising UK hsted
companies

The Chief Executive and the Director for People provide information
and advice and attend meetings as required The Committees also
supported by the Company Secretary Finance and Human Resources
functions Noindividuals are involved in the decision in relation to
their own remuneration

3 4 Interaction with shareholders

We are committed to engaging with our shareholders and every year Sky
holds a meeting to talk about remuneration issues with the Company's
mayor shareholders and institutional Investor groups We find that this
enables us to take sharehclders views fully iInte account when making
decisions about remuneration At last year's AGM 88 6% of shareholders
voted in favour of our remuneration report

During the year, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee also
held meetings with institutional shareholders and analysts todiscuss
views on the Company’s remuneration policy
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4 Directors’ remuneration in 201213 (audrted)
The emoluments of the Directors for the year ended 30 June 2013 are shown below

Total Tota! Tatal
emoluments emoluments  emaluments
before including including
Salary and Bonus pension  Employer's pension pension
fees scheme Benefits 2013 pensions®? 2013 2012
£ £ [3 E £ E £
Executive
Jeremy Darroch 935000 1823250 175686™ 2933936 - 2933936 2983119
Andrew Griffith 573,500 831575 530900 1458165 33333 1491498 1521050
Non-Executive
Nick Fergusen 450000 - - 450,000 - 450000 230657
ChaseCarey ? 24612 - - 24612 - 24612 -
Tracy Clarke 78 000 - - 78000 - 78000 4413
Dawvid DeVoe 58 000 - - 58000 - 58000 56,500
Dave Lews 45,312 - - 45312 - 45312 -
Martin Gibert 94 666 - - 54 666 - 54666 3561
Andy Higginson 151333 - - 151333 - 151333 13179
James Murdoch 93000 - - 93,000 - 93000 89 477
Matthieu Pigasse 68000 - - 658 000 - 68000 35060
Danny Rimer 103,833 - - 103 833 - 103833 73167
Arthur Siskind 68000 - - 58 000 - 68000 66 500
Andy Sukawaty " 5666 - - 5666 - 5666 -
Thomas Mockndge”? 51333 - - 51333 - 51333 63808
Jacques Nagser™ 22956 - - 22958 - 22956 67108
Lord Wilson of Dinton®™ 73583 - - 73583 - 73583 57333
Total emoluments 2896794 2654825 228776 5780 395 33333 5813728 5583 G132

This toble is audited

Notes

{) JeremyDarroch was given a pension cash supplement of £158 564 and Andrew Griffith was given a pension cash supplement of £36986 during the financial year See page 52
for further information During the year Jeremy Darroch received a taxable benefit of £16 018 regarding use of a company car

(1) Jeremy Darroch 1s a deferred member of the Pension Plan having reached his lifetime allowance effective 1 July 2012

(my Thomas Mockridge resigned from the Board and as Deputy Chairman on 30 January 2013 Chase Carey was apponted on 30 January 2013

(v) Jacgues Nasserretired from the Board and its Commitiees onl November 2012

(v) Lord Wilson of Dinton retired from the Board and its Committees on 1 June 2013

(i) Dave Lewis was appointed to the Board on16 November 2012 and became a member of the Audit Committee and the Bigger Picture Committee on 30 January 2013 and a
member of the Corporate Govarnance & Nominatiens Committee on 11 June 2013

() Andy Sukawaty was apponted to the Board on 1 June 2013 and became a mernber of the Remuneration Committee on 1l June 2013

(vin) Total emoluments for the year ended 30 June 2012 Includes former Directors of the Company whe no longer serve as Drectors

Share schemes

Long-Term Incentive Plan

Number of shares under award Markat Market

At Granted Exercised Lapsed At price price Date

30 June dunng dunng dunng 30 June at date Exercise at date Dateof fromwhich
Name of Director 2012 the year the year the year 2013 ofaward price of exercise Award exercisable Expiry date
Jeremy Darrach 200000 - 200000 - - £4543 nl E7O8H2* 310708 310711 310716
380000 ~ 380000 - - £S5465 o E706M28 260809 NO7INM 310716
600000 - - - 600000 £E710 nia nfa 290710 290713 290718
500000 - - - 9000600 E7120 nfa nfa 29071 290713 290718
- 600000 - - b0OOOO £7065 nla nfa 260712 260715 2690720
Andrew Gnffith 320000 - - - 320000 E7110 nfa nfa 290710 290713 290718
455000 - - - 455000 £7120 , hia nfa 280711 290713 290718
- 320000 - - 320000 £7065 nla nfa 260712 260715 260720

This table is qudited

Notes

(a) 570000 LTiP awards were exeroised and subsequently disposed of at E7 06112 per share with the remaiming 10 000 sold at £7075 penca per share
() The aggregate value received by the Directors on exercise of the LTIP before tax was £4,095 588 (2012 £8 692 338).

(1) See performance conditions for LTiP on pages 51and 53

() Following the vesting of awards participants contiruing 1o be employed by the Company have five years to exeraise their award
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Directors’ remuneration report

continued

Co-Investment Plan
Details of all cutstanding awards held under the Co-Investment Plan are shown below

Number of shares under award Market Market

At Granted Exercised At price prce Date

30 June during during 30 June at date Exerase atdate Dateof fromwhich
Name of Director 2012 the year the year 2013 of award price  of exercise Award exerasable Expry date
Jeremy Darroch 204,425 - - 204 425 E5405 n/a nfa 270809 270812 270817
183935 - - 183935 £7075 nfa nfa 310810 310813 310818
207729 - - 207729 £6 460 nia nfa 30081 300814 300819
- 184145 - 184,149 £7640 n/a nfa_ 280812 280815 280820
Andrew Griffith 75506 - 75506% - £5405 n/a £76161 270809 270812 270817
69672™ - - 89672 £7075 nfa nfa 3tQ810 310813 310818
95793% - - 95793 £6 460 nja nfa 3008M 300814 300819
. - 84,7137 - B4 713 £7640 nja nla 280812 280815 280820

This table 1s audited

Notes

See performance conditions for the Co-Investment Plan on page 50

(@ The aggregate value recerved by Andrew Griffith on exercise of the CP before taxwas £575 0612012 nil)
() Jeremy Darroch holds 59 662 shares as a match under this award

(1) Jeremy Darroch holds 66 011 shares as a match under this award

(n) Jeremy Darrach holds 58 518 shares as a match under this award

() Andrew Griffith holds 22 601 shares as a match under this award

) Andrew Griffith holds 30 440 shares as a match under this award

i) Andrew Gnffith holds 26 919 shares as a match under this award

Executive Share Options
The Company has not made any Executive Share Option awards since 2004

Details of all outstanding options held under the Executive Schemes are shown below

Number of shares under award

Market
At Granted  Exerased At price Date
30 June during during 30 June Exercise atdate fromwhich
Name of Director 2012 the year theyear 2013 price ofexercise exercisable Expiry date
Andrew Griffith 44184 - - 44184 £662 nfa 010907 010913
19819® - - 15819 ESO3 nfa O50B0B 060814

This table 1s audited

Note
() These options vested following the achieverment of the perfarmance target being the growthin Sky’s EPS being equal to or greater than the increase in RPI plus 3% per annum

Sharesave Scheme Options
Details of all outstanding awards held under the Sharesave Scheme are shown below

Number of shares under award

Market
At Granted  Exercised At price Date
30 June dunng during 30 June Exercise atdate fromwhich
Name of Director 2012 the year the year 2013 price of exercise exercsable Expiry date
Jeremy Darroch 35 - - 359 £433 nfa 310215 010815
Andrew Griffith 1771 - - 177 £508 nla 010215 M0815

Thus table s audited

Options under the Company s Sharesave Scheme are not subject te performance conditions as they are made under a UK HMRC tax approved
scheme
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Other governance and statutory disclosures

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Companies Act 2006 requrres the Company toset cut In the
Cwrectors Report afar review of the business of the Group dunng the
financal year ended 30 June 2013 including an analysis of the position of
the Group at the end of the financial year, and a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group (known as a “Business
Review™} The purpose of the Business Review is to enable shareholders
to assess how the Directors have performed their duty under section 172
of the Comparues Act 2006

The information that fulfils the Business Review requirements can be
found in the following sections of the Directors Report

> Chief Executive Officers statement on pages 4to 6

> Qur performance KPls on pages 8 to 9

> Review of our business on pages 10 to 23

> Finanaal and operating review on pages 28 to 33

> Principal nsks and uncertainties that face the Group are described
on pages 24 to 27

> Significant trends that could have a matenal effect on the
performance of the Group are described on page 32

> People matters and community and environmental matters are
described on pages 17 to 23

Pages 4 to 59 inclusive (together with the sections incorporated by
reference) consist of a Directors Report that has been drawn up and
presented In accordance with and In reliance upon applicable English
company law and the abilities of the Directors in connection with
that report shall be subject to the imitations and restrictions
provided by the law

Principal activities

British Sky Broadcasting Group plc is the holding company of the
British Sky Broadcasting group of companies The Group's principal
activities are detailed in the Review of our business on pages 10 to 23

Results and dividends

The profit for the year ended 30 June 2013 was £979 milhon (2012
£906 million) The Directors recommend a final dwidend for the year
ended 30 June 2013 of 19 0 pence per ordinary share which together
with the interim dividend of 11 0 pence paid to sharehclders on

23 April 2013 will make a total dividend for the year of 30 Q pence
(2012 2540 pence) Subject to appraval at the AGM the final dividend
will be paid on 6 December 2013 to shareholders appearing on the
register at the close of business on 15 November 2013

Share caprtal

The Company’s Issued ordinary share capital at 30 June 2013
compnised one class of ordinary shares All of the issued ordinary
shares are fully paid and rank equally in all respects Further details of
the Company’s share capital 1s disclosed in notes 23 and 24 to the
consclidated financial statements

Interests in voting rights

Information provided to the Company pursuant to the UK Listing
Authority’s Disclosure and Transparency Rules (DTRs) I1s published on
a Regulatory Infarmation Service and on the Company’s website As at
30 June 2013 the Company had been notified under DTRS of the
following significant holdings of voting rights In its shares

Amount  Percent of
Identity of person or group owned dass

21st Century Fox UK Nominees Limited® £23817229 3814

BlackRock, Inct 88682 765 506

The Capital Group Companies, Ing ¢ 63236 287 3967
(1) Dwrect holding which is subject to restrctions onits voting nghts {please see "Veting

rights” below)
() Indrect halding,

There have been no changes to the above significant holdings
between 1.July and 25 July 2013

AL 25 July 2013, 39 14% of the Company's shares are held by 21st
Century Fox UX Nominees Limited, a company incorporated under the
laws of Engtand and Wales which is an incirect wholly owned
subsidiary of Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc, As a result of Rupert
Murdech s ability to appoint certain members of the Board of
Directors of the corporate trustee of the Murdoch Family Trust, which
beneficially owns less than 1% of Twenty-First Century Fox Inc's Class
A Common Stock and 38 4% of 1ts Class B Common Stock Rupert
Murdoch may be deemed to be a beneficial owner of the shares
beneficially owned by the Murdoch Famly Trust Rupert Murdoch
however disclaims any beneficial ownership of those shares Also,
Rupert Murdochreports beneficially ownership of less than 1% of
Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc s Class A Common Stock and an
additional 1 0% of its Class B Common Stock Thus Rupert Murdoch
may be deemed to beneficially own in the aggregate less than 1% of
Twenty-First Century Fox Inc s Class A Common Stock and 39 74% of
1ts Class B Common Stock, although, as stated above, Rupert Murdoch
disclaims benefical ownership of the shares of Twenty-First Century
Fox, Inc beneficially owned by the Murdoch Family Trust

The Employee Share Ownership Plan ('ESOPy was established to
satisfy awards made to participants of the Company’s employee
share plans The trustees of the ESOP have warved the nght to
dividends payable in respect of the shares held by it except to the
extent of 0 0001% of the dividend payable on each share At 30 June
2013 the ESOP had an interest 1in 20 527 423 of the Company’s
ordinary shares The Trustees, who are independent of the Company
have full discretion on how they vote the ordinary shares held by

the ESOP

Voting nghts

The Company’s Articles of Association provide that subject to any
rights or restrictions attached to any shares ona show of hands
every member present in person or by proxy shall have one vote and
on a poll every member shall have one vote for every share of which he
1s a holder On a poll, votes may be given either personally or by proxy
or (in the case of a corporate member) by a duly authornised
representative
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Other governance and statutory disclosures

continued

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at a general meeting may
appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote instead ofhim IFa
member appoints more than one proxy he must specify the number
of shares which each proxy i1s entitled to exercise rights over A proxy
need not be a shareholder of the Company Holders of the Company’s
ordinary shares do not have cumulative voting nghts Avoting
agreement dated 21 September 2005 was entered intc between the
Company BSkyB Moldco Inc, Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc and

21st Century Fox UK Nominees Limited which became unconditional
on 4 November 2005 and caps 21st Century Fox UK Nominees
Limited's voting rights at any general meeting at 3719% The prowvisions
of the voting agreement: cease to apply on the first to occur of a
number of ¢ireumstances which include the date on which a general
offer 1s made by an independent person (as defined inthe voting
agreement) for the ordinary share capital of the Company

Restrictions on transfer of securities

There are no specific restrictions on the transfer of securities in the
Company which 1s governed by the Articles of Assocration and
prevaling legislation, nor 1s the Company aware of any agreements
between holders of securities that may result in restrictions onthe
transfer of securities or that may result in restrictions on voting rights

Variation of nghts

Subject to the Comparies Act 2006, nghts attached to any class of
shares may be varied with the consent in writing of the holders of
three-quarters in nominal value of the 1ssued shares of the class or
with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate general
meeting of the shareholders

Directors’ powers in relation to the Company issuing and buying
back its own shares

The Directors were granted authority at the 2012 AGM to allet relevant
secunities up to a nominal amount of £273,000 000 This authority will
apply until the conclusion of this year s AGM An ordinary resolution to
provide the Directors with an authority to ailot relevant securities up
to a nominal amount of £262,000 000 will be proposed at the 2013
AGM A special resolution will also be proposed torenew the Directors’
powers to make non-pre-emptive 1ssues for cash in connection with
rights 1ssues and otherwise up to a nominai amount of £39 000,000

On 28 November 2011 at the Company’s AGM, the Company was
granted the authority to return E750 million of capital to shareholders
via a share buy-back programime This authonty was subject to an
agreement between the Company and Twenty-First Century Fox Inc
{and others) dated 28 July 201 whereby following any market
purchases of shares by the Company Twenty-First Century Fox Inc.
would sell to the Company sufficient shares to maintain its
percentage shareholding at the same level as apphed prior to those
market purchases The price payable to Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc
would be the price payable by the Company In respect of the relevant
market purchases (the 2011 Share Buy-back Agreement. )

At the Company's AGM oni November 2012, the Company was granted
the authority toreturn a further ES00 milion of capital to
shareholders via a share buy-back programme This authority was
sublect to an agreement between Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc (and
others) dated 28 July 2012 on substantially the same terms as the
20M Share Buy-back Agreement

0On 25 July 2013 the Board agreed to seek the necessary approvals to
return a further £500 mulhon of capital to shareholders via a share
buy-back programme Shareholder approvals wil be sought at the
Company’s AGM on 22 November 2013 The Company has entered into
an agreement with Twenty-First Century Fox Inc (and others) under
substantially the same terms as the 2011 Share Buy-back Agreement
The agreement 1s conchtional on the appropriate shareholder
appravals being granted The effect of the agreement 1s to provide
that there will be no change in Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc's
economic or voting interests in the Company as a result of the share
buy-back programme

Articies of association

The Company’s Articles of Assaciation may only be amended by
special resclution at a general meeting of shareholders

Board of Directors

The names and biographical details of the Directors of the Company |
are given on pages 34 and 35 ‘
|
|
|

The Directors nterests In the ordinary shares and options of the
Compary are disclosed within the report on Directors remuneration
onpages 541056

Appointment and retirement of Directors

The Directors may from time to time appoint one or mare Directors
Any such Director shall hold office only uptit the next AGM and shall
then be eligible for reappointment by the Company’s shareholders At
the Company’s 2013 AGM all current Executive and Non-Executive
Directors willretire and offer themselves for reagpointment in
compliance with the Code

Alternate Directors

A Drrector may appoint any other Director or any other parson to act
as his Alternate An Alternate Director shallbe entitled toreceive
notice of and attend meetings of the Directors and committees of
Directors of which his appointer 15 a membier and not able to attend
The Alternate Director shall be entitled to vote at such meetings and
generally perform all the functions of his appointer as a Director inhis
absence

On the resignation of the appointer for any reason the Alternate
Director shall cease to be an Alternate Directer The appointer may
also remove his Alternate Director by notice to the Company Secretary
signed by the appointer revoking the appointment An Alternate
Director shall not be entitled to fees for his service as an Alternate
Director

Chase Carey, Davtd DeVoe Arthur Siskind and James Murdoch have
appointed each of the others toact as their Alternate Director
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Significant agreements

Detalls of any significant agreements that take effect, alter or
terminate on a change of control of the Company are disclosed in the
review of the business on pages 15to 17

Payment policy

The policy of the Group 1s to agree terms of payrnent with sugphers
prior to entering Into a contractual relationship In the absence of a
speafic agreement, it 1s the policy of the Group to pay suppliers In
accordance with its standard payment terms of 45 days The Group
had below 45 days’ purchases outstanding at 30 June 2013 (2012
below 45 days) based on the total amount invoiced by non-
programme trade suppliers dunng the year ended 30 June 2013
Programme creditors include significant balances which are not yet
contractually due Inrespect of amounts both contractually due and
invoiced, the outstanding number of days’ purchases 1s below 45 days
(2012 below 45 days)

Financial instruments

Details of the Group s use of financial INstruments, togather with
information on our finanaial risk management objectives and policies,
and our exposure to finanaal risks can be found in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements

Charitable contributions through our community and
environmental activities

During the financia! year, we contributed £S5 788,768 to chanities for
the purpose of supporting our Inibiatives that focus on being a
responsible business and on improving lives through sport
championing creativity and opening up the arts helping young peopte
build skil's for a changing world, and taking action to protect the
envircnment

These contributions were made to our key charity partners including
the National Film and Telewision School, the Media Trust Youth Sport
Trust British Cychng, WWF, Global Action Plan, Ideas Tap Tate Liverpool
and the Victoria and Albert Museum We alsc supported a number of
charities through cur employee matched fundraising and payroll
gving activties and our volunteering rubatives

*

An overview of our approach to building a sustainable business, which
we call seeing the bigger picture 15 provided on pages 17 to 21 of the
Directors’ report - Business review In addition we have published our
Seeing the bigger picture Summary Report 2013 which outlines our
vision initiatives and performance over the year In this we quantify
our total nvestment for community benefit using the London
Benchmarking Group model In-depth information can also be found
at sky com/biggerpicture

Polrtical contributions

Political contnbutions of the Group in the UK during 2013 amounted
tonil (2012 ni)

Going concern

The Group s business activities, together with the factors likely ta
affect its future development performance and position are set out
in the review of our business on pages 10 to 23 The financial position
of the Group 1ts cash flows and Iiquidity position are described in the
financial and operating review on pages 28 to 33 Inaddition, notes 20
to 22 to the consolidated financial statements include details of the
Group’s treasury actvities long termn funding arrangements, financial
Instruments arkd hedging activities and exposure to finanaal nisk

As set out above the Group has sufficient financial resources which,
together with internally generated cash flows, will continue to provicde
sufficient sources of quidity to fund its current operations, including
its contractual and commercral commitments as set out on pages 99
to 100, 1ts approved capital expenditure and any proposed dividends,
and the Group 1s well placed to manage its business nisks successfully
despite the current economic outlock

After making enquines, the Directors have formed the judgement at
the time of approving the consolidated financial statements that
there 15 a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue inoperational existence for the foreseeable
future For this reason, the Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis In prepanng the consclidated financal statemerits

Directors’ responsibilitias

The responsibilities of the Directors are set out on page 60

Disclosure of information to audrtors

In accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act
2006, each of the persons who are Directors of the Company at the
date of approval of this report confirms that

> so far as the Director 1s aware, there is no relevant audit iInformation
(as defined in the Companies Act 2006) of which the Company's
auditor Is unaware and

> the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken
as a Director to make himselffherself aware of any relevant audit
information (as defined) and to establish that the Company’s
auditor 1s aware of that information

Auditors

Deloitte LLP, the auditors of the Comparw, have expressed their
willingness to continue in office Aresolution te reappoint them as the
Company’s auditors and to authorise the Directors to determine ther
rermuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM

Annual General Meeting

The notice convening the AGM o be held at the Edinburgh
International Conference Centre, The Exchange Edinburgh EH3 8EE on
22 November 2013 at 11 00am, 1s avallable for download fromthe
Company's corporate website at sky com/corporate

By order of the Board

Chnis Taylor
Company Secretary
25 July 2013
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the AnnualReport and the  Directors’ responsibility statement
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and

The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge
regu'ations

The financial statements, prepared In accordance with IFRSs, give
a true and fair view of the assets, lablities financial posttionand
profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in
the consohdation taken as a whole, and

Company law requires the Drrectors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year Under that law the Directors are required to
prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and Article 4 of the |IAS Regulation and have also 2 The managemens report, which s incorporated into the Directors
chosen to prepare the parent Company financial statements under report, Includes & fair review of the development and performance
IFRSs as adopted by the EU Under Company law the Directors must of the business and the position of the Company and the

not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole,

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the together with a descreption of the prinaipal nsks and uncertainties
profit or loss of the Company for that penod In preparing these that they face

financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1requires

that Directors By order of the Board

Jeremy Darroch Andrew Gniffith
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
25 July 2013 25 July 2013

> properly select and apply accounting policies

> present information, including accounting policies 1n a manner that
provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information

> provide additional disclosures when comphance with the specific
requirements in IFRSs are nsufficient to enable users to !
understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and '
conditions on the entity s financial position and financial
performance and

> make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concearmn

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting

records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's

transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the

financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the

financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are

also responsible for safeguarding the asséts of the Company and

hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of

fraud and other irregularities \

The Directors are responsibla for the maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information included on the Company’s
website Legislation in the Urited Kingdom goverming the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
In other jurisdictions
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Independent Auditor’s report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF BRITISH SKY BROADCASTING
GROUP PLC

Opinion

In our optnion the consolidated and Parent Company financial
statements of British Sky Breadcasting Group ple

> gve atrue and farr view of the state of the Group's and Parent
Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2013 and of its profit for the year
thenended

> have been properly prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ([FRSs) as adopted by the European
Union, and

? have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and Articie 4 of the IAS Regulation

The financial statements comprise the consolidated and company
income statements, the consolidated and company statements of
comprehensive iIncome, the consolidated and company balance
sheets the consolidated and company cash flow statements the
consolidated and company statements of changes 1n equity and the
related notes 1to 32 The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation Is applicable law and IFRSs as adepted by
the Eurcpean Union

Separate opinion in relation to IFRSs as issued by the IASB

As explained in note 1 to the conschdated financial statements, the
Group in addition to applying IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union, has also applied IFRSs as 1ssued by the Internaticnal
Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements comply with
IFRSs as 1ssued by the IASB

Basis for oplnions

We have audited the consolidated and Parent Company financizl
statements in accordance with applicable law and Internatwnal
Standards on Auditing (ISAs) {UK and Ireland) Qur responsibilities
under those standards are further descrbed below under Respective
Respansibilities of Directeors and Auditor In performing our audit as
required by those standards, we complied with the Financial Reporting
Councils Ethical Standards for Auditors including those requinng us to
be independent and objective

Going Concern

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the directors
statement on page 59 that the business 1s a going concern We
confirm that

2 we have not identified material uncertainties related to events or
conditions that may cast sigruficant doubt on the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern which we believe would need to be
disclosed in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and

> we have concluded that management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements 1s
appropriate

However because not all future events or conditions can be predicted
this statement Is not a guarantee as to the Company’s ability to
conttnue as a going concern

Auditor commentary

Our assessment of risks significant to our audit

The assessed risks of material misstaterment desceribed below are
those that had the greatest effect on the audit strategy the
allocation of resources inthe audit, and directing the efforts of the
engagement team

> revenue recognition including the timing and amounit of retail
subscription revenues recognised in the year,

» the selection and application of appropriate policies for the
expensing of general entertainment programming inventory, and

> the appropriateness of the recognition of intangible and tangible
non-current assets fromcapital expenditure projects

Our audit procedures relating to these matters were designed inthe
context of cur audit of the financial statements as a whole and not to
express an opinion on individual accounts or disclosures Cur opinien
on the financial statements 1s not modified with respect to any of the
key audit matters described below, and we do not express an opiron
on these individual matters

Qur assessment of materiality

We apply the concept of matenaity both in planning and performing
our audit and in evaluating the effect of misstatements on our audit
and on the financial statements For the purposes of determimng
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement we define matenality as the magnitude of
misstatement that makes it probable that the economic decisions of
a reasgnably knowledgeable persen relying on the financial
statements, would be changed or influenced We also determine a
level of performance matenality which we use to determine the extent
of testing neaded to reduce to an appropriately low level the
probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected
misstatements exceeds matenality for the financial statements as a
whaole

When establisting our overall audit strategy we determined a
magnitude of uncorrected misstatements that we judged would be
material for the financial statements as a whele Inline with generally
accepted practice we calculated planning matenatity for the Group as
approximately 4% of adjusted pre-tax profit and 5% of equity, which
equated to £50 milhon We use adjusted pre-tax profit to exclude the
effect of volatility from our determination

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the
Committee ali audit differences i excess of £2 S million as well as
differences below that threshold that in our view warranted reporting
on qualtative grounds

The scope of our audit

An audit involves obtaming evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the finanaa! statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financal statements are free from matenal
misstatement whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to
the Group s arcumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the
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Independent Auditor’s report

continued

financial statements Inaddition we read all the financial and
non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify
any information that 1s apparently matenally incorrect based on or
materally inconsistent with the knowledge acquired by us in the
course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent
matena! misstatements or Inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report

Our Group audit scope focused on the Group s UK and Ireland
operations which were subject to a full scope audit for the year ended
30 June 2013 and represent all principal operations of the Group and
account for substantially all of the Group's total assets revenue and
operating profit

The way inwhich we scoped our response to the significant risks
identified above was as follows

> Retall subscription revenue - our procedures included
understanging and testing the controls in respect of the Groups
billing and customer relationship management systems and testing
the revenue recogmised in the period

> General Entertainment programming inventory - we evaluated the
armortisation method for general entertainment programming
inventory, taking into account the differing genres of programmes,
viewing profiles and industry benchmarks

> Capitahsation of intangible and tangible non-current assets -we
tested the contrals In respect of the capitalisation of assets
considered all matena!l and a sample of other capital expenditure
projects and evaluated management s assessment as to whether
the project spend met the recognition criteria set out In 1AS 16 and
IAS 38 and considered whether any indicators of impairment were
present

The Audit Commuittee s constderation of these judgements Is set cut
onpage 43

Opmions on matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion

> the information given in the Directors Report for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared 15 consistent with
the financial statements and

> the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has
been property prepared in accordance with the Compantes Act
2006

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of explanations receved

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If In
our opinion, we have not recerved ali the information and explanations
we require for our audit We have nothing to reportinrespect of this
matter

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report iIf inour
opinion certain disclosures of directors remuneration have not been
made or the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited
IS not In agreement with the accounting records and returns Under
the Listing Rules we are required to review certan elements of the
Directors Remuneration Report We have nothing to report arsing
from these matters or our review

Corporate Governance Statement

Under the Listing Rules we are also required to review the part of the
Corporate Governance Statement relating to the company’s
comphance with nine provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Code We have nothing to report ansing from our review

Our duty to read other information in the Annual Report
Under the I1SAs (UK and Ireland), we are required to report to you i In
our opinion inforration in the annual report 1s

> matenally inconsistent with the information in the audited financial
statements, or

»> apparently matenally iIncorrect based on, or materially inconsistent
with our knowledge of the Group acquired in the course of
performing our audit or

> ctherwise misleading

In particular we have considered whether the annual report
appropriately discloses those matters that we communicated to the
Audit Committee which we consider should have been disclosed

We confirm that we have not identified any such inconsistencies or
misleading statements

Respective responsibilities of directors and audrtor

Responsibility of directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Directors statement of respensibility
set out on page 60 the directors are responsible for the adequacy of
the accounting records, the preparation of the financial statements
from those records and for being satisfied that the financial
statemerits give a true and fair view

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the finanaal
statements and to provide other reports and communications ansing
from our audit in accerdance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

This report 1s made solely 1o the company's members as a body, In
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparues Act 2006

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company’s members those matters we are either required to state to
themn an auditor’s report and/or those further matters we have
expressly agreed to repart to them on in our engagement letter and
for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company’s members as a body for cur audit work for this
report, of for the opinions we have foermed

william Touche (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

25 July2013
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Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated Income statement
for the year ended 30 June 2013

2013 2032
Notes £Em £m
Revenue 2 7235 6,791
Operating expense 3 (5,944} (5548)
Operating profit 1291 1,243
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 13 46 39
Investment income 4 28 18
Finance costs 4 (108) muy
Profit before tax 5 1257 1189
Taxation 7 (278} (283)
Profit for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent company 979 906
Earmings per share from profit for the year (in pence)
Basic a8 607p 526p
Diluted 2] 597p 522p
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated income statement
All resuits relate to continuing operations
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2013 ,
2013 2012
Em £m
Profit for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent company 979 906
Other comprehensive iIncome
Amaunts recognised directly in equity
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - 2
Gain on revaluation of avallable-for-sale investments 186 B
(Loss) gain on cash flow hedges (27) Q9
Tax oncash flow hedges 7 23)
166 86
Amounts reclassified and reported in the Income staterment
Loss on cash flow hedges (4AB) 29}
Tax on cash fiow hedges , n 7
37} (22
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) 129 64
Total comprehensive incoma for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the parent comparny 1108 970

All results relate to continuing operations
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Consolidated financial statements

continued
Consclidated balance sheet
as at 30 June 2013
2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Goodwall 0 999 956
Intangble assets n 718 523
Property plant and equipment 12 1041 548
Investments in Joint ventures and associates 13 164 156
Avalable-for-sale investments 14 422 228
Deferred tax assets 15 38 15
Programme distnbution nghts 16 17 -
Trade and other receivables 17 17 17
Denvative finanaal assets 21 360 390
3776 3234
Current assets
Inventories & 548 456
Trade and other recevables 7 591 621
Short-term deposits 21 595 710
Cash and cash equivalents 2i 815 464
Derivative financial assets 21 20 24
2569 2275
Total assets 6345 5509
Current liabilities
Borrowings 20 il 8
Trade and other payables 18 2023 1855
Current tax habilities 176 189
Provisions 19 94 43
Dervative financial habiities 21 13 3
2317 2098
Non-current habilities
Borrowings 20 290% 2398
Trade and other payables 18 63 27
Provistons . 19 14 12
Dervative financial habiiies 2 29 29
Deferred taxliabilities 15 1 1
3016 2467
Total habilities 5333 4 565
Share capital 23 797 837
Share premium 24 1437 1437
Reserves 24 1222) (1330
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company 24 1012 9544
Total habilities and shareholders’ equity 6,345 5509

The accompanying notes are an ntegral part of this consolidated balance sheet

These consolidated financial statements of British Sky Broadcasting Group plc, registered number 02247735, have been approved and

authonsed for 1ssue by the Board of Directars an 25 July 2013 and were signed on its behalf by

Andrew Griffith
Chief Financial Officer

Jeremy Darroch
Chief Executive Officer
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Consclidated cash flow statement
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The accompanying notes are an integral part, of this consolidated cash flow statement

for the year ended 3Q June 2013 § |
3 |
2013 2012 2 ‘
Notes £m Em 2 |
Cash flows from operating actmitres 2 ‘
Cash generated from operations 25 1877 1,737
Interest receved 29 17
Taxation paid (300) (254
Net cash from operating activities 1,606 1500
Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends receved from joint ventures and associates 43 35
Net funding to Joint ventures and associates 4y (6)
Proceeds on disposal of an investment 4 -
Purchase of property plant and eguipment (203) (228)
Purchase of intangible assets {251 (229) ‘
Purchase of subsidiaries (net of cash and cash equivalents purchased) a9n (15} ‘
Purchase of available-for-sale iInvestments [C)] (5) ‘
Decrease (increase) in short-term deposits 15 (280} - |
Net cash used in investing activities (502} (724} 3
Cash flows from finanaing activittes a
Net proceeds from borrowings 498 - ;—‘
Repayment of obligations under finance leases m (U] g
Proceeds from disposal of shares in Employee Share Qwnership Plan ("ESOP™) 15 10 3
Purchase of own shares for ESOP (69) =) ES
Purchase of own shares for cancellation (627) (546) w
Interest paid {128) (1253
Dmdends paid to sharehelders (441} 210} ‘
Net cash used in finanong actwvities {753} {1233) ‘
Netncrease (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 351 (457)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 464 =]
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 815 464
|

E
2

H
H
3
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Consolidated financial statements

continued

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 June 2013

Availlable- Total
Share Share ESCP Hedging for-sate Other Retaned shareholders
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  reserves  earnings equity
£m £m £m £m Em Em £m Em
At 1July 201 876 1,437 07) [ 157 358 (1700) 1,035
Profit for the year - - - - - - 405 906
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations - - - - - - 2
Revaluation of avalable-for-sale investments - - - - - 8
Recognition and transfer of cash fiow
hedges - - - e - - - 0
Tax on 1tems taken directly to equity - - - (16} - - - &)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 54 906 970
Share-based payment - - (2] - - - 80 (8%)
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - - - - ()] (10)
Share buy-back programme (see note 24) .
- Purchase of own shares for cancellation 39 - - - - 39 (546) (546)
- Financial lability for close penod purchases - - - - - - [§[0)] Q0)
Dividends - - - - - - 410) (410)
At 30 June 2012 837 1437 (112) 68 165 399 1,850) 944
Profit for the year - - - - - - 979 979
Revaluation of avallable-for-sale nvestments - - - - 186 - - 186
Recognition and transfer of cash flow
hedges - - - @5 - - - (75}
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - 18 - - - 18
Total comprehensive mcome for the year - - - (57) 186 - 979 1,108
Share-based payment - - (35) - - - &1 26
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - - - - B 8
Share buy-back programme (see note 24)
- Purchase of own shares for cancellation @0 - - - - 40 {&17) (&1
~ Financial hakxlity for close pened purchases - - - - - - 06) (6)
Dwvdends - - - - - - (447) (441)
At 30 June 2013 797 1437 (1473 i 351 439 (1876) 1,012

For a description of the nature and purpose of each equity reserve, see note 24

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consclidated statement of changes in equity
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Britrish Sky Broadcasting Group ple (the "Company™}is a imited iability
company incorporated in the United Kingdom ("UK”) and registered in
England and Wales The consolidated financial statements include the
Company and Its subsidraries (together, the “Group™ and its Interests
in associates and jointly-controlled entities

a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS")
as adopted by the European Union ('EU’) the Companies Act 2006
and Article 4 of the International Accounting Standard ("IAS™)
Regulations In addition, the Group alse complied with IFRS as 1ssued
by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASE™)

b) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
congern basis (as set out Inthe Directors Report) and on an histoncal
cost basis, except for the remeasurement to fair value of financial
Instruments as described Iin the accounting policies below The Group
has adopted the new accounting pronouncements which became
effectve this year none of which had any significant impact on the
Group s results or financial position

The Group mantains a 52 or 53 week fiscal year ending on the Sunday
nearest to 30 June in each year In fiscal year 2013, this date was 30
June 2013, this being a 52 week year {fiscal year 2012 1July 2012, 52
week year) For convenience purposes the Group continues to date its
consolidated financial statements as at 30 June and to refer to the
accounting period as a 'year ' for reporting purposes The Group has
classified assets and liabilities as current when they are expected to
be realised in, or ntended for sale or consumpticn In the normal
operating cycle of the Group

¢) Basis of consolidation

| Subsidianes

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company Control exists
when the Company has the power directly or indirectly, to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
fromts activities Subsidianes are included In the consolidated
financial statements of the Company from the date control of the
subsidiary commences until the date that control ceases Intra-group
balances, and any unreahsed gains and losses or income and
expenses arising from intragroup transactions are eliminated in
preparing the consolidated financial statements

n Associates and joint ventures

Associates are entities where the Group has significant influence but
not control or joint controt over the financial and operating policies of
the entity Joint ventures are those entities which are jointly
controlied by the Group under a contractual agreement with another
party or parties

These consolidated financial statements indude the Group s share of
the total recognised gains and losses of associates and joint ventures
using the equity method from the date that significant influence or
joint control commences to the date that it ceases based onpresent
ownership interests and excluding the possible exercise of potential
voting nghts less any Impairment losses (see accounting policy ) When

the Group s Interest in an associate or joint venture has been reduced
to nil because the Group's share of losses exceeds its Interest In the
associate or joint venture the Group only provides for additional losses
to the extent that 1t has incurred legal or constructive obiigations to
fund such losses, or where the Group has made payments on behalf of
the associate or joint venture Where the disposal of an investment in
an assoclate or joint venture 15 considered to be highly probabile the
Investment ceases to be equity accounted and, instead, 1s classified as
held for sale and stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell

d) Goodwill

Business combxnations that have occurred since 1.uly 2004 the date
of transition to IFRS (the Transition Date”) are accounted for by
applying the purchase method of accounting Fellowing this method
goodwill1s initially recognised on consolidation, representing the
difference between the fair value cost of the business combination
and the farr value of the entifiable assets habilittes and contingent
assets and habilities assumed

Inrespect of business combinations that occurred prior to the
Transition Date goodwill has been included at the amounts
recognised under the Group s UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles ("UK GAAP ) accounting policies on the Transition Date On
disposal of a subsidiary, associate or joint venture, the attributable
amount of goodwill 1s included in the determination of profit or foss on
disposal except for goodwill written off to reserves under UK GAAP
prior to the Transition Date, which 1s not reinstated and 1s not included
tn determiping any subsequent gain or loss on disposal

Goodwill 1s stated at cost less any impairment losses and 1s tested, at
least annually for imparment based on the recoverable amounts of the
cash generating unit towhich the goodwill has been allocated Any
impairment identfied 1s recognised immediately in the income
statement and 1s not subsequently reversed The carrying amount of
goodwill in respect of assocrates and joint ventures is included in the
carrying amount of the Investment in the associate or joint venture
Goodwill 1s tested for impairment inline with accounting palicy | below

e} Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment ("PPE")

1 Intangible assets

Research expenditure 1s recognised In operating expense In the
ncome statement as the expenditure is incurred Development
expenditure {relating to the application of research knowledge to plan
ar design new or substantially improved products for sale oruse
within the business) s recognised as an intangible asset from the
point at which it 1s probable that the Group has the intention and
ability to generate future economic benefits from the development
expenditure, that the development is technicaily feasible and that the
subsequent expenditure can be measured reliably Any other
development expenditure 1s recognised in operating expanse as
Incurred

Other intangble assets, which are acquired by the Group separately or
through a business combination, are Initiaily stated at cost or fair value
respectively less accumulated amortisatton and impairment losses
other than those that are classified as held for sale, which are stated at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell

Amortisation of an intangible asset begins when the asset 1s available
for use, and 1s charged to the income statement through operating
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

expense on a straight-line basis over the intangible asset s estimated
useful hfe principally being a period between 1 and 25 years unless
the asset life I1s judged to be indefinite IF the useful Iife 1s Indefinite or
the asset s not yet availlable for use, no amorusation 1s charged and
an impairment test is carried out at least annualiy Other intangible
assets are tested for iImpatrment in ine with accounting policy 1 below

1 Property, plant and equipment

Owned PPE 15 stated at cost net of aceumulated depreciation and any
impairrment losses (see accounting policy 1) other than those items
that are classified as held for sale which are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value tess costs to sell When an item of PPE
comprises majer components having different useful economic lives,
the components are accounted for as separate items of PPE

Assets held under finance leases which confer nghts and obligations
similar to those attached tc owned assets are treated as PPE (see
accounting policy n)

The cost of PPE, less estimated residual value, 1s depreciated in
operating expense on a straight-line basis over its estimated usefu!
Iife Land and assets that are not yet availlable for use are not
depreciated Prinaipal useful economic lives used for this purpose are

> Freehold buldings 25to 40 years

> Equipment, furniture and fixtures 3 to 20 years

> Assetsunder finance leasesand  Lesser of leaseterm and the
leasehold improvements useful economic life of the asset

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition construction
or production of qualifying assets which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for therr intended use or
sale are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale

To the extent that the finanong for a quahfying asset s part of the
Groups general borrowings, the interest cost to be capitalised s
calculated based upon the weighted average cost of borrowing to the:
Group (excluding the Interest on any borrowings specific to any quaifying
assetsy This 1s then appled to the expenditures on the asset

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
to which they relate

f) Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group uses a number of derivative financial instruments to hedge
its exposure to fluctuations in Interest and foreign exchange rates

Derivatives are held at far value from the date on which a dervative
contract is entered inte Farr value 1s defined as the amount for which
an asset could be exchanged or a hability settled between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction The fair
value of dervative finanaal iInstruments 1s calculated with reference
to the contracted value and the appropriate market value prevaling
at the balance sheet date Certain derwvatives held by the Group which
relate to highly probable forecast transactions ( hedged items ),
which meet qualifying critenia under I1AS 39 ‘ Fimancial Instruments
Recognition and Measurement ' (' 1AS 39™) are designated as cash flow
hedges or fair vaiue hedges, and are subject to cash flow hedge
accounting or fair value hedge accounting respectively Certain other
derivatives held by the Group do not meet the qualfying criteria for

recognition for accounting purposes as hedges despite this being
their economic function Changes in the fair values of these
dervatives are recognised iImmediately in the Income statement The
Group does not hold or 1ssue derivatives for speculative purposes

| Derivatives that qualify for cash flow hedge accounting

Changes in the fair values of derivatives that are designated as cash
Alow hedges ("cash flow hedging iInstruments”) are initially recognised
in the hedging reserve In circumstances in which the derivative used
IS a currency option, only changes in the intrinsic value of the option
are designated under the cash flow hedging relationship with all other
movements heing recorded immediately in the income statement
Amounts accumulated inthe hedging reserve are subsequently
recognised Inthe ncome statement n the periods in which the
related hedged items are recognised in the income statement

At inception, the effectiveness of the Group s cash flow hedges I1s
assessed through a companison of the pnncipal terms of the hedging
instrument and the underlying hedged item The ongoing
effectiveness of the Group's cash flow hedges 15 assessed using the
dollar-offset approach with the expected cash flows of hedging
nstruments beng compared to the expected cash flows of the
hedged items This assessment 1s used to demonstrate that each
hedge relationship 1s expected to be highly effective on inception, has
been highly effective in the period and 1s expected to continue to be
highly effective in future penods The measurement of hedge
ineffectiveness for the Group s hedging instruments is calculated
using the hypothetical dervative method with the fair values of the
hedging instruments being compared to those of the hypothetical
derwative that would result in the designated cash flow hedge
achweving perfect hedge effectiveness The excess of the cumulatwe
change in the far value of the actual hedging instrument compared to
that of the hypothetical denvative Is deemed to be hedge
ineffectiveness, which 1s recogrised in the income statement

The Group uses a range of 80% to 125% for hedge effectiveness in
accordance with 1AS 39, and any relationship which has effectiveness
outside this range 1s deemed to be ineffective and hedge accounting
1s suspended

When a cash flowhedging instrument expires, I1s terminated or 1s
exercised or If a hedge ne longer meets the qualfying critena for
hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing In the hedging
reserve at that time remains in the hedging reserve and 15 recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised n the Income
statement, provided that the undertying transaction 1s still expected
to oceur When a forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to occur
the cumulative gain or loss that was reported tn the hedging reserve s
immediately recogrused in the income statement and all future
changes in the fair value of the cash flow hedging instruments are
immediately recognised in the iIncome statement

11 Derivatives that qualify for fair value hedge accounting

The Group has designated certain derivatives as fair value hedges as
defined under IAS 38 Any changes in the fair value of the derivatives
are recognised immediately In the income statement The carrying
values of the underlying hedged items are adjusted for the change In
the fair value of the hedged nsks, with the gains or losses recogrised
immediately in the Income statement offsetting the fair value
movement on the derivative

Prospective effectiveness is assessed quarterly through a companson
of the principal terms of the hedging nstrument and the underlying
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hedged item, including the likelihood of default by the denvative
counterparty The retrospective effectiveness of the Groups farr value
hedges Is calculated quarterly using the cumulative dollar-offset
approach with movements in the fair value of the hedged item being
compared to movements in the farr vatue of the hedging instrument

The Group uses a range of 80% to 125% for hedge effectiveness and any
relationship which has effectiveness outside this range (s deemed to be
ineffective and hedge accounting 1s suspended

i Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded 1n other financial Instruments or other host
contracts are treated as separate denvatives when therr risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not carried at far value with unrealised
gains or losses reperted In the income statement Embedded
derivatives are carried on the balance sheet at fair value from the
inception of the host contract Changes in fair value are recognised
within the income statement durng the period in which they arise

g) Inventories

1 Acquired and commissioned television programme inventories for
broadcast

Programme inventories for broadcast are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value ('NRV") including, where applicable,
estimated subscriber escalation payments, and net, of the
accumulated expense charged to the income statement to date

Such programming rights are included as inventones when the legally
enforceable licence penod commences and all of the following conditions
have been met (g) the cost of each programme 1s known or reasonably
determinable (b) the programme material has been accepted by the
Group In accordance with the conditions of the nghts and (¢) the
programme s available for its first showing, Prior to being included in
Inventories, the programming rights are classified as television
programme rights not yet available for transmission and not recorded as
inventories on the Groug's balance sheet and are instead disclosed as
contractual commitmeants (see note 26) Payments made upon receipt of
commussioned and acquired programring, but in advance of the legal
right to broadeast the programmes are treated as prepayments

The cost of television prograrmme Inventories 15 recognised in the
operating expense line of the Income statement primarnly as
described below

> Sports - 100% of the cost 15 recogrised in the Income statement on
the first broadcast or where the rights are for multiple seasons or
competitions suchnghts are principally recogrised on a straight-
line basis acress the seasons or competitions

> News - 100% of the cost Is recagnised In the income statement on
first broadcast

> Movies - The cost Is recognised in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the pericd of broadcast rights

> General entertainment - The cost 15 recogrised in the income
statement based on the expected value of each planned broadcast

Where programme broadcast nghts are surplus tothe Group s
requirements and no gainis anticipated through a disposal of the
rights, or where the programming will not be broadcast for any other
reason awnte-down to the income statement 1s made Any reversals
of inventory write-downs are recogrised as reductions inoperating
expense

1 Programme distnbution rights

Programme distribution nghts are valued at the lower of cost and NRV
net of the accumulated expense charged to the Income statement to
date

The cost of the programme distribution nights is recognised in the
operating expense line of the Income statement on an ultimate
revenue forecast basis, and 1s subject to regular Impairment review

i1 Set-top boxes, routers and related equipment

Set-top boxes, routers and related equipment are valued at the lower
of cost and NRV the latter of whichreflects the value that the
business expects to realise from the set-top boxes and related
equipment in the hands of the customer and are recognised through
the operating expense line of the income statement Any subsidy 1
expensed on enablement, which 1s the process of activating the
viewing card during installation so as to enable a viewer to view
encrypted broadcast services, and effectively represents the
completion of the installation process for new customers The amount
recognised in the Income statement 1s determined on a weighted
average cost basis i accordance with 1AS 2 “Inventory”

w Raw matenials, consumables and goods held for resale

Raw materials consumables and goods held for resale are valued at
the lower of cost and NRV The cost of raw materials, consumables ang
goods held forresale 1s recognised through the operating expense
line of the income statement on a first In first out basis

h) Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and habilities are initially recognised at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs At each balance sheet
date, the Group assesses whether there 1s any objective evidence that
any financial asset is impatred Financial assets and labilities are
recognised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the financial asset or hability
Financial assets are derecognised from the balance sheet when the
Groups contractual rights to the cash flows expire or the Group
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset
Financial habilities are derecognised from the Group s balance sheet
when the obligation specified In the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires

1 Availlable-for-sale investments

Equity investments intendad to be held for an indefinite perod are
classified as avallable-for-sale investments They are carried at fair
value, where this can be reliably measured with movements in fair value
recognised directly in the available-fer-sale reserve Where the farr value
cannot be reliably measured the investment i1s carried at cost

Any impairment losses in equity nvestments classified as avallable-
for-sale investments are recognised in the iIncome statement and are
not revarsible through the Income statement, and are determined
with referenca to the closing market share price at the balance sheet
date Any subsequent increase in the fair value of the avallable-for-
sale investment above the mpaired value will be recognised within the
avallable-for-sale reserve

Avallable-for-sale Investments are Included within non-current assets
unless the carrying value 1s expected to be recovered principally
through sale rather than continuing use in which case they are
ncluded within current assets On disposal, the difference between
the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration receved and
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

any cumulative gain or loss that had previously been recognised
directly in reserves I1s recogrised inthe income statement

n Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and, where no stated interest rate Is
applicable are measured at the onginal Invoice amount, If the effect
of discounting s Immaterial Where discounting 1s material, trade and
other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
nterest methed An allowance aceount 1s maintained to reduce the
carrying value of trade and other receivables for impairment losses
identified from objective evidence with movements inthe allowance
account erther from Increased impairment losses or reversals of
impairment losses, being recognised in the income statement

m Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand bank accounts
deposits recevable on demand and deposits with maturity dates of
three months or less from the date of inception Bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and which form an integral part of the
Group's cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents where offset conditions are met

v Short-term deposits

This Includes short-term deposits which have matunty dates of more
than three months from inception These deposits are Initially
recognised at farr value and then carried at amartised cost through
the iIncome staterment less any allowance for impairment losses

v Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are non-derivative financial iabihities and
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methoed
Trade and cther payables with no stated interest rate are measured
at the oniginal Invoice amount if the effect of discounting Is
immatenal

vi Borrowings

Borrowings are recorded as the proceeds recewved, net of direct Issue
costs Finance charges including any premium payable on settlement
or redemption and direct 1ssue costs are accounted for on an accruals
basis in the income statement using the effective Interest method
and are added to the carrying amount of the underlying instrument to
which they relate, to the extent that they are not settled in the period
inwhich they anse

1} Impairment

At each balance sheet date n accordance with IAS 36 Imparrment of
Assets’ the Group reviews the carrying amounts of all its assets
excluding inventories (see accounting policy g) non-current assets
classified as held for sale financial assets (see accounting poiicy h)
and deferred taxation (see accounting policy o) to determine whether
there is any Indication that any of those assets have suffered an
imparrment loss

Anirpatrment is recognised in the income statement whenever the
carrying amount of an asset or Its cash generating unit exceeds Its
recoverable amount Animparment of an investment ina joint
venture or associate 15 recognised within the share of profit from joint
ventures and associates The recoverable amount 1s the greater of net
seling price defined as the fair value less costs to sell, and value In

use In assessing vaiue In use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted totheir present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
risks specific to the asset Where 1tis not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs Imparment losses recognised in respect of cash generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to those units, and thento reduce the carrying amount of
other assets in the unit on a pro-rata basis

An mpairment loss for an Individual asset or cash generating unit will
be reversed If there has been a change 1n estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised and is only reversed to the extent that the asset's carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation If no impairment loss
had been recognised Impairment of goodwillis not reversed

D Provisions

Prowvisions are recognised when the Group has a probable present
legal or constructive obligation to make a transfer of economic
benefits as aresult of past events where areliable estimate 1s
avallable The amounts recognised represent the Groups best
estimate of the transfer of benefits that will be required to settle the
obligation as of the balance sheet date Provisions are discounted if
the effect of the time value of money is matenal using a pre-tax
market rate adjusted for nisks specific to the lability

k) ESOP reserve

Where the Company or Its subsidianies purchase the Company’s own
aquity shares the cost of those shares, including any attributable
transaction costs, is presented within the ESOP reserve as a
deduction inshareholders equity in the consolidated financial
statements

1) Revenue recognition

Revenue, which excludes value added tax and transactions between
Group companies represants the gross inflow of economic benefit
from Sky's operating actvities The Group's main sources of revenue
are recognised as follows

> Retail subscription revenue, including subscriptions for TV services,
Sky Broadband and Sky Talk services, 1s recognised as the goods or
services are provided, net of any discount given Pay-per-view
revenue Is recognised when the event or movie 1s viewed

> Wholesale revenue 15 recognised as the services are provided to
cable and other retallers and s based on the number of subscnibers
taking the Sky channels as reported to the Group by the cable and
other retallers, and the applicable rate card or contract

> Advertising sales revenue is recogrised when the advertising s
broadcast Revenue generated from artime sales where Sky acts as
an agent on behalf of third parties 1s recognised onanet
commission basis

> Installation hardware and service revenue is recognised in the
income statement when the goods and services are activated

> Other revenue principally includes income from Sky Bet technical
platform services third party set-top box sales, public access Wik
services and programme distribution fees With the exception of
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Sky Bet revenue other revenue Is recognised net of any discount
given, when the relevant goods or service are provided Sky Bet
revenue Is recognised in accordance with IAS 39 and represents
income In the period for betting and gaming activities defined as
amounts staked by customers less winnings paid out

Revenue Is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
recevable When the Group sells a set-top box, installation or service
and a subscription in one bundled transaction, the total consideration
from the arrangement 15 allocated to each element based on thetr
relattve fair values The fair value of each individual element 1s
determined using vendor specific or third party evidence The amount
of revenue the Group recognises for delivered elements is hrmited to
the cash received

m) Employee benefits

Wages, salaries, sacial security contributions bonuses payable and
non-monetary benefits for current employees are recognised Inthe
income statement as the employeeas’ services are rendered

The Group prowides pensions to eligible employees through defined
contnbution schemes The amount charged to the iIncome statement
i1 the year represents the cost of contributions payable by the Group
to the schemes in exchange for employee services rendered in that
year The assets of the schemes are held iIndependently of the Group

Termination benefits are recognised as a hability when and only when
the Group has a demonstrable commitment to terminate the
employment of an employee or group of employees before the normal
retirement date or as the result of an offer to encourage voluntary
redundancy

The Group I1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
employees which must be measured at fair value and recognised as an
expense in the Income statement, with a corresponding increase in
equity The fair values of these payments are measured at the dates
of grant using option-pricing madels, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the awards are granted The farr value is
recognised over the period during which employees become
unconditionally entitled to the awards subject tothe Groups
estimate of the number of awards which will be forfeited, either due to
employees leaving the Group prior to vesting or due to non-market
based performance conditions not being met Where an award has
market-based performance conditions the farr value of the award 1s
adjusted for the probability of achieving these via the option pricing
mede! The total amount recognised in the income statement as an
expense 1s adjusted to reflect the actual number of awards that vest,
except where farfeiture 1s due to the failure to meat market-based
performance measures In the event of a cancellation whether by the
Group or by a parttapating employee, the compensation expense that
would have been recognised over the remainder of the vesting periad
18 recognised iImmediately in profit or loss

n) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the asset to thelessee All other leases are classified as
operating leases

When the Group 1s a lessor sub-lease income from operating leases 1s
recogrised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease

When the Group s a lessee, assets held under finance leases are
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value on the date of
acquisition, or, If lower at the present value of the minimum lease
payments The corresponding liability to the lessor 15 included inthe
balance sheet as a finance lease obligation

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reductions of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remarming balance of the lability

The lease expense ansing from operating leases s charged to the
Incame statement on a straight-line basis cver the term of the lease
Benefits received and recevable as incentives to enter into operating
leases are recorded on a stratght-line basis over the lease term

o) Taxation, Including deferred taxation

The Group s habilicy for current taxis based on taxable profit for the
year and (s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax assets and habilities are recognised using the balance
sheet lliability method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and labilities in the balance sheet and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit Temporary differences ansing from goodwill and the initial
recognition of assets or labilities that affect neither accounting profit
nor taxable profit are not provided for Deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for taxable temporary differences anising on Investments
in subsidizries and assocates and interests in joint ventures, except
where the Group 1s able to contrad the reversal of the temporary
difference and it Is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax
provided 1s based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and habilities, using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date

The carrying amount, of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted toreflect an amount that 1s
probable to be realised based on the weight of all available evidence
Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to applyin
the period when the liability 1s settled or the asset 1s realised
Deferred tax assets and labihties are not discounted Deferred tax is
charged or credited in the iIncome statement, except where it relates
toitems charged or credited directly to equity in which case the
deferred tax s also included withinequity Deferred tax assets and
habilities are offset when there is alegally enforceable night to set off
current tax assets against current tax habilities and when they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty and the Group
intends to settle 1ts current tax assets and liabrlities on a net basis

p) Distributions te equity shareholders

Dwidends are recognised in the retained earnings reserve in the year
inwhich they are declared

The cost of repurchasing the Group's own equity shares for
cancellation {"share buy-backs™) s recorded inretained earnings in
addition, the nominal cost of shares repurchased s deducted from
share capital and a matching credit 1s recorded in the capital
redemption reserve
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
q) Earnings per share

Basic earnings or loss per share represents the profit or loss for the
year, divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
1ssue during the year excluding the weighted average number of
ordinary shares purchased by the Group and held i1 the Group's ESOP
during the year to satisfy employee share awards

Diluted earnings cr loss per share represents the profit or loss for the
year, divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares n
issue during the year, excluding the weighted average number of
ordinary shares purchased by the Group and held in the Group's ESOP
during the year to satisfy employee share awards plus the weighted
average number of dilutive shares resulting from share options where
the inclusion of these would not be antidilutive

r) Foralgn currency translation

The Group s presentational currency 1s pounds sterling Trading
activities denominated i forergn currencies are recorded in pounds
sterling at the applicable monthly exchange rates Monetary assets,
habilities and commitments denominated in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are reported at the rates of exchange at that
date Mon-monetary assets and llabilities denominated in fereign
currencies are translated to pounds sterling at the exchange rate
prevailing at the date of the inrbal transaction Gains and losses from
the retranslation of assets and labilities are included net in profit for
the year, except for exchange differences arising on non-rmonetary
assets and liabilities where the changes in fair vatue are recognised
directly in equity

The assets and habilities of the Group's foreign operations are
translated at exchange rates prevailling on the balance sheet date
Income and expense Items are translated at the applicable monthly
average exchange rates Any exchange differences ansing are
classified as equity and transferred to other reserves

s) Reportable segments

IFRS B “Operating Segments” requires the segment information
presented in the financial statements to be that which i1s used
internally by the chief operating decision maker to evaluate the
performance of the business and decide how to allocate resources
The Group has wentified the Board of Directors as 1ts chief operating
decision maker and as the internal reporting reviewed by the Board
focuses on the operations of the Group as a whole and does not
identify individual operating segments, the Group has only one
reportable segment

t) Accounting Standards, interpretations and amendments to
existing standards that are not yet effective

The Group has not yet adopted certain new standards, amendments
and interpretations to existing standards which have been published
but are only effective for our accounting periods beginning on or after
1 July 2013 or later periods These new pronouncements are hsted
below

> IFRS10 ' Consolidated Financiai Statements” (effective 1 January
2013)
> IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements® {effective 1 January 2013)

2 IFRS 12 “Disdlosure of Interests in Other Entities” (effective 1 January
2013)

> IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” (effective 1 January 2013)

> Amendments tolAS 19 "Employee Benefits” (effective 1 January
2013)

> Amendments to 1AS 27 “Separate Financial Statements” (effective
1January 2013)

> Amendments to 1AS 28 "Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures” (effective 1January 2013)

> Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financal Liabilities” (effective
1 January 2013)

> Amendments to IFRS10 IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 “Consolidated Financial
Statements Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities Transition Guidance” (effective 1 January 2013)

> Amendments to IAS 36 Imparrment of Assets” (effective 1 January
2014y

> Amendments to IAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments Presentation
- Offsetting Finanaial Assets and Financal Liabilibes” (effective
1January 2014)

> Amendments to IAS 39 “Finanaal Instruments Recognition and
Measurement - Novation of Derwvatives and Centinuation of Hedge
Accounting” (effective 1January 2014)

> IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (effective 1 January 2015)

The Directors are currently evaluating the impact of the adeption of
these standards, amendments and interpretations in future penods

u) Critical accounting policies and the use of judgement

Certain accounting palicies are considered to be critical to the Group
An accounting policy 1s considered to be critical If in the Directors
Judgement, its selection or apphcation matenally affects the Groups
financial position cr resulfts Below s a summary of the Groups critical
accounting policies and detalls of the key areas of jJudgement that are
exercised in ther application

| Revenue (see note 2)

Selecting the appropriate timing for, and amount of, revenue to be
recognised requires judgement This may involve estimating the fairr
value of consideration before it 1s received When the Group sells a
set-top box Installation or service and a subscription in one bundled
transaction the total consideration from the arrangement 1s
allocated to each element based on its relative fair value The fair
value of each individual element 1s determined using vendor specific
or third party evidence The amount of revenue the Group recognises
for delivered elements 1s imited to the cash receved

u Taxation, mcluding deferred taxation (see notes 7 and 15)

The Group's tax charge Is the sum of the total current and deferred
tax charges The calculation of the Group s total tax charge
necessarily involves a degree of estimation and judgernent in respect
of certain iterns whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined
until reselution has been reached with the relevant tax authority or, as
appropnate through a formal legal process

Provisions for tax contingencies require management to make
Judgements and estimates In relation to tax audit 1ssues and
exposures Amounts provided are based on management’s
interpretation of country-specific tax law and the kelihood of
settlement Taxbenefits are not recognised unless it 1s probable that
the tax positions will be sustaimed Once considered to be probable
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management reviews each material tax benefit to assess whether a
provision should be taken aganst full recognition of the benefit on
the basis of the likely resolution of the 1ssue through negotiation and/
or ltigation

The amounts recognised In the consolidated financial statements in
respect of each matter are derived from the Group's best estimation
and judgement, as described above However the inherent
uncertainty regarding the outcome of these items means the eventual
resolution coutd differ fram the provision and in such event the Group
would be required te make an adjustment In a subsequent period
which could have a material impact on the Group's profit and loss and/
or cash position

The key area of judgement in respect of deferred tax accounting 1s the
assessment of the expected timing and manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amaunts of assets and liabilities held at
the balance sheet date In particular, assessment s required of
whether 1t 1s probakle that there will be suitable future taxable profits
against which any deferred tax assets can be utilised

m Goodwill (see note 10)

Judgement is required in determining the fair value of identifiable
assets, labilities and contingent assets and hatshties assumed ina
business combination and the fair value of the consideration payable
Calculating the farr values involves the use of significant estimates
and assumptions including expectations about future cash flows,
discount rates and the lives of assets following purchase

Judgement 15 also required inidentifying the cash generating units to
whuch the goodwill 1s associated for the purposes of goodwill
impairment testing Identification of cash generating units involves an
assessment of whether assets or groups of assets generate cash
flows that are largely Indepeandent of other assets or groups of
assets Goodwillis then allocated to each identified cash generating
unit that I1s expected to benefit from the synergies of the business
combinations from which goodwill has arisen

v Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment (see notes
1 and12)

The assessment of the useful economic lives of these assets requires
judgement Depreciation and amortisation 1s charged to the income
statement based on the useful economic Iife selected This
assessment requires estimation of the period over which the Group
wiil benefit from the assets

Determining whether the carrying amount of these assets has any
indication of Impairment also requires judgement If an indication of
imparrment I1s entified, further jJudgement is required to assess
whether the carrying amount can be suppaorted by the net present
value of future cash flows forecast to be derived from the asset This
forecast involves cash flow projections and selecting the appropriate
discount rate

Assessitig whether assets meet the required cnitenia for initial
capitahsation requires judgement This requires a determination of
whether the assets will result in future benefits to the Group In
particular internally generated intangible assets must be assessed
during the development phase toidentify whether the Group has the
abiity and intention to cornplete the development successfully

v Programming inventory for broadcast {(see note 16)
The key area of accounting for programming inventory for broadcast
that requires Judgernent 1s the assessment of the approprate profile

over which to amortise general entertainment programming. This
assessment requires the Group to form an expectation of the number
of times a programme will be broadeast and the relative value
assoctated with each broadcast In order to perform this assessment
the Group considers the following factors

> The period over which the pragramme i1s expected to be shown on
the Groups channels This is usually based on a combination of the
actual peried specified In the contract for the programme nghts
and the initial expectation of when repeat broadcasts willbe
scheduled

> The alternative programming avallable to the Group for scheduling
within this period This consideration provides the most appropriate
information in order to estimate how frequently individual
programmes will be shown during the period in which the Group
holds therr broadcast nights

> The potential benefits associated with scheduling programming
Certain hugh-profile or high-quality programming utles have
additional value to the Group, as they attract new TV customers
and encourage retention of exsting TV customers As such, these
programmes are able toretain more value throughout their
broadcast runs than would be indicated when considering the
expected viewing numbers alone

> Expectations as to the number of viewers a programme Is likely to
achieve for each individual broadcast over the contractual
broadcast period The number of iewers per broadcast directly
influences advertising revenue for channels although this
consideration 1s partly influenced by the Group s assessment of the
potential impact of the publicly avallable information onits
competitors scheduling intentions against planned hroadcasts
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

2 REVENUE

2013 22

£m £m

Retail subscription 5931 5593
Wholesale subscrption 396 351
Advertising 440 440
Installation hardware and service 87 o8
Other 361 309
7,235 6,791

Revenue anses from goods and services provided to the UK with the exception of £461million (2012 £418 milllon) which arises from services

provided to other countries

3. OPERATING EXPENSE
203 2012
£m Em
Programming 2487 2298
Pirect networks 686 676
Marketing m7? 1064
Subscriber management and supply chamn 673 621
Transmission technology and fixed networks 405 395
Admnistration 576 494
5944 5548

Included within operating expenses for the year ended 30 June 2013 are
«+ Creditof £32 million relating to a credit note received following an Ofcom determination This cred it has beenrecogrised within direct networks

+ Credit of £33 midlon refating to the final settiement of disputes with a former manufacturer of set-top boxes net of assouated costs and ncluding animpairment of E6 milhon i

relation to associated intangible assats This credit has been recogrised within subscriber management and supply chain
Costs of £31 millionrelating to the one off upgrade of set-top boxes The costs have been recogmised within subseniber management and supply chain

Costs of £25 million relating to & programme to offer wirelass connectors to selected Sky Movies customers The casts have been recognised within subscniber management and

supply chain

Costs of £15 million relating to the acquisition and integration of the 02 consumer broadband and fixed-ine telephony business Including amortisation of E4 million in refauon to

associated intangible assets The costs have baen recognised as follows
- E3millonwithindirect networks

- E2 million within subscriber management and suppty chain

- E3 millon within transmission, technology and fixed netwoerks

= £7 miilion within administraton

Costs of £33 milion relating to a corporate efficency programme inch:ding an impairment of £6 million inrefation to asscaated intangible and tangible assets The costs have been

reccgrused as follows

- E29 million within admimstration

- £1 milion withen programming

- £1miliron within marketing

- Elmittonwithin subsariber management and supply chan

- E1 milllonwithin transmission, technology and fixed networks
Included within operating expenses for the year ended 30 June 2012 are

« Credit of £31 milion relating to the News Corporation (subsequently renamed Twenty-First Century Fox Inc)proposal in201 consisting of costs icurred offset by the recerpt of

the break fee This credit has been recognised withuin administration

Costs of £11million which comprise severance payments relating to approximataly 35 senior roles as part of a restruetuning initiative to improve operating efficiency The costs have

beenrecogrised within administration

[
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4. INVESTMENT INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS

2013 2012
£m £m
Investment income
Interest oncash cash equivalents and short-term deposits 9 14
Dmdends receved from available-for-sale investments 19 4
28 18
2013 2012
£m £m
Finance costs
- Interest payable and similar charges
E743 mullion/E750 mullion Revolving Credit Faailities (*RCF)? (&) 8
Guaranteed Notes (see note 20} (122) {115}
Finance lease interest (7) 7
(131) (30
- Other finance Income (expense)
Remeasurement, of borrowings and borrowings-related derivative finanaial instruments (not qualifying for hedge accounting) 22 20
Remeasurement of other derivative financial Instruments (not qual fying for hedge accounting) Q)] -
(Loss) gain arising on derivatives in a designated farr value hedge agcounting relationship (34) 47
Gain (Joss) ansing on adjustment for hedged item in a designated fair value hedge accounting relattonship 36 (48)
23 19
(108) Q1)

() Included in RCF costs for the year ended 30 June 2012 1s awnite-off of E5 million relating to the faciity fee on the £750 miflion RCF wiuch has now beenreplaced with the
£743 million RCF (see note 20)

Borrowing costs included in the cost of qualfying assets duning the year arose on the general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a
capitalisation rate of 5 2% (2012 5 4%) to expenditure on such assets The amount capitalised inthe current year amounted to £2 million (2012
£1 milhor)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation 1s stated after charging

2013 2012
£m £m
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 1962 1854
Depreciation and impawrment of property plant and equipment 176 179
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 202 165
Rentals on operating leases and sirmilar arrangements =l 50
Ceonsolidated non-current assets outside the UKwere E8 million (2012 £2 million)
Foreign exchange
Foreign exchange losses recogrised Inthe Income statement during the year amounted to £1 million (2012 gains of £2 million)
Audit fees
An analysis of auditor's remuneration is as follows
2013 2012
£m Em
Total audit fees 1 1
Total non-audit fees 1 1
Total auditor remuneration 2 2

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts were £12 million (2012 £11 million) and fees payable to
the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant te legislation were £01mullion (2012 £0 3 milion)

Armounts paid to the auditor for non-audit fees include audit related serwices of £0 3 millon (2012 £0 3 million) taxation services of £0 3 million
(2012 £0 3mullior) other assurance services of £0 3 million (2012 £01million) other adwisory services of nik (2012 £0 1 million) and transaction
services of £0 2 milhon (2012 nl)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

6. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND KEY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION

a) Group employee benefits -
2013 2012
£Em £m
Wages and salanes ' 781 687
Social secunty costs 101 78
Costs of employee share option schemes™ 80 66
Contributions to the Group s pension schemes™ 27 26
988 857

) An£B0 milioncharge relates to equity settled share based payments (2012 £66 millien charge)

(1) The Group opsrates dafined contribution pension schemes The pension charge for the year represents the cost of contributions payable by the Group to the schemes dunng the

year The amounit payable to the schemas by the Group at 30 June 2013 was £2 rrillion (2012 £5 mallion)

The average monthly number of full-time equivalent persons (including temporary employees) employed by the Group during the year was as

follows
2013 2012
Number Number
Channels and services 2701 2,466
Customer service sales and marketing 1n943 1087
Transmission and technology . 3651 3204
Management and administration ins 1180
19,413 17,937

There are approximately 523 (2012 506) temporary staff included within the average number of ful-time equivalent persons employed by the

Group

b) Key management compensation (see hote 28d)

2013 2012

£m £m

Short-term employee benefits 6 6
Share-based payments 10 7
16 13

Post-employment benefits were less than £1million (2012 less than £1 millon) The amounts disclosed for key management compensation are

ncluded within the disclosures in note 6(a)

7. TAXATION
a) Taxation recognised in the income statement

2013 2012

£m Em

Current tax expense
Current year 332 303
Adjustment in respect of prior years (44 (33)
Total current tax charge 288 270
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 20y 6
Adjustment In respect of pnior years 10 7
Total deferred tax (credit) charge (10} 13
Taxation 278 283

Taxation relates to a £27% milion UK corporation tax charge (2012 £280 milion) and £3million overseas corperation tax charge (2012 £3 millhory

b) Taxation recogrised directly in equity ’
2013 2012
£m £m
Current tax credit relating to share-based payments 2 (4
Deferred tax (credit) charge relating to share-based payments (6) 24
Deferred tax (credit) charge relating to cash flow hedges 8) 16
(26) 26
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) Reconcillation of effective taxrate

The tax expense for the year 1s fower (2012 lower) than the expense that would have been charged using the blended rate of corporation tax in
the UK (23 75%) applied to profit before tax The applicable enacted or substantively enacted effective rate of UK corporation tax for the year
was 23 75% (2012 25 5%) The differences are explained below

2013 2012
£m Em
Profit before tax 1257 1189
Profit before tax multiplied by blended rate of corporation tax in the UK of 23 75% (2012 25 5%) 299 303
Effects of
Net effect of non-taxable/non-deductible itermns 13 3
Ceferred tax wnte-off following tax rate change - 2
Adjustments in respect of pror years (34) @5)
Taxation 278 283
8 EARNINGS PER SHARE
The weighted average number of shares for the year was
2013 2012
Millons of  Millions of
shares shares
Ordinary shares 1633 1731
ESOP trust ordinary shares 9) 0y
Basic shares 1614 1721
Dilutive ordinary shares from share options 26 16
Diluted shares ! 1640 1,737

The calculation of diluted earrings per share excludes no share options (2012 less than1 milhon) which could potentially dilute earnings per
share In the future, but which have been excluded from the calculation of dituted earnings per share as they are anti-dilutive in the year

Basic and diluted earrings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year into the weighted average number of shares for the year
In order to provide a measure of underlying performance, management have chosen to present an adjusted profit for the year whuch excludes
items that may distort comparabilty Such items arise from events or transactions that Fall within the ordinary actiwaties of the Group but
which management believes should be separately identified to help explain undertying performance

2013 2012
Em £m
Reconaliation from profit for the year to adjusted profit for the year
Profit for the year 979 06
Credit received following final settlement of disputes with a former manufacturer of set-top boxes (see note 3) (33 -
Costs relating to a corporate efficency programme (see note 3) 33 -
Credit received following an Ofcom determination (see note 3) 32y -
Costsrelating to one-off upgrade of set-top boxes (see note 3} Ell -
Costs relating to programme to offer wireless connectors to selected Sky Movies customers (see note 3) 25 -
Costs relating to the acquisition and integration of the O2 consumer breadband and fixed-line telephony
business (see note 3) 15 -
Net recovery of costs in relation to News Corporation (subsequently renamed Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc) proposal
(see note 3) - 31
Costs relating to a restructunng exeraise (see note 3) - n
RCF fee write-of f (see note 4) - 5
Remeasurement of all denivative financial instruments not qualifying for hedge accounting and hedge
ineffectiveness (see note 4) (23) )]
Profit on disposal of joint venture (see note 13) ()] 7
Tax adjusting items and the tax effect of above items {17 10
Adjusted profit for the year 969 B75
2013 2012
pence pence
Earnings per share from profit for the year
Basic 607p 526p
Diluted 597p 522p
Adjusted earnings per share from adjusted profit for the year
Basic 600p 508p
Diluted S581p 504p
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued
9. DIVIDENDS
2013 2012
£m Em
Dvidends declared and paid during the year
2011 Final dividend paid 14 54p per ordinary share - 253
2012 Intenm dvidend pard 9 20p per ordinary share - 157
2012 Final dwvidend paid 16 20p per ordinary share 265 -
2013 Interim diwidend paid 11 0Cp per ordinary share 176 -
. 441 410

The 2013 final dividend proposed I1s 19 O pence per ordinary share being £299 million The dividend was not declared at the balance sheet date
and is therefore not recognised as a hability as at 30 fune 2013

Dividends are pard between Group companies out of profits available for distnibution subject to inter alia, the provisions of the companies
articles of association and the Companies Act 2006 The ESOP has waived its nghts to dividends

10 GOODWILL

£m
Carrying value
At 1July 20m Q44
Purchase of Acetrax AG 12
At 30 June 2012 956
Purchase of 02 consumer broadband and fixed-line telephony business 49
Other (6)
At 30 June 2013 999

Goodwill has principally arisen from the Group s purchases of the Sports Internet Group (*SIG %), British Interactive Broadcasting ("BIB™)
Easynet s UK broadband network assets and residential activities, 365 Media, Amstrad, Living TV The Cioud and the O2 consumer broadband
and fixed-line telephcny business

Goodwill allocated by cash generating unit, 1s analysed as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

Broadcast® 850 BO7
Betting and gaming™ 149 149
999 956

Impairment reviews were performed on these goodwill balances at 30 June 2013 which did not indicate impairment
The Broadcast unit includes intangtbles with indefinite lives of £25 milhon (2012 £25 million)

Recoverable amounts for the cash generating units were calculated on the basis of value in use or far value less costs to seltas appropriate,
using cash flows calculated for the next five years as forecast by management Along-term growth rate of 3% was applied in order to
extrapolate cash flow projections beyond this period The cash flows of the Broadcast unit were discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of
8% (2012 8%) and the cash flows of the Betting and gaming unit were discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 10% (2012 8%)

In determining the applicable discount. rate management appled jJudgement in respect of several factors, which included inter ala assessing
the nisk attached to future cash flows and making reference to the capital asset pricing model (the "CAPM™) Management gave consideration
to the selection of appropriate Inputs to the CAPM which included the risk free rate the equity nsk premium and a measure of systematic risk
Management also considers capital structure and an appropriate cost of debt in arriving at the discount rate

i} Broadcast

The Broadcast unit ncludes goodwill ansing from the purchase of BIB, Easynet's UK broadband network assets and residential activities

365 Medias content activities, Amstrad Living TV, The Cloud and the O2 consumer broadband and fixed-line telephony business The key
assumptions, on which forecast five year cash flows of the Broadcast urit were based include the number of gross customer additions the
rate of churn the average revenue per user levels of programming spend acquisition costs per customer and antiGipated changes in the
product mix and marketing mix of the broadcast actwvities The values assigned to each of these assumptions were determined based on the
extrapolation of historical trends within the Group and external information on expected future trends in the UK and Ireland entertainment
and communications industry

i) Betting and gaming

The Betting and gamung unit iIncludes goodwill ansing from the purchase of SIG and 365 Media s betting activities The key assumptions onwhich
forecast five year cash flows were based include the number of weekly unique users, the number of bets placed per user per week the average
stake per user per week and the average spend per active user per week The values assigned to each of these assumptions were determined
based on an extrapolation of historical trends within the urnt and external information on expected future trends in betting and gaming.
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T1. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Internally
generated Acquired
Software Customer intangible intangible
internally development contracts assets assets
generated (external) and related Other not yet not yat
intangible  and software customer intangible avalable available
assets hcences  relationships assets for use for use Total
£m £m Em Em Em £m £m
Cost
AL 1 July 2013 214 435 60 183 26 92 1010
Additions from business combinations - 3 - 1 - - 4
Additions 45 33 - 57 56 3 222
Disposals (35) (64) - (7 - - (116)
Transfers 28 20 - - (28} (20} -
At 30 June 2012 252 427 B0 224 54 103 1120
Additions from business combinations - - 137 2 ¢ - . - 139
Additions 102 45 - 66 25 20 258
Disposals {15) (6) - - (2) (6] (30)
Transfers 47 59 - - 47) (59) -
At 30 June 2013 386 525 197 292 30 57 1487
Amortisation
AL1 July 2001 103 320 5 ne - - 548
Amortisation 54 52 3 56 - - 165
Disposals . {35) (64) - a7y - - (16}
At 30 June 2012 122 308 g9 158 = - 597
Amortisation 72 55 7 57 - - 191
Disposals (i5) (6) - - 2 ! (&) (30}
Impairments 2 - - - 2 7 1n
At 30 June 2013 i3 357 16 215 - - 769
Carrying amounts
AT July 201 m 15 54 654 26 92 462
At 30 June 2012 130 ne 5 65 54 103 523
At 30 June 2013 205 168 181 7 30 57 718

In order te improve the presentation of the Group's Intangible assets “Customer contracts and related customer relationships have been
disaggregated from the "Other intangible assets” category and * Software licences” have been aggregated with the “Software development
(external)’ category The prior year comparatives have been re-presented accordingly

The Group's Internally generated intangible assets relate to software development associated with our customer management systerms and
set-top boxes The Group's other Intangible assets manly nclude copyright licences customer hists and relationships connection fees and
patents and brands acquired in business cembinations

The estimated future amortisation charge on intangible assets with finite hves for each of the next five years is set out below its likely that
future amortisation wilt vary from the figures below as the estimate does not include the impact of any future Investments, disposals or capital
expenditure

204 2075 2016 2017 2018
£m Em £m fm £m
Estimated amertisation charge 235 162 m 50 44

For intangible assets acquired in business combinations in the year the average amortisation pened 1s 6 years (2012 9 years)

Other intangible assets Include certain assets with indefinite useful lives The carrying value of these assets s £25 million (2012 £25 milhony
An impalirment review of the assets I1s performed annually as part of the Group's review of the Breadcast CGU (note 10)
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)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Equipment, Assats
Freshold furniture not yet
land and Leasehold and available
buldings®™®  improvements fixtures for use Totat
Em £m £Em £m Em
Cost
At 1 July 201 332 59 1139 30 1560
Foreign exchange movements - - m - m
Additions - 1 192 38 231
Disposals - m (160) - aan
Transfers 1 - 40 [C3))] -
At 30 June 2012 333 59 1,210 27 1,629
Additions from business combinations - - 25 - 25
Addrtions 1 1 134 48 244
Disposals , ' - @) (64) - (66
Transfers - - 22 228 -
At 30 June 2013 334 58 1,387 53 1832
Depreciation }
AL1 July 201 3 22 611 - 664
Foreign exchange movements - - (1> - {n
Depreciation 10 6 163 - 175
Disposals Q)] ( {159 - (1en
At 30 June 2012 40 27 614 - 681
Depreciation [ 8 160 - 174
Disposals - 2 {64} - (66)
Impairments - 1 1 - 2
At 30 June 2013 46 34 1 - 7N
Carrying amounts ,
At 1 July 201 30 37 528 30 896
At 30 June 2012, 293 ° 3z 596 27 948
At 30 June 2013 288 24 676 53 1,041

(3 The amounts shown Include assets hald under finance leases with a net baok value of 13 millien (2012 £5million) The cost of these assets was £20 million {2012 £11 milkor) and tha
accumulated depreciation was E7 million (2012 £6 rmihon) Depreaation charged duning the year on such assets was £1milion (2012 £1million)
() Depraciation was notcharged on £88 millicn of land (2012 £88 millior)

13. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

Alist of the Group's significant nvestments in Joint ventures and assoaates Including the name country of incorporation and proportion of
ownership Interest 1s given 1n nate 31 to the consolidated financial statements

The movement In joint ventures and associates during the year was as follows

2013 2012
£m £m

Share of net assets
AL July 156 151
Movement in net assets
- Funding net of repayments 4 53
- Dividends received® @3) (39)
- Share of profits® 46 39
- Disposal of joint venture’™ m (3)
- Exchange differences on translation of foreign joint ventures and associates 2 2
At 30 June 164 156

() Duringtheyear the Group disposed of 1ts Interest INMUTY Limited Included nshare of profits for the yearisa prefitondisposal of £9 milbon Consideration receved onthe sale
of £10 millior 1s included within dividends receved During the prior year the Group disposed of its interest n Chelsea Dipital Media Limited Included in share of profits for the
year s a profit on disposal of £7 milkon Consideration recenved on the saie to date of £6 million is ncluded within dividends received

The Group's share of any capital commitments and cantingent liabilities of assoaiates and joint ventures 1s shown innote 26
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a) Investments in joint ventures
Representing the Group's share of each jomnt venture

2013 2012
£Em £m
Mon-current assets 19 29
Current assets 7 75
Current labilities (32) (32}
MNon-current hablities 40 (45)
Shareholders equity 18 26
Revenue =0 84
Expense 70) 69
Taxation (5) [CY)
Share of profit from joint ventures 15 n
b) tnvestments inassociates
Representing a 100% share of each associate
2013 2012
£m Em
Total assets 308 256
Total habilties (86) (78)
Shareholders'equity 222 178
Revenue® 325 296
Profit® 07 105
{) Revenue and profit numbers are provided for the full year ended 30 fune 2013 and 30 Juna 2012
14, AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
2013 2012
£m £m
Investment i ITV at cost Q46 946
impairment of ITV iInvestment. (807) (807
Realised gain on [TV Investment ns 115
Part disposal of ITV investment (196) (196)
Unrealised gan on ITV investment 351 165
Fair value of ITV investment 409 223
Otherinvestments at cost 13 5
- 422 228

On 17 November 2006, the Group acquired 696 million shares in 1TV, at a price of 135 pence per share, representing 179% of the issued capital of
ITV, for a total consideration of £946 millon including fees and taxes The Group's Investment In TV is carried at fair value

The fair value 1s determined with reference to Its equity share price at the balance sheet date In accordance with 1FRS, the Group has

recognised impairment losses in the years ended 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2009, the first of which was recorded at 31 December 2007 due
to the significant and prolonged dechne in the equity share price The latest impairment loss was deterrmined with reference to ITV's closing
equity share price of 20 0 pence at 27 March 2009 bringing the cumulative imparment loss toe £807 milhon In line with IFRS, all subsequent
increases In the fair value of the ITV investment above this iImpaired value have been recorded in the available-for-sale reserve

On 8 February 2010 the Group placed a shareholding of 10 4% in ITV In accordance with the final undertakings given by the Group to the

Secretary of State for Business Innovation and Skills relating to the Group s investment in 1TV The placing by the Group of 404 362 Q95 ITV
shares at 48 5 pence per share resulted in aggregate consideration of £196 million A profit of £1i5 millior was realised on disposal being the

excess of the consideration above the impaired value of the shares The Group continues to hold jJust under 75% of the shares In ITV

The disposal was exempt from tax under the provisions of the Substantial Shareholding Exernption (SSE) and as such the SSE provisions
prevent any capital loss ansing for tax purposes

The Group holds certain unquoted equity Investments that are carried at cost less impairment The fair value of these investments 1s not
considered to differ significantly from thetr carrying value
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued
15. DEFERRED TAX
i) Recognised deferred tax assets (Liabilities)
Share based Financial
Accelerated Short-term payments Instruments
tax temporary temporary temporary
depreciation Tax losses differences differences differences Total
Em £m Em Em Em Em
AL Juby 20Mm 14 1 6 58 [¢l1)] &9
Charge to income m - - (®) (%) 2)
Credit to equity - - - (23} (18) [C1))
Acquisition of subsidiaries m - - - - (O]
Effect of change in tax rate
- Income - - - 2) 1 w
- Equity - - - ) 2 1
At 30 June 2012 12 1 6 26 (30) 15
(Charge) credit toincome (2) n - 18 (5) 10
Credit to equity - - - 6 18 24
Acquisition of subsidiaries 12) - - - - (12)
Effect of change Intax rate
~ Income 1 - M m 1 -
At 30 June 2013 (U] - 5 49 (16) 37

Deferred tax assets have been recognised at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012 on the basis that frem management s current, forecast of the
Group s entities, it 1s probable that there will be suitable taxable profits against which these assets can be utilised Tax losses are treated as
unrecognised deferred tax assets If it 1s not considered probable that suitable future taxable profits will anse During the year any tax losses
suffered by UK entities have been relieved against taxable profits in other UK entities in the Group

Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which they reverse The rate
enacted or substantively enacted for the relevant penods of reversal is 23% as at 30 June 2013 (2012 24%)

The Government has indicated that it intends to introduce further reductions in the main tax rate with the rate faling by 2% to 21% on 1 Apnl
2014 and a further 1% to 20% on 1 April 2015 These further reductions to the taxrate below the 23% rate have not been substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date and are therefore not reflected in these consolidated financial statements

The impact of the reduction in the main tax rate to 21% (2012 22%) on the deferred tax attributes of the Group would be areductionin the
deferred tax asset of £3 millon (2012 £1 million)
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FISIAR T SSOU S

Certamn deferred tax assets and labilities have been offset The 16. INVENTORIES -
following i1s the analysts of the deferred tax balances (after{offset) for e g :
[n}
financral reporting purposes Em £m &
2013 2012 Telewision programme rights 470 Eric] %
£m £m Set-top boxes and related equipment 70 69 z
Deferred tax assets 70 46 Other inventones 8 8
Deferred tax habilities (33) (3 Cuirent inventory 548 456
37 15 Non-current programme distnbution nghts 17 -
Total inventory 565 4586 -
i1} Unrecognised deferred tax assats At 30 June 2013, 89% (2012 81%) of the television programme nghts 3
2013 2012 and 100% (2012 100%) of set-top boxes and related equipment and 3
£m em  otherinventories 1s expected to be recognised in the iIncome ?
Tax losses ansing from trading 2n 252 statement within12 months
Tax losses ansing from capital disposals and
provisiens against investments 323 341 17 TRADE AND OTHER RECE'VABLES
594 593 2013 2012
£Em £m =
Deferred tax assets have not beenrecognised inrespect of the items  Gross trade recevables 163 170 E:
above because It 1s not probable that future taxable profits will be Less provision forimpairment of recewvables (B9) 89 P
avallable against which the Group can utilise the losses Net trade receivables 74 81 £
Amounts receivable from joint ventures and a
At 30 June 2013, a deferred tax asset of £15 millon (2012 £14 millor))  associates 8 8 ‘3
principally ansing from UK losses in the Group, has not been Amounts recewvable from other related parties 7 12 4
recogrised These losses can only be offset against taxable profits Prepayments 309 294
generated In the entities concerned There I1s currently insufficient Accrued income 162 155
evidence to support the recognition of a deferred tax asset relatingto VAT i i :“
these losses The UK trading losses can be carried forward indefinitely  Other 30 70 3
Current trade and other recervables 591 621 3
At 30 June 2013 adeferred tax asset of £266 million (2012 £238 Prepayments 6 7 B
millery has not been recognised In respect of overseas trading losses  Otherreceivables n 10 :
ontha basis that it 1s not probable that these temporary differences  Nen-current trade and other recevables 7 17 2
wall be utiised These losses include £250 million (2012 £235millor)  Total trade and other recevables 608 638 3

with respect to the Group’s German holding company’s former
Investment i KirehPayTV and £6 million (2012 £3 million) with respect Included wathin current trade and other recenvables 1s il (2012 nn)
toother subsidiaries £2 million of the overseas trading losses canbe  Whichts duein more than one year

carried forward indefinitely and £4 milhon of the losses will expire over

The ageing of the Group's net trade receivables which are past due
the course of the next seven years

but not mpatred 15 as follows

At 30 June 2013, adeferred tax asset of £312 million (2012 £329

2013 2012
mullior) has not been recognised In respect of capital losses related to Em Em
the Group's former investrment N KirchPayTV on the basis that Up to 30 days past due date 52 49
utilisation of these temporary differences 1s not probable At 30June 30 to 60 days past due date 5 1
2013 the Group also has capital losses with a taxvalue estimated to 60 to 120 days past due date 2 2
be £11 milion (2012 £12 million) iIncluding impairment of a football club 59 52

and other investments which have not been recognised as a deferred

tax asset on the basis that it 1s not probable that they will be utiised  The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other

The capital losses can be carned forward indefinitely recevables approximates therr far values The Group 1s exposed to
credit nsk on its trade and other receivables, however the Group does
not have any significant concentrations of credit nsk, with exposure
spread over alarge number of counterparties and customers Trade
recevables prinaipally comprise amounts outstanding from
subscribers, advertisers and other customers

Provisions for doubtful debts

2013 2012

Em £m

Balance at beginning of year 89 195
Amounts utiised (26) (i37)

Prowvided during the year . 36 n

Balance at end of year 89 89
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2013 2012

£m £m

Trade payables® 712 629
Amounts owed tojoint ventures and assoclates g9 10
Amounts owed to other related parties 102 S0
VAT ‘ 143 140
Actruals 685 620
Deferred income 285 29
Other 77 75
Current trade and other payables 2,023 1,855
Trade payables 18 9
Amounts owed to otherrelated parties - 8
Deferred income 9 6
Other 36 4
Non-current trade and other payables 63 27
Total trade and other payables 2,086 1882

() Included within trade payables are E225 million (2012 £226 millon) of US dollar-denominated payables

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates their far values Trade payables prinapally
compnse amounts outstanding for programming purchases and ongotng costs

19 PROVISIONS

Provided

. AL Provided Utilisacl At Reclassified  (released) Utilised At
1luly during during 1duly duning during durning 30 June
20m the year the year 202 the year the year the year 2013
£Em Em Em £m £m £m Em £m

Current habiliies
Restructuring provision™ - 6 - 6 - 13 3 16
Acquired and acquisition-related provisions'™ n 4 - 15 M (¢C)] - -
Customer-related provisions’™ - - - - - 47 &) 41
Cther provisions™ 10 18 (@] 22 17 17 9 37
21 28 (6) 43 16 63 28y 94

Non-current habilities
Gther prowisions™ 9 7 &) 12 2 6 (8) 14

() These provisions significantly relate to costs incurred as part of a corporata efficiency programme

) These provisions arose on the acquisiien of Amstrad which took place during the year ended 30 June 2008

() These prowvisions are for those costs incurred i the one-off upgrade of set top roxes and the programme to of fer wireless connectors to selected Sky Movies customers

(V) Included in other provisions are ameunts provided for onerous contracts for property leases mantenance legal disputes and warranty labilities which have been reclassified to
provisions during the year The timing of the cash flows for onerous property leases and maintenance are dependent on the terms of the remaining leases The timing of the cash
ftows for legal disputes cannot be reasonably determined

) Included withinnon-current other provisions are amounts provided for onerous tontracts for property leases and maintenance The timing of the cash flows are dependent on
the terms of the leases but are expected to contuue up to September 2025

20. BORROWINGS
2013 2012
£m £m
Current borrowangs
Obligations under finance leases® n 8
Non-current borrowings
US$750 million of 5 625% Guaranteed Notes repayable 1n October 20150 496 500
£400 million of 5 750% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 20179 404 407
US$750 million of 6100% Guaranteed Notes repayable in February 2018™ 498 495
US$582 8 mill:on of 9 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in Movember 2018 ° 404 420
US$800 million of 3125% Guaranteed Notes repayable i November 20227 520 -
£300 million of 6 000% Guaranteed Notes repayable in May 20270 296 296
US$350 million of 6 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2035 225 220
Obligations under finance leases™ 66 &0
2909 2,398
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() Guaranteed Notes

At 30 June 2013 the Group had in1ssue the following Guaranteed Notes which were 1Ssued by the Company

Interest Rate Hedging

Hedged Interest Rates

Hedged
Value* Feed Floating
Em £m £m Fued Floating
US$750 million of 6100% Guaranteed Notes repayable in February 2018 387 290 97 6829% 6mLIBOP +1892%
LS$582 8 milion of 9 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable In
November 2018 389 260 129 7091% 6mMLISOR +5542%
US$800 millon of 3125% Guaranteed Notes repayable in November 2022 503 503 - 3 226% NIA
£300 million of 6 000% Guaranteed Notes repayable in May 2027 300 300 - 65000% IN/A
1579 1353 226

At 30 June 2013, the Group had in 1ssue the following Guaranteed Notes, which were issued by BSkyB Finance UK plc

Interest Rate Hedging Hedged Interest Rates
Hedged
Valua® Fixed Floating
Em £m Em Fixed Floating
US$750 million of 5 625% Guaranteed Notes repayable In October 2015 428 17 257 5427% 6mLIBOR + 0698%
£400 milion of 5 750% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2017 400 350 50 5750% 6mLIBOR-(0225%
US$350 million of & 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2035 200 200 - 5826% NiA,
1,028 721 307

At 30 June 2012, the Group had in1ssue the following Guaranteed Notes, which were 1ssued by the Company

Interest Rate Hedging

Hedged Interest Rates

Hedged
Value* Fixed Floating
Em £Em Em Fuxed Fioating
US$750 million of 6100% Guaranteed Notes repayable in February 2018 387 290 97 6829% 6mLIBOR +1892%
US$582 8 million of 9 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in November 2018 389 260 129 7091% 6mLIBOR +5542%
E3C0 mulion of 6 000% Guaranteed Notes repayable in May 2027 300 300 - 6000% N/A
1076 850 226

@ OnlJune 2012 the Group entered into forward starting interest rate swaps to fix the interest rates on E260 million of the Novernber 2018 notes from 15 May 2013 to 15 November
2018 The £260 million referred to as fixed in the table above had one further rate reset in November 2012 before this fixed rate became effectiva

At 30 June 2012, the Group had n 1ssue the following Guaranteed Notes, which were 1ssued by BSkyB Finance UK ple

Interest Rate Hedging

Hedged Interest Rates

Hedged
Value* Fixed Floatng
£m Em Em Fixed Floating
US$750 million of 5 625% Guaranteed Notes repayable 1n October 2015 428 171 257 5427% 6mLIBOR + 0 658%
£400 mithion of 5 750% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2017 400 350 50 5750% &mLIBOR- 0 229%
US$350 milion of & 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2035 200 200 - 5826% N/A
1,028 721 307

*Note Hedged value s the final redemption valug ncluding any hedging

The Group has a Euro Medium Term Note Programme (the “Programme™) which provides the Group with a standardised documentation platform
for senior debt 1ssuance in the Eurobond markets The £300 million of 6 000% Guaranteed Notes maturing in May 2027 have been issued under

the Programme which allows 1ssuance of up to £1 billion
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

20. BORROWINGS continued

(ii) Finance leaseas
The mimimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows

2013 2012
£m Em
Within one year 1 8
Between one and two years n 8
Between two and three years n 8
Between three and four years 8 B
Between four and five years 8 8
After five years 144 153
193 193

Future finance charges on finance lease habiities (116) (125)
Present value of finance lease habilities 77 68

The main obligations under finance leases are in relation to

(& finance arrangements 1n connection with the broadband network infrastructure During the year repayments of £7 mullion (2012 £7 millior)
were made against the lease A proportion of these payments have been allocated against the capital outstanding The lease bears
interest at a rate of 111% and expires in November 2039

(k) finance arrangements in connection with the contact centre in Dunfermline During the year, repayments of £1 milkon (2012 £1 millior) were
made against the lease A proportion of these payments have been allocated against the capital amount outstanding The lease bears
interest at a rate of 8 5% and expires in September 2020

©) finance arrangements in connection with datacentre equipment The Group entered into the arrangements during the year, and
repayments of less than £1 million were made against the tease A proportion of these payments have been allocated against the capital
amount outstanding The lease bears interest at arate of 3 6% and expires in June 2016

(m) Revolving Credit Facihity
The Group has a £743 million RCF with a maturity date of 31 October 2017 syndicated across 10 counterparty banks, each with a minimum
credit rating of Baal” or equivalent from Standard & Poor's At 30 June 2013 the RCF was undrawn (2012 undrawn) -

The Group ts subject to two financial covenants under the RCF a maximum leverage ratio and a minimum interest cover ratio which are tested
at the end of each six monthly period The key financial covenants are the ratio of Net Debt to EBITDA (as defined in the loan agreements) and
EBITDA to Net Interest Payable (as defired in the lcan agreements) Net Debt to EBITDA must be no more than 3 00 1and EBITDA to Net
Interest Payable must be at least 3 501 The Group was in compliance with these covenants for all periods presented

{iv) Guarantees

The following guarantees are in place relating to the Group s borrowings (a) Bnitish Sky Broadcasting Limited Sky Subscribers Services Limited,
BSkyB Finance UK pic and Sky In-Home Service Limited have given joint and several guarantees inrelation to the Company's £743 milhon RCF
and the outstanding Guaranteed Notes 1ssued by the Company (b) the Company British Sky Broadcasting Limited Sky Subscribers Services
Limited and Sky tn-Home Service Limited have given joint and several guarantees in relation to the cutstanding Guaranteed Notes 1ssued by
BSkyB Finance UK plc
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21. DERIVATIVES AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Set out below are the derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group to manage its interest rate and fareign exchange nisks

2003 2012
Asset Liability Asset Liability
Fair Value Notional Fair Value Notiona! Farvalue  Notional Fair Value Notional
£m Em Em Em £m £m £m Em
Fair value hedges
Interest rate swaps 108 851 - - 141 833 - -
Cash flow hedges
Cross-currency swaps 166 nz - 47 186 661 - -
Forward foreign exchange contracts 37 1146 (26) 973 28 880 (€)) 223
Currency options (collars) - - - - 2 13 - 13
Denvatves not in a formal hedge relationship
Cross-currency swaps 67 353 (15) 390 57 353 (28) 390
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1 n4 0] 49 - 25 m 127
Interest rate swaps 1 260 - - - 140 - 120
Total 380 3,841 (42) 1459 414 2,905 (32) 873
The maturity of the derivative financial mstruments 1s as follows
2013 2012
Asset Liability Asset Liability
£m £m Em £m

in one year or less 15 (13) 23 2)
Between one and two years 15 (6) ) ()]
Between two and five years 251 (8) Lo}l 140}
In mere than five years 99 (15) 284 (28)
Total 380 (42) 414 (32}

The fair value of the Groups debt-related derivative portfolio at 30 June 2013 was a £327 million net asset (2012 net asset of £356 milllon) with
net notional prnapal amounts totalling £1,957 mithon (2012 £1454 millien) This comprised net assets of £166 million designated as cash flow
hedges (2012 net assets of £186 million) net assets of £108 million designated as fair value hedges (2012 net assets of £141 million) and net
assets of £563 millkon not designated in a formal hedge relationship (2012 net assets of £29 millron)

At 30 June 2013 the carrying value of finanoial assets that were, upon initial recognition, designated as financial assets at fair value through
profit orloss was nil (2012 rul)

Hedge accounting classification and impact

The Group has designated certain interest rate swaps as fair value hedges of interest rate nisk representing 30% (2072 37%) of the Group's
debt portfolio Movements in the farr value of the hedged items are taken to the ncome statement and are of fset by movements in the fair
value of the hedging instruments to the extent that hedge accounting 1s achieved

The Group has designated certain fixed rate cross-currency swaps as cash fiow hedges of 47% (2012 34%) of the Group's debt portfolic As
such the effective portion of the gain or loss on these contracts 1s reported as a separate component of the hedging reserve and is then
reclassified to the income statement in the same penods that the forecast transactions affect the income statement During the current year,
gains of £40 rmillion were removed from the hedging reserve and credited to finance costs in the iIncome statement to offset the currency
translation movements in the underlying hedged debt (2012 gains of £22 million)

The Group designates certain forward foreign exchange contracts and the intninsic element of options (collars) as cash flow hedges of forecast
foreign currency sales and purchases Gans or losses are released from the hedging reserve and recycled tothe income statement in the same
period as the hedged item is recogrised If forecast transactions are no longer expected to oceur, any amounts included in the hedging reserve
related to that forecast transaction would be recognised directly in the income statement Dunng the current year, gams of £2 million were
removed from the hedging reserve and credited to operating expense in the Income statement (2212 gains of £3 milion) Gains of £8 million
were removed from the hedging reserve and credited to revenue in the iIncome statement (2012 gains of £5 million)

British Sky Broadcasting Group plc 87

o
t
L
3
5
b
g
T
T

IR P

MDA



Annual Report 2013 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

21 DERIVATIVES AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS contmnued

Hedge effectiveness testing 1s performed quarterly using the dollar-offset approach The actual movemnent in the hedging items 1s compared
with the movermnent 1n the valuation of the hypothetically perfect hedge of the underlying nsk at inception and any ineffectiveness is
recognised directly In the income statement Ineffectveness of £2millionwas recognised In the income statement during the current year
(2012 £1million)

Ahedge relationship 1s deemed to be effective if the ratio of changes in valuation of the underlying hedged item and the hedging instrument I1s
within the range of 80% to 125% Any relationship which has a ratio outside this range 1s deemed to be ineffective, at which point hedge
accounting is suspended During the year ended 30 June 2013 there were noinstancesin which the hedge relationship was not highly effective
{2012 nonstances)

Financial instruments

(a) Carrying value and fair value
The accounting classification of each class of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities together with their fair values
15 as follows

Held to Dervatives Dervatives In Total
- matunty  Avallable- deemed held hedging Loansand Other carrying Total fair
investments for-sale for trading relationships  recewables habiues value value
£m £m £m Em £m £m £m Em
At 30 June 2013
Quoted bond debt - - - - - (2843) (2843) (3185}
Derwvative financial instruments - - 53 285 - - 338 338
Trade and other payables - - - - - (1567) (1567) (1567)
Provisions - - - - - (743 74) (74)
Obligations under finance leases
and other borrowings - - - - - 77 77 (77
Avallable-for-sale iInvestments - 422 - - - - 422 422
Trade and other receivables - - - - 278 - 278 278
Short-term deposits E95 - - - - - 595 595
Cash and cash equivalents 65 - - - 750 - 815 815
AL 30 June 22
Quoted bond debt -, - - - - (2338) (2338) (2674)
Derivative financialinstruments - - 28 354 - - 382 382
Trade and other payables - - - - - (1,378) (1378) (1378)
Provistons - - - - - (12) {12) 02
Obligations under finance leases -
and other borrowings - - - - - (68) (68) (68)
Avalable-for-sale iInvestments - 228 - - - - 228 228
Trade and other recewvables - - - - 278 - 278 278
Short-term deposits 710 - - - - - 710 rale]
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 464 - 464 464

The fair values of finanaal assets and financial kabilities are determined as follows

S The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and which are traded on active iquid markets 1s
determined with reference to quoted market prices,

S The farr value of other financial assets and finanaial liabilities (excluding dervative instruments) 1s determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysts using prices from observable current market transactions and dealer
quotes for simitar instruments

> Foreign currency forward contracts and options are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves derived from quoted
Interest rates matehing matunties of the contracts,

% Interest rate and cross-currency swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted based on the
applicable yield curves derived from quoted interest rates, and X

> The Fair value of abligations under finance leases and other berrowings Is estimated by discounting the future cash flows to net present
value The fair value of short-term deposits and cash and cash equivalents is equivalent to carrying value due to the short-term nature of
these instruments
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The differences between carrying values and fair values reflect unrealised gains or losses inherent in the financizl instruments based on
valuations as at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012 The volatile nature of the markets means that values at any subsequent date could be
significantly different fram the values reported above

Cash and cash equivalents classified as held to maturity investments comprise money market deposits which have matunty dates of iess than
three months from inception Money market deposits, enhanced return investments and tn-party repurchase agreements which have maturity
greater than three months from inception are classified as short-term deposits

MIIADL [eRUeUY

Cash and cash equivalents classified as loans and receivables mainly comprise Investments in AAAm rated money market funds which can be
withdrawn without notice

(b) Falr value hierarchy

The following table categorises the Groups financial Instruments which are held at fair value into i of 3 levels toreflect the degree to which
observable inputs are used In determining therr fair values

I BUIGACE)

Far value Level?l Level 2 Level 3
£m £m £m £m

At 30 June 2013
Assets measured at far value
Avallable-for-sale financial iInstruments z
ITV investment 409 409 - - ¥
Other investments at cost 13 - - 13 i
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ‘,:.
Interest rate swaps 109 - 109 - a
Cross-currency swaps 233 - 233 - 3
Forward foreign exchange and option contracts 38 - 38 - Z
Total 802 409 380 13
Liabilities measured at fair value
Finanaial labiities at farr value through profit or loss
Cross-currency swaps 5) - (15) -
Forward foreign exchange and option contracts (27) - ()] -
Total 42) - (42) -
At 30 June 2012
Assets measured at far value
Avallable-for-sale financial instruments
ITV Investment 223 223 - -
Other investments at cost 5 - - 5
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5
Interest rate swaps 14 - 141 - 7
Cross-currency swaps 243 - 243 - i
Forward foreign exchange and option contracts 30 - 30 - 3
Total 642 223 414 H
Liabilities measured at fair value :
Financial habibties at fair value through profit or loss
(Cross-currency swaps (28) - (28) -
Forward foreign exchange and option contracts (&) - @) -
Total 32) - 32) -

Levell
Fair values measured using quoted prices (Unadjusted) in active markets for Identical assets or liabilities

Level 2
Fair values measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset.or liability either directly
or indirectly

Level 3
Farr values measured using Inputs for the asset or liakility that are not based on observable market data
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Group Treasury activity

The Group's Treasury function is responsible for raising finance for
the Group s operations together with associated liquidity
management and management of foreign exchange, interest rate and
credit nsks Treasury operations are conducted within a framework of
policies and guidelines authorised and reviewed by both the Audit
Commuttee and the Board which receive regular updates of Treasury
activity Dervative instruments are transacted for risk management
purposes enly It 1s the Groups policy that all hedging s to cover
known risks and no speculative trading 1s undertaken Regular and
frequent reporting to management is required for alf transactions
and exposures, and the internal control environment is subject to
periodic review by the Group s Internal audit team

The Group’s principal market risks are exposures to changes in
Interest rates and foreign exchange rates, which arise both from the
Group s sources of finance and its operations Following evaluation of
those market risks the Group selectively enters into denvative
financial Instruments to manage these exposures The principal
Instruments currently used are Interest rate swaps to hedge interest
rate risks, and cross-currency swaps, forward foreign exchange
contracts and currency options (collars) to hedge transacticnal and
translational currency exposures

Interest rate nisk

The Group has financial exposures to both UK and US interest rates
arising primarly from the Group s long-term bonds and other
borrowings The Group's hedging palicy requires that between 50%
and 85% of barrowings are held at fixed rates This i1s achieved by
1ssuing fixed rate bonds and then using interest rate swaps to adjust
the balance between fixed and floating rate debt The Groups bank
debt is at floating rates, and when drawn, means that the mix of fixed
and floating rate debt fluctuates and is therefore managed to ensure
compliance with the Group s hedging policy At 30 June 2013, 80% of
borrowings were held at fixed rates after hedging (2012 75%)

The Group uses derivatives to convert all of its US dollar-denominated
debt and assocated interest rate obligations to pounds sterling (see
section on foreign exchange risk for further detail) At 30 June 2013
the Group had ne net US dollar denominated interest rate exposure
on its borrowings

The Group desighates its interest rate swaps as fair value hedges of
interest rate risk Movements inthe farr value of the hedge‘d exposure
are taken to the income statement and are offset by movemnents in
the fair value of the hedging instruments which are also taken to the
income statement Any hedge ineffectiveness is recognised directly in
the iIncome statement In the year ended 20 June 2013 this
amounted to £2 milllon (2012 £1 millier)

At 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012, the Group's annual finance costs
would be unaffected by any change to the Group's credit rating in
either direction

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-derivative
financial Instruments at the balance sheet date For floating rate
llabilities, the analysis 1s prepared assuming the amount of hability
outstanding at, the balance sheet date I1s outstanding for the whole
year

For each one hundred basts pont rise or fall n interest rates at 30
June 2013 and If all other vanables were held constant

> The Group s profit for the year ended 30 June 2013 would increase
or'decrease by £9 rmillion (2012 profit for the year would increase or
decrease by £4 millior) The year on year increase 1S driven by an
Increase 1n the cash balance held and by the fuang of £260 million
of debt

> Qther equity reserves would decrease or increase by £15 million
(2012 decrease or increase by £14 million) ansing from movements
in cash fiow hedges

Aone hundred basis paint rise or fall In interest rates represents a
large but realistic movement which can easily be multipled to give
sensiuvities at different interest rates

The sensitivity analyses provided are hypothetical only and should be
used with caution as the impacts provided are not necessarly
indicative of the actual impacts that would be expenenced because
the Group s actual exposure to market rates changes as the Groups
portfolio of debt, cash and foreign currency contracts changes In
addition, the effect of a change in a particular market variable on fair
values or cash flows Is calculated without considering
interrelationships between the various market rates or mitigating
actions that would be taken by the Group The changes in valuations
are estimates of the impact of changes in market vanables and are
net a prediction of future events or anticipated gains or losses

Foreign exchange risk

A combination of cross-currency and interest rate swap
arrangemeants s used to convert the Group s US dollar denominated
debt and associated interest rate obligations to pounds sterling at
fixed exchange rates At 30 June 2013 the split of the Groups
aggregate borrowings into their core currencies was US dollar 73%
and pounds sterling 27% (2012 USdollar 67% and pounds sterling
33%) At 30 .June 2013, 100% of the Group's long-term borrowings
after the mpact of dervatives are denominated in pourids sterling

The Group s revenues and operating expenses are substantially
denominated in pounds sterling A small proportion of operating
expenses 1s denominated in US dollars, while a small proportion of
revenues 1s denominated N euros-In the current year, approxmately
10% of operating expenses (£614 millon) was dencrminated inUS
dollars (2012 approxumately 10% (£532 milhon)) and 5% of revenues
{£392 millon) was denominated in euros (2012 6% (£382million))

The US dollar expense relates majnly to the Group's programming
contracts with US suppliers, together with US dollar-denominated
set-top box costs The euro revenues primarnly refate to subscribers
located inIreland The Group s exposure to eure-denominated
revenue 15 offset to a certain extent by euro-denominated costs
related mainly to certain transpender costs, the net position being a
euro surplus (2012 surplus)

The Group has some exposure to the European financial crisis
although the Group's net euro cash flows are approximately 3% of
total group revenues and the Group's practice 1s to hold less than
£10 millon ondeposit ineuros Whilst some of the Group s syndicate
banks are headquartered in Europe, the Group does not currently
anticipate drawing the RCF To mibigate remaning risks, counterparty
credit and sovereign ratings are closely monitored and no mare than
10% of cash deposits are held with a single bank counterparty (with
the exception of overnight deposits which are invested in a spread of
AAAM rated hquidity funds)
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The Group hedges currency expasures on US dollar and euro-
denominated hughly probable cash flows by using forward foreign
exchange contracts and options (collars) purchased up to five years
ahead of the cash flow

It i5 the Groups policy that all anticipated foreign currency exposures
are substantially hedged in advance of the year n which they occur

At 30 June 2013, the Group had purchased forward foreign exchange
contracts and collars representing up to

> Approximately 90% of US dollar-denominated costs falling due
within one year (2012 85%), and approximately 80% of US dollar—

denominated costs falling due within five years (2012

approximately 80%) which are hedged via

> Outstanding commitments to purchase, in aggregate US$1,926
milllon (2012 US$1,298 rmullion) at an average rate of US$1 56 to
£100 (2012 US$158 to £100)

> Collars relating to the purchase of a total of USnil (2012 US$20
millicn) \n aggregate

> Approximately 95% of net euro-dencminated revenues falling due

within one year (2012 approxrnately 75%) and approximately 80%

of net eurc-denominated revenues falling due within four years

(2012 nily which are hedged via

> Qutstanding commitments to sell, in aggregate, €1039 million
(2012 €400 million) at an average rate of €119 to £100 (2012
€118 to £100)

2 Outstanding commitments to purchase, In aggregate €119 mihon
(2012 €88 mitlion) at an average rate of €116 to £100 (2012 €122
to £100)

No forward foreign exchange contracts or coliars fall due beyond five
years (2012 none)

The Group designates the following as cash flow hedges for hedge
aCCoUNting purposes

> Forward foreign exchange contracts

> The intrinsic value of collars (all other fair value movements are
recognised directly in the income statement)

> Cross-currency swaps where interest on both legs 1s at a fixed
nterest rate

As such the effective portion of the gain or loss on these contracts is
reperted as a component of the hedging reserve outside the ncome
statement and s then reclassified to the income statement i the
same periods that the forecast transactions affect the income
statement Ineffectiveness of £1 millon was recognised In the income
statermnent during the year (2012 less than £1 million}

A combination of US dollar denominated interest rate and US dollar/
pound sterling cross-currency swaps Is used to convert fixed dollar
denominated debt to floating sterling denormnated debt The
interest rate swaps are designated as far value hedges The
associated cross-currency swaps are not designated as hedging
instruments for hedge accounting purpeses and as such, movements
in their value are recorded directly in the income statement

Foreign exchange sensitivity

The following analyses detalls the Group s sensitivity to movements 1n
pounds sterling against those currencies In which 1t has significant
transactions The sensitivity analysis includes foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and
outstanding foreign currency denominated financial instruments and

adjusts their translation at the period end for a 25% change in foreign
currencyrates

A 25% strengthening In pounds sterling against the US dollar would
have the effect of reducing profit by £21 milkon (2012 reducing profit
by £27 mulon), of which losses of £23 millon relate to non-cash
moverrents in the valuation of derwvatives (2012 fosses of £26
milion) The same strengthening would have an adverse impact on
other equity of £237 mullion (2012 adverse impact of £185 millon)

A 25% weakening in pounds sterling against the US doltar would have
the effect of Increasing profit by £34 milken (2012 increasing profit
by £45 millkon) of which gains of £38 miflion relate to non-cash
movements In the valuation of dervatives (2012 gains of £44 mithor)
The same weakening would have a beneficial impact on other equity
of £395 mullion (2012 beneficialimpact of £303 millior)

A 25% strengthening In pounds sterling against the euro would have
the effect of decreasing profit by £1million (2012 1ncreasing profit by
less than £1 million) Nene of this amount relates to non-cash
movements in the valuation of denvatives The same strengthening
would have a beneficial mpact on other equity of £157 mullion (2012
beneficial impact of £52millior)

A 25% weakening in pounds sterling against the euro would have the
effect of increasing profit by £1milion (2012 reducing profit by less
than £1 millior) None of this amount relates to non-cash movemenits
In the valuation of dervatives The same weakening would have an
adverse impact on other equity of £262 million (2012 adverse impact
of £86 million)

The sensitivity analyses provided are hypothetical only and should be
used with caution as the impacts provided are not necessarily
indicative of the actual 1mpacts that would be experenced because
the Group s actual exposure to market rates 1s constantly changing as
the Group's portfolio of debt cashand foreign currency contracts
changes In addition, the effect of achange in a particular market
variable on farr values or cash flows 15 caleulated without considering
Interrelationships between the vanous market rates or mitigating
actions that would be taken by the Group The changes in valuations
are estimates of the impact of changes in market variables and are
not a prediction of future events or anticipated gains or losses

Hedge accounting

The interest rate and foresgn exchange rate nisk sections above
cutline the Group s policies regarding use of derivative products
Further detail on valuations and the impact of hedge accounting
during the year are prowided in note 21

Creditrisk

The Group 15 exposed to counterparty default nsk amounting to
invested cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits and the
positive fair value of derivative financal assets held

Thus risk 1s deemed to be low Counterparty risk forms a central part
of the Group's Treasury policy which 1s monitered and reported on
regularly The Group manages credit risk by diversifying 1ts exposures
across a wide number of counterparties such that the maxmum
exposure to any individual counterparty was less than 10% of the
total asset value of Instruments at the end of the year Treasury
policies ensure that. all derivative transactions are only effected with
strong relationshup banks and, at the date of sigrung, each carned a
mirmmum credit rating of "Baat” or equivalent from Standard & Poor's
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

22. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued

The amount recognised in the income statement in respect of credit
risk for derivatives deemed held for trading 1s il (2012 nil)

Credit nsk m our residential customer base 1s mitigated by billing and
collecting in advance for digital television subscriptions for over 99%
of our restdential customer base The Group s maximum exposure to
credit risk on trade recevables 1s the carrying amounts as disclosed in
note 17

Liquidrty risk

Our principal source of hquidity 1s cash generated from operations,
combined with access to a £743 million RCF,. which expires in October
2017, with the night torequest an extension of one further year At
30 June 2013 this faciity was undrawn (30 June 2012 undrawn)

To ensure continuity of funding, the Groups pelicy 1s to ensure that
available funding matures over a period of years At 30 June 2013,
40% (2012 59%) of the Group's total avaniable funding (including
avallable undrawn amounts on our RCF) was due to mature In more
than five years

Full details of the Groups borrowings and undrawn facilities are
shown 1n note 20 other than trade and other payables shown in
note 18 and provisions, shown innote 19
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The following table analyses the Group s non-denvative financial iiabilities, net settled denvative financral instruments and gross settled
financial mstruments into relevant matunity groupings, based on the remarning period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity
date The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash fiows and may therefore not reconale to the amounts
disclosed on the balance sheet for borrowings denvative financial Instruments, provisions and trade and other payables

Between Between

Lessthan one and twoard  More than
12Zmonths  twoyears fiveyears fiveyears
Em £m Em £m
AL 30 June 2013
Non dervative financial liabilities
Bonds - USD 125 125 1291 1490
Bends - GBP a1 4 500 452
Obligations under finance leases and other borrowings n i 27 44
Trade and other payables 1457 107 3 -
Provisions ) 66 4 1 32
Net settled derivatives
Financial assets (32 {32) (65) (6)
Gross settied dervatives
Outflow 1,020 760 1687 1,381
Inflow {1028) (775) (1876) (1.417)
Between Between
Less than onaand twoand Morethan
Zmonths twoyears fiveyears  five years
£m £m £m Em
At 30 June 2012
Non denvative financial habilities
Bonds - USD 107 107 760 1433
Bonds - GBP 41 41 123 903
Obligations under finance leases and other borrowings 8 8 24 1583
Trade and other payables 1281 86 n -
Provisions S 4 1 1
Net settled denvatives
Financial assets (32) (32) @n (28)
Gross settled denvatives
Outflow 894 EiSl| 759 1285
Inflow (917) (397) (813) (1,408)

Capital Risk Management

The Group s objectives when managing capital are to endeavour to ensure that the Group has the ability to access capital markets when
necessary and to optimise lquidity and operating flexibility through the arrangement of new debt, while seeking to mmmimise the cost of
capital The Group monitors its iquidity requirements regularly and 1s satisfied that it has access to sufficent liquidity and operating flexibiity

to meet 1ts capital requirements

The Group manages its short and long-term capital structure by seeking to mantain leverage ratios consistent with a long-term investment
grade credit rating (BBB- or better from Standard & Poor's and Baa3 or better from Moody’s) The Group's current ratings are BBB+ (Standard
& Poor's) and Baal (Moody's) The leverage ratios assessed by these rating agencies are those of Net Debt EBITDA and Gross Debt EBITDA Net
Debt 15 defined as total borrowings including the cash flows arising under operating leases and transponder prepayments, less cash and cash
eguvalents excluding dervatives Gross Debt does not reduce total borrowings by the inclusion of cash and cash equivalents

The Group 15 also required to maintain a Net Debt EBITDA ratio below 3 00 1and an EBITDA to Net Interest Payable ratio at above 3 50 1under
the terms of its RCF The RCF definition of Net Debt does not require the inclusion of future operating lease or transponder cash flows

At 30 June 2013, the Net Debt EBITDAratio as defined by the terms of the RCFwas 071(2012 061) and the ERITDA to Net Interest Payable

ratiowas 1341(2012 1377)
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continued

23. SHARE CAPITAL

03 2012
Em £m
Allotted, called-up and fully paid shares of 50p

1553 905182 (2012 1674 454 881) 797 B37

2013 2012

Number of Number of

ordinary ordinary

shares shares

Allotted and fully paid duning the year
Beginning of year

Shares repurchased and

subsequently cancelled

End of year

1674454881 1752842599

(80 549699) (78387718)
1,593,905182 1,674 454,881

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry equal voting
nghts and no contractual night to receive payment Fulldetauls of the
Company’s share buy-back programme are provided innote 24

Share option and contingent share award schemes
The Company operates various equity-settled share option schemes
({the "Schermes") for certain employees

The number of newly 1ssued shares which may be allocated under the
Sehemes on any day shall not, when aggregated with the number of
newly 1ssued shares which have been allocated in the previous ten
years under the Schemes and any other employee share scheme
adopted by the Company, exceed such number as represents five
percent of the ordinary share capital of the Company in Issue
immediately prior to that day |n determining this limit no account shall
be taken of any newly issued shares where the nght to acquire the
newly Issued shares was released, lapsed cancelled or otherwise
became Incapable of exercise Optrons and awards which will be
satisfied by ESOP shares do not fall within these headroom limits

The share awards cutstanding can be summarised as follows

2013 2012
Numberof Number of
ordinary  ordinary
shares shares

Executive Share Option Scheme options™
Sharesave Scheme options’™
Management LTIP awards"?

LTIP awards®

Management Co-Investment LTIP awards™
Co-Investment LTIP awards™

931,247 2630435
7159954 7238,348
24365112 15018148
B844132 6462723
1975705 1869416
2068175 1953013
45,344,325 35172,083

(1) Executive Share Option Scheme options

All Executive Share Option Scheme aptions outstanding at 30 June
2013 and 30 June 2012 have vested No options have been granted
under the scheme since 2004

Grants under the Executive Share Option Scheme were made on an
annual basis to selected employees with the exercise price of options
being equal to the Company s share price on the date of grant For
those options with performance conditions growthin EPS had to
exceed growth In the Retail Prices Index plus 3% per annum in order
for awards to vest Options vested on an accelerated basis overa

period of up to four years from the date of grant The contractual Ife
of all Executive Share Option Scheme options 15 ten years

(1) Sharesave Scheme options

All Sharesave Scheme options outstanding at 30 June 2013 and 30
June 2012 have no performance criteria attached, other than the
requirement that the employee remains 1n employment with the
Group Options granted under the Sharesave Scheme must be
exercised within six meonths of the relevant award vesting date

The Sharesave Scheme 15 open to all employees Options are normally
exercisable after either three or five years from the date of grant The
price at which options are offered (s not less than 80% of the
middle-market price on the dealing day immediately preceding the
date of Invitation It)1s the policy of the Group to make an invitation to
employees to participate in the scheme following the announcement
of the end of year results

() Management LTIP awards

All Management LTIP awards outstanding at 30 June 2013 and 30
Junie 2012 vest only If performance conditions are met Awards
granted under the Management LTIP must be exercised within five
vears of the relevant award vesting date

The Company grants awards to selected employees under the
Management LTIP Awards under this scheme mirror the LTIP with the
same performance conditions Awards exercised under the
Management LTIP can only be satisfied by the 1ssue of market-
purchased shares

(W) LTIP awards

All LTiP awards outstanding at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012 vest
enly If performance conditions are met Awards granted under the LTIP
must be exercsed within five years of the relevant award vesting date

The Company operates the LTIP for Executive Directors and Senior
Executives Awards under the scheme are granted in the formof a
nil-priced option and are satisfied using market-purchased shares
The awards vest in full or In part dependent on the satisfaction of
specified performance targets For awards made in 2008 and 2009
(1e awards that vested in2011) 30% of the award vested dependent
on TSR performance over a three year performance period relative to
the constituents of the FTSE 100 at the time of grant and the
remaining 70% vested dependent on performance agaimst operational
targets The TSR performance targets were not applicable to awards
made between July 2010 and March 2012 but have been re-introduced
for awards granted from July 2012 onwards

(v)Y Management Co-Investment LTIP awards

All Management Co-Investment LTIP awards outstanding at 30 June
2013 and 30 June 2012 vest only if performance conditions are met
Awards granted under the Management Co-Investment LTIP must be
exercised within five years of the relevant award vesting date

The Company grants awards to selected employees under the
Management Co-Investment LTIP Awards under this scheme mirror
the Co-Investment LTIP with the same performance conditions

{v1) Co-Investment LTIP awards

All Co-Investment LTIP awards outstanding at 30 June 2013 and 30
June 2012 vest only if performance conditions are met Awards
granted under the Co-Investrment LTIP must be exeraised within five
years of the relevant award vesting date
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The Company operates the Co-investment LTIP award for Executive Directors and Senior Executives Employees wheo participate in the plan are
granted a conditional award of shares based on the amount they have invested in the Company’s shares Theinvestment will be matched up to
a maximum of 15 shares for every share invested subject to a three-year EPS performance condition

For the purposes of the disclosure below the Management: LTIP LTIP, Management Co-Investment LTIP and Co-Investment LTIP awards (' Senior
Management Schemes”) have been aggregated

The movement in share awards outstanding 1s summarised in the following table

Serior Management

Executve Scheme Sharesave Scheme Schemes Total

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted

average avarage average average

exercrse exercisa exercise exercise

phce pnce phice price

Number £ Number £ Number £ Number £

Outstanding at 1 July 201 5583424 665 7722365 388 33492234 000, 46798023 143
Granted duning the year - - 3533830 508 10660219 GO0 14194049 126
Exercised duning the year (639 882) 559  (2995574) 243 (17066707) 000 (20702163) 052
Forfeited during the year (69,147 586 (985985) 470 (1782446) coo (2837578} 178
Expired during the year (2,243,960) 793 (36 288) 525 - - (2,280248) 789
Qutstanding at 30 June 2012 2630435 584 7238348 494 25303300 000 351720832 145
Granted dunng the year - -~ 2058022 608 15012591 000 170711613 073
Exercised during the year (1599 820) 588 (1 341667) 440 (1824 435) coo (4,765,922) 321
Forfeited during the year (64 334) 604 (795,749) 519 (1238332 000 (2098 45) 215
Expired dunng the year (35034) 530 - - - - (35034 530
Outstanding at 30 June 2013 931247 579 7,159,954 534 37253124 000 45,344,325 096

The weighted average market price of the Group s shares at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was £7 83 (2012
£701) Forthose exercised under the Executive Scheme it was £779 (2012 £719) for those exercised under the Sharesave Scheme it was £819

(2012 £6 89) and for those exerarsed under the Senior Management Schemes it was £760 (2012 £703)

The middle-market closing price of the Company’s shares at 28 June 2013 was £792 (29 June 2012 £6 97)
The following table summanses information about share awards outstanding at 30 June 2013

Sermor Management

Executive Scheme Sharesave Scheme Schemes Total
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average
remaining remaining remaining remaning
contractual contractual contractual contractual
Iife Iife Ife Ife
Range of exercise prices Number Years Number Years Number Years Number Years
ECOO - £100 - - - - 37263124 59 37253124 d 5%
E300-£400 - - 410643 " - - 410643 "
E400-£500 - - 440134 17 - - 440134 17
£500-£500 485586 n 4387409 26 - - 4872995 25
£600-£700 444163 02 1921768 35 - - 2,365831 29
E700-£BC0 1498 o7 - - - - 1498 a7
931247 07 7159954 27 37253124 59 45,344,325 53

The following table summanises information about share awards ocutstanding at 30 June 2012

Senior Management

Executive S5cheme Sharesave Scheme Schemes Total
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average
remaning remaining remaining remaining
contraciual contractual contractual contractual
fe Iife Ife life
Range of exercise prices Number Years Number Years Number Years Number Years
£000-£100 - - - = 25303300 60 25303300 60
E300-£400 - - 578155 11:) - - 578155 16
E400-£500 - - 1597612 16 - - 1597612 16
£500-£600 1318,767 16 5062581 36 - - 6381348 32
£600-£700 1310770 1 - - - - 1,310170 11
£700-£800 1488 17 - - - - 1498 17
2,630,435 14 7.238,348 30 25303300 60 35172,083 50
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

23. SHARE CAPITAL continued

The range of exercise prices of the awards outstanding at 30 June 2013 was between niland £716 (2012 niland £716) For those awards
outstanding under the Executive Scheme it was between £5 03 and £716 (2012 £5 03 and £716) for those outstanding under the Sharesave
Scheme It was between £372 and £6 08 (2092 £372 and £5 65) and for all awards cutstanding under the Seriior Management Schemes the

exercise price was nil (2012 nul)

The following table summarises additicnal information about the awards exercisable at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012

2013 2012

Average Average

remamning remaming
contractual Weighted ocontractual Weighted
Options Iife of average QOptions Ife of average
exercsable  exercisable exercise  exercisable  exercisable exercise
at 30 June options pnce at 30 June aptions price
Executive Scheme 931247 07 579 2630435 14 584
Sharesave Scheme 97457 o1 449 160 403 01 380
Senior Management Schemes 663972 37 000 1258950 41 000
1,692,676 18 345 4,045,788 22 395

Information for awards granted during the year

The weighted average far value of equity-settled share aptions granted during the year, as estimated at the date of grant, was £516 (2012
£5 39) This was calculated using the Black-Scholes share option pricing medel except for awards which have market-based performance
conditions where a Monte-Carlo simulation model was used and for grants of mil-priced options which were treated as the award of a free
share The fair value of nil-priced options granted dunng the year was measured on the basis of the market-price of the Company's shares on

the date of grant, discounted for expected dividends which would not be receved over the vesting peried of the options

The Monte-Carlo simulation model reflected the histonical volatilities of the Company's share price and those of all other companies to which

the Company’s performance would be compared over a period equal to the vesting period of the awards

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the histoncal volatihty of the Company's share price over a peniod equal to the expected life
of the options Expected life was based on the contractual life of the awards and adjusted based on management s best estimate for the

effects of exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations

(1) Sharesave Scheme

The weighted average fair value of equity-settled share awards granted during the year under the Sharesave Scheme, as est:mated at the date

of grant, was £151 (2012 £187) This was calculated using the Black-Scholes share option pricing model

The following weighted average assumptions were used in calculating these far values

2013 202
Share price £751 £688
Exercise price £608 £508
Expected volatility 24 0% 286%
Expected life 40years 45years
Expected dividends 34% 34%
Risk-free interest rate 04% 10%

() Semor Management Schemes

The weighted average fair value of equity-settled share awards granted during the year under the Serwor Management Schemes as estimated
at the date of grant, was £5 66 (2012 £6 56) The fair value of awards with market-based performance conditions was calculated usinga
Monte-Carlo simulation model Awards granted as nil-priced options were treated as the award of a free share For all other awards fair value

was calculated using the Black-Schoeles share option pricing model

The following weighted average assumptions were used In calculating these farr values

203 2012
Share price £716 £704
Exercise price £000 £EQQO
Expected volatiity 63% -
Expected life 3Cyears 21years
Expected dividends 36% 33%
Risk-free interest rate 00% -
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24, SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

2
2013 2012 2
£m Em £
Share capital 797 837 2
Share premtum 1437 1437 g
ESOP reserve {47 {12}
Hedging reserve 1l 68
Availlable-for-sale reserve 351 165
Qther reserves 439 399
Retained earnings (1876) {1850)
1,012 944

FOUL JIGADTY

Purchase of own equity shares for cancellation

0On 29 November 2011, at the Company’s AGM, the Company was granted the authority to return £750 million of capital to shareholders via a
share buy-back programme (the “November 2011 Authority™} This authonty was subject to an agreement between the Company and Twenty-
First Century Fox Inc (formerly known as News Corporation) (and others) dated 28 July 2011 whereby following any market purchases of shares
hy the Company Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc would sell to the Company sufficient shares to maintain its percentage shareholding at the
same level as applied prior to those market purchases The price payable to Twenty-First Century Fox Inc would be the price payable by the
Company In respect of the relevant market purchases (the 2011 Share Buy-back Agreement’)

At the Company’s AGM on 1 November 2012, the Company was granted the authority to return a further £500 million of capital to shareholders
via a share buy-back programme (the “November 2012 Authority”) This authority was subject to an agreement between the Company and
Twenty-First Century Fox Inc (and others) dated 28 July 2012 on substantially the same terms as the 2011 Share Buy-back Agreement

Duning the year, the Company purchased and subsequently cancelled 80 549 699 ordinary shares at an average price of £775 per share with
a nominal value of £40 million for a consideration of £627 milhion Consideration included stamp duty and commission of £3 millon This
represents 5% of called-up share capital at the beginning of the period Of these purchases the Company purchased and subsequently
cancelled, 31525,314 ordinary shares from Twenty-First Century Fox Inc at an average price of £775 per share with a nominal value of

E16 milion for a consideration of £245 milllon Consideration included stamp duty of £1million

During the prior year the Company purchased and subsequently cancelled, 78 387718 ordinary shares at an average price of £6 52 per share
with a nominal value of £39 million, for a total consideration of £546 milliory Consideration included stamp duty and commission of £3 million
This represented 4% of called-up share capital at the beginning of the period Of these purchases, the Company purchased and subsequently
cancelled, 30,679,157 ordinary shares from Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc at an average price of £6 92 per share with a nominal value of

£15 milion for a consideration of £213 million Consideration included stamp duty of £1 milhen

The following table provides information about purchases of equity shares by the company including purchases by the Group s ESOP. during
the fiscal year

Capital Capital
Total capital Total capital authonsedtobe authonsedtobe
returned returned  returnedunder  returned under
Average under the underthe  theMovember  the November
Totalnumber  pncepaid Movember 2011 November 2012 20M 2012
of shares pershare Authorty Authanty Authority Authonty

Period purchased® £ Em? Emf EmGe £m*
July 1269480 693 9 - 198 -
August 9073208 742 67 - 131 -
September 9904 203 742 74 - 57 -
October 4261576 736 el - 26 -
November 23509002 761 4 106 - 394
December 15809283 768 - 121 - 273
January - - - - - 273
February 202917 814 - 17 - 256
March 72B 450 867 - B - 250
Apnl 4309090 as8 - 42 - 208
May 17234709 B15 - 14 - 7
June 821527 777 - 6 - 61
Total for the year ended 30 June 2013 89 549 699 774 185 439 - 61

() Allshare purchases are included in the month of settlement
() The November 2011 Authonty expired on 1 November 2012 Accordingly no more repurchases can take place under this authority
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

24, SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY caontinued

Share premium and special reserve

On 10 December 2003, the H:gh Court approved & reduction in the Company’s share premium account of £1120 millon as approved by the
Company's shareholders at the AGM held on 14 November 2003 This amount was equal to the Company-only profit and loss acoount reserve
deficit at 30~June 2003 As part of the application, the Company’s balance sheet at 30 September 2003 was required to be presented At that
date the deficit on the Company-only profit and loss account reserve had reduced by £14 million since 30 June 2003 to £1]106 million As a
condition of the reductign, the reduction in the share premium account of £1120 million was permitted to be offset against the profit and loss
account reserve by the amount of the deficit at 30 September 2003 The excess of £14 million was credited to a special reserve whichis
included in other reserves, and, under the terms of the reduction will rematn undistributable until all the creditors of the Company and its
guarantors (as at 10 December 2003} are paid

ESOP raserve
The cost of the Company’s ardinary shares held by the Group s ESOP 1s treated as a deduction In arriving at total shareholders’ equity The
movement in the ESOP reserve was as follows

Number of Average
erdinary price pad
shares per share £m
At 1 July 201 13832609 E775 107
Share options exercised dunng the year (20702163} £755 (156}
Shares purchased by the ESOP duning the year 231628099 £693 161
At 30 June 2012 15 293 345 £6 85 112
Share options exerased dunng the year (4765 922) £714 (34)
Shares purchased by the ESOP dunng the year S$000 000 E769 59
At 30 June 2013 20,527,423 £715 147

Hedging reserve

Changes in the fair values of derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges are intially recogrised in the hedging reserve, and
subsequently recognised In the income statement when the related hedged items are recognised in the Income statement In addition
deferred taxation relating to these denvatives s alsc inially recogrised in the hedging reserve prior to transfer to the Income statement

Available-for-sale reserve
Avallable-for-sale investments are carried at fair value where this can be reliably measured with movements in the far value recognised directlyin
the avalable-for-sale reserve At 30 June 2013 the Group s avalable-for-sale reserve was £351 million (2012 £165 million)

Other reserves

The Group s other reserves Include a capital redemption reserve, a merger reserve, a foreign currency translation reserve and a special reserve
The capital redemption reserve was £174 million as at 30 June 2013 (2012 £134 milhon) The merger reserve was £222 million as at 30 June 20i3
(2012 £222 milllon) The special reserve was £14 mullion as at 30 June 2013 (2012 £14 milion) The foresgn currency translation reserve was

£29 millon as at 30 June 2013 2012 £29 million)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve was <reated in accordance with the merger relief provisions under section 131 of the Companies Act 1985 (as amended) and
section 612 of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the accounting for business combinations involving the 1ssue of shares at a premium Merger
relef provided relief from the requirement to create a share premium account in a parent company’s balance sheet In preparnng consolidated
financial statements, the amount by which the fair value of the shares issued exceeded their nominal value was recorded within a merger
reserve on consohdation rather than in a share premium account This merger reserve was retained upon transition to IFRS as allowed under
UK law

The merger reserve, which I1s induded In other reserves, was created as aresult of the purchase by the Group of interests in two entities

51G was purchased on 12 July 2000, where consideration was paid by the 1ssue of equity shares inthe Company BIB was purchased between
28 June 2001 and 11 November 2002, where consideration was paid by the 1ssue of equity shares in the Company At 30 June 2013 the Groups
merger reserve was £222 million (2012 £222 milion)
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25 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Reconclliation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations

2013 2012
Em £m
Profit before tax 1257 1,189
Depreaiation and impairment of property plant and equipment 176 179
Amortisatron and impairment of intangible assets 202 165
Share-based payment expense B0 66
Net finance costs (0] 93
Share of results of joint ventures and associates (456) (39
1,749 1653
Decrease (increase) in trade and other recevables 35 (32)
Increase in inventories 93 {81
Increase in trade and other payables ' 136 175
Increase In provisions 52 25
Decrease in dervative financal Instruments (2) (3}
Cash generated from operations 1,877 1737
26. CONTRACTED COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND GUARANTEES
a) Future minimum expenditure contracted for but not recognised in the financial statements
Year Year Year Year Year
ending ending ending ending ending Total at Jotalat
30 June 30 June 30 june 30 June 30 June After5 30 June 30 June
L2014 2015 2016 20%7 2018 years 2013 2012
Em £m £€m Em Em £m Em Em
Telewision programme nghts”? 1488 1387 1195 356 212 121 4763 5102
Set-top boxes and related equipment 202 - - - - - 202 182
Third party paymentst 62 56 50 21 - - 189 210
Transponder capacity™? 82 83 79 75 68 247 634 683
Property, plant and equipment 17 - - - - - 17 27
Intang ble assets®? 23 18 28 19 19 5 12 144
Smartcards™ 42 44 45 45 45 U 232 276
Other 262 m 84 70 4 6 574 337
2,178 1,659 1,485 586 385 390 6,723 6,961

Foreign currency commitments are translated to pounds sterling at the rate prevaling on the balance sheet date

() At 30June 2013 the Group had minimurn telewision programming rights commitments of £4 763 million (2012 £5102 millon) of which £506 milion {2012 £376 million) refated to
commitments payable nUS dollars for periods ef up to seven years (2012 six yearsy Assurming that movie subscriber numbers remain unchanged from current levels an
additional £531 mulleon (US$808 million) of commitments (2012 E420 million (U5$652 milliom}wauld also be payable in US dollars refating to price escalator clauses The pound
sterling tefevision programme rights commitments include similar price escalation clauses that would result in additional commitments of £163 miltion (2012 £9 million) 1t
subsenber numbers were toremain at current levels

() The third party payrnent commitments are in respect of distnbution agreements for the television channels owned and broadcast by third part:es retaled by the Group to retait
and commercial subscribers ("Sky Distnbuted Channels yand are for penods of up ta five years (2012 five years) The extent of the commitment 15 largely dependent upon the
number of retail subscribers to the relavant Sky Distributed Channels and incertaincases uponinflationary increases If both the retail subscriber lavels to these channels and
the rate payable for each Sky Distributed Channel were ta remain at cument levels subject toinflationary increases the additional commitment would Se £805 million (2012
£453 milhiory)

(i) Transponder capacity commitments are inrespect of the Astra Eutelsat and Telenor Satellite Broadcasting AS satethtes that the Group uses for digitat transmissions to both
retall subscribers and cable operaters The commitments are for penods of up to twelve years (2012 thirteen years)

(v} Commitments inrelation to the provisien of smartcards Smartcards under development are included within intangible assets The amounts included above are the expected
ongoing smartcard £osts based on forecast customer levels

b) Contingencies and guarantees

Certan subsidiaries of the Company have agreed to provide additional funding to several of thew investments in hmnited and unbnmited
companies and partnerships, in accordance with funding agreements Payment of thrs additional funding would be required if requested by the
Investees in accordance with the funding agreements The maximum potential ameunt of future payments which may be required to be made
by the subsidiaries of the Company to their investments, in both iimited and unlimited companies and partnerships under the undertakings
and additional funding agreements 1s E25 million (2012 £30 milhon)

The Group has guarantees in place relating to the Group s borrowings see note 20

Competition Appeal Tribunal (CAT)
On 8 August 2012, the Competition Appeal Tnbunal (the CAT")issued its judgment in the appeals against Ofcom’s decision to impose
whelesale must-offer obligations on Sky (the “Pay TV Judgment™) The CAT found that Ofcom s core competition concerns were unfounded and
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements '

continued

26. CONTRACTED COMMITMENTS,
CONTINGENCIES AND GUARANTEES continued

that accordingly Sky's appeal must be allowed On 26 Apnl 2013, BT
was granted permission to appeal the Pay TV Judgment in the Court
of Appeal Pending determination of BT's appeal, the Court of Appeal
has stayed withdrawal of the WMO obligations and distribution of the
monies paid by relevant wholesale customers Into escrow on an
intenm basis (being the difference between the maxmum price Sky
may charge for Sky Sports 1and Sky Sports 2 under the WMO
obligations and Sky's rate card prices for the channels)

At 30 June 2013 £31 million of cash 15 being held in the escrow
account

Ofcom determination

Included within direct networks costs for the year ended 30 June
2013 15 a credit of £32 mitlionin relation to a credit note received from
BT following an Ofcom determination which requires BT to repay
monies to Sky for overcharged-for Ethernet services (backhaul)
between 2006/07 and 200910 Sky, BT and others have appealed
Ofcom’s determination In the CAT

27. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The minimum lease rentals to be paid under non-cancellable
operating leases at 30 June are as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

Within one year 49 49
Between one and two years a2 39
Between two and three years 35 32
Between three and four years 37 27
Between four and fvé years 18 20
After five years 45 59
226 « 226

The majority of operating leases relate to property The rents payable
under these leases are subject to renegotiation at the vancus
intervals specified in the leases

The mmimum sub-lease rentals to be received under non-cancellable
operating sub-leases at 30 June are &s follows

2013 2012

Em £m

Within one year 2 6
Between one and two years 2 3
Between two and three years 2 2
Between three and four years 2 2
Between four and five years 1 2
After five years 5 6
14 21

Sub-lease rentals pnmarily refate to property leases

28. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES AND
MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

a) Entities with joint control or significant influence

Buring the year the Group conducted business transactions with
companies that form part of the Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc group
(formerly known as News Corporation) a major shareholder in the
Company

Transactions with related parties and amounts outstanding in
relation to those transactions and with related parties at 30 June are
as follows

2013 2012 . .
£m Em
Supply of goods or services by the Group 89 79
Purchases of goods or services by the Group {156) (199)
Amounts owed to the Group 7 12
Amounts owed by the Group {102y (58)

At 30 June 2013 the Group had expenditure commitments of £97 )
million (n relation to transactions with related parties and with related
parties (2012 £462 milhon) of which £57 milion (2012 £58 million)
related to minimum tetevision programming nghts commitments and
nil (2012 £404 miflion) related to expected ongoing smartcard costs

Goods and services supplied

During the year, the Group supplied set-top boxes programming,
arrtime transmission marketing consultancy services customer
relationship management services and a licence to use the Sky brand
to Twenty-Fust Century Fox Inc companies

Purchases of goods and services and certain otherrelationships
During the year the Group purchased programming, digwal
equipment, smartcards and encryption services, set-top box
technologies advertising and IT services from Twenty-First Century
Fox, Inc companies

There (s an agreement between Twenty-First Century Fox Inc I
{formerly known as News Corporation) and the Group pursuant to

which It was agreed that, for so long as Twenty-First Century Fox Inc

directly or indirectly holds an interest of 30% or more 10 the Group,

Twenty-First Century Fox Inc will nct engage in the business of

satellite broadcasting in the UK or Ireland

Share buy-back programme

During the year, the Company purchased, and subsequently cancelled
31525,314 ordinary shares held by Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc as
part of Its share buy-back programme For further details see

note 24

b) Joint ventures and associates

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries which are
related parties have been ekminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note Transactions between the Group and Its joint
ventures and associates are disclosed below

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, joint
ventures and associates are disclosed in the Company s separate
financial statements

2013 2012
£m £m
Supply of serces by the Group 22 24
Purchases of goods or services by the Group (66) [CT)]
Amounts owed by Jjormntventures and associates
to the Group 9 15
Amounts owed to joint ventures and associates
by the Group [ {10

Services supphed are pramarily the provision of transponder capacity
marketing airtme sales and support services Purchases represent fees
payable for channel carrage Amounts owed by joint ventures and
assocates nclude £1 mullion (2012 £7 million) relating to loan funding,
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These loans bear interest at a rate of one month IBOR plus 1% The
maximum amaount of loan funding outstanding in total from goint
ventures and associates during the year was £7 million (2012 £16 million)

The Group took out a number of forward exchange contracts with
counterparty banks dunng the year on behalf of the joint venture
AETN UK On the same dates as these forward contracts were entered
nto, the Group entered into equal and opposite contracts with AETN
UK in respect of these forward contracts

Consequentty the Group was not exposed to any of the net gains or
losses on these forward contracts The face value of forward
exchange contracts with AETN UK that had not matured as at 30 June
2013 was £8 million (2012 £2 millior)

During the year US%4 million (2012 US$3 million) was paid to the jont
venture upon maturity of forward exchange contracts and US$ni
(2012 US$H14 million) was received from the joint venture upon
matunty of forward exchange contracts

During the year, E2 million (2012 £2 mithon) was received from the joint
venture upon maturity of forward exchange contracts, and £3 million
(2012 £7 million) was paid to the joint venture upon maturity of
forward exchange contracts

During the year, €4 million (2012 €nil) was receved from the joint
venture upon maturity of forward exchange contracts and €nil (2012
€2 milion) was paid to the joint venture upon maturity of forward
exchange contracts

At 30 June 2013 the Group had mirumum expenditure commitments
of £4 milhon (2012 £1 millom) with its joint ventures and associates

¢) Other transactions with related parties

A close family member of one Director of the Company runs Freud
Communications Limited { Freud ) which has provided external
support to the press and publicity activities of the Group Dunng the
year the Group incurred expenditure amounting to £1 million {2012
£l millon) with Freug At 30 June 2013 there was less than £1 million
(2012 less than £1 nllion) due to Freud

In addition to the foregaing the Group has engaged in a number of
transactions with companies of which some of the Company's
Directors are also directors These do not meet the defirition of
related party transactions

d) Key management

The Group has arelated party relationship with the Directors of the
Company At 30 june 2013 there were 14 (2012 14) members of key
management all of whom were Directors of the Company Key
management compensation is disclosed in note 6b

29. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

02 consumer broadband and fixed-line telephony business

On 30 Apnl 2013 the Group completed the purchase of the 02
consumer broadband and fixed-line telephony business from
Telefénica UK, comprising 100% of the share capital of Be Un Limited,
subsequently renamed Sky Home Communications Limited

(“the acquisition™) The acquisition was made in order to increase the
scale of the Group s existing home communications operation

Total consideration comprised £180 million of cashrelating to the
purchase price, contingent constderation of £20 million and a
provisional £5 mullion cash adjustment relating to working capital and
active subscribers The provisional working capital and active
subscribers adjustment was estimated by Telefénica UK and pard at

completion the process of venfication of and agreement on these
estimates Is ongoing.

Recognised
faw values
Em
Recogrised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and
habilties assumed
Intangible assets 137
Property plant and equipment 25
Trade and other receivables 7
Trade and other payables {3)
Deferred tax hability {10)
156
Goodwill 49
Satisfied by consideration
{ash - purchase price 180
Contingent consideration arrangement 20
Cash - estimated working capital adjustment and active
subscribers adjustment 5
Net cash outflow ansing on purchase
Cash pad 185

All amounts in the above table are provisional

The farr value of the financiat assets acquired Includes trade
recevables with a fair value and gross contractual value of £6 rmillon
The best estimate at the acquisition date of the ¢ontractual cash
flows not likely to be collected was less than E1million

Goodwill of £49 million ansing from the acquisition reflects buyer-
specific synergies and the strategic value of accelerating the Group s
development In the UK broadband market Mone of the goodwill
recognised I1s expected to be deductible for income tax purposes

The contingent consideration 1s pavable dependent upon the
successful delivery and completion of the customer migration process
by Teleférica UK The potential undiscounted ameount of alf future
payments that the Group could be required to make under the
contingent consideration arrangement 15 between nil and £20 mllion
£20 milion has been recognised as the fair value of this arrangement
at the acquisition date

Acquisition-related costs included in operating expense in the
Group's consolidated income statement: for the year ended 30 June
2013 amounted to £15 million and comprise principally of costs
relating to the ntegration of the acquired customer basa

For the period between the date of purchase and 30 June 2013 the
acquisition contributed £15 millkon to the Group s revenue and less
than £1million to the Groups profit before tax If the Group had
completed the purchase on the first day of the financial year, it is
estimated that the acquisition would have contributed £90 milllon to
Group revenue and an immatenal amourt to the Group s profit for
the year

30 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

0On25 July 2013 the Board agreed to seek the necessary approvals to
return afurther £500 million of capital to shareholders via a share
buy-back programme Shareholder approvals will be sought at the
Company’s AGM on 22 November 2013 The Company has entered into an
agreement with Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc. (Formerly known as News
Corporation) {and others) under which following any market purchases
of shares by the Comparty Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc. will seli to the

Comparty sufficient shares to mantain its percentage shareholding at
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

contmued

30 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD continued

the same level as applied pror to those market purchases The price payable to Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc will be the price payable by the
Company i respect of the relevant market purchases The agreement 1s conditional on the appropriate shareholder approvals being granted The
effect of the agreement Is to provide that there will be no change In Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc s economic or voting interests in the Compary as a
result of the share buy-back programme

31 GROUP INVESTMENTS

The significant investments of the Company which principally affect the consolidated results and total assets of the Group are
as follows

Name Country of Description and proportion of
Incorporation shares held (%) Principal activity
Subsidianes
Direct holdings of the Company
British Sky Broadcasting Limited United £ingcdom 10002 002 ordinary shares of £1each (100%) Operation of pay televiston broadcasting and
home communcations services in the UK and
Ireland
BSkyB Finance UK plc United Xingdom 50 000 ordinary shares of £1each (100%) Finance company
Subsidianes
Indwect holdings of the Company
Sky Subseribers Services Lirnited United Kingdom Jordinary shares of £1 each (100%) Prowviston of anaillary functions supporting the pay
telewision broadcasting residential broadband
and telephone eperaticns of the Group
Sky Holdings Limited United Kingdom 600 ordinary shares of £1each (100%) Helding company
Sky In-Home Service Limited United Kingdom 1576 000 ordinary shares of £1 each (100%) Supply installation and maintenance of satellite
! television recemng equipment
BSkyB Telecommunications United Kingdem 5821764 ordinary shares of £1 each (100%) Management of the network assets in the UK
Services Limitex]
Sky Ventures Limited United Kingdem 912 ordinary shares of £1each (100%} Holding company
The (oud Networks Limited Unuted Kingdom 30583 988 shares of £0 00025 pershare (100%)  Provtsion of telecommunications
Hestwiew Limited United Kingdom 108 ordinary shares of E1each (100%) Prowision of sports betting actvities
Bonne Terre Limited Guernsey 2,504 ordinary shares of £1each (100%) Provision of gaming activities
Sky Home Commurucations Limited  United Kingdom 9528124 ordinary shares of £1 each (100%) Provisren of residential broadband and telephone
operations
Joint ventures and assedates
Nickelodeon UK Limited ? United Kingdom 104 B Shares of E0 01 each (40%) Transmission of children s telewision channels
AETN UK United Kingdoem 50000 AShares of £1each (50%) Transmission of history brography cnme and
Investigation television programming
Paramount UK Partnership™®) United Kingdom Partnership interest (25%) Transmission of general entertainment comeady
<hannels
Australhian News Channel Pty Australia 1 ordinary share of AUD$1(33 33%) Transmission of news and business channels
Limited
NGC Network International LLC Unuted States of Partnership interest (21%) Tran/smlssmn of natural lustory and adventure
Amenca channels
NGC Network Latin Amenca LLC United States of Partnership interest (21%) Transmission of natural histery and adventure
Amenca channels
Attheraces Holdings Limited United Kingdom 1502 ordinary shares of £1 each {45 9%), Transmisston of a horse racing channel and
20 Recouprnent Shares of £0 55 each related online activities
MGM Channel (UK) Limited United Kingdom 50 ordinary shares of £1each (50%) Transmission of dassic movies nHD
Sky News Arabia FZ-LLC United Araby Emirates 26 666 666 shares of US$1 each (50%) Transmission of Arabic News in the MENA region
(Middte East and North Africa)
Investments
1TV Plc™ United kingdom 291684 730 ordinary shares of £010 each (742%) Transrmssion of free-te-arr channels
Notes

{) Theseenuties have an accounting reference date of 31 Dacember

() These entities have an accounting reference date of 30 September

(1) Theregistered address of Paramount UK Partnership 1s 180 Oxford Street London WID1DS The Paramount UK Partnership 1s a joint venture of the Group and is included within
the consolidated accounts In gccordance with Note 1) Conseguently the Paramount UK Partnership has taken advantage of the exemptionwithin the Partnerships
(Accounts) Regulabions 2008 (regulation 7} from filing annual financial statements

(v} Thisnote sets cut anabbreviated iist of the subsidianes of the Company A full list will be filed with Companies House in accordance with section 410 of the Companies Act 2006

The following companies are exermnpt from the requirements relating to the audit of indwidual accounts for the year/period ended 30 June 2013
by virtue of section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 BSkyB Finance Limited (02906994), Kidsprog Limited (02767224) Parthenon Media
Group Limited {(06944197) SATV Publishing Limited (01085975) Sky Holdings Limited {(05585009), Sky IP International Limited (07245844}
Sky Television Lirmited (01518707) and Sky New Media Ventures Limited (03879726)
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32. BRITISH SKY BROADCASTING GROUP PLC COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2013

2013 2012
Notes £m Em
Revenue 214 200
Operating expense 40 (200
Operating profit 174 180
Dradend income from subsidiaries (o] Q47 874
Investment income B8 58 56
Finance costs 8 (G (63)
Profit before tax C 1118 1,047
Taxation D 30 45)
Profit for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders 1088 1,002
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this iIncome statement
Company Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2013
2013 2012
£Em £m
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 1,088 1,002
Other comprehensive Income
Amounts recognised directly in equity
Gain on cash flow hedges 3 12
Tax on cash flow hedges U] (3)
2 9
Amounts reclassified and reported in the Income statement
Lass on cash flow hedges (28) (8)
Tax on cash flow hedges 7 2
N (6)
Cther comprehensive {loss)income for the year (net of tax) {19 3
Total comprehensive income for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders 1,069 1,005

All results relate to continuing operations
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

32. BRITISH SKY BROADCASTING GROUP PLC COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Company Balance Sheet
as at 30 June 2013
2013 2
Notes £Em £m
Non-current assets
Investmentsn subsidiaries E 8143 B272
Other receivables G 3 3
Denvative financial assets J 341 384
8487 8659
Current assets .
Cther receivables G 2967 1652
Cash and cash equivalents - 1
2967 1653
Total assets 11454 10 312
Current labilties
Other payables | 3,434 2774
Non-current labilities
Borrowings H 1,18 17
Dervative financial hakilities J 176 220
Deferred tax habilities F 1 2
1895 1434
Total habilities 5,329 4,208
Share capital L 757 837
Share prermium L 1437 1437
Reserves 3891 3830
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders 6,125 6104
Total habilities and shareholders’ equity 11,454 10,312

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this balance sheet

These financial statements of British Sky Broadcasting Group plc, registered number 02247735, have been appreved by the Board of Directors

on 25 July 2013 and were signed on tts behalf by

Jeremy Darroch Andrew Griffith
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Company Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2013

2013 2012
Notes Em tm
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations M - -
Net cash from operating activities - -
Cash flows from financing actvities
Proceeds from the exercise of share options 15 10
Loan to subsidiaries (16) 03)
Net cash used in financing activities [4)) (3)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents Q)] 3]
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1 4

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this cash flow statement
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2013

FIui LA )

Capital Total
Share Share Special redemption Capital ESOP Hedging Retamned Shareholders
capn:al premum reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earmnings equn.y
£m £m £m £m Em Em £m £fm £m
At 1 July 201 876 1437 14 95 844 (107} 3 2,988 6150
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 1002 1002
Recognition and transfer of cash flow
hedges - - - - - - 4 - 4
Tax on iterns taken directly to equity - - - - - - M - Q]
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 3 1,002 1,005
Share-based payment - - - - - (5) - (80 (85)
Share buy-back programme (see note 24)
- Purchase of own shares for cancellation 39 - - 39 - - - (546) (546)
- Financial igbility for close period
purchases - - - - - - - (13 [4[9)]
Dwdends - - - - - - - (H0) {410}
At 30 June 2012 837 1437 14 134 844 M) 6 2944 6,104
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 1088 1088
Recognition and transfer of cash flow
hedges - - - - - - (25) - (25)
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - - - - & - 6
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - (19) 1,088 1,069
Share-based payment - - - - - (35) - 61 26
Share buy-back programme (see note 24)
- Purchase of own shares for cancellation 40 - - a0 - - - 17 {617}
- Financial hability for close period
purchases - - - - - - - (16) (16)
Dridends - - - - - - - (441} {a41)
At 30 June 2013 797 1437 14 174 Ba4 (147) (13) 3019 6,125

For a description of the nature and purpose of each equity reserve, see note L

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement of changes in equity
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

32, BRITISH SKY BROADCASTING GROUP PLC COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

A Accounting policies

British Sky Broadcasting Group plc {the Company*)1s a imited hability
company Incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered in
England and Wales

1) Basis of preparation

The Company financial statement s have been prepared in accordance
with IFRS consistent with the accounting palicies set out in note 1of
the Group s consolidated financial statements *

) Revenue

Revenue which excludes value added tax, represents the gross inflow
of economic benefit from the Company s operating activities Revenue
15 measured at the fair value of the consideration receved or
receivable The Company’s main scurce of revenue i1s from icensing the
Company’s brand name asset to subsidiaries This revenue i1s
recognised on an accruals basis under the terms of relevant licensing
agreements

) Investment in subsidiaries

An Investment in a subsidiary 1s recogrised at cost less any provision
for impairment As permitted by section 133 of the Comparnies Act
2006 where the relief afforded under section 131 of the Companies
Act 2006 applies, cost 1s the aggregate of the nominal value of the
relevant number of the Company s shares and the fair value of any
other censideration given to acquire the share capital of the
subsidiary undertakings

B Investment income and finance costs

2013 2012
£m £m

Investment income

Investment income from subsidiaries 58 56
2013 2012
£m £m

C Profit before taxation
Employee henefits
The Company had il employees (2012 nil) during the year

Key management compensation
Ameunts paid to the Directors of the Cormnpany are disclosed inthe
Report on Directors’ remuneration on pages 48 to 56

D Taxation
1) Taxation recognised m the income statement
2013 202
£m Em
Current tax expense
Current year 37 46
Adjustment in respect of pricr years (4} -
Total current tax charge 25 46
Deferred tax expense
Qrigination and reversal of temperary dfferences L! 3
Adjustment in respect of prior years - 4)
Total deferred tax charge (credit) 4 O]
Taxation 30 a5
) Deferred tax recognised directly in equity
2013 2012
£m £m
Deferred tax (credit) charge on hedging activities (5) 1

ur) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The tax expense for the year 1s lower (2012 lower) than the expense
that would have been charged using the blended rate of corporation
tax in the UK (23 75%) applied to profit before tax The apphcable
enacted or substantively enacted effective rate of UK corporation tax
for the year was 23 75% (2012 255%) The differences are explained
below

Finance costs
- Interest payable and similar charges

Revolving Credit Facility {"RCF ) 2) (8)
Guaranteed Notes (see note H) (75) (&7
(78 {75)

- Other finance income (expense)

Remeasurement of borrowings and

borrowings-related derivative financial

instruments (not qualfying for hedge

accounting) 6 12
(Loss) gain ansing on denvativesina

designated farr value hedge accounting

relationship 22 42
Gain (loss) ansing on adjustment for hedged

itermn in a designated fair value hedge

accounting relationship 23 (G
17 12
(81) (63)

2m3 2012
£m Em

Profit before tax 1118 1047
Profit before tax multyplied by blended rate of
corporation taxin the UK of 23 75%
(2012 25 5%} 266 267
Effects of
MNon-taxable income (225} (224)
MNon-deductible expenditure - 5
Over provision in respect of prior years () “
Taxation 30 45

All taxation relates to UK corporation tax
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E Investments in subsidiaries

G Otherreceivables

£m 2013 2012
Cost £m £m
At July 201 9,061 Amountsrecevable from subsicdiaries 2566 1652
Additions 703  Prepayments and other receivables 1 -
Disposal (487) Current otherreceivables 2,967 1652
At 30 June 2012 9277  Non-current prepayment 3 3
Additions 573 Total other recewvables 2970 1655
Disposal (702} On 26 November 2012, the Company issued US$800 miliion
‘;:oilié‘:’"e 2013 8148 5 paranteed Notes with a coupon rate of 3125% and loaned proceeds
At1July 200 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2013 1005 to Briish Sky Broadcasting Limtted British Sky Broadcasting Limited

pays the same annual effective interest rate to the Company

Carrying amounts
At 1 July 201 8056  On S5 March 2009, the Company made a loan of £694 millon to British
At 30 June 2012 8272  Sky Broadcasting Limited which 1s repayable on demand and bears
At 30 June 2013 8143 nterest at arate of 6 month LIBOR plus 075% In October 2009 the

During the year, the Company purchased 100% of the share capital of
BSkyB LLU Assets Limited from its direct subsidiary BSkyB Finance
UK Ple The Company subsequently transferred its investment in
BSkyB LLU Assets Limited to its direct subsidiary British Sky
Broadcasting Limited

During the prior year the Company transferred its investment in
British Interactive Broadcasting Holdings Limited taits subsidiary
Briush Sky Broadcasting Limited Foliowing this transfer Baitish
Interactive Broadcasting Holdings Limited was put into iquidation

See note 31 for a list of significant investments of the Company

F Deferred tax
Recognised deferred tax labilities

Financial

nstruments

temporary

differences

£m
AL 1 July 201 [E))
Credit to Income 1
Charge to equity [4)]
AL 30 June 2012 (3)
Charge to income (4
Credit to equuty 6
At 30 June 2013 U]

At 30 June 2013, a deferred tax asset of £278 milton (2012 £299
million} has not been recognised in respect of capital losses related to
the Group's holding in KirchPayTV on the basis that utiisation of
these temporary differences is not probable At 30 June 2013 the
Company has also not recognised a deferred tax asset of £7 milhon
(2012 £8 millon) relating to capital losses and provisions in respect of
football club 1nvestments on the basis that it 1s not probable that
theywill be utilised

Company assigned £604 mithon of this loan to settle payables with
BSkyB Finance Limsted

0On 13 January 2009, the Company made aloan of £252 milion to
Britssh Sky Broadcasting Limited This loan bears interest at arate of 6
month LIBOR plus 100% and Is repayable on demand

0On 13 fanuary 2009 the Company made a loan of £91 million to Sky
In-Home Service Limited This loan is repayable on demand and bears
interest at a rate of 6 month LIBOR plus 100%

0On 24 November 2008, the Company 1ssued US$600 million
Guaranteed Notes with a coupon rate of 9 5% and loaned the
proceeds to BSkyB Finance Limited BSkyB Finance Limited pays the
same annual effective nterest rate to the Company

0On 29 June 2008, the Company entered Into loan agreements with
British Sky Broadcasting Limited for £143 million and £109 millon both
bearing interest at a rate of 1 month LIBOR plus 0 75% These loans
are repayable on demand

On 29 June 2008, Sky Ventures Limited transferred its £11 million loan
receivable from BSkyB Finance Limited to the Company This loan
bears interest at a rate of 1 month LIBOR plus D 75% and 1s repayable
ondemand

0On 29 June 2008 the Company entered into a RCF with BSkyB Finance
Limited worth £40 mithon Amounts loaned under this facility bear
interest at arate of 1 month LIBOR plus 0 75% and are repayable on
demand

On15 February 2008, the Company issued US$750 million Guaranteed
Notes with a coupon rate of 6100% and loaned the proceeds to
Bntish Sky Broadcasting Limited British Sky Broadcasting Limited
pays the same annual effective interest rate to the Company

All other amounts recevable from subsidiaries are non-interest
bearnng and are also repayable on demand

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of other receivables
appraximates ther far values
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued ;

32 BRITISH SKY BROADCASTING GROUP PLC COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

The Company's credit nisk 15 pnmarily attributable to its other recevables The majority of its other recelvables balance is due from British Sky
Broadcasting Limited The risk of this entity defaulting on amounts owed 1s considered low due tots successful operation of pay television
breadcasting and home communications services in the UK and Ireland

H Borrowings

2013 2012
£m Em
Non-current borrowings
US$750 million of 6100% Guaranteed Notes repayable in February 2018 498 495
USs4$582 8 million of 9 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in Novernber 2018 404 420
US$800 mullion of 3 125% Guaranteed Notes repayable in November 2022 520 -
£300 millon of 6 000% Guaranteed Notes repayable in May 2027 296 296
1,718 121
See note 20 for detalls of the Company's Guaranteed Motes and RCF and note 22 for detaits of Capital Rizk Management
| Other payables
2013 2012
£m £m
Other payables
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 3398 2746
Amounts owed to other related parties & 4
Other 10 6
Accruals 20 18
3434 2774

Amounts payable to subsidiaries are non-interest bearing and repayable on demand The balance comprises £1 898 million of non-interast
bearing loans {2012 £1,271 millon)and £1500 milhon of other payables (2012 £1475 milion} The Directors constder that the carrying amount
of other payables approximates their farr values

J Derivatives and other financial instruments

Fair values

Set out below 1$ a comparison of the carrying values and the estimated fair values of the Company's financial assets and financial hatlities at
30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012

2013 2013 2012 2012

carrying Fair Carrying Famr

value value valug value

£m £m Em £m

Financial assets and habilities held or 1ssued to finance the Company’s operations

Quoted bond debt (1,718 (1913) az2m (1411)

Dervative finanaal instruments 165 165 164 164
Other payables and receivables (487) (467) (1122) 122y

Tne fair values of financial assets and financial kabilities are determined as detaled in note 21 and all items held at fair value are classified as
Level 2.n the fair value hierarchy
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Set out befow are the denvative financal Instruments entered into by the Company to manage its mnterest rate and foreign exchange nsk

2013 2012
Asset Liabikity Asgset Liabiiity
Fair Value Notional  Fair Value Notronal FawValue  Notional  Fair Value Notional
£m Em £m £ £m £m £m Em
Farr value hedges
Interest rate swaps 65 505 - - 87 494 - -
Cash fiow hedges
Cross-currency swaps 86 746 - 47 80 250 - -
Denvatives not in a formal hedge relationship
Interest rate swaps 43 . 605 (42) 345 54 479 (54) 459
Cross-currency swaps 147 725 (134) 1018 163 724 {166) 1017
Total ELL 2,581 (176} 1,410 384 1987 220) 1476

Note 21 provides further details of the Group s derivative and other financial instruments

The maturnity of the derivative financial Instruments 1s shown below

2013 2012
Asset Liability Asset Liability
£m Em £m £m
Between two and five years 242 M2y 99 (99)
In more than five years 99 (64) 285 21y
Total 341 (176) 384 (220)

K Financial risk management

Interest rate and foreign exchange risk management

The Company manages 1ts exposure to interest rates and foreign exchange movements which arise from the Company s sources of finance by
selectively entering into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure The Company has also entered into derivative contracts on
behalf of 1ts subsidiary BSkyB Finance UK plc and has back-to-back intercompany contracts

Foreign exchange rnisk

The following analysis details the Company’s sensitivity to movements in pounds sterling against alf currencies sn which 1t has significant
transacuions The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated finanoal instrurnents and adjusts their
translation at the period end for a25% change in foreign currency rates

A 25% strengthening in pounds sterling against the US dollar would have an adverse impact on profit of £22 milion (2012 adverse impact of
£26 milhor) relating to non-cash movements in the valuation of derivatives The same strengthening would have an adverse impact on other
equity of £25 million (2012 adverse impact of E21 millien)

A 25% weakening in pounds sterling agamst the US dollar would have a beneficial impact on profit of £36 million (2012 beneficial impact of £43
millior) refating to non-cash movements in the valuation of derwatives The same weakening would have a beneficial impact on other equity of
£42 millon (2012 beneficial impact of £34 milhon)

S

Interest rate rnisk

The sensiivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both denvatives and non-derivative financial
instruments at the balance sheet date For floating rate habilies the analysis 1s prepared assuming the amount of lability outstanding at the
balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year

For each one hundred basis point nse or fall In interest rates at 30 June 2013, and If all other vanables were held constant the Company s profit
for the year ended 30 June 2013 would decrease or increase by £3 milhon (2012 decrease or increase by £3 million) and other equity reserves
would decrease or increase by £4 millkion (2012 decrease or increase by £4 milhon)

Aone hundred basis point rise or fall in interest rates represents a large but realistic movement which can easily be multiphed to give
sensitvities at different interest rates

The sensitivity analyses provided are hypothetical only and should be used with caution as the iImpacts provided are not necessarily indicative
of the actual impacts that would be experienced because the effect of achange 1n a particular market vaniable on fair values or cash flows 1s
calculated without considering interrelationships between the various market rates or mitigating actions that would be taken by the Company
In addition, the Company’s actual exposure to market rates changes as the Company’s portfolic of debt changes

The changes in valuations are estrmates of the impact of changes in market variables and are not a prediction of future events or anticipated
gains or losses
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

32 BRITISH SKY BROADCASTING GROUP PLC COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

Liquidity risk

See note 22 for the Company’s policy on hguidity management

The following table analyses the Company's non-dervative financial habilities net settled interest rate swaps and gross settled currency
swaps and collars into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows and may therefore not reconcile to the amounts disclosed on

the balance sheet for borrowings dervative financial instruments and other payables

Between Between
Less than one and twoand Morethan
12months  twoyears fiveyears fiveyears
£m £m £m £m
At 30 June 2013
Nen-dervative financial habiities
Bonds - USD 83 83 740 999
Bonds - GBP 18 18 54 452
Other payables 3434 - - -
Net settled denvatives
Financial assets 7) 7} {51) 6)
Gross settled derivatives
Outfiow 62 62 574 978
Inflow {63) (63} {682) {926)
Between Between
Less than one and twoancd  Morethan
2months  twoyears fiveyears fiveyears
Em £m £m £m

At 30 June 2012
Non-derivative financial hablites
Bonds - USD 65 65 185 938
Bonds - GBP 18 18 54 480
Other payables 2774 - - -
Net settled denvatives
Financial assets 8) (18} (56} (25)
Gross settled denvatives
Outflow 50 50 149 B840
Infiow 47y {47 (140) (913)

AL 30 June 2013, the Company had an undrawn £743 milion RCF with a matunty date of 31 October 2017 See note 20 for further information

L Notes to the Company statement of changes inequity

For details of share capital, share premium the special reserve the capital redemption reserve and the hedging reserve see notes 23 and 24

For details of the Company s share buy-back programmes, seg note 24

For details of dwvidends seenote9

Capital reserve

This reserve arose from the surplus on the transfer of trade and assets o a subsidiary undertaking
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M Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations

2013 2012

£m Em

Profit before tax s 1,047
Dmdend income (947) (874)

Net finance costs . 3 7
Increase in other recevables (174) (179)

Decrease in other payables - n
Cash generated from operations - -

N Contingent liabilities and guarantees

The Company and certain of its subsidianes have undertaken in the normal course of business to provide support to several of the Group's
investrments in both limted and unlimited companies and partnerships, to meet therr labilities as they falidue Several of these undertakings
contain maximum financial imits These undertakings have been given for at least one year from the date of the signing of the UK statutory
acccunts of the related entity A payment under these undertakings would be required in the event of an investment being unable to pay its
kabilitres

The Company has provided parent company guarantees In respect of the vanous contracts entered into with the Premier League by British Sky
Broadcasting Limited covering the 2013/14 to 2015116 football seasons In each case the guarantee covers all payment obligations now or inthe
future due owing or incurred by British Sky Broadcasting Limited under the contracts and all habilities now or in the future ansing or incurred
under the indemnity given to the Premier League by British Sky Broadcasting Limited under the contracts

The Company has provided a parent company guarantee inrespect of the contract entered into with Bntish Sky Broadcasting Limited and
Stanhope plc in relation to the construction of a new Meeting Centre at the Osterley Campus The guarantee covers all performance
obligations and payment obligations imposed on British Sky Broadcasting Limited under that contract

The Company has guarantees in place relating to the Groups borrowings, see note 20 and in relation to audit exernptions, see note 3t

O Transactions with related parties and major shareholders

2013 202

£Em Em

Supply of services to subsidiaries 214 200

Interest receved from funding to subsidiaries : 58 56

Amaunts owed by subsidianes + 2966 1652
Amounts owed to subsidianies (3,398) (2 746)
Amounts owed to other related parties (6) ()]

The Company has related party transactions with its subsidiaries by wirtue of Its status as parent company of the Group In particular 1tis
normaf treasury practice for the Company to lend and borrow cash to and from its subsidiaries as required Under this policy British Sky
Broadcasting Limited settled habilities of £74 millon {2012 £67 millior) on behalf of the Company during the year Interest 1s earned on certan
loans to subsidiaries

The Company recognised £214 million (2012 £200 millhon) for hcensing the Sky brand name to subsichanes
The Company recognised dmvidends during the year from subsidianes totalling £947 mullion (2012 £874 rullion)

Share buy-back programme
During the year, the Company purchased and subsequently cancelled 31525 314 ordinary shares held by Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc
(formerly known as News Corporation) as part of 1ts share buy-back programme For further details see note 24

The Group's related party transactions are disclosed in note 28

P Events after the reporting period
On 25 July 2013 the Board agreed to seek the necessary approvals to return a further £500 million of capital to shareholders via a share
buy-back programme For further detarls see note 30 to the consolidated financial statements
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Group financial record - unauited

Consolidated results

Below 1s selected financial information for the Group under IFRS as at and for each of the five years ended 30 June 2013

Year Year Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2013 2012 20m 2000 2009
Consolidated Income Statement £m £m Em £m Em
Continuing operations
Retall subscription 5951 5593 547 4778 4187
Wholesale subscription 385 351 323 238 206
Advertising 440 440 458 340 329
Installation hardware and serwce 87 98 T2 174 235
Other 361 309 233 179 200
Revenue® 7235 673 6 597 5,709 5157
Operating expense ™ (5544) (5,548) (5,524} (4,865) (4315)
Liugation settlement income - - - 269 -
Operatng profit 1291 1243 1,073 1113 842
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 46 39 34 32 19
Investment income on litgation settlement - - - 49 -
Investment income 28 18 9 3 35
Finance costs (108} an am (122) {220)
Impairment of avallable-for-sale investment - - - - asm
Profit on disposal of avalable-for-sale investment - - ] 115 -
Profit before tax 1257 1189 1014 1190 485
Taxation 278) (283 {256) (294) (194)
Profit for the year from continuing operations a79 906 758 896 251
Discontinued operations
Profit (loss) for the year from discontinued operations - - 52 (18) (32)
Profit for the year 979 906 810 878 259
Net profit {loss) recognised directly in equity 125 654 | 61 134
Total comprehensive income for the year 1108 970 802 939 353
Earnings per share from profit for the year (in pence)
Basic 607p 526p 46 5p 50 4p 149p
Diluted 597p S22p 456p 501p 14 8p
Dividends per share (in pence) 300p 254p 233p 1S 4p 176p
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2013 2012 201 2010 2009
Consobhdated Balance Sheet £m £m £m Em £fm
Non-current assets 3776 3234 3,025 2818 2632
Current assets 2569 2,275 2329 1985 1937
Total assets 6345 5508 5,354 4804 4569
Current habilities (2317) (2,098) (1912) (1707) (2194)
MNon-current habiities (3016} (24867) (2407) (2537) (2439)
Net assets {labilities) 1012 944 1035 560 {&4)
Number of shares in issue (in milliens) 1594 1674 1753 1753 1753
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Consolidated results continued

Year Year Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended ended
30 tune 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2013 2012 20m 2010 2009
Statistics _ (000} (000 (000} (000) (000
Products
LY 10422 10288 10187 5860 9442
SkytHD 4786 4343 3822 2939 1313
Multiroom 2489 2402 2250 2121 1835
Sky Go Extra 156 - - - -
Broadband 4906 4,000 3335 2624 2203
Telephony 4 501 3768 3101 2,367 1850
Line rental 4,364 3583 2680 1686 (N7
Total paid-for subscription products 31,634 28,365 25 375 21597 17.560
Customers
Retail customers n1s3 10606 10294 5868 9442
Wholesa'e customerst®? 3677 3,672 3522 327 3160
Total customers 14830 14.278 13,816 13,139 12 602
Average number of full-time equivalent employees 15413 17937 16 006 16439 14,922
Notes

) Included within retal subscription revenue for the year ended 30 June 200915 £36 millon of additional revenue reprasenting amounts inveiced in prior years which did not meet
revenue recognition criteria under IFRS untll March 2009

(1} Included wathin operating expense for the year ended 30 June 20135 a credit of £32 mililonin relation to a credit note freceived following an Ofcom determination a cradit of
£33 mullien relating Lo the final settlement of disputes with a former manufacturer of set-top bores (net of associated costs), costs of F31 million ralating to ane-off upgrade of
set-top boxes costs of £33 million relating to a corporate efficiency programme and costs of E15 millien relating to the acquisition and Integration of the 02 consumer broadband
and fixed-ing telephony business Alsoincludaed are costs of £25 million refating to the programme to offer wireless connectors toselected Sky Movies customers
Includad within operating expense for the year ended 30 June 2012 15 a credit of E3Tmilhon in relatien to the Mews Corporation (subsequently renamed Twenty First Century Fox
Inc) preposal n 200 consisting of costs incurred of fset by the receipt of the break fee Also included are restructuring costs of E11 millon which comprise severance payments n
relation to approamately 35 senior roles as part of a restructuring imbiative to iImprove operating efficiency
Included within operating expense for the year ended 30 June 20111 £26 million of restructuring costs ansing on the acquisition of Living 1V which comprise principaly
redundancy payments and the early termination of a pre-acquisition contract, £15 million of costs nrelation to the News Corporation (subsequentiy renarmed Twenty First
Century Fox Inc) propasal and a credit of £41milon inrelation to the refund of import duty on set-top boxes paid out in prior years This duty was recovered due to the judgment
given by the ECJon 4 April 201
included within operating experse for the year ended 30 June 2010 1s £32 million of expense relating to arestructunng exercise of which £22 million related to the impairment of
assets associated with Pt (the potentral launch of a subscnption television service on DTT) and £40 million related to reorgarusation costs and redundancy payments Also
ncluded within operating expense for the year ended 30 June 20101s £1mithon 2009 £3 mithon) of expense relating to legal costs ncurred anthe Group s clam aganst EDS
which provided servicas to the Group as part of the Groups fnvestment in customer management systems software and infrastructure and a £5 milhon credit (2009 nil) related
tothe cancellation of accounts payable an settlemert of the claim against EDS

(m) Wholesalg customers are customers who take 8 package from one of Sky's Whalesale Partners inwhich they receive at least one paid for Sky channel

Factors which materially affect the comparabilrty of the selected financlal data

Discontinued operations

Duning fiscal 201, the Group sold its business-to-business telecommunications operation Easynet, to LDC

EDS Litigation settlement

During fiscal 2010 EDS and the Group fully and finatly settied the itigation between them and all related clams (including for damages, costs
and interest) for a total amount of £318 million .

Available-for-sale investment

During fiscal 2011 we disposed of our equity investment in Shine and recognised a profit of £2 million .
During fiscal 2010 we disposed of part of our equity investment in ITV and recognised a profit on disposal of £115 millon For further details see
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements

Duning fiscal 2009, we recorded an impatrment loss of £191 million in the carrying value of our equity Investment i ITV

Business combinations

During fiscal 2013 we completed the acquisition of the O2 consumer broadband and fixed-line telephony business from Telefénica UK,
comprising 100% of the share capital of Be Un Limited The results of this acquisition were consolidated from the date on which control passed
to the Group (30 Apnl 2013)

During fiscal 20N, we completed the acquisitions of Living TV and The Cloud The results of these acquisitions were consolidated from the date
on which control passed to the Group (12 July 2010 and 23 February 2011 respectively)

Exchange rates

Asignificant portion of our labilities and expenses associated with the cost of programming acquired from US film hicensars together with

set-top box costs are denominated in US dollars For a discussion of the impact of exchange rate movements on our financial condition and
results of operations see note 22 to the consolidated financial statements
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Non-GAAP measures

All continuing operations

Reconcliliation of operating profit to adjusted operating profit and adjusted EBITDA
for the year ended 30 June 2013

2013 2012 20n
Notes £m Em £m
Operating profit 1291 1243 1,073
Credit recetved following final settlement of disputes wath a former manufacturer of set-top boxes
including an impairment of £6 mill:on in relation to associated intangible assets 3 (33) - -
Costs relating to a corporate effiaency programme including an impairment of £6 milton in refation to
associated intangible and tangible assets 3 33 - -
Credit received following an Ofcom determination 3 (32) - -
Costs relating to one-off upgrade of set-top boxes 3 3 - -
Costs relating to programme to offer wireless connectors to selected Sky Movies customers 3 25 - -
Costs relating to the acquisition and integration of the O2 consumer broadband and fixed-line
telephony business Including amortisation of £4 million in relation to associated intangible assets 3 15 - -
(Net recovery of) costs In relatron to News Corporation (subsequently renamed Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc)
proposal 3 - (31 15
Costs relating to a restruciunng exerose 3 - Ll -
Living TV restructuring costs - - 26
Recovery of import duty on set-top boxes - - (41)
Adjusted EBITDA 1,692 1567 1,405
Depreciation and amortisation (362) (344 {(332)
Adjusted operating profit 1,330 1223 1,073
Reconciliation of cash generated from operations to adjusted free cash flow
for the year ended 30 June 2013
- 2013 2012 20m
Note Em £Em £m
Cash generated from operations 25 1877 1737 1,569
Interest received 29 17 7
Taxation paid (300) (254) (219)
Dividends recelved from joint ventures and associates 43 El] 29
Net funding to joint ventures and assoaates 4) ()] @
Purchase cf property plant and equipment (203) (228} (1973
Purchase of intangible assets (251) (229) (226)
Interest paid (128) (125) (124)
Free cash flow 1,063 951 835
Recerpt followsng final settlement of disputes with a former manufacturer of set-top boxes® (10} - -
Cash paid relating to a corporate efficiency programme 4 - -
Receipt following an Ofcom determination™ (28) - -
Cash paid relating to cne-off upgrade of set-top boxes® 7 - -
Cash paid relating to pragramme to offer wireless connectors to selected Sky Movies customers™ ¥ - -
Cash paid relating to the acquisition and integration of the 02 consumer broadband and fixed-line
telephony business 4 - -
(Net recovery of)costs in relation to News Corporation (subsequently renamed Twenty-First Century
Fox inc)proposal® - (13) 2
Cash paid relating to arestructuring exercise - 3 6
Recovery of import duty on set-top boxes™ - {25) -
Receipt on disposal of joint venture™ 3) &) -
Living TV restructuring Costs . - - 26
Adjusted free cash flow 1028 910 869

() Netof applicable corporaticn tax
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2]

MANAD) HSDT

Average Revenue Per User (ARPU)

-
for the year ended 30 June 2013 §
2013 2012 20m 3
Em £m £m é
ARPU as previously reported nfa 548 539 <
Impact of standalone home communicationst’ - - (5)
Benefit of zero-VAT magazine related income - - 3
Elmination of iming difference related to magazine closure®? - - 7
ARPU 577 548 538 -

{i) Wahaverestated ARPU toinclude standalone home communications customers

() We previously recognised the benefit ansing from the zero rated VAT treatment on a small pertion of customer revenue attnbutable to the Sky magazine Following closure of the
magazine we hay e restated the comparatves to present on a kke for-1ke basis

(n) Following our decision to dose the Sky customer magazing a one-off timing upside was reversed which related to revenue recognition of the magazine element of subscription
revenue This equated to a E7 reduction to ARPUIN 201

P LAY
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Shareholder information

Annual General Meeting

Tha Company’s AGM will be held on 22 November 2013 at 11 00am at
the Ednburgh International Conference Centre The Exchange
Edinburgh EH3 8EE '

Financlal calendar
Results for the financial year ending 30 June 2074 will be published

17 October 2013
30 January 2014*
1 May 2014~

25 July 2014*

* provisicnal dates

The Sky website

Shareholders are encouraged to visit the Sky website sky com which
has a wealth of information about the Company There 15 a section
designed specifically for investors at sky com/corporate where
Investor and media information can be accessed This year's Annual
Repaort and Annual Review and prior year documents can be viewed
there

Share price information
The Company’s share price can be found on the Company's corporate
website at sky com/corporate

Shareholder enquiries

The Company’s shareholder register 1s maintained by its Registrar
Equiniti tnformation on how to manage your shareholdings can be
found at help shareview couk The pages at this web address provide
the following

> Answers to commonly asked questions regarding shareholder
registration,

> Links to downloadable farms guidance notes, and Company history
fact sheets

> Achoice of contact methods - via ermall, phone or writing

Alternatively shareholders can contact Equinitiin relation to all
administrative enquiries relating to therr shares such as a change of
personal detatls, the loss of a share certificate or an out-of-date
dividend cheque

Shareholders can contact Equiniti at

Equiniti Limited

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lanang

West Sussex

BNS9 6DA

Telephone 0871384 2030

Telephone number from outside the UK +44 121 4157047

* Calls to the above number are charged at 8p per minute from a BT landline Other
telephony providers costs may vary Lines are open from 8 30am to 5 30pm Monday
tofrnday

Electronic shareholder communication

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and the
Company’s articles of association the Company 1s permitted to use
1ts corporate website as the main way to communicate with
shareholders, sending out Annual Reports only to those who have
opted toreceve a paper copy This reduces our impact on the
environment minimises waste and reduces costs [t also enables

shareholders to keep updated with developments at Sky as they
happen by accessing our website

Sharghotders who have opted to receive shareholder commurications
In paper formare encouraged to receive these electronically in future
by registening at shareview co uk Shareholders can also change their
Instructions at any time by contacting Equiniti Limited

Dividends

Shareholders can have their dividends paid directly into a UK bank or
building society account with the tax voucher sent directly to their
registered address Please contact Equinition 0871384 209t for a
dividend mandate form

The Company operates a consohdated tax voucher service for
shareholders who have chosen to receve divdends directly Into thesr
bark account A single consolidated tax voucher will be maited by the
end of November each year, to coincde with the final dvidend
payment Full detais are available at corporate skycom

Overseas dividend payments

A service has been established to prowvide shareholders inover 30
countries worldwide with the opportunity to receive thelr dividends in
their local currency For a small flat-rate fee, shareholders can have
their dividends automatically converted from Sterling and paid into
their nominated bank account normally within five workingdays of -
the divicdend payment date For further details, please contact

Equinitt on 0871384 2091

Dwvidend Remvestment Plan

The Company operates a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (' DRIP"ywhich
enables shareholders to buy the Company’s shares on the Landen
stock market with their cash dividend Further information about the
DRIP 15 available from Equiniti The helpline number s 0871 384 2268
from inside the UK and +44 121 415 7173 from overseas

ShareGift

Shareholders who only have a small number of shares whose value
makes It uneconomic te sell them may wish to consider denating
them tachanty through ShareGift, the independent charity share
donation scheme {registered charity no 1052686) Further
information about ShareGift may be obtained from Equinit or from
ShareGift on 020 7930 3737 or at sharegift org. There are no
implications for capital gains tax purposes (no gam or [oss) on gifts of
shares to chanty and it 1s also possible to clam income tax relief

Shareholder fraud

Fraud 1s on the increase and many shareholders are targeted every

year if you have any reason to believe that you may have been the

target of a fraud, or attempted fraud in relation to your shareholding

please contact Equiniti immediately For more information please see
protect your shareholding” in the shareholder information section of

our website at corporate skycom

American Depositary Receipts ("ADRs"™)

The Company’s ADR programme trades on the over-the-counter
("OTC™ymarket in the US The Company’s ADRs are quoted onthe OTC
market s highest tier Internaticnal PrermierQX More infermation can
be obtained from, otcgx com ADRs are guoted in US dollars and trade
st hke any other US security The Company has a sponsored Level 1
ADR prograrmme for which The Bank of New York Mellon acts as
Depositary One ADR represents four ordinary shares
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All enquirtes relating to the Company’s ADRs should be addressed to

BNY Mellon

PO Box 43006 Providence, RI 02940-3006, U5 A
US residents (888) 260 2377

if resident outside the US +1201680 6825
emall shrrelations@bnymellon com

Company’s registered office
Grant Way

Isleworth

Middlesex

TW75QD

Telephone 0333100 0333
Overseas +44 333100 0333

Company registration number
2247735

Chartered Accountants
Deloitte LLP

2 New Street Square
London

EC4A 3BZ

Principal bankers

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc
St Andrew’s Square
Edinburgh

EH2 2YB

Solicitors

Herbert Smith Freehills LLP
Exchange House

Primrose Street

London

EC2A2EG

.

British Sky Broadcasting Group pk 117

v
=
o
-]
]
]
-
a
[c]
2
ES
)
E)
g,
]
3

MDIAR PLUPUIY

FIUBUISA0G

o,

130 A



Annual Report 2013 Glossary of terms

Glossary of terms

Useful Definitions Description

215t Century Fox UK Following the spiit of the News Corporation companies on 28 June 2013 News UK Nominees Limited has been

Nominees Ltd renamed 215t Century Fox UK Nominees Linited

ADSL2+ The type of broadband supplied over Sky's own data network offering end-users increased speeds compared tothe
original ADSL technology (ADSL2+ typically of fers download speeds of up to 15 mbps)

Bonus channel A channel prowded to a TV customer in addition to one or more subscription channels, but at no iIncremental cost to
the TV customer

BSkyB or the British Sky Broadcasting Group plc

Company

Churn The number of total customers over a given period that terminate their subscription in its entirety, net of former
customers who reinstated their subscription in that period (where such reinstatement 1s within a 12-month period of
the termination of their, original subscription) expressed as an annuabsed percentage of total average customers for
the period

e Carbon dioxide equivalent This expresses the global warming potential of different greenhouse gases (for example
methane, nitrous oxicde) In terms of the equivalent amount of carbon dioxide measured in tonnes

DSL Digital Subscriber Line

BTH Direct-to-Home the transmission of sateliite services and functicnality with reception through a minidish  DTH
customer’ means a subscriber ta one or more of our retailed packages of television channels made available
via DTH

DTT Digital Terrestrial Television digital signals delivered to homes through a conventional aenal, converted through a
set-top box or integrated digital telewsion set

EBITDA Earnuings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation 1s calculated as operating profit before
depreciation amortisation and impairment of property plant and equipment and intangible assets

EPG Electronic Programme Guide )

ESOP Employee Share Qwnership Plan

ESPN Entertaimment and Sports Programming Network broadcasting the ESPN ESPN Classic ESPN Amenca and ESPN HD

Channels

Fiscal year or fiscal

Refers ta the twelve maonths ended on the Sunday nearest to 30 June of the given year

Freeview The free-to-air DTT offering available in the UK i

Freesat The free-to-air DTH joint venture between the BBCand TV

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

The Group BSkyB and its subsidiary undertakings

HD High Definition television

HMRC Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

IP Internet Protocol a mechamism by which data packets may berouted between computers on a network

1PTV Internet Protocol Television

Ly Local Loop Unbundling a process by which BT's exchange lines are physicalty disconnected from BT's network and
connected to other operators netwerks This enables operators other than BT to use the BT local loop to provide
services to customers

Minidish Satellite dish required to recetve digital satelite television

MMDS Multipoint Microwave Distribution Service

MPF Metalic Path Faciities which oceur where a single communications provider uses the local loop to provide both
broadband and voice services over Its network

Multiroom ~ Instaliation of an additional set-top box In the household of an existing DTH customer

NOWTV The Group s iInternet streaming service available to anyone inthe UK with an internet connection regardless of ISP
This service 15 currently availlable on PC, Mac the XBox 360, PlayStation 3, YouView and Roku set-top boxes, and
selected Android devices

NVN MNew Voice Network

Ofcom UK Office of Commurnications

OnDemand Sky’s On Demand service offering a selection of content from across the Sky platform available for customers to

watch whenever they want The full On Demand service 15 availlable to customers that have an active broadband
connaciion
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Useful Definitions

Description

PL

Premier League

Premiurmn Channels The Sky Premium Channels and the Premium Sky Chstrnibuted Channals

Premium Sky Distributed MUTV Chelsea TV and MGM HD

Channels

PVR Personal Video Recorder satellite decoder which utiises a built-in hard disk drive to enable viewers to record without
videotapes pause live television and record one programme while watching ancther

RCF Revolving Credit Facility

Set-top box Digital satelite equipment, responsible for recenving, converting and sending the picture and sound of a broadcast to
the associated television set

Sky British Sky Broadcasting Group plc and its subsidiary undertakings

Skyt Sky's fully-integrated PVR and satellite decoder

Skyt HD High Definition box with PVR functionality

Sky Basic Channels Sky1 Sky 2 Pick TV Challenge Sky News Sky Sports Mews, Sky Arts 1and Sky Arts 2, Sky Pokercom Sky Living, Sky
Living It and Sky Atlantic (and their multiplex versions and tineir simulcast HD versiens)

Sky Bet Sky's betung services pravided through set-top boxes the internet and via phone

Sky Broadband Home broadband service previously provided exclusively for Sky digital customers but now extended to customers
who do not take a television service from Sky

Sky Box Office Our pay-per-view service of fering movies sporting events and concerts generally offered at scheduled times on our
36 dedicated linear channels

Sky Channels Telewision channels wholly-owned by the Group being the Sky Basic Channels and Sky Premium Channels

Sky Distributed Telewvision channels owned and broadcast by third parties, retailed by the Group to TV Customers

Channels

Sky Go Sky s retalied packages of television channels and on demand content made available via a broadband connection
including the version made available to mobile devices via a wireless or 3G connection

Sky Go Extra Selected content includied within Sky s retaled packages of televtsion channels and on demand content made
avallable to download, enabling customers to watch the content when and wherever they want, without the need for
a broadband, wireless or 3G/4G connection

Sky Mobile Sky's retarled packages of telewision channels made available to mobile devices via a wireless or 3G connection and
our Sky Mobile TV platform

Sky Premium Sky Sports 1 Sky Sports 2 Sky Sports 3, Sky Sport 4 Sky Sports F1, Sky Movies Premiere Sky Movies Showcase, Sky

Channels Movies Comedy Sky Movies Family, Sky Movies Action & Adventure Sky Movies 007, Sky Movies SciFi & Horror, Sky
Mawvies Drama & Romance Sky Movies Crime & Thriller Sky Movies Disney and Sky Movies Select {and their multiplex
versions and their stmulcast HD versions) and Sky 30

Sky Store Qur pay-per-view, on demand movies rental service avaslable via Sky On Demand and Sky Go

Sky Talk Home telephony service provided for Sky digital subscribers and now extended to customers who do not take a
television service from Sky

Sky WiFI Sky's seamless wireless internet access provided at over 20 000 The Cloud hotspots inthe UK

SMPF Shared Metallic Path Facility

Standalone home Sky's retailed packages of broadband talk and line rental when taken without a televiston subscription package

communications

Transponder Communication devices on satellites which send programm:ng signais to mini dishes

TV Customer A paying subscriber to one or more of cur TV services principally DTHand NOW TY

Twenty-First Century Following the split of the News Corporation companies on 28 June 2013, News Corporation has been renamed

Fox, Inc. Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc

Viewing share Number of people viewing a channel as a percentage of total viewing audience

VM Virgin Media

References to "US dollars” "dollars” “US$”, *$” and “¢* are to the currency of the United States ("US™) references to "euro” and “€” are to the
currency of the participating European Union { EU' }countries and references to ‘pounds sterling’ "£°, “pence” and ‘p” are to the currency of

the UK
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Further information

Accessibility

If you would Iike advice regarding accessibiity of this docurnent
pleasa contact the Accessible Customer Service teamon

0844 241 0333 or TextPhone on 0844 241 0535

Customers in ROH should use telephene number 0818 7188 09
and Textphone number 0818 71 98 49

The 2013 BSkyB Annual Review and Annuat Report are available to view
or download at sky com/corporate

To find out more about howwe are building a better and more sustainable
business for thetong term wvisit sky comibiggerpicture and download the
Seeing the bigger picture Summary Report 2013
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